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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

sft ta.E
3R] F gAY fAevIh

[ERRIpreircay

T3 T S i A e qer A 2013-14 F o fawdta
foraroT JEqe S gU ST yHe &1 W 8| H o & e 9
& 1l fsaran qe facfta Sohae! o T Teash @ 3Tk a1
TS AT AR

MY ulgea:

fed & auf § qRdrg stdferawar 3=a qEEwifa ar &4 iy
Ft At T B G B g A0l R F TSR 2
gRomreEsy SfEdt 2011-12 % 6.7% | fiRa 2012-13
7 4.5% & W A 2013-14 & fou SiErd o 5.3%
SR 21| e W 3o feaftat § e o wwror i
et TIfd % ArEter & o B [36a 8 | iy &7 3 Halvseh
TAYT q9T SHA HEH F A ¥ e e e 2
St Al S O Wha B, B &7 S =07 J9w8
I YU, T 1 =T 4T FIHITd 1 (5T S & forg
TR 5N 32T T 3] Hed § Teeaawe] & U’ & 79 T
clle 4T HIRIER AAEL0T GET T91 ST o STE(ILaT 6
e I ST 2 |

Shri. M. Narendra
Chairman and Managing Director

Dear Shareholders,

I have great pleasure in presenting your Bank’s Annual Report
and financial statements for the year 2013-14. | would like
to share with you the performance highlights and financial
indicators of the Bank during the year.

Economic Scenario:-

The Indian economy has been through challenging times for
the past two years, faced with the twin problem of prolonged
high inflation and low growth. The consequence of this
resulted in decline of GDP growth from 6.7 percent in 2011-
12 to 4.5 percent in 2012-13. The GDP growth for 2013-14
is projected at 5.3%. Bank had operated in an environment
of subdued growth caused by slump in general economic
conditions throughout the year. Agriculture sector performed
well due to satisfactory monsoon and the absence of
extreme climatic conditions. The concrete steps taken by
the Government to revive industrial activities, improve the
flow of credit to agricultural sector, contain rupee volatility
and inflation are expected to put the economy on recovery
path and improve the business climate and boost consumer
confidence.

Performance Highlights - 2013-14

The performance details of the Bank during the year under
review are as under:

Business Parameters ®. in Crores)

Growth 2013-14

31.03.2014 | 31.03.2013

RIS et HeTeh 2013-14

geftenefta o & S e % el e & =R e B-

HRER 7SS (%. s ¥)

31.03.2014 | 31.03.2013 7% 201314
T %

vfs Hraar | 409,057 366501| 42,556 11.61
AfYereh SaTd 227976 2,02,135| 25841 1278
3fyas sy 181,081 164366 16715| 1017
TR T 3,997 3817 180 472

31 19 2014 F GEE &9 & U SF H faer org 31w
2013 & FAE a9 & FIC 567.23 FUE F a1 § FIC
601.74 HUE @I

31 9719 2014 T 9% &1 el 99 31.3.2013 H %90 61,417
FUE G TZH &, 70,237 HUE & T4

Amount %
Global Business 4,09,057| 3,66,501| 42,556 11.61
Global Deposits 2,27976| 2,02,135| 25,841 12.78
Global Advances 1,81,081| 1,64,366| 16715 10.17
Operating Profit 3,997 3,817 180 472

Net Profit of the Bank for the year ended 31.03.2014 stood
at Rs 601.74 crore against . 567.23 Crore for the year ended
31.03.2013.

Net investments of the Bank increased to %. 70,237 crore as
on 31.03.2014 from . 61,417 crore as on 31.03.2013.

Branch Expansion:-

The domestic branch net work of the Bank crossed the
milestone mark of 3000 on 17.08.2013. As on 31.03.2014, the
Bank had 3265 domestic branches, as against 2902 branches
as on 31.03.2013, comprising of 985 rural branches (30.17%
to total branches), 904 Semi Urban branches (27.68%), 728
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IRET faar

% % e W 4eae 4 17.08.2013 =t 3,000 3 Feqol
TeTE S IR fRAT1 31.03.2013 & 2902 w@ned #t qa §
31.03.2014 =it 5% Ft 3265 R wr@ § 54 985 w0y
W (et W B 30.17%), 904 37 vl wmwEnd
(27.68%), 728 ¥Rl IMAW (22.30%) T 648 HRHATA
e (19.85%) &1

31.03.2014 @ 3265 @Rl & SFerEr §% & 59 &5t
FrEferd, 3 IymEd, 20 92dre HEed, 39 et 3%
Fraferd, 33 @Rd GaU S (FRTerdd), 18 THTHuHg
T 3 791 6 FRiee 8|

QIR H Y IIRAT Heaeh & agH ad s Hgfg & fo
o SR fhT TT IHE WA Fedl § @i aram faer u
219 & S o 3 S A 363 W Wieft & 1 9% 2013-14
& A et 363 wmEed # ¥ 232 I (63.91%) wHvT g
g vedt el | o & o | 98 wraTd de Wed arftor s
H fRyd &1 g9 7 Urare 3 AU GaY a9 q971 g9 ket
% JHR g 92 I A9 H A M 924 § 5 i qoed
N1 31.03.2014 T IR % Geft U1 H e 1 @ A2aeh
21 TS et § S{1Ed e A 45 9w € 1 9 & 374 d
Ak o U 222 I ARYEY 9 | 371 SEAHT aadH= a9 & I
foRaT ST ST AR =R ¥ Aeaeh & 3,500 % IR & ST |

faufar &= & wfshan & faehalatoT, 0T GO 8 2 SRS
T S FH B TN A-3 FSE H a1 g i e § g
3 o o S 19 @G G g, 9 THUHUAE HHTEE g 4T
8 ft 9 37ifted @it €1

3= FATRAT
> HHE faa o F0T H wreafirehar & 1w &
i SEftene 8 & =Fad 40 FfeE & qer §
40.03% I

> o & iy KT udwferE 3 aemeh af § g
23393 HE § T 26,254 HAT T S0 gL T
2861 HUE (12.23%) &t 9fg & * 2| THEIS
et 5% 01 § T AT B % I 18.10% T
AT 18% o HHEE o U B foran | e = iy &7 § 07
JATE i TEM & foTT % HeH 32T

> 31 9 2014 7% THURE & § A% P FA Saw
23.02% #t g5 2 % gL 31.03.2013 % %. 19,976
FE & Il 8. 24,575 HUS @

> FRER gfa wHer 31.03.2013 & 12.88 HUE &9
F T H 31.03.2014 Ft TR 13.67 FAS TUT &
T

> Hehe! AT 31.03.2013 & %.6607.96 HUE & Ffd
31.03.2014 =t &. 9020.48 FE & AT T FfTITrem
7 Ted T e 31.03.2013 & 4.02% % fd
31.03.2014 &t 4.98%

> Trae wadie 31.03.2013 & £.4027.21 FUE & Ui
31.03.2014 &I €. 5658.12 FAG &1 AT TN Ffer9rerem A
Tereret Tt S{ar shAsT: 3.20% 1 2.50% Sfeema o

N %

A

Urban branches (22.30%) and 648 Metropolitan branches
(19.85%).

Apart from 3265 branches, as on 31.03.2014, the Bank
had 59 Regional Offices, 3 Extension Counters, 20 Satellite
Offices, 39 City Back Offices, 33 Rapid Retail entres (RLPCs),
18 MSME Processing Centres and 6 Inspectorates.

Rapid branch expansion continues to be one of the major
strategic initiatives taken by the Bank for augmenting its
pan India branch net work and organic growth. During the
year, the Bank opened 363 branches across the country.
Out of 363 branches opened during 2013-14, 232 branches
(63.91%) are located in Rural and Semi Urban centres, of
which 98 branches are located in Unbanked Rural Centres.
These new branches have enabled the Bank to enhance new
relationships and spread our presence and net work farther
and wider. As on 31.03.2014, the Bank has branch network in
all the States in India. The average CASA in the new branches
is about 45%. As at the end of the year, the Bank had 222
branch licenses in hand. These would be utilized during the
course of the current year, which would take our domestic
branch network beyond 3500.

In order to decentralize the decision making process, reduce
the turnaround time for credit delivery and increase efficiency
in transaction handling, the Bank opened 19 Rapid Retail
Centres, 9 MSME Processing Centres and 8 City Back Offices
during the year.

Other Highlights:-

» The percentage of priority sector advances to
Adjusted Net Bank Credit stood at 40.03% as against
RBI norms of minimum 40%.

» The agricultural credit portfolio of the Bank
registered a growth of %. 2,861 crore (12.23%) from
. 28,393 crore to . 26,254 crore in the year under
review. The Bank’s ratio of agricultural advances
to Adjusted Net Bank Credit stood at 18.10% and
exceeded the 18% norm. The Bank took a number
of initiatives to increase the flow of credit to the Agri
sector.

» The total exposure of the Bank as on March 31, 2014
to SME sector stood at T. 24,575 crore as against
. 19,976 crore as on 31.03.2013 registering a growth
of 23.02%.

» Business per employee increased from Rs 12.88
crore as on 31.03.2013 to %. 13.67 crore as on
31.03.2014.

» Gross NPA stood at %. 9020.48 crore as on 31.03.2014
as against . 6607.96 crore as on 31.03.2013 and in
percentage terms, the Gross NPA ratio was 4.98% as
on 31.03.2014 as against 4.02% as on 31.03.2013.

> Net NPA stood at %. 5,658.12 crore as on 31.03.2014
as against %. 4027.21 crore as on 31.03.2013. In
percentage terms, the Net NPA ratio was 3.20% and
2.50% respectively.

» A final dividend of 5% has been recommended by
the Board of Directors for the year 2013-14 in addition
to interim dividend of 7% paid during Feb 2014.

» Provision Coverage Ratio stood at 54.94% as on
31.03.2014

=/




> B 2014 % S Yo 7% & SFART A F qe
a¥ 2013.14 & fo fadwes ded 570 5% & sifeaw
AT F T & T |

> 31.03.2014 F UTGLT Akt SITUTE 54.94% |

> UStt uatwar st
31.03.2014 & <% F1 gt qafear o s/ 11 JEs
% IFER 10.78% T 1 o sTRatems g fAeifa 9% =i
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PR IET)
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FATHYEAT ahl URA o 3UTT :

T H GERA & JATHT o 379 o §7 F o FT I
forfeR smeifor o, WXt fyfam & ded Uehqed e
e HRAE A A I @l 4 it st & s

Eac Wagﬁﬁmﬁawﬁaﬁmeﬁw
F AT R G AR

ferasft aftemer:

AR foeeft uftarer & dae & gar w7 Syot faeef smard
- & g dfete §, MR, 2t q TaHih

F 1-1 81 99 & T G, R F gAn fagyer iy oft €
ITET 2013 & S Ak 7 et § fadR HSe 1 353
39 R fafams o T19 v o faa e sftefan o
IETeT # e a2 8 T 2

o o gfafrer srafed argy(E), & =t e et (fraem)
ﬁﬂTWW(i&?)ﬁﬁiﬁ%lgﬁ%‘,ﬁ'ﬂﬁﬂWﬁmiﬁ?ﬁw
gfafafy Fraferal &1 Yt v & €9 § 3999 B & (7w A
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o HAeTd, YRT TR 1 A% g ARl o/ sty
& R gq frfarey fageht Fx smfed fFu g 1. aeds,
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TR 9% 7 AARE § JhwR S @iem & o I@ 3w
mamwm%%maﬁwwm%%
TgF A ‘3fea € % (Tt fa. & AW |
13.08.2010 ® waAfyrn § famfad gan ¢ | dtuaet qun desrt
TR SUHH [l 2012 F FTH BT IE R RAT 7 |

HERt 2013 & U 9% H GEAT, dEde § wEr wred
% foT aTetane & AR e 7€ 2 | 59 Iran o 7 2014
T g 37U HE IE L 34 F IR 2 | Ficdat § Thefisg 3
S 2014 T 7O UG SR A 2 |

TSt T St MY YR
» 2011-12 & U THTEE 38R # Ipedl aq T
- fidfta 3@
> ad 2011-12 & fog aferor e § dowEshd aism
Fat=ad % fow smEmwm fses & foo ate
TR |
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» Capital Adequacy Ratio

The Bank’s Capital Adequacy Ratio as on 31.3.2014 stood
at 10.78% as per Basel Il norms which is well above the
requirement of 9% prescribed by RBI.

Para banking:-

In the area of Para-banking, Bank is concentrating on
marketing of insurance products and IT enabled products.
The Bank continues with its Corporate Agency arrangement
entered into with Universal Sompo General Insurance
Company Limited (the Non-Life Insurance Joint Venture
Company) for distribution of non-life insurance products.

Steps to improve Profitability:-

As part of the efforts to improve profitability, bank lays renewed
emphasis on improving the CASA ratio, improve Net Interest
Margin, reduction of NPAs to a large extent through intensive
recovery measures like conducting frequent Lok Adalats
/ Recovery Camps, One-Time Settlements and resorting to
legal action under SARFAESI Act and sale of financial assets
in eligible accounts.

Overseas Operations:-

As regards our overseas operations, we have seven full-
fledged overseas branches - two in Hong Kong and Sri Lanka
and one each in Singapore, South Korea and Bangkok.
We also have remittance Centers operating at Boon Lay
and Serangoon, Singapore. During August 2013, bank has
upgraded the Extension Counter at Sri Lanka into a branch
with due regulatory approvals increasing the number of
branches at Sri Lanka to two.

The Bank’s Representative Offices are located in Guangzhou
(China), Ho Chi Minh City (Vietnam) and Al Karama, (Dubai).
Bank is taking up for/awaiting RBI permission for upgrading
its representative office at Dubai, Vietnam and China into full
fledged branches.

Ministry of Finance, Government of India has allocated the
following overseas centres for opening of overseas JV/WOS
by the Bank: 1. Thailand, 2. Vietnam, 3.Mongolia, 4. Srilanka
and 5. Republic of Korea.

Our Bank has signed a joint venture agreement with Bank
of Baroda and Andhra Bank to open a Banking subsidiary
in Malaysia. The Joint venture has been duly incorporated at
Malaysia on 13.08.2010 by name “India International Bank
(Malaysia) Ltd.” BHD and the banking Joint Venture has
started functioning from July 2012.

During February 2013, Bank has obtained RBI permission
for opening a branch at Sukhumvit, Thailand. This branch
is expected to commence operations before August 2014.
FCBU in Colombo has commenced operations from January
2014.

Awards won by I0B:-

» National Award for Excellence in MSE Lending for
2011-12 — Second Rank

» National Award for outstanding performance in
implementing PMEGP in South Zone for 2011-12.

» National Award for the in-house Magazine in Hindi for
2012-13 - First Prize under “C” Category
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National Award for Outstanding Performance in
Implementing PMEGP in South Zone level for 2012-13

Tamil Nadu Government's Best Bank Award for
Excellence in Credit Linking Self Help Groups for
2011-12

Indian Banks’ Association gave IBA Banking
Technology Awards 2012-13, in which IOB has been
adjudged the First Runner Up in the category of “Best
Use of Business Intelligence” among Public Sector
Banks

Dun & Bradstreet - Polaris Financial Technology
Banking Awards 2013 - Best Public Sector Bank
under Priority Sector lending

ASSOCHAM’s Social Banking Excellence Awards
2013 — Runner-up

Skoch Awards 2013 - for High Availability of WAN and
Paperless Board

Development Leadership Award 2013
Agriculture Leadership Awards

IPE BFSI Awards 2013 under three categories — Best
Bank in PSU Sector, Best Bank in Rural Outreach and
Best CSR Practices.

The Sunday Standard Best Bankers Awards 2013
o  BestIndian Bank - Large

under

o  Best Public Sector Bank — Large

o Best Public Sector Bank - Customer

Orientation

> India Business Journal’s IBJ Business Excellence

Award 2013 — Customer Focus Award
Our Commitment:-

The bank resolves to achieve continuous and meaningful
growth by making effective use of its human resources and
leveraging its large network of branches and technology
amidst the competitive and challenging environment in the
industry in order to expand our market share and to improve
values and returns to all our stakeholders. We will continue
to touch more hearts and spread more smiles as we march
along with confidence.

Acknowledgements:-

| take this opportunity to thank the members of the Board, the
Government of India and the Reserve bank of India for their
valuable support and guidance. | thank all our customers for
their continued patronage and the opportunity given to us to
serve them and nurture business relationship. | also place on
record my appreciation for the dedication and commitment
put in by our staff members for enabling the Bank to scale
new heights in performance.

The valuable support of our shareholders and the confidence

3B g & %@ ‘;ﬁFﬂTf%ﬁ Eﬁ | they repose on the bank will motivate us to work with renewed
et vigour to improve business performance year after year.
qadty With warm regards,
_ % Yours sincerely,
37 9y R M NARENDRA
Chairman and Managing Director
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I, Teft i AR / it 3R wEtww g et
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g Suft & fate @ o, g 4 AR § @ AeE §
= 8, 39 el 3R el A fafafde s g, s
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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that the Fourteenth Annual General
Meeting of the shareholders of INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK will
be held on Friday, the 27" June 2014 at 10.00 A.M. at Rani
Seethai Hall, 603, Anna Salai, Chennai — 600 006, to transact
the following business:

1. To discuss, approve and adopt the audited Balance
Sheet of the Bank as at 31st March 2014, Profit and
Loss account of the Bank for the year ended 315 March
2014, the report of the Board of Directors on the working
and activities of the Bank for the period covered by the
accounts and the Auditors’ Report on the Balance Sheet
and Accounts.

2. To declare dividend for the financial year 2013-14.
3.  To further issue of shares.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification the following Resolution as a Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1970 (Act), The Nationalised Banks (Management and
Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1970 (Scheme) and the
Indian Overseas Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations,
2003 (Regulations) and subject to the approvals, consents,
sanctions, if any, of the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), the
Government of India (“GOI”), the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (“SEBI”), and / or any other authority as
may be required in this regard and subject to such terms,
conditions and modifications thereto as may be prescribed
by them in granting such approvals and which may be
agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Bank and subject
to the regulations viz., SEBI(Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (ICDR Regulations) /
guidelines, if any, prescribed by the RBI, SEBI, notifications/
circulars and clarifications under the Banking Regulation Act,
1949, Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and
all other applicable laws and all other relevant authorities
from time to time and subject to the Listing Agreements
entered into with the Stock Exchanges where the equity
shares of the Bank are listed, consent of the shareholders of
the Bank be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors
of the Bank (hereinafter called “the Board” which shall be
deemed to include any Committee which the Board may
have constituted or hereafter constitute to exercise its powers
including the powers conferred by this Resolution) to offer,
issue and allot (including with provision for reservation on firm
allotment and/or competitive basis of such part of issue and
for such categories of persons as may be permitted by the
law then applicable) by way of an offer document/prospectus
or such other document, in India or abroad, such number
of equity/preference shares (cumulative / non-cumulative) /
securities (in accordance with the guidelines framed by RBI,
specifying the class of preference shares , the extent of issue
of each class of such preference shares , whether perpetual
or redeemable or irredeemable and the terms & conditions
subject to which each class of preference shares may be
issued) of the face value of . 10 each and in any case not
exceeding 55,23,20,014 shares (Fifty five crore twenty three
lac twenty thousand and fourteen only) and aggregating to
not more than . 552,32,00,140/- (Rupees Five hundred and
fifty two crore thirty two lac and one hundred and forty only)
which together with the existing Paid-up Equity share capital
of Rs 1,235.35 crore amounts to . 1,787.67 crore within the
total authorized capital of the bank . 3,000 crore, being the
ceiling in the Authorised Capital of the Bank as per Section
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3(2A) of the Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer
of Undertakings) Act, 1970 or to the extent of enhanced
Authorised Capital as per the Amendment (if any ), that may
be made to the Act in future, in such a way that the Central
Gouvt. shall at all times hold not less than 51% of the paid-up
Equity capital of the Bank , whether at a discount or premium
to the market price, in one or more tranches, including to
one or more of the members, employees of the Bank, Indian
nationals, Non-Resident Indians (“NRIs”), Companies,
private or public, Investment Institutions, Societies, Trusts,
Research Organizations, Qualified Institutional Buyers
(“QIBs”) like Foreign Institutional Investors (“Flls”), Banks,
Financial Institutions, Indian Mutual Funds, Venture Capital
Funds, Foreign Venture Capital Investors, State Industrial
Development Corporations, Insurance Companies, Provident
Funds, Pension Funds, Development Financial Institutions or
other entities, authorities or any other category of investors
which are authorized to invest in equity/preference shares/
securities of the Bank as per extant regulations/guidelines or
any combination of the above as may be deemed appropriate
by the Bank”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT such issue, offer or allotment
shall be by way of public issue, rights issue, preferential
issue and/or on a private placement basis, with or without
over-allotment option and that such offer, issue, placement
and allotment be made as per the provisions of the Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1970, the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 (“ICDR Regulations”) and all other
guidelines issued by the RBI, SEBI and any other authority as
applicable, and at such time or times in such manner and on
such terms and conditions as the Board may, in its absolute
discretion, think fit”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board shall have the
authority to decide, at such price or prices in such manner
and where necessary in consultation with the lead managers
and /or underwriters and /or other advisors or otherwise on
such terms and conditions as the Board may, in its absolute
discretion, decide in terms of ICDR Regulations, other
regulations and any and all other applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines whether or not such investor(s)
are existing members of the Bank, at a price not less than the
price as determined in accordance with relevant provisions of
ICDR Regulations”.

“RESOLVEDFURTHERTHAT inaccordancewiththe provisions
of the Listing Agreements entered into with relevant stock
exchanges, the provisions of Banking Companies (Acquisition
and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970, the provisions of the
Indian Overseas Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations,
2003, the provisions of ICDR Regulations, the provisions
of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the
Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security
by a Person Resident Outside India) Regulations, 2000, and
subject to requisite approvals, consents, permissions and/or
sanctions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI),
Stock Exchanges, Reserve Bank of India (RBI), Foreign
Investment Promotion Board (FIPB), Department of Industrial
Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce (DIPP ) and all
other authorities as may be required (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “the Appropriate Authorities”) and subject to
such conditions as may be prescribed by any of them while
granting any such approval, consent, permission and/or
sanction (hereinafter referred to as “the requisite approvals”)
the Board may, at its absolute discretion, issue, offer and
allot, from time to time in one or more tranches, equity shares
or any securities other than warrants, which are convertible
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into or exchangeable with equity shares at a later date, in
such a way that the Central Government at any time holds
not less than 51% of the Equity Capital of the Bank, to QIBs
(as defined in Chapter VIl of the ICDR Regulations) pursuant
to a qualified institutional placement, as provided for under
Chapter VIII of the ICDR Regulations, through a placement
document and/or such other documents / writings / circulars
/ memoranda and in such manner and on such price, terms
and conditions as may be determined by the Board in
accordance with the ICDR Regulations or other provisions of
the law as may be prevailing at the time; provided the price
inclusive of the premium of the equity shares so issued shall
not be less than the price arrived in accordance with the
relevant provisions of ICDR Regulations”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of a Qualified
Institutional Placement pursuant to Chapter VIl of the ICDR
Regulations, the allotment of Securities shall only be to QIBs
within the meaning of Chapter VIl of the ICDR Regulations,
such Securities shall be fully paid-up and the allotment of
such Securities shall be completed within 12 months from
the date of this resolution”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of QIP issue the
relevant date for the determination of the floor price of the
securities shall be in accordance with the ICDR Regulations”.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of QIP issue, the Bank is
persuant to proviso to Regulation 85 (1) of ICDR Regulations
authorized to offer shares at a discount of not more than five
percent on the aforesaid floor price".

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board shall have the
authority and power to accept any modification in the
proposal as may be required or imposed by the GOI / RBI
/ SEBI/Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Bank are
listed or such other appropriate authorities at the time of
according / granting their approvals, consents, permissions
and sanctions to issue, allotment and listing thereof and as
agreed to by the Board”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the issue and allotment of new
equity shares / preference shares/ securities if any, to NRIs,
Flls and/or other eligible foreign investments be subject to the
approval of the RBI under the Foreign Exchange Management
Act, 1999 as may be applicable but within the overall limits set
forth under the Act”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the said new equity shares
to be issued shall be subject to the Indian Overseas Bank
(Shares and Meetings) Regulations, 2003 as amended and
shall rank in all respects pari passu with the existing equity
shares of the Bank including dividend, if any, in accordance
with the statutory guidelines that are in force at the time of
such declaration”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving
effect to any issue or allotment of equity shares/preference
shares/securities, the Board, be and is hereby authorized to
determine the terms of the public offer, including the class
of investors to whom the securities are to be allotted, the
number of shares/ securities to be allotted in each tranche,
issue price, premium amount on issue as the Board in its
absolute discretion deems fit and do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things and execute such deeds, documents
and agreements, as they may, in its absolute discretion,
deem necessary, proper or desirable, and to settle or give
instructions or directions for settling any questions, difficulties
or doubts that may arise in regard to the public offer, issue,
allotment and utilization of the issue proceeds, and to accept
and to give effect to such modifications, changes, variations,
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alterations, deletions, additions as regards the terms and
conditions, as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem fit and
proper in the best interest of the Bank, without requiring
any further approval of the members and that all or any of
the powers conferred on the Bank and the Board vide this
resolution may be exercised by the Board” .

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorized to enter into and execute all such arrangements
with any Lead Manager(s), Banker(s), Underwriter(s),
Depository (ies) and all such agencies as may be involved
or concerned in such offering of equity / preference shares/
securities and to remunerate all such institutions and agencies
by way of commission, brokerage, fees or the like and also to
enter into and execute all such arrangements, agreements,
memoranda, documents, etc., with such agencies”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving
effect to the above, the Board, in consultation with the Lead
Managers, Underwriters, Advisors and / or other persons
as appointed by the Bank, be and is hereby authorized to
determine the form and terms of the issue(s), including
the class of investors to whom the shares/ securities are to
be allotted, number of shares/ securities to be allotted in
each tranche, issue price (including premium, if any), face
value, premium amount on issue/conversion of Securities/
exercise of warrants/redemption of Securities, rate of interest,
redemption period, number of equity shares /preference
shares or other securities upon conversion or redemption
or cancellation of the Securities, the price, premium or
discount on issue/conversion of Securities, rate of interest,
period of conversion, fixing of record date or book closure
and related or incidental matters, listings on one or more
stock exchanges in India and / or abroad, as the Board in its
absolute discretion deems fit”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT such of these shares / securities
as are not subscribed may be disposed off by the Board in its
absolute discretion in such manner, as the Board may deem
fit and as permissible by law”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect
to this Resolution, the Board, be and is hereby authorised
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in
its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper and desirable
and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in
regard to the issue, of the shares/ securities and further to do
all such acts, deeds, matters and things, finalize and execute
all documents and writings as may be necessary, desirable
or expedient as it may in its absolute discretion deem fit,
proper or desirable without being required to seek any further
consent or approval of the shareholders or authorise to the
end and intent, that the shareholders shall be deemed to
have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority
of the Resolution”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein
conferred to the Chairman and Managing Director or to

the Executive Director/(s) to give effect to the aforesaid

Resolutions.”

BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chennai (M NARENDRA)
29.04.2014 Chairman and Managing Director
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6. TATI & AT Aeh-MURTIT AT g (T-eh TUIINELT
wida (zHiew)

b ATEA FARITH S IR (TREUHS) / ATHEA
TAFI e FAAT ST (TAE Hrew) g, s oft 99 @,
% BRI TIIR IRHT o oI @Al & (9T T ST BT | TR
T, S ST T SR T gU E, Tar, I e
fovan s 2 fo6 feuifiedt et &t oo Feeaw ud 3R
e o Afarf =R (AT T H G, A i &, b A
THIEHSR ST SEUHTH HIe Hea 9fed ) & an & o
qfe[ H, o9 TRt / TS EiUE o g arie T 3s
ST AT GAET Rl ST Heh | TR GRS S fede e A

A SHAREHOLDER ELIGIBLE TO ATTEND AND VOTE, IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED
NOT BE A SHAREHOLDER OF THE BANK.

The instrument appointing proxy should, however be
deposited at the Central Office of the Bank not less than four
days before the date fixed for the meeting i.e. on or before
2.00 p.m. on Saturday, 21%t June 2014.

2.APPOINTMENTOFANAUTHORISEDREPRESENTATIVE:

No person shall be entitled to attend or vote at any meeting
of the shareholders of Indian Overseas Bank as the duly
authorized representative of a company unless a copy of the
resolution appointing him as a duly authorized representative,
certified to be a true copy by the chairman of the meeting at
which it was passed, has been deposited at the Central Office
of the Bank not less than four days before the date fixed for
the meeting i.e., on or before 2.00 p.m. on Saturday, 21 June
2014.

3. No officer or employee of the Bank shall be appointed as
Authorised Representative or proxy of a shareholder.

4. ATTENDANCE SLIP:

For the convenience of the shareholders, attendance slip
is annexed to this notice. Shareholders/proxy holders/
representatives are requested to affix their signature at
the space provided therein and surrender the same at the
venue. Proxy holders / representatives should state on the
attendance slip as “proxy or representative” as the case may
be and should have proof of their identity by getting their
signature attested by the shareholder.

5. CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS:

The Register of Shareholders and Share Transfer Books of
the Bank will remain closed from 21.06.2014 (Saturday) to
27.06.2014 (Friday) (both days inclusive) for determining
eligibility of shareholders for the purpose of dividend.
Dividend shall be mailed within one month from the date of
Annual General Meeting.

6. BANK MANDATE FOR DIVIDEND OR ELECTRONIC
CLEARING SERVICE (ECS):

The Bank will credit the dividend amounts to the bank
accounts of the shareholders through National Electronic
Funds Transfer (NEFT) / National Electronic Clearing Service
(NECS) facility, wherever possible. The shareholders, who
are holding the shares in electronic form, are, therefore,
requested to inform their Depository Participants about their
latest change of address and bank mandate details (including
new account number, if any, bank’'s MICR and IFS Code
numbers) immediately to ensure prompt crediting of the
dividend amounts through NEFT / NECS. The shareholders
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who are holding the shares in demat form may approach their
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANTS ONLY for necessary action in
this connection.

The Shareholders who are holding their shares in physical
form should furnish / update their Bank Mandate details to
Share Transfer Agent of the Bank at the address given in
Para (8) below on or before 19" June, 2014.

The Bank will issue dividend warrants if and only if,
necessary information required for making payment in
electronic form is not available or payment instructions
have failed or have been rejected by the Bankers. In such
cases, the Bank will mandatorily print the bank account
details of the investors on such dividend warrants. In
case no bank details are available, the Bank may be
constrained not to dispatch the dividend warrants to the
shareholders.

In order to get protection from fraudulent encashment of
warrants, shareholders are requested to furnish their bank
account number, the name of the bank and the branch
where they would like to deposit the dividend warrants for
encashment. These particulars along with the name of
the shareholder will be printed on the cheque portion of
the dividend warrants, so that these warrants cannot be
encashed by anyone else. The above mentioned details
should be furnished by the first / sole shareholder directly
to the share transfer agent / DPs quoting the Folio No. or
DP ID No. & Client ID No. and the number of shares held on
or before 20.06.2014. If shareholders choose not to submit
any modification, the warrants will be printed based on bank
mandate earlier received by the Registrar or data downloaded
from NSDL / CDSL as on 20.06.2014 for demat shareholders.
This is applicable for all shareholders who have not submitted
ECS mandate(s).

7. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND, IF ANY

The shareholders who have not encashed their Dividend
Warrants / received dividend from previous year's viz.
2000-2001 onwards are requested to contact the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent of the Bank for issue of duplicate
warrants.

Pursuant to the amendment of The Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970, Section
10B provides that the amount of dividend remaining unpaid
or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of
transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account is required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF) established by the Central Govt. under Section 205C
of The Companies Act, 1956.

8. CHANGE OF ADDRESS AND DIVIDEND MANDATE:

In case of shareholders holding shares in physical form,
they are requested to intimate to the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent of the Bank any change in their address,

2/
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dividend mandate and the particulars of the bank, branch
and bank account number which the shareholder desires to
incorporate on the dividend warrant, on or before 19.06.2014
(Thursday) at the following address:

Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.

(I0B — unit)

1st floor, Subramanian Building,

No. 1, Club House Road, Chennai 600 002

In case of shareholders holding shares in Electronic form
i.e. through Demat account, they are requested to intimate
to their depository participant, on or before 19.06.2014
(Thursday) for any change in their address, dividend mandate
and the particulars of the bank, branch and bank account
number which the shareholder desires to incorporate on the
dividend warrant etc., as the aforesaid information provided
by the Depository as on 20.06.2014 (Friday) would only be
considered for the purpose of payment and distribution of
dividend.

9. CONSOLIDATION OF FOLIOS:

It has been found that many shareholders maintain more
than one folio (i.e.) multiple folios. In order to provide efficient
service, we request the shareholders to consolidate the folios
by forwarding their share certificates to Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents for necessary corrections in their records.

10. BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTORS:

As required under the revised Clause 49 IV G of the Listing
Agreement executed with the Stock Exchanges, brief profiles
of Directors are given in the Report on Corporate Governance.

11. REQUEST TO SHAREHOLDERS:
@

Shareholders are requested to bring their copies of the
Annual Report enclosed herewith.

(0)

Shareholders may kindly note that no gifts / coupons
will be distributed at the venue of the meeting.

BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

&

(M NARENDRA)
Chairman and Managing Director

Chennai
29.04.2014
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT to Agenda item No. 3 of the
Notice.

1.In March 2014, the Bank has issued and allotted 8,15,00,000
equity shares of . 10 each at a premium of %. 38.84 each
to LIC of India on a Preferential Basis and raised . 398.04
crore primarily to augment long term resources and maintain
a Tier | capital adequacy ratio of desired level.

2. The Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Bank as on March
31, 2014, as per Basel lll is 10.78%, and well above the 9%
stipulated by the Reserve Bank of India. However in view of
certain expansion plans of the Bank, the implementation of
BASEL Il norms, and consequent capital charge, there is a
need to increase the capital to further strengthen the Capital
Adequacy Ratio.

3. The Bank in terms of Section 3(2B)(c) of the Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1970, will obtain requisite approval of the Government of
India, Ministry of Finance for increasing the paid up capital.
However, the Central Government shall, at all times, hold not
less than fifty-one per cent of the paid — up equity capital of
the Bank.

4. Sub-Clause (a) of Clause 23 of Listing Agreement (between
Bank and stock exchanges) provides that whenever any
further issue or offer is being made by the Bank, the existing
shareholders should be offered the same on pro rata basis
unless the shareholders in the general meeting decide
otherwise. The said resolution, if passed, shall have the effect
of allowing the Board on behalf of the Bank to issue and allot
the securities otherwise than on pro-rata basis to the existing
shareholders.

5. The Resolution seeks to enable the Bank to offer, issue
and allot equity shares/preference shares/ securities by way
of public issue, rights issue,QIP, preferential issue and/or on
a private placement basis. The issue proceeds will enable the
Bank to strengthen its Capital Adequacy Requirements as
specified by RBI from time to time.

6. The Resolution further seeks to empower the Board of
Directors to undertake a qualified institutional placement with
qualified institutional buyers as defined by ICDR Regulations.
The Board of Directors may in their discretion adopt this
mechanism as prescribed under Chapter VIII of the ICDR
Regulations for raising funds for the Bank, without seeking
fresh approval from the shareholders.

In case of a QIP issue in terms of Chapter VIl of ICDR
Regulations, issue of securities, on QIP basis, can be made
only at a price not less than the average of the weekly high
and low of the closing prices of the shares quoted on a stock
exchange during the two weeks preceding the “Relevant
Date”.

“Relevant Date” shall mean the date of the meeting in which
the Board or Committee of the Bank decides to open the QIP
Issue.

=
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7. The detailed terms and conditions for the offer will be
determined in consultation with the Advisors, Lead Managers
and Underwriters and such other authority or authorities as
may be required, considering the prevailing market conditions
and other regulatory requirements.

8. As the pricing of the offering cannot be decided except at a
later stage, it is not possible to state the price of shares to be
issued. However, the same would be in accordance with the
provisions of the ICDR Regulations, the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970 and the
Indian Overseas Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations,
2003 as amended from time to time or any other guidelines /
regulations / consents as may be applicable or required.

9. For reasons aforesaid, an enabling resolution is proposed
to be passed to give adequate flexibility and discretion to the
Board to finalise the terms of the issue.

10. The equity shares allotted shall rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing equity shares of the Bank including
dividend.

For this purpose the Bank is required to obtain the consent
of the shareholders by means of a special resolution. Hence
your consent is requested for the above proposal.

The Board of Directors recommends passing of the
Resolutions as mentioned in the notice.

None of the Directors of the Bank is interested or concerned
in the aforementioned Resolution(s) except to the extent of
their shareholding in the Bank.

BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

=

(M NARENDRA)
Chairman and Managing Director

Chennai
29.04.2014
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et 2014 uret 2013 uret 2012 et 2011 Tt 2010
Avas SRt 227,976 202,135 178,434 145,229 110,795
el ST - 219,731 195,457 172,219 140,381 105,434
Afyae fee ifim 161,998 144,894 125,064 101,270 71,327
el Fehet AU 175,888 160,364 140,724 111,833 79,003
iR &3 A 58,090 51,056 42,265 32,648 27,237
S 3uR 26,254 23,393 19,416 16,056 12,597
fraet fae 70,237 61,417 55,566 48,610 37,651
el AH 3,997 3,817 3,534 2,861 1,845
fraet oy 602 567 1,050 1,073 707
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March 2014 March 2013 March 2012 March 2011 March 2010
Global Deposits 227,976 202,135 178,434 145,229 110,795
Domestic Deposits 219,731 195,457 172,219 140,381 105,434
Domestic Gross Advances 161,998 144,894 125,064 101,270 71,327
Global Net Advances 175,888 160,364 140,724 111,833 79,003
Priority Sector Advances 58,090 51,056 42,265 32,648 27,237
Agricultural Credit 26,254 23,393 19,416 16,056 12,597
Net Investments 70,237 61,417 55,566 48,610 37,651
Gross Profit 3,997 3,817 3,534 2,861 1,845
Net Profit 602 567 1,050 1,073 707
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2013-14

The Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual
Report together with audited Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss
Account of the Bank for the year ended 31t March, 2014.

Global Business Performance

It is a matter of pride that the Bank has made a significant
growth in Business Mix during the last 3" years (business
almost doubled) with a CAGR growth of 21.64%, which forms
a strong base for future prospects. The business level of the
Bank now crossed . 4,00,000 crores mark. During the same
period, the Bank has opened more than 1,200 branches and
crossed the milestone of 3,000 branches taking the domestic
branch network to 3,265 as of 31st March 2014. This is a
remarkable achievement ever made in the history of the Bank.

During the year 2013-14, there was a sluggish growth in the
credit front due to slowdown in the economy as a whole.
Accordingly, the Bank’s total deposits increased from
%. 2,02,135 crores in March 2013 to . 2,27,976 crores in
March 2014 with a moderate growth of 12.78%. The total
advances increased to . 1,81,081 crores with a growth
of 10.17% from the last year level of T. 1,64,366 crores. In
terms of business mix, the Bank has been maintaining its 71"
position among all the 19 nationalized banks since 2011. The
market share is maintained at 2.67% for the year as a whole.

Financial Performance

The global operating profit marginally increased to . 3,997
crores in 2013-14 compared to X. 3,817 crores in 2012-13. As
the constraints on provisions continued during this financial
year also, the Bank has to make higher provisions to a sum of
. 3,395 crores constituting 85% of total operating profit. As a
result, the Bank has posted . 602 crores Net Profit in 2013-
14 with a marginal growth of 6.2% compared to . 567 crores
in 2012-13. The Bank has already paid an interim dividend of
7% in February 2014. As a whole, the Bank has proposed to
pay a total dividend of 12% for the whole year 2013-14.

Income and Expenditure Analysis

In the domestic front, during 2013-14, the cost of deposits
was maintained at 7.81% compared to 7.80% in last year.
This was possible despite the fact that the average domestic
CASA has come down to 24.25% compared to last year level
of 24.78% domestically. The Bank was maintaining the card
rates on term deposits in line with the market trend. There
was a moderate increase in card rates on term deposits also.
The growth in average core term deposit was significant
at 39% which had offset the impact of the above 0.53%
CASA reduction. Though the Bank has opened around 38
lakhs CASA accounts during the year 2013-14, those CASA
accounts will generate more volume in CASA only over a
period of time.

There was a reduction in base rate by overall 50 basis
points with effect from February 2013. As about 80% of
total advances are linked to Bank’s base rate, there was an
adverse impact on interest earnings to the tune of ¥. 600
crores affecting the Bank’s core operating profit as well
as Net Interest Margin for the year under review. However,
the Bank was able to maintain the incremental yield apart
from substantial recoveries. Hence, the domestic yield on
advances stood at 10.95% when compared to 11.26% last
year. As such, the global yield on advances for the year 2013-
14 stood at 10.04% compared to 10.34% in last year.

Despite volatile market conditions, the yield on investments
was steady at 7.39% for the whole year 2013-14 compared to
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7.37% in 2012-13. However, the domestic cost of borrowings
increased t0 9.65% in the period under review when compared
t0 9.17% last year mainly due to increase in repo rate to the
present level of 8% compared to 7.50% earlier, Also, Bank
rate & MSF increased to 9 % compared to 8.50% last year.
As a result, the domestic cost of funds increased to 7.93% in
2013-14 compared to 7.90% in 2012-13. Apart from this, the
constraints on Net Interest Margin continued with incremental
NPAs and interest reversal on restructured advances. With
this, the Bank maintained the NIM at 2.34% domestically and
2.28% globally for the year 2013-14.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

The Bank’s Capital Adequacy Ratio as on 31t March 2014
stood at 10.78% as per Basel lll norms. The Bank has issued
22,97,53,015 Equity Shares, of face value . 10/- each, at
the rate of . 52.23 per equity share (including premium of
%. 42.23 per equity share) amounting to . 1200 crores to
Government of India on Preferential Basis and 8,15,00,000
Equity shares, of face value . 10/- each, at the rate of
3. 48.84 per equity share (including premium of . 38.84 per
equity share) aggregating to . 398.05 crores to LIC of India
on Preferential Basis. Hence, the Paid-up Capital of the Bank
has increased from . 924.10 crores to ¥. 1235.35 crores
and Government of India’s shareholding has increased from
Z. 681.96 crores (73.80%) to %. 911.71 crores (73.80%),
retaining their holding level at 73.80% as on 31t March 2014.

Branch Network

Rapid branch expansion continues to be one of the strategic
initiatives taken by the Bank for augmenting its pan India
branch net work and organic growth. During the year under
review, the Bank opened 363 branches across the country.
Out of 363 branches opened during 2013-14, 232 branches
(63.91%) are located in Rural and Semi Urban centres, of
which 98 branches are located in Unbanked Rural Centres.
These new branches have enabled the Bank to enhance new
relationships and spread our presence and net work farther
and wider now covering all states. The average CASA in the
new branches is about 45%.

In order to decentralize the decision making process and
reduce the turnaround time for credit delivery, the Bank
opened 19 Rapid Retail Centres, 9 MSME Processing Centres
and 8 City Back Offices during the year. As on 31t March
2014, the Bank had 3,265 domestic branches, as against
2,902 branches as on 31% March 2013, comprising of 985
rural branches (30.17% to total branches), 904 Semi Urban
branches (27.68%), 728 Urban branches (22.30 %) and 648
Metropolitan branches (19.85%). In addition, the Bank has
7 National Banking General Managers Offices, 59 Regional
Offices, 3 Extension Counters, 20 Satellite Offices, 39 City
Back Offices, 33 Rapid Retail centers (RLPCs), 18 MSME
Processing Centres and 6 Inspectorates.

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance refers to the system by which
organizations are directed and controlled. The governance
structure specifies the distribution of rights and responsibilities
among different participants in the organisation such as the
Board of Directors, Managers, Shareholders, Creditors,
Auditors, regulators and other stakeholders and specifies
the rules and procedures for making decisions in corporate
affairs.

Bank’s Corporate Governance Practices are based on total
commitment to ethical practices in the conduct of business,
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striving hard to enhance all stakeholders’ value, maintaining
a high degree of disclosure levels and adhering to the Laws
and Regulations. Bank has complied with the guidelines of the
regulators and the same has been examined by the Statutory
Central Auditors. The Bank follows a well-defined Code
of Conduct, which fairly addresses the issues of integrity,
conflict of interest and confidentiality and stresses the need
of ethical conduct, which is the basis of good Governance.
This code of conduct as approved by our Board is applicable
to all the members of the Board and the Senior Management
(i.e. up to General Managers of the Bank).

Bank is complying with all the norms laid down by Regulatory
Authorities and Government of India. A compliance Officer
under Clause 47 of the Listing Agreement is appointed to
oversee the compliance with various provisions of SEBI and
the Listing Agreement entered with the Stock Exchanges,
where the Bank’s shares are listed. The Bank is also submitting
a quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance in
compliance of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement besides
putting up the same to Audit Committee of the Board for their
information. Bank also ensures that all the shareholders’
complaints are duly resolved then and there.

Vision-Mission: 2013-2020
Taking in to consideration the changing dynamics in the

competitive environment, the Bank formulated its medium
term Vision-Mission outlook for the period 2013 — 2020.

The Bank convened a Business Plan Conference at Chennai
on 4" & 5" April 2013, The Business Plan Conference was
followed by a Business Plan Review Conference on 6" &
7" November 2013. The Bank also convened an exclusive
meeting of the Board of Directors on 14" March 2014 to
discuss the Strategic Business Plan including products &
markets, Innovation in Business and e-governance.

Awards & Accolades
» Bank won the Platinum Award for the category

“Training Excellence HR Award” for the year 2011-12
from the Greentech Foundation, New Delhi.

Bank won IPE BFSI Awards 2013 under three
categories namely Best Bank in PSU Sector, Best
Bank in Rural Outreach and Best CSR.

Bank has been accorded as the Best Public Sector
Bank under Priority Sector lending in Dun & Bradstreet
- Polaris Financial Technology Banking Awards 2013.
Bank has won the Skoch Awards 2013 - for High
Availability of WAN and Paperless Board.

Bank has won The Sunday Standard Best Bankers
Awards 2013 under three categories namely Best
Indian Bank - Large, Best Public Sector Bank — Large
and Best Public Sector Bank — Customer Orientation.
Bank was declared Runner up in the ASSOCHAM’s
Social Banking Excellence Awards 2013.

Bank won Development Leadership Award 2013
under Agriculture Leadership Awards.

Bank won National Award for the in-house Magazine
in Hindi for 2012-13 — First Prize under “C” Category.
Bank was nominated as winner of FIPS Awards 2013
for the project of integration of Payment Gateway.

2 RSETIs were awarded “AA’ ranking and 3 RSETIs
were awarded “A’ ranking in RSETI Awards.

CIMSME gave the Bank “MSME Banking Excellence
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Award 2013” in three categories namely Financial
Inclusion Award, Jury Award for New Initiatives &
MSME Excellence Award (Runner up)

Bank was adjudged as the First Runner Up in the
category of “Best Use of Business Intelligence” among
Public Sector Banks in IBA Banking Technology
Awards 2012-13 by Indian Banks Association.

Public Relations Council of India in their Collateral
Awards 2013 declared Bank winner for Wall Calendar
and CSR Initiatives.

Tamil Nadu Government declared the Bank as the
Best Bank Award for Excellence in Credit Linking Self
Help Groups for 2011-12.

Bank won National Award for Outstanding
Performance in Implementing PMEGP in South Zone
level for 2012-13.

India Business Journal’s IBJ Business Excellence
Award 2013 - Customer Focus Award.

Board of Directors

Shri A.K.Bansal, Executive Director who retired on
superannuation on 31% May 2013 ceased to be Director. Shri
Atul Agarwal joined the Bank as Executive Director on 27
September 2013. Shri J. D. Sharma has been nominated as
Officer Employee Director on 2™ May 2013. Shri Chinnaiah
has been nominated as Part time Non Official Director on
13" November 2013. Smt. Sujatha has been nominated as
Part time Non Official Director on 5" December 2013. Shri
A.B.D.Badushas has been nominated as Part time Non
Official Director on 12" December 2013. Shri S.L.Lakhotia,
Workmen Employee Director, ceased to be Director on
completion of his 3 years term on 8" August 2013. Shri R.
Sampath Kumar has been nominated as Workmen Employee
Director on 24" January 2014. Shri S.V. Raghavan, RBI
Nominee Director, demitted office on 121" March 2014. Shri
Nirmal Chand has been nominated as RBI Nominee Director
on 13" March 2014. The Board of Directors places on record
their appreciation for the valuable contributions made by the
erstwhile Directors and welcome the new Directors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Economic Environment & Banking Environment

The economy is expected to report a growth of 4.9% in 2013-
14 compared to 4.5% in the previous fiscal. Though the price
inflation was not comfortable, the Fiscal deficit was contained
around 4.6% of GDP. Forex reserves stood at US $ 295 billion
during Feb 2014. However, the retail inflation in March 2013
increased to 8.31% where as the inflation measured in terms
of WPI stood at 5.7%. As per CRISIL forecast, the GDP may
grow higher at 6% in the current fiscal 2014-15. Although
there is a modest recovery in the economy, savings rate is
yet to pickup as inflationary trends are not easing favorably.

The US central bank earlier said that it would reduce its
monthly US $ 85 billion bond-buying program by US $ 10
billion a month starting January 2014. But the Fed promised
to keep the low-interest-rate regime longer than the markets
anticipation. Now, the country is better prepared to deal with
the situation arising out of the tapering of US bond-purchase
program. The country raised about US $ 34 billion between
September and November when the central bank opened
a special concessional dollar-swap window to attract FCNR
(B) deposits, adding to India’s forex reserves. Flls have also
pumped in a little over Rs 45,000 crore since September.
Foreign exchange reserves, which had dropped to a three-
year low in early September 2013, edged to an eight-month
high of US $ 295.7 billion. There was a turnaround in exports
and decline in gold imports narrowing current account deficit
(CAD) to US $ 5.2 billion. RBI handled the situation carefully
and as a matter of fact that the tapering news have not
collapsed all emerging market currencies.

In the Banking sector, aggregate deposits of SCB’s are earlier
projected to grow by 14% and credit by 15%. As of fortnightly
ending 215 March 2014, The System recorded 14.63% Y-0-Y
growth in deposits and 14.26% in the advances.

The following were the key changes in the policy rates during
the year 2013-14.

1. Repo rate increased to 8% as of now from 7.25% in May
2013, 7.50% in Sept 2013 & 7.75% in Oct 2013.

2. MSF rate presently at 9%, however reduced from 10.25%
in July 2013, 9.50% in Sept 2013 & 8.75% in Oct 2013.

3. CRR and SLR are maintained at the same level of 4%
and 23% respectively for the whole year.

4. The average Base Rate is between 10-10.25% against
the last year level of 9.75%-10.50%.

5.  Term Deposits of more than 1 year moderated to 8 % -
9.10% at present from the last year level of 8.50% - 9.25%.

6. Call Rates is hovering around 8% since Aug 2013.

Some of the other measures include swap facility on US dollar
- Rupee, Reviewing the limits on ECB, encouraging overseas
Direct Investments, De regulation of Interest rates on NRI
deposits, raising overseas borrowing limits of Banks from 50%
of unimpaired Tier | capital to 100% with an objective to create
more room for banks to raise overseas funds, Increasing the
import duty on gold, changes in the FDI policy, extension of
interest subvention scheme, Broadening the infrastructure
schemes, Steps to contain the rupee depreciation etc.
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As per Fitch rating agency report, the stress loans of domestic
banks including restructured debt may continue to rise to
reach 15% by end of 2014-15 from over 10% in 2013-14
which causes concern as far as the profitability of the banks
is concerned.

Bank’s Operations.
Domestic Deposits

The Bank’s total domestic deposits increased from
%. 1,95,457 crores in Mar 2013 to %. 2,19,731 crores as of
Mar 2014 with a growth of 12.42%. The Bank’s domestic
CASA deposits increased to . 56,884 crores with a moderate
growth of 7.94% resulting in CASA ratio of 25.89%. The Bank
has opened around 38 lacs CASA accounts for the year as a
whole. This enabled the Bank to maintain the market share
of 2.73% as on 21t March 2014 on a year on year fortnightly
basis.

Domestic Advances

The Domestic gross Advances improved toX. 1,61,998 crores
as of March 2014 with a growth of 11.80% as compared to
Z. 1,44,894 crores in March 2013. The domestic CD Ratio was
maintained at 73.73% by March 2014 compared to 74.13% in
the previous year. The Bank was comfortable with the market
share of 2.59%.

Overseas Performance

During August 2013, Bank upgraded its Extension counter
in Sri Lanka into a branch, with due regulatory approvals
taking the number of branches in Sri Lanka to two. FCBU
at Colombo has commenced operations from January 2014.
Bank is in the process of establishing the office at Sukhumvit,
Thailand and is expected to commence operations before
August 2014.

As at the end of March 2014, the Bank had 13 establishments
abroad, including 7 overseas branches, 3 Representative
offices, 2 Remittance Centres and 1 Joint Venture Subsidiary.
There are two branches each at Hongkong and at Sri Lanka
and one each at Singapore, South Korea and Bangkok.

Forex Operations
Turnover

The total merchant turnover for 2013-14 including AD
branches is . 1,30,319 crores as against %. 1,10,553 crores
in last year recording a growth of 17.88%. This includes the
precious metal business of the Bank for 2013-14 to the tune
of %. 1,470 crores (5,768 kgs) as against . 2,538 Crores
(8,751 kgs) in the previous year.

Profit on Exchange

The Bank has achieved a total Profit on Exchange at %. 221
crores for 2013-14 and . 8 crores from the Precious metal
business domestically.

MSME

The Bank’s MSME advances increased to . 28,978 crores as
of March 2014. The share of MSME credit on gross domestic
credit increased from 16.02% in 2012-13 to 17.56% in
2013-14. This includes advances to Micro and Small
Enterprises (MSE) to the tune of . 24,575 crores. Priority
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sector credit under MSME sector as on 315 March 2014 stood
at . 23,488 crores. The Bank increased advances to MSE
sector by 23.02 % surpassing the mandatory requirement of
20%. Credit to Micro sector alone surpassed . 10,000 crores
during the year reflecting a growth of 27.16%. The Bank
financed 1,39,894 new micro sector accounts during the year.
The number of Micro sector accounts increased by 43.94%
during the year, as against the mandatory requirement of
10%. During the year, 16,365 new loan accounts aggregating
to . 879 crores were covered under the Credit Guarantee
Scheme of CGTMSE.

The Bank introduced 1I0B SME Debit Cards with unique
features for the benefit of SME borrowers. The Bank launched
IOB SME Contractor Scheme, exclusively for contractors with
credit limits up to . 5 crores. IOB SME ADD ON scheme
was introduced to enable the existing MSME borrowers to get
their additional term loan requirement up to . 25 lacs at the
branch level itself, thereby making the credit available without
delay. IOB MICRO ONE scheme launched earlier has been
quite successful with nearly 2150 new Micro sector borrowers
were financed under the scheme. IOB SME Kanaka Scheme,
which was earlier a regional specific scheme, was extended
to all regions during the year. The Bank also extended
concessional credit terms for purchase of new Ambassador
Cars and Swift- Dezire cars under Taxis Replacement Scheme
by Government of West Bengal.

The Bank entered into an MOU with Bharatiya Yuva Shakthi
Trust (BYST), Chamber of Indian Micro Small and Medium
Enterprises (CIMSME) and Women Entrepreneurs Welfare
Association-Tamil Nadu (WEWA) for credit facilitation. The
Bank entered in to MoU with Naturals, for financing the
franchisees of their Spa Saloons under the SIDBI Loan
Facilitation Service (LFS). Bank expects to utilize these
arrangements in the best manner to boost credit to MSME
sector.

Retail Banking and Marketing

Retail Loans including Housing Loans, Educational Loans,
etc., as major segments improved by 21.61% during the year.
Bank surpassed the target set under Pushpaka Vehicle loans
with 109.93% achievement.

The income earned under Non Life category, which was
at %. 771 lacs during 2012- 2013, is at Rs 846 lacs for the
current year 2013-14 registering a YoY Growth 9.71%. The
income earned under Life Insurance Business, which was
at %. 754 lacs during 2012- 2013, is at Rs 788 lacs for the
current year 2013-14 with a YoY growth 4.56%. The income
earned through IOB Health Care Plus, which was at Z. 274
lacs during 2012- 2013, is at %. 319 lacs for the current year
2013-14 with YoY Growth 16.13%.

The Bank introduced an exclusive Savings Bank account, SB
Little Star for the kids from Day one to 18 years of age. To
attract the kids further, a Piggy Bank has been offered for the
accounts opened with a balance of . 10,000/- . The product
elicited good response from the customers.

Mid Corporate

Mid Corporate Group takes care of the lending requirements
of borrowers other than Agriculture/MSME borrowers.
Borrowers enjoying credit limits of above . 40 crores and
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upto . 100 crores are taken care by Mid Corporate Group
Vertical at Central office. The Bank has 16 Specialized Mid
Corporate branches which are fully operational all over India
(Ahmedabad, Bangalore, Baroda, Chennai, Chandigarh,
Coimbatore, Delhi, Faridabad, Hyderabad, Indore, Kolkata,
Ludhiana, Madurai, Mumbai, Pune and Vijayawada). Mid
Corporate branches send the credit proposals directly to
Central Office for speedy disposal. These branches possess
necessary expertise in credit appraisal for quicker delivery of
credit and have contributed %. 5,370 crores of Fund Based
exposure and %. 978 crores of Non Fund based exposure as
on 31stMarch 2014. Total Bank exposure under Mid Corporate
segment as on 31t March 2014 include Fund Based exposure
of . 9,472 crores and Non Fund based exposure of 3. 2,236
crores. During the year, Mid Corporate group has sanctioned
265 proposals from all over India with total sanctioned limit of
Z. 12,387 crores.

Large Corporate

Large Corporate Group is yet another vertical in Credit front
taking care of Credit requirement of borrowers other than
Agriculture borrowers whose Credit requirement is above
Z. 100 Crores. Under this vertical, Bank has a fund based
exposure of %. 46,095 Crores and Non Fund Exposure of
. 17,598 crores for the year ended 31 March 2014. During
the year, LCG has sanctioned 145 proposals with Fresh and
Enhanced credit limits of 3. 26,242 crores received from
Corporate Clients all over India.

To promote focused attention on Large Corporate accounts,
the Bank is operating Specialized Large Corporate
branches at 7 places all over India (Ahmedabad, Bangalore,
Coimbatore, Delhi, Hyderabad, Kolkata and Mumbai). These
Specialized Large Corporate Branches have exposure of
. 12,308 crores as on 315t March 2014. Apart from the above,
15 existing branches in Metropolitan Centres are identified as
Large Corporate Branches.

These Specialized branches are focusing in lending to
borrowers coming under Large Corporate segment, making
available necessary expertise in Credit Appraisal and quick
delivery of credit. These branches are sending the credit
proposals directly to Central Office for expedite disposal.

Priority Sector Credit

Gross Credit under Priority Sector increased to %. 58,090
crores at the end of March 2014, registering a growth of 18%.
With the achievement of Priority Sector Advances to Adjusted
Net Bank Credit(ANBC) Ratio at 40.03%, Bank has further
plans to continue and surpass the National Goal of 40% in
the coming years also.

Agriculture

During the year, the Agricultural credit registered an
incremental growth of . 2,861 crores from . 23,393 crores
as of March 2013 to . 26,254 crores as of March 2014. The
Bank’s ratio of agricultural advances to Adjusted Net Bank
Credit was 18.10% as against the required norm of 18%. The
Bank disbursed . 35,492 crores under Special Agriculture
Credit Plan (SACP) as against the target of . 33,594 crores
during the year.

The Bank has granted loans to Weaker Section of the society
and the outstanding as at the end of March 2014 was%. 21,968
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crores which is 15.14% of the ANBC as against the target of
10%. The loans outstanding to SC/ST under priority as at the
end of March 2014 were <. 6,802 crores which is 11.68 % of
Total Priority Sector loans. The loans outstanding to Minority
community as at the end of March 2014 were %. 8,822 crores
which is 15.18% against the target of 15.00%.

Microfinance

During the year, the Bank credit-linked 47,470 Self Help
Groups (SHGs) with a credit outlay of Z. 846 crores. The
cumulative number of SHGs credit linked by the Bank is
5,22,642 with a total disbursement of . 5,792 crores as of
March 2014. SHG Credit Linkage Week was observed in
February and March 2014 coinciding with Founder’s Day on
10" February, 2014 and International Women’s Day on 8"
March, 2014 to give further thrust to SHG linkage under the
direct segment.

Credit flow to Women

Bank’s credit flow to women stood at 22,365 crores as of
March 31, 2014 constituting 15.41 % of the Bank’s Adjusted
Net Bank Credit, as against the norm of 5%.

New Product Introduction:

A new credit scheme for granting agricultural term loans for
investment credit and allied activities against security of gold
ornaments was introduced by the Bank on 11" September
2013.

Lead Bank Scheme

The Bank has Lead Bank responsibility in 13 districts in
Tamil Nadu and one district in Kerala. The Bank is also the
Convenor of State Level Bankers’ Committee of Tamil Nadu
(SLBC). During the year of review, as Convenor of SLBC,
Tamil Nadu, the Bank has conducted four meetings of the
SLBC.

In addition, the Bank as convenor of SLBC, Tamil Nadu
convened the many special meetings during the year namely
1) Meeting of working group on payment of MGNREGS wages
through Banks in Tamil Nadu, 2) TAHDCO scheme loans,
3) Financial Inclusion & Direct Benefit Transfer System, 4)
Educational Loan Scheme of NBCFDC implemented through
Tamil Nadu Backward Classes Economic Development
Corporation (TABCEDCO), 5) Development of Micro and
Small Enterprises in Tamil Nadu, 6) Subcommittee on Tamil
Nadu Government’s Scheme for Poultry Development-
Modifications to the Tripartite Agreement, 7) Meeting on
various loan schemes of TAHDCO, 8) Meeting to review
progress of PMEGP/UYEGP schemes, 9) Meeting to discuss
Equity Grant & Credit Guarantee Fund Scheme to Farmer
Producer Companies, 10) Meeting to discuss issues relating
to various loan schemes to Scheduled Caste Beneficiaries,
11) Sub Committee meeting to discuss study/survey on the
functioning of Business Correspondents and 12) Meeting on
monitoring bank accounts of village panchayaths.

Initiatives for Financial Inclusion in the State: As Convenor
of SLBC, Tamil Nadu.

» SLBC identified 4,445 unbanked villages in Tamil
Nadu with a population of 2,000 and above and
allotted to various banks. All the 4,445 villages

D
&

have been provided with banking facilities under
Financial Inclusion well ahead of the timeline given by
MOF(March 2012).

» SLBC identified 7,816 villages with population of
below 2,000 and allotted to various banks. Banks have
provided banking facilities under Financial Inclusion
to all the 7,816 villages.

» SLBC facilitated establishment of Rural Self
Employment Training Institutes in all the 31 districts
by the 4 Lead Banks.

» SLBC facilitated establishment of Financial Literacy
& Credit counseling centers in all the 32 districts
including Chennai.

» SLBC, Tamilnadu has achieved 100% in all the above
initiatives.

SLBC initiatives on Credit Flow in Tamil Nadu

» Tamil Nadu achieved a CD ratio of 120.28% as of
December 2013 and stands one among the very few
states who achieved this feat.

» Tamil Nadu achieved 101% achievement of target
under Annual Credit Plan (ACP) as of December 2013
which is achieved by only a very few states.

» Tamil Nadu achieved 42.64% under Priority Sector as
of December 2013 against the national norm of 40%.

» Tamil Nadu achieved 18.90% of Agricultural Advances
as of December 2013 against the national norm of
18%.

» Tamil Nadu achieved 12.09% of advances to weaker
sections as of December 2013 against the national
norm of 10%.

» SLBC, Tamil Nadu has achieved 100% in all the above
initiatives.
SLBC initiatives on Electronic Benefit Transfer in Tamil
Nadu

» 7.19 lakh beneficiaries are being paid pension through
Smart Cards operated by Business Correspondents
engaged by banks in 6,105 villages in the State under
Tamil Nadu Government Old Age Pension Scheme by
December, 2013.

» 1.91 lakh fishermen are paid lean period assistance of
. 4,000/- through bank credit in the State.

» Around 8 lakh pregnant women are being paid grant
of %. 12,000/- under Dr. Muthulakshmi maternity
benefit scheme through bank credit.

» Nearly 33 lakh workers of MGNREGS are paid wages
in 18 districts of Tamil Nadu through banks through
Business Correspondents.

Regional Rural Banks

Bank has sponsored two Regional Rural Banks viz., Pandyan
Grama Bank in Tamil Nadu and Odisha Gramya Bank in
Odisha. Pandyan Grama Bank has been earning Net Profit
after Tax continuously since 1997-1998 and its net NPA
continues to be NIL for the past 11 years. Both the RRBs
have recorded Net Profit during the year. All the branches of
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both the RRBs are CBS compliant and NEFT facility has been
provided to both RRBs.

Financial Inclusion

> Covering Villages with Banking Outlets: The Bank
has covered 3,726 allotted villages with various
population categories under Financial Inclusion. Of
which, 3,667 villages are covered under Smart Card
Banking and 59 villages under Brick & Mortar Branch
across the country. Apart from this, Bank has covered
154 other villages also. Smart Card Banking is now
being implemented in 3,838 villages spread over 21
States and 2 Union Territories covering 56 Regions by
engaging 2,456 Business Correspondents. During the
year under review, the Bank has opened 21,94,854
Basic Savings Bank Deposit Accounts taking the total
number of such accounts to 59,21,110. So far, Bank
has issued 11,05,215 smart cards and the number of
transactions undertaken in the smart card terminal is
1,28,66,639.

» Special Financial Inclusion Branches: In order to
strengthen the Financial Inclusion efforts and ensure
close supervision of the Business Correspondents
(BCs), Bank has opened 3 Special Financial Inclusion
Branches in the State of Tamil Nadu. The concept
is that BCs operating in a particular area assigned
to a few Branches are clustered (8-10 BCs) and
assisted to operate under this special arrangement
which will overcome the problems encountered by
the BCs in getting their basic requirements viz., cash
requirement, passbook printing, account opening,
sanction of loans, customer grievances, application
forms, cash, paper rolls for HHDs etc.

» Setting up Ultra Small Branch (USB): As per the
guidelines of Ministry of Finance, the Bank has set
up Ultra Small Branches in 1,278 Financial Inclusion
villages. Of which 7 USBs has been upgraded to full
fledged branches.

Rural Self Employment Training Institutes (RSETIs)

In line with the guidelines issued by Ministry of Rural
development, Govt of India, the Bank had set up RSETIs at
all Lead Districts to provide training to farmers, members of
SHGs, beneficiaries under SGSY, Educated unemployed youths,
artisans and beneficiaries belonging to weaker sections. In
addition to the above, the Bank has set up one RSETI in the
Nilgiris District for the benefit of the tribals. During the year
under review, through these RSETIs, the Bank had conducted
673 training programmes benefiting 17,217 persons. A Rural
Training Centre was set up by the Bank (jointly with NABARD
and Indian Bank) at Karaikudi (Sivaganga Dist, Tamil Nadu).

Financial Literacy Centre (FLC) viz., SNEHA:

During the period under review the Bank has set up 7 FLCs
at Kerala. FLC is named as SNEHA and the Bank has set up
22 FLCs as of now. These centres educate the people in rural
and urban areas with regard to various financial products and
services available from formal financial sector, provide face to
face financial counseling services and offer debt counseling
to indebted individuals. FLCs enable the user public to make
informed choices regarding financial services/ products to
derive the maximum benefits.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

10B-Sampoorna Project - A Total Village Development
Project

I0B Sampoorna is an innovative rural development project
aimed at Total Village Development. IOB-Sampoorna is a
unique Project encompassing several livelihood initiatives in
the villages to ensure all-inclusive growth of rural population.
It comprises of credit and non-credit components such as
Financial Inclusion, I.T. Enabled banking operations with
Bio-metric Smart Cards under Business Correspondent
model, Tree Planting and Social Forestry, Cleaning Water
Bodies, Health Care, Skill Training for youth in computer,
Rural Business Process Outsourcing, Promotion of non-
conventional energy and Rural Tourism.

Educating Tribals

During the year 2013-14, the Bank has sponsored 98 Ekal
Vidyalaya School in association with M/s Friends of Tribals
Society, an NGO to attack illiteracy at the grass root level
through a unique concept viz. “One teacher School” or
Ekal Vidyalaya. The Bank in association with Max Academy
implemented the project on uplifting educational standards
of the under privileged children in 5 villages during the year
2013-14.

Sakthi - Indian Overseas Bank Chidambaram Chettyar
Memorial Trust

The Trust, set up jointly by the Management of the Bank,
Indian Overseas Bank Officers Association and All India
Overseas Bank Employees Union to perpetuate the memory
of Bank’s Founder Shri M. Ct. M. Chidambaram Chettyar,
continued to provide Entrepreneurial Development Training
to women, thereby empowering them socially and financially
to meet the challenges. During 2013-14, 9 Skill Development
Programmes were conducted in various Regions under aegis
of Sakthi - IOB Chidambaram Chettyar Memorial Trust, 245
women have been trained. The Trust has so far conducted 71
Entrepreneurship Development Programmes (EDP) and skill
based training programmes exclusively for women at various
centres, benefitting 3,576 women.

Investments

Gross domestic investments as of 31t March 2014 stood at
Rs 68,006 crores as against . 60,195 crores as on 315 March
2013 registering a growth of 12.97% over the previous year.
The investments in SLR segment registered a growth of
Rs 5,011 crores or 9.22% during the year while Non-SLR
investments increased by . 2,800 crores or 47.68%.

During the year 2013-14, securities for Rs 5,349 crores were
transferred from Available for Sale category (AFS) to Held to
Maturity (HTM) segment, and %. 5,786 crores from Held to
Maturity (HTM) to Available for Sale (AFS).

As on 318t March 2014, the extent of SLR securities held in
HTM stood at 21.69% of DTL against the limit of 24.50%
prescribed by RBI compared to 22.92% as on 31t March
2013.

The bond market experienced extreme volatility during the
year, due to a host of external and internal factors which
saw the yields move upto 8.80% at the close of the year
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after opening at 7.95%. The turnover (book value) in the
secondary market was Rs 71,919 crores during the year
2013-14 as against Rs 97,132 crores in 2012-13. Total profit
on sale of securities amounted to . 489 crores during the
year 2013-14 as against Rs 307 crores of 2012-13. The return
on total investments before amortization for the year is 7.60%
as against 7.53% in 2012-13.

Rupee Derivatives

During the year 2013-14, Bank has traded in Rupee interest
swaps and had not entered into any fresh hedging swaps.
Due to maturity, the outstanding in interest rate swaps has
come down to . 823 crores as on 31st March 2014 as against
. 998 crores as on 31st March 2013.

Merchant Banking Activities

» ASBA (Banker to Issue activity): All general banking
branches in India have been made ASBA enabled
branches to accept ASBA applications for IPO, FPO
and Rights Issues as required by SEBI. During the year
2013-14, Bank introduced e-ASBA for lodging ASBA
applications online by customers using net banking
facility, whereby not only their ASBA applications are
lodged but also their bank accounts are blocked by
themselves upon submission. The Bank is also acting
as a Syndicate ASBA bank to accept IPO/FPO/Rights
applications from Brokers.

Other activities under Merchant Banking: The Bank
continues to act as Merchant Banker for issues,
Debenture Trustee, Collecting Bankers to Non ASBA
Applications, Paying Banker for Dividend/Interest
Warrants etc.

Depository Operations: The Bank is a Depository Participant
(DP) of NSDL and is extending depository related services
through 56 service centre branches. In order to improve the
number of demat accounts, the Bank became a DP of CDSL
during 2012-13 by offering the service through 13 service
centres.

Capital Market Services Branch

In order to cater to the financial requirements of Stock Brokers,
the Bank has already set up a Capital Market Services Branch
at Mumbai to extend credit facilities to Stock Brokers and to
nominate the Bank as their Clearing and Settlement Bank for
handling their daily Clearing Obligations of Stock Exchanges.

Customer Service

The Bank is a member in Banking Codes and Standards
Board of India (BCSBI). BCSBI has revised various Fair
Practice Codes which is elaborate covering all the areas
of Banking. As per the revised codes, ‘Fair Practice Code
for Lenders’ have been incorporated. As per the survey on
Customer service redered by Indian Banks by BCSBI, the
Bank has been assigned above average rating and is rated
fourth amongst the 26 PSBs.

A web based online system called SPGRS (Standardised
Public Grievance Redressal System) assisting customers to
logde complaint online with status tracking facility is already
in place. The Regional offices and Branches are enabled
to view the complaints in the system and resolve the same
immediately. Toll Free Teleservices for Redressal of Customer
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Grievances (N0.1800-425-4445) is provided on 24x7 basis for
receiving the complaints from the customers to resolve within
48 hours.

Customers Fortnight was observed in all branches during
November 2013 and Executives from the Central Office and
Regional Offices have visited the branches and met the
customers. The Bank has conducted the Customer Service
Survey for the year 2013-14 to assess the level of customer
service rendered by the branches.

The details of customer complaints received and redressed
during the year 2013-14 are detailed below.

At At
SI.No. Details Central | Regional
Office Offices
No. of complaints pendin

1 at the begirF\)ning ofpthe yeir 114 89

o No.. of complaints received 4030 2141

during the year

3. No.. of complaints redressed 4050 2158

during the year
No. of complaints pendin
4. at the end gfthe ygar ° 94 2
Settlement Rate 97.73% | 96.77%
Details of Complaints are analysed below :

NATURE OF COMPLAINTS | NUMBER | PERCENTAGE
Advances related complaints 893 14.47
ATM related complaints 1299 21.05
Customer service related 879 14.24
complaints
Demat services related 21 0.34
complaints
Deposit related complaints 546 8.85
General Banking complaints 1349 21.86
Complaints related to 38 0.64
Government business
Complaints related to NRI 39 0.65
services
Complaints related 177 2.86
Remittances
Internet banking related 490 7.93
complaints
Credit card related complaints 140 2.27
Pension related complaints 300 4.84
TOTAL 6171 100.00

No. of awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman and
implemented by the Bank are as follows.

1. No. of awards pending at the beginning of the year 0
2. No. of awards passed by Banking Ombudsman
during the year 0
3. No. of awards implemented during the year 0
4. No. of awards lapsed due to non acceptance by
customer 0
5. No. of unimplemented awards at the end of the year 0

31
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The Bank in the capacity as the Convener of Customer
Service Centre in Chennai City has resolved all the complaints
received during the year.

Recovery Management

The Bank has 16 specialised Asset Recovery Management
Branches (ARMB) to improve the recovery of NPA accounts.
The services of Recovery Agents were also utilised to improve
recovery. High value Slippages of %. 5 crores and above were
reviewed by the Board of Directors in all the Board meetings.

Top NPA accounts of . 1 crore and above are monitored
from the corporate office on a regular basis and most of the
borrowers are personally met by the General Manager (Law
& Recovery). Top Management has continuously reviewed all
high value NPA accounts individually on a regular basis with
field functionaries through video conference.

Special schemes empowering branch managers to accept
One Time Settlements in small value NPA accounts for all
NPAs of less than . 1 lac and . 1 lakh to . 5 lakhs were
revalidated. An amount of . 362 crores has been recovered
in small value NPA accounts with outstanding less than
3. 5 lacs. Out of this, recovery in accounts with outstanding
less than . 1 lakh was . 61 crores. One more scheme to
gear up recovery in accounts with outstanding of more than
. 5 lakhs upto %. 1 crore was also introduced. The recovery
under this scheme was . 59 crores.

One time settlements being hassle free recovery process,
Regional Heads/Branches were advised to contact the
borrowers for submitting OTS proposals as per the recovery
policy of the Bank. Action under SARFAESI act was initiated
in all eligible accounts and properties brought for sale.
Frequent Lok Adalats/Recovery camps were conducted
especially in respect of small value NPA accounts. In the
National Lok Adalat conducted on 23 November 2013, the
Bank’s participation was significant. 7,657 cases amounting
to X. 68 crores were settled.

As per directives from Ministry of Finance, a separate vertical
headed by General Manager is created to augment recovery
in written-off accounts. Recovery from technically written off
accounts was around . 303 crores. As per the guidelines
issued by Ministry of Finance, the Bank appointed Nodal
Officers at various centres and they were directed to take up
all RC issued cases and bring the securities for sale.

During the financial year, 524 number of DRT cases have
been filed amounting to %. 3,043 crores (claim amount).
197 cases involving %. 166 crores have been decided. The
recovery made in DRT cases is %. 119 crores. Cases pending
is 2,507 cases amounting to . 7,663 crores (cumulative).
The total cash recovery and upgradation (including recovery
from written off accounts and recovery of undebited interest),
was . 3,334 crores (including sale of NPAs to ARCs). The
upgradation of NPAs alone during the year was . 842 crores.
The recovery in loss accounts was . 28 crores during the
year.

Disposal of petitions received under RTI Act

The Bank received 1,840 applications seeking information
under RTIl Act during the year 2013-14. All the requests
were duly replied within the specified period and disposed

N %

A

of based on merits. The Banks First Appellate Authority
received 206 First Appeals from those who were not satisfied
with the reply of Central Public Information Officer and the
same were duly disposed as per the provisions of the Act.
25 applications resulted as Second Appeals with the Hon’ble
Central Information Commission. All 25 applications were
disposed by CIC by passing appropriate decisions, without
any adverse remarks against the Bank, which were duly
complied with.

Risk Management

The Bank has adopted the New Capital Adequacy Framework
(Basel IlI) with effect from March 31, 2008. In line with
Reserve Bank of India guidelines, the Bank has adopted the
Standardised Approach (SA) for computation of Credit Risk
Capital, Basic Indicator approach (BIA) for calculating the
capital for Operational Risk and Standardised Measurement
Method (SMM) for Market Risk Capital computation. The
Bank is in compliance with the regulatory requirements in
this regard. The Bank is maintaining capital as per Basel
Il guidelines issued by RBI with effect from 1%t April 2013.
With regard to the guidelines on Liquidity Coverage ratio
and Net Stable funding ratio which comes into effect from
January 2015 and January 2018 respectively, the Bank is in
the process of putting systems in place for complying with
the same.

As a measure of robust credit risk management process,
the Bank has implemented a tiered system for validation of
internal credit ratings at specified levels which is independent
of credit departments, in order to draw unbiased rating for
borrowers necessary for moving to advanced approaches.
In respect of proposals falling under powers of Bank’s
Central Office, the validations of ratings are done at Risk
Management Department. Exposures on Corporates/PSEs/
Primary Dealers are assigned with risk weights based on
available external ratings. For this purpose, the Reserve Bank
of India has permitted Banks to use the ratings of the six
domestic External Credit Rating Agencies and the Bank has
decided to accept the ratings assigned by all these ECRAs for
capital relief purpose. The Bank has used the solicited ratings
assigned by any of the ECRAs. The Bank provides incentive
by way of lower rate of interest for better rated borrowal
accounts.

The Bank also conducts industry study for various industries
wherever the exposure of the Bank for a particular industry
is beyond a threshold limit fixed by the Bank. The Bank
conducts portfolio analysis of the credit portfolio. The Bank
is also in the process of upgrading its Risk Management
systems and a procedure for migrating to the advanced
approaches envisaged under Basel Il framework.

Reserve Bank of India has issued final guidelines on Liquidity
Risk Management effective from March 2013. The guidelines
cover preparation and submission of the statements of
Consolidated Operations including domestic operations and
overseas operations separately at various frequencies. The
Bank has put in place system and procedure in this regard in
compliance with the RBI guidelines and has already started
generating statements as per guidelines and submitted the
data to RBI online as on June 2013 on trial basis and awaiting
further instructions.

The Bank has implemented On Line Credit Processing
System which enables appraisal of the credit proposal and
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also rating of the borrowal accounts simultaneously. The
process also provides data for conducting default/migration
study and to compute Probability of Default etc.

The Bank has put in place Board approved Market Risk
Management Policy and Asset Liability Management (ALM)
policy for effective management of Market risk, Liquidity
Risk and Interest Rate Risk in the bank. The Liquidity
risk is managed through gap analysis based on residual
maturity/behavioral pattern of assets and liabilities on daily
basis. The Market Risk management policy lays down well
defined organizational structure for market risk management
functions and processes whereby the market risks carried by
the bank are identified, measured, monitored and controlled
within the ALM framework, consistent with the Bank’s risk
tolerance level. The policies set various risk limits for effective
management of market risk and ensuring that the operations
are in line with Bank’s expectation of return to market risk
through proper Asset Liability Management.

The Bank has put in place mechanism of short-term dynamic
liquidity management and contingent funding plan. Prudential
(tolerance) limits are prescribed for different residual maturity
time buckets for effective asset liability management. Liquidity
profile of the Bank is evaluated through various liquidity
ratios. The Bank has also drawn various contingent measures
to deal with any kind of stress on liquidity position. The
Bank ensures adequate liquidity management by Domestic
Treasury through systematic and stable funds planning.

Interest rate risk is managed through use of gap analysis of
rate sensitive assets and liabilities and monitored through
prudential (tolerance) limits prescribed. The Bank estimates
earnings at risk and modified duration gap periodically for
assessing the impact on Net Interest Income and Economic
Value of Equity with a view to optimize shareholder value.
The Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO) / Board
monitors adherence to prudential limits fixed by the Bank and
determines the strategy in the light of the market conditions
(current and expected) as articulated in the ALM policy.

The Bank has framed operational risk management policy
duly approved by the Board. Other policies adopted by the
Board which deal with management of operational risk are (a)
Information Systems security policy (b) forex risk management
policy (c) Policy document on know your customer (KYC) and
Anti-Money Laundering (AML) procedures (d) IT Business
continuity and disaster recovery plan (e) compliance policy
and (f) policy on outsourcing of Financial Services.

The operational risk management policy adopted by the
Bank outlines organization structure and detailed processes
for management of operational risk. The basic objective of
the policy is to closely integrate operational risk management
processes of the Bank by clearly assigning roles for effectively
identifying, assessing, monitoring and controlling or mitigating
operational risk and by timely reporting of operational risk
exposures including material operational losses. Operational
risks in the Bank are managed through comprehensive and
well-articulated internal control framework. The Bank had
made a presentation to RBI on its preparedness for migrating
to The Standardized Approach (TSA) for operational risk and
is fine-tuning the system as per the suggestions given by RBI.
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Credit Monitoring

The Bank monitors the quality of loan portfolio, by identifying
the problems and takes proactive steps to correct deficiencies.
The objective is to minimize slippages of performing assets to
Non Performing Assets (NPA) category. Micro monitoring of
the accounts by segmentation and follow up of the accounts
on daily basis helps the Bank to minimize slippages. The Bank
has introduced system developed tools for identifying the
potential NPAs which enables to initiate proactive measures to
control the slippages. The problems in the stressed accounts
are analysed and necessary steps are taken for recovery of
the dues, restructuring/deep restructuring, enhancement etc.
The quality of restructured accounts is monitored on a regular
basis and the accounts are followed up closely.

Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR)

Under the CDR mechanism set up under the aegis of RBI, the
Bank during the financial year 2013-14 received references
in 38 accounts with an exposure of . 5,386 crores including
2 readmits from previous year which earlier exited CDR
on account of delay in finalization and non approval of
the packages. Of the referrals, 7 accounts with aggregate
exposure of . 600 crores exited from CDR for want of
majority, withdrawal and non finalization of restructuring
scheme within 180 days. 4 accounts with outstanding of Rs
224 crores have been put on recovery mode. The exposure
of the Bank as on 315t March 2014 is Rs 11,089 crores in 96
accounts which is about 6.12% of the total advances. The
composition of the total referred accounts are 76 Standard
accounts with exposure of . 9,555 crores and 20 NPAs with
exposure of . 1,534 crores. The companies engaged in
Engineering Procurement and Construction(EPC) contract
works catering to infrastructure sector, iron & steel industry
and Infrastructure activities including power form the bulk of
referred accounts with 53 in number and exposure of . 8,146
crores accounting for 73.46% of the total referred accounts.

During 2013 -14, the Bank has approved restructuring under
CDR in 26 accounts (including one second time restructuring
of existing CDR account) with the existing exposure of
Z. 4,218 crores with a NPV sacrifice of %. 445 crores. The
pending references for finalization of restructuring packages
and approval are 11 accounts with exposure of %. 1,692
crores.

Industrial Rehabilitation

There are 24 accounts with an exposure of 3. 753 crores as
on 31t March 2014 under BIFR and AAIFR. Of this, 9 accounts
aggregating to . 357 crores are Standard and Performing
and remaining 15 accounts are classified under NPA. During
the year, recovery in 6 BIFR accounts amounting to %. 153
crores was made. Also, 7 accounts with an exposure of
3. 451crores were added and 1 account with an exposure of
3. 22 lacs was out of purview of SICA.

Compliance Function

The Bank has well laid “Compliance Policy” as per Reserve
Bank of India guidelines and has in place systems and
procedures for managing the Compliance Risk and mitigating
the same. Necessary circulars/instructions on the regulatory
guidelines are being issued. Each branch / Regional Office /

35

\Z




A

ANA

W
T S e S € | 5 W/ sater/smaia Fia o ad o G da st 300 359 wrEre § g SUR wmdl | s
faam & U e SAE G €, S SIS FHOT T & §el & & FASH H FH & foau famy e

JEIT FATE | SFIE TR F GHAG Raie are/are # awar
witen Wl (THE) F TEE # S 8 A/ wEhe g e
oy | fed SHaret (R &l qre 5 S e | S 3 31
FEME W YRR 20 (HhTeeq. 1) Hi JE€ B @8,
R Tt foretss A 9 €1 fored Horerd, emsfieng, det anfe
@@ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬁaﬁ,mﬂﬁ%ﬁmwmw
THATR |

AIIME(eh HRATE

30 fodaR 2013 e Afad ® Feft Hefeha ST A (St
B: A 9 A dfad o), St Tl e ggard kA
off, @ 31 71 2014 | T8 G0 L forn 7o (FHaa & e
H BISH, S 6 I & clfad &) | 39 a1 & R gad 52 <
R & 3 ST SRAE Fihan 1 feifid sa-wh & i
T B o ST | Hefehell § Sl STTE(eh HHai 1 3w
e 3rafy § o iREe o @ | a9 & < 321 Wt §
ot gfte/sHRoT Adret Jro/Aiey s 3w € et 273 wrwedt
¥ que yaM fohan T € 1 155 ume § Sig & omev 3 M
1T 154 Ame § S 7l o ol 7 |

Tterur

1 319e 2013 ¥ AT, & 9 & F wrans # o § yRfiw
A R goTTeftere ST e 3tiafiss oiE wdier (3EeEy)
& F1 ST | JE 2013 F 397 Ft Tl R F g9 A W
faar | Fa AR 2013-14 & I Tee ey &
e 1406 ITRATS 1 e B fordn T | fRgaR 2013 1 g9
foramet e frerffia 2,091 SrRamsit 3 fArieror st e Toet KT ara
| af & U AR AT T & qed THAd §9 F ‘0 W
BIIE SeaTett Trst it G 81 W, I 3 sy &
Ted “@” (HA) & WS aIfda w3 areft vraredt &t gen
W@ 576 1

2013-14 % A 36 &1 & GfF FEfcd # geeE d@r
ofiel W= # TE | Ao 3 T HEterd S gae @ e
guTeht St “HraRe Mo 5 ey (fisftemem) « 9w 9
quTTeR SeTRa SRaw 3tk & &9 § GOyd &R 8 3
5 2013-14 o N HSfeTRER & qd U &7 Hi FHa fFHa
T | AT GO ST e 86 wrRanet, 43 sttt
3T 3t | Wl & | T3 Hia Frterd & e § g
F e T | 8 @R 2013 § W H T+l wrEet § swase
fereror 3 fommeeft gomet (sTrues) sma & o of 2 2 3745
I qRAHT E |

% St el SIS & 70.07% A FeA AT & 73.88% FHi
FA FAA g 570 TEET F THAd cEn wie gonet g
®Y Y I 2 | TGk AT GHad! @ e & dgd 99
SIS FEEE a9 3 =i HEterg & i faum i o
e foham T |

s &% < 1,916 wmEett § Tera @ wien i # w3
570 wmETe § 2% 9 e we I e 7 | i srER
W 1,469 Tl § =ih P @@ G Gue B T | 31 7
2014 i GHIe I8 o S TSI @ e S it wrafes
& frieroT & ST %.26 HUS Ht AT & &9 &l Ted Ht T2 |

TSN T ST %.12 FAE & Hof TG FI UgaH Fi T |

AT YUITARTA W@ URH&T (TMEUH 31ise)
Jraifiet Sifa 1 v 9 § FaX B g a% § 1 I
2013 & Sifm smenfid siaie d@r Tl (SEteNEy) i
YA F T | AT T I JUNCAITT @ weT
(TR SRaw o ded STenfiest Sifiad) & ded 111 @
e foeg A € 1 2013-14 3 I AT & Tod
AT TR SISt o ST 43 ey wEfed / st
3 3 &t et /et § 9 <-a Juot s i
oft gUy ciEr Tdter & ded Fa faar m |

F51T Bt & 57 13 f3anh & smeeg sifee fHar s g,
3T et § Heash YRdt, SIRSSiug/Awe Ui, Tuaud
Ft SloR fea o wlen, gee St i, Hfee &1
Tftarer, famda THEeE, 9% ShvH e, U Sfie #1E
TReTeH, THe Ted gRere | af 2013-14 3 <R 28 7 2012
1 foe waTer gRT SR Wfomeh o wder faemfadst st ast W
S T INTTY o e Hife 5 e F e |

HIAUTeTeRl eht TaT e aiufer (THts)

T when 3v wiHfy (TuEdt) # “Friues @ o sl
oifa” & w9 IERIKICIAS I REAC LR PIPEARRIIEGE
“HrESfe &7 & JB H oEr e gER favas sEtee
wfufe @t femfore & %ﬁtsﬂg;hﬂwa@ﬁa:r
=9 § 28 W 2013 H §E A€ i A @ whew wiufy H
daeh § fapar T |

fachta a5 2013-14 % S THE 1 3 T3 AT Ht T |
T TEftE e | a5 9t s (Fuerst), STared: a5 a8t
saEns () / fafre st /faesht st @t &
e fbeor farel it wdten & wg-wry aeftw SEfeEt
& S T Udtel, i dwn wien/guadt aar wen/ew
e T witeq/ ST A e wi aHtenst #i oft 37 a9
Tatef @ T | THE 5N 3 weflened | UrE T yq@ @i
TT ST Ft TE HRAE H RIS H &L T fommedt 7 wHist &
T @ T |

Herehar

e 2013-14 o 3 FE0T T AT gR i g
o1 o iR % Heshar 9§ G SIS T &
e 37 Tt Ham 32T T | a3 S Heshat °§ 5[E 111
ST HIFa T (9 {3 2T S ave yaM g T
| 31 W 2014 7 Fache1 & 194 At Afed €, 9 9 Faat
3 A 24 TR T oft S O €, A 3 W A H T
IRUE | 37 el § Se-ggdare g @ S g @ S gt
AT/ fEthg F 3 T Falfod ATwell 1 v Foftferd 8 |
53 wma § ST aeEREl gR TS S 9u R fora e @
3T 3T i BRAE AHaEiT € | 62 T AR § 3R
T ATl @1 deteT g gen Hefteror 3 yeieH R S w2 |

Hidteht 3 faenfader & srurer & gramafeat & et ae i
TR SEE Jee Hafd S aEn wier 9fafd & geg
W T S T g / et W A g FHaE A

2




X

N

Central Office department has one Compliance Officer who
is submitting compliance certificates. The overall compliance
level is submitted to Board /Audit Committee of the Board
(ACB). The directions from Board /ACB are carried out. The
Bank provided the utility tool (bankingrules.com) in our
intranet whereby all the regulations, guidelines of the various
regulators like Ministry of Finance, RBI, SEBI etc. can be
accessed at a single point.

Disciplinary Proceedings

All long outstanding Vigilance disciplinary cases {> 6
months} where domestic enquiry was still in progress, as on
30" September 2013 have been completed before 31t March
2014(except two cases which are pending with the courts).
Efforts are made to complete the disciplinary action process
within the stipulated time norms. The average pendency of
Vigilance disciplinary cases has been considerably reduced.
During the year chargesheets/show cause memos/notices
had been issued for 321 cases and Punishment is awarded
for 273 cases. Enquiries ordered for 155 cases and 154
enquires were completed.

Inspection

Bank has introduced system based Risk Based Internal Audit
(RBIA) from 15t April 2013 initially in the branches of 9 regions
of Tamil Nadu and extended to all the branches of the country
from 1t July 2013. In total, 1406 branches have been covered
under the online RBIA during 2013-14. The Bank was able
to achieve inspection of 2091 branches budgeted up to the
quarter ended December 2013. Number of branches which
secured overall ‘A’ rating was 81 under Transaction Audit and
576 branches secured ‘LOW’ risk rating under RBIA during
the year.

Management Audit of Regional Offices of 36 Regions was
conducted in 2013-14. Bank has revised the system of
Management Audit of Regional Offices into system driven
risk assessment in the name of “Corporate Governance
Risk Review (CGRR)” and Erode Region was covered under
CGRR during 2013-14.

Information System Audit was conducted in 86 branches,
43 RCCs and the departments at Central Office covering
IT related areas. Off site Control and Surveillance System
(OCAS) has been implemented in all the branches of the
country from 8" July 2013 onwards and 45 alerts are running.

Concurrent Audit System is effectively in use at 570 branches
covering the 70.07% of total deposits and 73.88% of total
advances of the Bank. In addition to this, Chennai Depository
Services branch and 3 CO Departments were also covered
under concurrent Audit.

Revenue Audit was carried out in 1,916 branches and Test
Check Audit was conducted in 570 branches during the year.
Stock Audit was conducted in 1,469 accounts on a selective
basis. Through Revenue Audit and CO Inspection a leakage
of income of %. 26 crores was detected during the year
ended 31t March 2014. A special drive to ensure application
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of correct rate of interest in select borrowal accounts was
conducted in top 300 branches of the bank during the year
where a total leakage of . 12 crores was detected.

Information Systems (IS) Audit

Risk Based Internal Audit (RBIA) was introduced in the Bank
from 1%t April 2013 covering Technology Risk adequately.
RBIA includes 111 audit points under information system
audit (Technology Risk under Operational Risk). Apart from
the audited branches under RBIA, 43 RO/RCCs and 2 sample
branch from each of these RO/RCCs were covered under IS
audit during 2013-14.

IS Audit 13 Central Office department applications include
Network Security, RTGS/NEFT Operations, AML cell, DR
Drill Audit of Data Centers at Chennai and Disaster Recovery
Site at Hyderabad, Internet Banking Operations, Credit Card
Operations, Financial Inclusion, Cheque Truncation Systems,
ATM/Debit Card Operations/ATM Managed Services, CBS
Operations, Mobile Banking Operations, Payment Gateway
Operations were also conducted. During the year 2013-14,
the IS Audit policy for the bank was reviewed in line with the
Model Audit Guidelines issued by Ministry of Finance on 28"
June 2012.

Audit Committee of Executives (ACE)

Audit Sub Committee (ASC) was renamed as “Audit
Committee of Executives”, in line with the observations of
the Implementation Committee on Audit Reforms in PSB,
constituted by the Ministry of Finance which was approved
by the Audit Committee of the Board in its meeting held on
28" March 2013 at Chennai.

During the Financial year 2013-14, 3 ACE Meetings were
held. The Review of Central Office Inspection Reports (COIR)
of Extra Large Branches (ELB), Exceptionally Extra Large
Branches (EELB)/Specialised Branches/Overseas Branches
including Management Audit of Regional Offices, Review
of Stock Audit/Concurrent Audit/Test Check Audit/Revenue
Audits were taken for discussion in the ACE Meetings. The
major findings of ACE with Action Taken Report was placed
before ACB once in a quarter.

Vigilance

During the year 2013-14 the Bank continued to take effective
steps for disposal of pending Vigilance Disciplinary cases
within the time schedule prescribed by Central Vigilance
Commission. During the year 111 Vigilance Disciplinary cases
were disposed and penalties awarded. As on 31% March
2014, there are 194 vigilance cases pending of which only
3 cases were beyond 24 months mainly due to court stay.
In 37 cases, enquiries have been concluded and respective
summing ups are awaited from Presenting Officer/Defence.
In 53 cases, findings have been arrived at by the Inquiring
Authority and further action is in progress. 62 members are
under suspension and these cases are closely reviewed and
monitored by the CVO.
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In compliance to the CVC guidelines, details of frauds
were placed to Operational Risk Management Committee
and Audit Committee of the Board and the observations/
suggestions received have been acted upon by the Bank.
In compliance of RBI Master Circular, cases of Large Value
Frauds (Amount involving %. 100 lacs and above) have been
placed to the Committee for Monitoring Large Value Frauds
and the observations of the Directors are acted upon and the
Action Taken Report is also placed before the Bank’s Board.

Preventive Vigilance measures have been strengthened
through periodical branch Inspection/visits by CVO. The
following are some of the measures taken to strengthen
preventive vigilance

> Periodical/Surprise Inspections: Periodical and
surprise inspections of branches are conducted on
compliance of systems and procedures including
KYC/AML guidelines, etc.

Alertness Award Scheme: This scheme is an
exclusive scheme for recognition and reward of
alertness in staff members in prevention/detection/
foiling of frauds which has been approved by the
Bank’s Board on 20" September 2013.

I0B Vigil: A new quarterly in-house news letter to
spread vigilance awareness was launched since June
2013. Learning points from frauds, success stories,
vigilance news, messages from Top Management,
etc. are circulated among staff members.

Trend analysis of frauds: As per the Directions of the
Board, a Committee has been formed with an outside
expert (retired CBI official) to make an in depth study
of the trend in frauds for the last five years and to
give suggestions to prevent perpetration of frauds.
The Committee has submitted its findings and action
initiated on the remedial measures suggested.

Action against Third Party Entities: Bank has
already put on intranet, the list of banned third
party entities viz.,, Chartered Accountants, Valuers
and Lawyers. So far 5 Panel Advocates have been
removed from the panel for their failure to comply with
the Bank’s instructions which enabled perpetration
of fraud on the bank by the borrowers by submitting
fake title deeds relating to the properties which were
mortgaged to the bank either as prime or collateral
security.

Hand book on Do’s and Don’ts: Bank has released a
hand book on Do’s and Don’ts on Preventive Vigilance
which will serve as a guide to all the operational staff
to follow the laid down systems and procedures.

Wilful Defaulters List: The list of borrowers who
have perpetrated frauds, has been furnished to Willful
Defaulter's Committee of the Bank for the purpose of
publishing their names in the Willful Defaulters List.

Bank has identified Officers having aptitude for
investigation, data analysis and forensic analysis,
etc. and they are given appropriate training in
investigations and forensic audit.
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All the Regional Offices have been posted with Vigilance
Officers to handle Vigilance matters and their role functions
have been well defined which includes submission of
monthly report on visit to branches. A three day Workshop on
Investigation, Enquiry Proceedings, was conducted from 19"
to 218 August 2013 and one day Workshop for Disciplinary
Authorities was conducted at Central Office during November
2013. An intensive three day Training Programme for all
Regional Vigilance Officers (and Officials from Pandyan
Grama Bank and Odisha Grama Bank) was conducted by
Bank at Chennai from 20" March 2014 to 22" March 2014.
The participants were refreshed on various issues relating
to Preventive Vigilance measures and post-fraud follow-up
action. Vigilance Awareness week was observed by the Bank
in October - November 2013 i.e. from 28" October 2013 to 2™
November 2013.

Information Security

The Bank has set up Information Security Department
headed by Chief Information Security Officer (CISO) as per
RBI guidelines. The Information Security Committee meets
every quarter to review Information Security in the Bank and
reviews are submitted to Board. Information Security Policy
which is in place is reviewed every year and the Bank is taking
steps to fully implement recommendations of Gopalakrishna
Committee. IT products review from Information Security
perspective is carried out and recommendations and
suggestions are provided to the respective departments.

Information Technology
Core Banking Solution

The Bank has implemented the Core Banking Solution
developed in-house, christened ‘CROWN’ (Centralized
Resources Over Wide-area Network) with 1ISO: 9001:2008
certification. As per Ministry directions, the Bank has planned
to move to the COTS CBS model which is widely used by all
other PSB's in India. All the branches of the Bank are enabled
for NEFT and RTGS.

Alternate Delivery Channels

ATM: Bank’s ATM application server runs on Sun Solaris and
the switch is from M/s YCS on AIX IBM Server. ATMs runs on
port based programs. The Bank has introduced e-kiosks and
installed 102 kiosks in branches and ATMs. The Bank has
launched VISA International Gold/Platinum/Signature cards
for high net worth customers and had also launched Kisan
debit cards to agricultural customers to enable them to draw
the loan proceeds through ATMs. Student cards have also
been introduced and launched Gift Cards which are issued to
customers with denominations upto <. 50,000/-

Internet Banking: The Bank has home-grown Internet
Banking suite, which has contemporary offerings like
Opening of Term Deposits, Funds Transfer using RTGS
through Internet Banking. E-payment of state VAT has
been made online for i)Lucknow, ii)Delhi, iiijMaharashtra
(GRAS) (Multi Dept. Portal), iv) Pondicherry, v)Karnataka, vi)
Andhra Pradesh, vii) Tamilnadu, viii) Jharkhand and ix) West
Bengal which ensures float funds for the Bank. Payment of
port charges has been enabled for Chennai and Tuticorin
Ports which also ensures float funds for the Bank. Multiple
scheduling of payments to SB/CDCC/RD/ loan accounts on
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the lines of branches has been introduced in internet banking.
The Bank has introduced online opening/ closure / renewal
of Deposits opened through internet banking and has a one-
Stop Super market named as I0B Super Market with links
to all categories of merchants like Telecom, Insurance etc.
E-Payment of fees has been introduced to Ujjain Engineering
College.

Payment Gateway: Payment Gateway for payment of utility
bills like mobile payment, insurance premium, other banks’
credit cards, telephone bill payments etc., using debit cards
has been implemented. Many institutes have been brought
under payment gateway with net banking, debit and credit
cards and other bank VISA cards for payment of college fees.

Mobile Banking: Mobile Banking solution is two way
authentication through OTP (One Time Pin) and transactions
can be done through SMS Mode and Mobile Browser (GPRS).
The services available in Mobile Banking includes Account
Balance Enquiry, Last few transactions, Cheque paid status,
Loan balance enquiry, Loan payment history (last few),
Deposit balance enquiry, Funds transfer facilities, Payment to
I0OB Credit Card, branch locator, ATM locator, Suspend ATM/
Debit card, Cheque book request, Stop payment of cheque,
opening of term deposit, Loan Statement request, movie
ticket booking, air ticket booking, mobile topup etc.

GENNEXT: Branches to cater to the needs of tech savvy
younger generation of customers has been opened in
Chennai, Bangalore and Manipal.

Aadhaar: The Bank is actively participating in the Aadhaar
related initiates of the Government / NPCI. Linking of Aadhaar
numbers to account number through Branch channel is in
operation for the past 1'%~ years. Similarly APBS and NACH
platforms are in operation.

Financial Inclusion Project: Bank’s Financial inclusion
application enables funds transfer, deposits and remittances
towards advances in real time and it is also BC-interoperable
enabling any customer to transact through any Business
Correspondent.

Central Plan Schemes Monitoring System (CPSMS):
CPSMS is a project initiated by Department of Expenditure,
Ministry of Finance, Government of India, primarily to track
the disbursement of funds to the ultimate beneficiaries. The
software for processing and accepting these funds through
the Bank is already in place.

Government E-Payment Gateway (GePG): GePG has
been implemented to disburse bulk payments from Central
Government departments to Central Govt. employees/
vendors through Banks NEFT platform. The Bank is one
among the 5 banks identified to process transactions of
e-FMS (electronic Funds Management System) in the state of
Tamil Nadu wherein NREGA scheme payments are released
by Government of Tamil Nadu every week. Transactions
are being processed on a day-to-day basis and credited to
beneficiaries of both intra-bank and inter-bank. Perhaps, 10B
is the only Nationalised Bank to collect Chennai Corporate
tax across counters.
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Infrastructure Space

The Bank is the pioneer in establishing 3 Data Centres which
are setup to ensure Zero data loss among the Public Sector
Banks. It has provided alternate connectivity to all our Data
Centres and also to the branches wherever feasible through
alternate service providers/medium. Connectivity for Ultra
Small Branches is provided through a VAN based broadband
3G modem/ Data cards.

IT Organization Structure

Developing software in-house resulted in perfect alignment of
business and IT aspirations, reduced cost, increased agility
and nimble footedness and the all-important flavor of domain
knowledge. 3 Data Centers has revolutionalized the BCP-DR
readiness of the Bank. The Data Centers are connected to
the network nodes situated mostly at our Regional Offices
by means of MPLS clouds from BSNL (Primary link- except
Mumbai & Delhi where MTNL is the Primary link) and Bharati
Airtel and to branches directly through the BSNL (Primary)
cloud and TCL/ Tulip cloud as secondary links. The last
mile for secondary link from TCL/Tulip is in the form of RF/
VSAT links. Apart from introducing network redundancy, this
has given us double-bandwidth at half the cost, because
of competition. The excess bandwidth has been tapped
to introduce Video Conferencing and IP — Video / Audio
telephony thereby enhancing reach, at reduced cost. Since,
IP telephony is introduced to 3 of our overseas branches, the
benefit is absolute. The, Information System Security Policy
conforms to ISO Standards.

Transaction Banking

ATM / Cash Dispensers (CDs): The total number of ATMs/
CDs of the Bank stood at 2,533 as on 31t March 2014. There
are 1,606 onsite and 927 offsite ATMS. During the year under
review, the Bank has installed 650 ATMs /CDs. The Bank’s
ATM are spread across 625 ATMs in Metro Centres, 692 in
Urban Centres, 730 in Semi Urban Centres and 486 in Rural
Centres. Bank’s 1,606 branches are supported with onsite
ATMs /CDs apart from 927 Offsite ATMs.

Debit Cards: The Bank has a card base of 53 lacs as on
31t March 2014 with 9 lacs new debit cards issued during
the year under review. The Bank has successfully launched
Rupay Kisan Debit Cards to Agriculture borrower customers
which can be used in ATMs /PoS. The Bank has so far issued
1.27 lacs cards to customers under Kisan Debit Cards. The
Bank has introduced VISA Connect Cards (Debit Cards) for
Gen Next customers in the age group between 10 and 28
years. The RuPay Debit card under NPCI launched during
the year is popularized in rural and semi urban branches to
take care of the needs of the customers whose transactions
are expected to be mostly domestic. SME Debit Card was
also launched to cater to the needs of the SME customers.
A separate working capital limit is given additionally only for
card usage. Loyalty Rewards for usage of Banks Debit and
Credit Cards has been launched with effect from October
2013. Upto 5% Cash Back offer launched to increase usage
in PoS/Ecom channels (15.10.2013 to 31.03.2014).

Credit Cards: The Bank has 47,774 credit cards as on 31¢t
March 2014 with 4,016 cards issued during 2013-14.
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Payment Gateway Operations: The Bank has 10 aggregators
who have nearly 7,000 sub-merchants under their banner
including public sector organizations like BSNL, LIC of India
etc. The Bank has direct clients like TNEB, AMET University,
ITDC, I0ACON, Loyola College, Ethiraj College, Madras
Christian College, and Dr MGR University.

Internet Banking and Mobile Banking: The internet banking
registrations have shown a good growth during 2013-
14. The Bank introduced customer friendly approaches
like generation of passwords by customers themselves,
increasing the daily funds transfer limit to a max of Rs 2.00 lacs
were introduced. The Bank has enabled online fee collection
facility in internet banking for few institutions. The customers
can renew and close term deposits accounts opened online
and Standing Instruction Module for payment of RD and Loan
Instalments and Multiple Instalment Scheduling have been
introduced. The Bank introduced OTP as additional factor of
authentication for amounts of %. 50,000 and above and for
E-Commerce transactions through internet banking.

Cheque truncation System (CTS) CTS has been
implemented in 1484 branches in 51 regions across the
country. As CTS has been made mandatory by RBI, the Bank
plans to complete the implementation in all the regions during
this FY 2014-15 in all MICR Centres as and when clearing
houses takes decision to migrate to CTS.

Electronic Transactions: As at the end of March 2014,
electronic transactions stood at 68.6% of the total transactions
of the Bank.

Branches, Regional Offices are periodically sensitized to
effectively market e-products and to reduce paper based
transactions. Training is imparted through Staff Training
Centres. Customers requesting DDs/POs and who issue
cheques are being advised to make use of RTGS/NEFT/
Internet Banking. The Bank issues Debit to all active SB
accounts. Staff members have been advised to use only
e-channels. Business Intelligence analytics have been
developed and deployed to monitor and analyse the
performance of branches in multiple alternate delivery
channels. With a view to improve the e-payment transactions,
NEFT remittances up to . 1 Lakh are allowed free of charges.

Government Accounts Department
Direct Tax Collections

The Bank is authorized to collect Income Tax and other Direct
Taxes in physical mode and through On Line Tax Accounting
System (OLTAS) by 353 branches all over India. The Bank
is also authorized to receive e-payment of Direct taxes. Data
submission is 98.59%. TAN data quality is 99.91% and PAN
data quality is 99.83%. During the year under review, the
Bank handled transactions worth . 8,368 crores earning an
agency commission of . 2.02 crores.

Indirect Tax Collections

The Bank is authorized to collect indirect taxes through
Electronic Accounting System in Excise and Service Tax
(EASIEST) by branches authorized by CBEC. The Bank is also
authorized to receive e-payment of Excise and Service Tax.
E-payment of Customs Duty and e-refunds of Duty drawback
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have started in March 2011. The Bank handled transactions
amounting to . 7,948 cores earning commission of %. 1.58
crores.

Collection of State Government revenues

The Bank handles e-collection of Commercial Taxes (VAT)
through internet banking in the states of Tamil Nadu,
Pondicherry, Andhra Pradesh, Karnataka, Uttar Pradesh,
Jharkhand, Odisha, Delhi, Gujarat, West Bengal and
Maharashtra. The Bank is also handling physical collections
in selected locations in Gujarat, Uttar Pradesh, Maharashtra,
West Bengal and Delhi.

Payment of Pension

The Bank is servicing pensioners belonging to Central Civil,
Defence, Railways, Telecom, State Civil, EPFO, CMPFQ,
TNEB, Chennai Port Trust, Chennai Dock Labour Board,
Local Fund Audit of TN and Malaysian Government Pension
apart from credit through ECS.

Centralised Pension Processing Centre disburses pension
on a centralized basis to Central Civil, Defence, Railway
and Telecom Pensioners for 54,240 pension accounts. The
Bank has disbursed about %. 790 crores during the year and
received reimbursement under single window scheme for
Central Civil, Defence, and Railway and Telecom pensions
within 2-3 days from the date of disbursement. The Bank
is accredited for disbursing Postal Pension and is actively
pursuing for centralization of Tamil Nadu State Civil Pension.

The Bank also handles Treasury business of the Government
of Tamil Nadu at 12 branches and Government of Orissa
at 3 branches. The Bank services the account of Planning
Commission, National Informatics Centre and Department
of Telecommunications. Post Office Collection (Drawing
and Deposit) Account is maintained at 59 branches in Tamil
Nadu. The Bank actively participates in the Government of
India Savings Schemes like Senior Citizens Savings Scheme
2004, 8% Taxable Bond, Public Provident Fund contributing
subscriptions of about . 93 crores.

NPS Lite — Swavalamban Scheme for unorganized Sector

Government of India, with a view to ensure that persons
who are economically and socially backward and employed
in Unorganized sector also should get income by way of
pension at the age of 60 years, introduced the “Swavalamban”
Pension scheme. The Bank has registered for 737 branches
as NL-CC with NSDL to handle the above Scheme.

Inter Branch Reconciliation

RBI has fixed six months time for elimination of inter-branch
entries. Under COMPASS (Completely Automated Settlement
System) all credit entries aged more than 3 months as per
Bank’s Policy Guidelines i.e. entries originated upto 31%
January 2014 have been eliminated by 31% March 2014 and
brought to “Nil” status. All debit entries upto February 2014 in
COMPASS and Demand Draft Reconciliation accounts have
been eliminated as on 31 March 2014 is well within the RBI
norms of six months. No debit entries are outstanding for
more than 15 days under Funds Transfer and 7 days under
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TTs Paid Reimbursement Accounts as against RBI norms of
six months.

Human Resources Development
Training

In line with the corporate goal of making the Bank a customer
centric one, training has been imparted on contemporary
issues of banking apart from basic areas of banking through
the internal and external mode. The focus continued to be
on Credit Appraisal/ Credit Monitoring, Non Performing Asset
Management and Recovery in addition to Risk Management
and Computer awareness apart from the regular training
on general banking. Training Programme on Leadership
Development, Customer Relationship Management, Strategic
Branch Management, Strategic Branch Leadership, and
Faculty Development Programme were conducted during the
year. The Bank also conducted other training programmes like
induction and pre confirmation training for new recruits, Pre
promotion training for SC/ST members eligible for promotion
and pre retirement counseling for members retired during the
year. Bank has engaged the services of retired executives
on contract basis to derive the benefit of their experience,
knowledge and expertise in various facets of banking.

A New HR concept “Mentoring” has been introduced to
influence, help, instruct, motivate and lead the young new
staff members to the right track. To identify and describe the
Behavioral and Managerial competencies which are critical
for success in a work situation or work role, Competency
mapping was initiated at the level of AGMs in the Bank. The
process would help to identify and build up second line
functionaries in the Bank who can be groomed to take up
more complex & higher responsibilities in key areas in future.

The internal training system comprises of a Staff College, 10
Staff Training Centers and a Rural Banking Training Centre.
Internal training was imparted to 18,202 staff comprising of
8,478 Officers, 9,358 Clerical and 366 Sub-staff by conducting
986 programmes. Of the total staff trained 4,274 belonged to
Scheduled Caste (SC) and 1,300 belonged to Scheduled Tribe
(ST). Bank has also conducted 60 On-location programmes
across various branches for 556 participants.

The Bank has deputed 1,627 Executives/ Officers for training
programmes conducted by reputed external institutes. Apart
from these, 21 executives and 11 Officers were deputed for
training abroad. The Bank has also trained 126 staff members
of Pandyan Grama Bank through 3 training programmes. Of
the total staff trained, 25 belonged to SC and 6 belonged to
ST.

Motivation

As a motivational measure, the Bank has introduced a
reimbursement of Exam fee for the two certification courses
being conducted by Indian Institute of Banking & Finance
(IIB&F), Mumbai namely, Advanced Management Programme
in Banking & finance & Certified Banking Compliance
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Professional. The Bank has extended the reimbursement of
NISM examination fees to Clerical staff members also.

Quiz Programme for both officers and award staffs across
all regions pan India was conducted in three stages viz.,
region wise, inter region wise and all India final. The Bank has
conducted a Combined Quiz Programme for the final round
participants of officers and award staff in the month of March,
2014.

Recruitment & Staff Strength

During the year 2013-2014, Bank has recruited 324 Specialist
Officers (119 Marketing Officers, 57 Law Officers, 36 Official
Language Officers, 81 Rural Development Officers, 2 Law
Officers, 21 Chartered Accountants, & 8 Credit Officers), 2177
Probationary Officers and 1373 Clerks. The Bank has initiated
a new recruitment methodology through tie-up with Manipal
Global Education Services Pvt Ltd, Bangalore to attract bright
graduate students to pursue a career in banking and provide
them with the necessary training, knowledge and skills to
become a competent banker. A total of 430 candidates are
undergoing the training programme at the Indian Overseas
Bank Manipal School of Banking (IOBMSB) Campus at
Bangalore.

The Bank’s staff strength domestically stood at 29,716
comprising 13,240 Officers, 12,236 Clerks and 4,240 Sub-
staff as of 31st March, 2014. The overseas staff strength
stood at 209 staffs members (49 expatriate officers &
160 local overseas staff). Of the total staff strength, 6,336
members belonged to SC category, 1,799 to ST Category,
and 5,496 to OBC Category. Staff Strength includes 8,293
Women employees, 979 ex-servicemen and 563 physically
challenged members.

Industrial Relations

In order to monitor and maintain good industrial Relations
climate in all offices of the Bank, guidelines are issued from
time to time regarding enforcement of discipline, policies to be
followed in recruitment , promotion etc. The guidelines issued
by the Ministry of Finance and Indian Banks Association with
regard to staff matters are implemented expeditiously by
issuing circulars for the benefit of the employees.

The Industrial relations environment of the Bank remained
cordial and conducive for achieving organizations objectives.
Court cases are reviewed by the Bank at Apex level as per
Ministry of Finance guidelines and efforts are taken to settle/
get the Court cases disposed of expeditiously.

The Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013 has came into force on
9" December 2013. As per the said Act, all Administrative
office (Central, NBGM & Regional office) has constituted
internal complaints committee. The details of the Complaints
received / disposed during the year 2013 & 2014 are given
below.
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Complaints Complaints . . committees expressed satisfaction over the implementation of
Pending as on | received during | COMPlaints | Complaints | official Language in these centres. Annual Official Language
31.03.2013 2013-14 Disposed Pending Review Meeting and Unicode training for OL Officers was held
: 27" & 28" May 2013 to assess the progress made in the

2 2 2 (received 2 on
(during area of OL implementation in Regional Offices and provided

2013) inputs for intensive implementation in all Regions.

Security As convener of Chennai Town Official Language

Security measures, mandatory and recommendatory, were
correctly strictly implemented at all Bank branches and
administrative offices and were reviewed periodically keeping
in view the local law and order situation and necessary steps
taken to fortify security thereby creating a safe business
environment for customers and staff. The Bank continued to
stress on preventive measures for security and fire fighting
arrangements and inculcation of security consciousness
among staff to ensure safety to life and property. The Bank
has sensitised staff members regarding security awareness
and sanctioned installation of Burglar Alarm and CCTV in
all branches and Watchmen/Armed Guards for vulnerable
branches and ATMs from Director General Resettlement
sponsored Agencies/reputed Private Security Agencies.

Rajbhasha (Official Language Policy)

The Bank has taken all efforts to implement the Official
Language Policy of Government of India during the year 2013-
14. During the year 237 staff members who do not possess
working knowledge of Hindi were trained in IOB Praveen and
Banking Pragya Courses. 2,465 staff members possessing
working knowledge of Hindi were trained in General Hindi
Workshops held during the year. Rajbhasha Sangoshthi
was held on 10" September 2013 for Heads of Central
Office departments to strengthen the Official Language
Implementation in Central Office. Minutes of all meetings of
all board level committees were translated in Hindi. As per the
directives of Govt. of India, Bank has enabled Hindi Unicode
font in all Regional Offices and has provided the facility of
downloading the same on IOB ONLINE. Banking terminology
has been provided on IOB ONLINE for the benefit of staff
members. Training has been given to 1823 staff members for
the use of Hindi in computers. Six issues of quarterly Hindi
Magazine VANI in print as well as in digital form have been
published. The Bank’s website is made available in Hindi
also.

Department of Official Language, Ministry of Home Affairs,
Govt of India, Delhi has awarded First prize to bank’s
In-house Hindi magazine VANI for the year 2012-13 in C
Region. Reserve Bank of India has awarded Third Prize for
Hindi house magazine “VANI” for the year 2012-13 in the
Inter-Bank Competition for Hindi house magazines of banks
and financial institutions. Regional Offices were inspected on
OL implementation by Official Language Department, Central
Office and Rajbhasha Shields were awarded to Regional
Offices and branches doing good work in official language
implementation.

Third Sub Committee of Parliamentary Committee on Official
Language inspected our Central Office on 25" September
2013 and Valsad Branch on 18" January 2014. Drafting
and evidence committee on Official Language inspected
the Ahmedabad Regional office on 4" April 2013. Both the

Implementation Committee, the Bank has received the First
Prize for its efforts in implementation of Official Language
Policy during the year 2012-13 from Official Language
Department, Ministry of Home Affairs, Government of India.
The Prize was given by Shri K Rosiah, Governor of Tamil Nadu
in the Regional Official Language Conference held on 10"
February 2014 at Chennai. On behalf of the committee, the
Bank conducted two General Hindi Workshops, 12 Inter-Bank
Hindi competitions, Joint Hindi Month Celebration function
and Hindi Unicode training programme for the staff members
of member banks / Financial Institutions. A Joint Rajbhasha
Samaroh was held on 7" February 2014. In addition to this,
two half yearly meetings were also conducted. Seminars in
Hindi on banking subjects were held for Branch Managers.
Annual issue of magazine of “Chennai Bharathi” was brought
out.

Costing of Operations

The Costing & Planning functions derived useful results
towards corporate level Budgeting concepts, Monitoring
P&L movement on a monthly basis, reporting Daily MIS
to top Management, Various study analysis etc. The top
management directly monitors SOI, MOU goals of the Bank
as per the directives of Ministry of Finance. During the year,
the Bank has formulated a module on computation of return
on assets for all the Regions individually so as to assess their
performance and compare their contribution with the macro
level profit.

Parliamentary Committee:

During the year, the committees visited the Bank were A)
Committee on Paper Laid on Table at Kodaikannal from 30"
May 2013 to 1%t June 2013, B) Study Tour of the Parliamentary
Committee on Labour at Tirupathi on 29" July 2013, C)
Committee on Official language at Chennai on 24™ & 25" Sept
2013, D) Visit of Department related Parliamentary Standing
Committee on Industry to Chennai and Tirupathi from 3" to 5™
October 2013, E) Study Tour of the Parliamentary Committee
on Welfare of Other Backward Classes at Chennai 11" & 12
November 2013.

Outlook for 2014-15

As a matter of fact, the economy has started slowly picking
up due to various measures taken by RBI/Govt resulting to
improvement in certain parameters such as containment
of fiscal deficit, current account deficit and inflation at a
tolerance level.

However, the weather forecasts predict 60% of EL-nino effect
which raises spectre of drought and in turn may raise inflation.
As the Indian economy depends on both internal and external
factors, it is hoped that the new Govt/RBI would continue to
direct the situation more meaningfully. The new measures
would definitely help the economy to post a moderate GDP
growth of 5.9% for the year 2014 —15.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR 2013-14

A. MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:
1. Bank’s Philosophy on Code of Governance:

Corporate Governance reflects the built in value system of
the Bank in conducting its day to day affairs. The Bank’s
philosophy on Corporate Governance is to bestow high
standard of transparency, fairness and accountability
for performance at all levels and to ensure and achieve
excellence through professionalism, social responsiveness,
sound business practices and optimum efficiency. The Bank
maintains a high level of business ethics, by adhering to the
law of the land, to maximize the shareholders’ value and to
protect their interest.

The principles and importance of Corporate Governance have
been recognized by our Bank and the statutory requirements
are complied with in all respects. Towards transparency in
operations, bank provides vital details to all the stakeholders
in the Bank’s website www.iob.in.

Bank’s Corporate Vision:

Bank aims at “To be among the top five nationalized banks
in terms of business volumes and sustained profitability with
global recognition / presence guided by high standard of
governance and ethics and emerge as the “Most Preferred
Banking Partner” to unlock value to all its stakeholders.

Bank’s Corporate Mission:

» Deliver the best of competitive products in terms of
quality, range, utility and cost effectiveness.

» Optimize HR resources through training, exposure,
mentoring and incentive, relying on the “soft touch”
instead of the big stick.
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» Develop quality bankers who would rise to be future
leaders of the industry.

» Contribute to country’s economic growth through
dedicated efforts of inclusive growth and customer
focus.

» Streamline the process of service delivery from time
to time by introduction of dynamic products to meet
emerging requirements.

» Nurture a climate of creative problem-solving skills to
resolve customer’s grievances with alacrity ensuring
that the Bank is regarded as Customer Centric.

» Emphasize a policy-oriented and rule-driven culture of
compliance to meet evolving requirements.

» Engineer CRM (Customer Relationship Management)
and insights gained for further enhancement of
products and service quality.

» Expand IT infrastructure to deliver all banking services
/ solutions from “one tap” irrespective of customer
location.

» Adopt a multi disciplinary approach to facilitate future
growth through the evolution of “Banks within the
Bank”.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
a.Composition:

The business of the Bank is vested with the Board of Directors.
The CMD and two EDs function under the superintendence,
direction and control of the Board. The strength as on
31.03.2014 is thirteen directors comprising three whole time
Directors and ten non-executive Directors, which includes
two directors elected by the shareholders to duly represent
their interest.

b. Particulars of directors who held office during the financial year 2013-2014:

S . . . . . Date of Retirement/demission

No. Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship Appointment | of office during the year

01 |Shri.MNarendra | Shalrman &Managing | gycutive / Whole Time | 01.11.2010

irector

Retired on

02 | Shri. A.K. Bansal Executive Director Executive / Whole Time 01.09.2010 superannuation on
31.05.2013

03 | Shri. A.D.M. Chavali |Executive Director Executive / Whole Time 28.12.2011

04 | Shri. Atul Agarwal Executive Director Executive / Whole Time 27.09.2013

Govt. Nominee - .

05 |Dr. Alok Pande Director Official - Non Executive 22.07.2011
30.11.2013 (Date of

06 | Shri. S.V.Raghavan |RBI Nominee Director | Official -Non Executive 30.07.2010 retirement) 12.03.2014
(Date of demission)

07 | Shri.Nirmal Chand RBI Nominee Director | Official -Non Executive 13.03.2014

o 08.08.2013 (demission
08 Shri. Sf'dhar Lal Workmen Employee Non Executive 09.08.2010 of office on completion
Lakhotia Director
of 3 years)
Shri. R. Sampath Workmen Employee .
09 Kumar Director Non Executive 24.01.2014
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12 26.12.2013 EE|
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14 29.01.2014 EE|

15 26.02.2014 EE|
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17 14.03.2014 (5919 - 4) kKl
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Sl . . . . . Date of Retirement/demission
No. Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship Appointment | of office during the year
. Officer Employee :
10 | Shri. J.D.Sharma Director Non Executive 02.05.2013
e Chartered Accountant
11 ﬁhg'rv’;‘;la“‘a“ Kumar | nirector/Part Time Non Executive 01.11.2011
9 Non- Official
12 | Shri. Chinnaiah Director/Part-time Non| 1 Eyecutive 13.11.2013
— Official
13 |Smt. S. Sujatha Director/Part-ime Non| v Evecutive 05.12.2013
— Official
14 | Shri. A.B.D.Badushas | PocionParttime Non | non Executive 12.12.2013
Shri.Ajit Vasant . .
15 Sardesai Shareholder Director Non Executive 08.12.2011
16 |Prof. S.Sadagopan | Shareholder Director Non Executive 08.12.2011

Profile of Directors of the Bank is enclosed as an Annexure.
It is declared that none of the directors are related to each
other. The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct for
Directors and all the General Managers and a declaration has
been obtained from the CMD confirming their compliance
with the Code of Conduct and is attached to this report.
Shri. S.N. Mishra, Chief General Manager is the Secretary to
the Board from 01.11.2012.

c. Meetings of the Board:

The date and place of the meeting as well as the agenda
papers are advised to all Directors well in advance. The
Directors have access to all additional information on the
agenda. Executives of the Bank are also invited to attend the
Board meetings to provide necessary clarifications. During

the year under review, the meetings of the Board were held 17
times as against the requirement of holding meetings at least
once a quarter with a minimum of six times a year.

During the year 2012-13, the Bank has promoted an
e-governance initiative for e-conduct of Board and
Committee meetings by ensuring timely and seamless flow
of information to Board members through the use of a Board
Portal, a web based online workspace. The portal offers
Directors confidential e-access on IPads, on a real-time basis,
to agenda papers. This initiative has transformed the way
meetings are conducted while resulting in substantial savings
in cost, time and resources.

»  During the financial year 2013-14 , the Board meetings
were held 17 times on the following dates and places :

SL NO. DATE OF MEETING PLACE HELD
01 16.04.2013 Chennai
02 29.04.2013 Chennai
03 25.05.2013 (Special- 1) Chennai
04 28.06.2013 Chennai
05 25.07.2013 Chennai
06 16.08.2013 Chennai
07 20.09.2013 Chennai
08 20.09.2013 (Special-2) Chennai
09 25.10.2013 Chennai
10 11.11.2013 (Special-3) Chennai
11 14.12.2013 Chennai
12 26.12.2013 Chennai
13 13.01.2014 Chennai
14 29.01.2014 Chennai
15 26.02.2014 Chennai
16 14.03.2014 Chennai
17 14.03.2014 (Special 4) Chennai
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As directed by Ministry of Finance, Government of India, one
Special Board Meeting was held in each quarter to focus on

one of the following subjects:

1)  Risk and NPA Management

2) Human Resources & Succession Planning

3) Core Business —

a) Branch operation,

b) Customer Services

4) Strategic Business Plan including products and markets,

innovation in business and e-governance

»  All the meetings were conducted with proper quorum
and without any adjournments.

»  Attendance of the directors at the above Board meetings
and last AGM held on 28.06.2013 are furnished below:

on-line banking, Business

Process, Re-engineering, costs and productivity

Sl. Name of Director Number of Board Meetings Attendance in the Last AGM 28.06.2013
No. attended/held

01 | Shri. M.Narendra, CMD 1717 Attended

02 | Shri. A.K.Bansal 03/03 Retired on 31.05.2013

03 | Shri. A.D.M.Chavali 16/17 Attended

04 | Shri. Atul Agarwal 09/09 Joined the Bank on 27.09.2013

05 | Dr. Alok Pande 15 /17 Not attended

06 | Shri.S.V.Raghavan 10/16** Attended

07 | Shri. Nirmal Chand 00/01 Nominated to the Board on 13.03.2014
08 | Shri. Sridhar Lal Lakhotia 04/05 Attended

09 | Shri. R. Sampath Kumar 04/04 Nominated to the Board on 24.01.2014
10 | Shri. Jai Deo Sharma 14/15 Attended

11 | Shri. Niranjan Kumar Agarwal 17/17 Attended

12 | Shri. Chinnaiah 07/07 Joined the Board on 13.11.2013

13 | Smt. S. Sujatha 07/07 Joined the Board on 05.12.2013

14 | Shri. A B D Badushas 07/07 Joined the Board on 12.12.2013

15 | Shri. Ajit Vasant Sardesai 16/17 Attended

16 | Prof. S. Sadagopan 09/17 Attended

**Retired at RBI on superannuation on 30.11.2013 and did not attend the Board meetings as well as other committee meetings
in which he is a member thereafter.

Shri. Nirmal Chand, has been nominated as RBI Nominee Director with effect from 13.03.2014.

d. Number of other Boards or Board Committees in which the Director is a member/ Chairperson:

Name of the Director

Number of other companies (excluding private companies
and I0B) in which he / she is a member/ Chairperson of the
Board (excluding alternate / nominee director)

Number of Committees
(other than 10B) in which
a member

Shri. M. Narendra 1)  Director on the Board of India International Bank NIL
CMD of IOB (Malaysia) Berhad
2) Director on the Board of Universal Sompo General
Insurance Co. Ltd.
Prof. S.Sadagopan 1 National Payment Corporation Of India
2) “KEONICS” Ex officio Director NIL

IITB Innovation Centre

National Stock Exchange

)
)
3) KBITS - Ex-officio Director
)
)
)

Vignyan Industries Ltd. (a subsidiary of BEML)
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e. Membership in Committees:

None of the directors on the Board is a member in more
than 10 committees or acts as a Chairman of more than five
committees across all companies in which he is a director.
(For the purpose of reckoning the limit in terms of clause 49(1)
(C) of the listing agreement, the chairmanship/membership
of the Audit Committee and the Shareholders’ Grievance
Committee alone have been considered).

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

In order to facilitate the decision-making process, Board
has constituted the following committees and delegated
specific powers to them. The minutes of each meeting
are subsequently placed before the next meeting of the
committee for confirmation. The minutes are also placed
before the Board Meeting for information.

3.1 Management Committee of the Board (MCB):

MCB is constituted as per the provisions of the Nationalized
Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme,
1970. The functions and duties of the MCB are as under:

a. Sanctioning of credit proposals (funded and non
funded) as per quantum fixed by the Board

b. Loan and Interest Compromise / Write off proposals — as
per quantum fixed by the Board.
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Proposals for and

expenditure

approval of capital revenue

d. Proposals relating to acquisition and hiring of premises,
including deviation from norms for acquisition and hiring
of premises.

e. Filing of suits / appeals, defending them etc.

f.  Investments in Government and other approved
securities, shares and debentures of companies,
including underwriting.

g. Donations

h. Any other matter referred to the Management
Committee by the Board. ltems (a) to (g) will be in
respect of proposals beyond the discretionary powers
of CMD/ powers of Credit Approval Committee, as may
be applicable.

The Committee met 21 times during the year. All the meetings
were conducted with proper quorum and without any
adjournments.

The Members who held office during the period 01.04.2013
t0 31.03.2014 and the details of number of meetings attended
during their tenure by each Committee member are as under:

SI. No. Name of Director Position Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
From To Attended/held
1 Shri. M.Narendra, CMD Chairman 01.11.2010 21/21
2 Shri. A.K.Bansal Member 01.09.2010 31.05.2013 03/03
3 Shri.A.D.M.Chavali Member 28.12.2011 20/21
4 Shri. Atul Agarwal Member 27.09.2013 08/11
5 Shri.S.V.Raghavan Member 13.09.2010 12.03.2014 13/19
6 Shri. Nirmal Chand Member 13.03.2014 00/01
7 Shri.Niranjan Kumar Agarwal Member 01.11.2011 31.10.2014 19/21
8 Shri.A.V.Sardesai Member 26.10.2012 27.11.2013 11/13
9 Prof.S.Sadagopan Member 29.10.2012 24.05.2013 04/13
09.08.2013 08.02.2014
10 Shri. Chinnaiah Member 13.11.2013 12.05.2014 08/08
11 Smt. S.Sujatha Member 05.12.2013 04.06.2014 05/06
12 Shri. A.B.D.Badushas Member 12.12.2013 11.06.2014 04/04
13 Shri. Jai Deo Sharma Member 25.05.2013 14.12.2013 11/12
14 Shri. Sridhar Lal Lakhotia Member 26.03.2013 08.08.2013 07/07

3.2 Credit Approval Committee of the Board (CAC)

The Credit Approval Committee of the Board has been
constituted on 25.02.2012 by the Board of Directors in terms
of the amendment of the Nationalized Banks (Management
and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme 1970 vide Notification
No. S.0. 2736 (E) dated December 5, 2011. The Committee
is empowered with specific financial powers for sanctioning

of credit proposals and for settlement for Loan compromise
[ write off.

The Chairman of the committee is the CMD of the Bank.
The committee met 30 times during the period 01.04.2013
to 31.03.2014. Number of Meetings attended by each
Committee Member during the period:
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Name of Director Position Tenure of lr:T; grr:ber ship - Meeting attended/held

Shri. M.Narendra, CMD Chairman 25.02.2012 30/30
Shri. A.K.Bansal Member 25.02.2012 to 31.05.2013 04/06
Shri.A.D.M.Chavali Member 25.02.2012 28/30
Shri. Atul Agarwal Member 27.09.2013 12/15
G.M Large Corporate Dept Member 25.02.2012 25/30
G M Mid Corporate Dept Member 25.02.2012 27/30
G M MSME Dept Member 25.02.2012 25/30
G M Balance Sheet Management Dept(CFO) Member 25.02.2012 28/30
G M Risk Management Dept Member 25.02.2012 30/30

3.3 Audit Committee of the Board (ACB):

The Audit committee of the Board has been constituted by
the Board of Directors as per instructions of the Reserve
Bank of India/GOI and consists of six members comprising of
two EDs, Government director, RBI director, two non-official
directors of which one is a non-official Chartered Accountant
director nominated under section 9(3)(g) of the Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings)
Act, 1970/1980 in terms of GOI Circular dated 18.02.2008
advising Public Sector Banks to include such Director in the
Audit Committee of the Board.

The delegated functions and duties of the ACB are as under:

» To provide direction as also oversee the operation of
the total audit function in the Bank. Total audit function
will imply the organization, operationalisation and
quality control of the internal audit and inspection
within the Bank and follow up on the statutory /

external audit of the Bank and inspections of RBI.

To review the internal inspection / audit function in
the Bank - the system, its quality and effectiveness in
terms of follow-up and also the inspection reports of
specialized and extra large branches and all branches
with unsatisfactory ratings

To obtain and review half — yearly reports from the
Compliance Officers of the functional areas

To review and follow up on the report of the statutory
audits, and all the issues raised in the Long Form
Audit Report (LFAR) and interact with the external
auditors before the finalization of the annual / quarterly
financial statements and reports.

To review and follow up all the issues / concerns
raised in the Inspection reports of RBI.

This committee specially focuses on the follow-up of:
Inter — Branch Adjustment Accounts

Unreconciled long outstanding entries in Inter — Bank
Accounts and Nostro Accounts

Arrears in balancing of books at various branches
Frauds and all other major areas of house — keeping,

The following additional role functions/powers have
been entrusted to ACB in terms of SEBI Committee

on Corporate Governance guidelines issued by RBI to
Indian Commercial Banks listed on stock exchanges:

To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.
To seek information from any employee.

To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

vV V V V

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant
expertise, if it considers necessary.

The role of the Audit Committee shall also include the
following in addition to the existing role function:

» Overseeing of the company’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial statements are correct,

sufficient and credible.

Reviewing with the Management the financial
statements with special emphasis on accounting
policies and practices, compliance of accounting
standards and other legal requirements concerning
the financial statements.

Reviewing with the Management, external and internal
auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations
by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the Board.

Discussing with external auditors before the
commencement of audit the nature and scope of audit
as well as having post audit discussion to ascertain
any area of concern.

» Reviewing the company’s Financial and Risk

Management Policies.

In line with the suggestions of the Ministry of Finance,
Government of India, the Audit Committee of the Board
approved the broadening of the scope of the Audit Committee
of the Board to include the following reviews of accounts at
specific exposure levels:

A)
B)

Potential NPA / stress cases as and when required.

High value loans which have been granted against a
security which is not free from encumbrances
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3 |4t vt EEet 28.12.2011 07/07
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5 oft ot T 21.12.2011 07/07
6 |9 Tg g 21.12.2011 03/07
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C) Cases of One time settlement involving high value loans

¢
&

and 25.02.2014.

D) High value accounts - to evaluate / re-evaluate the value

and quality of security / collateral (both tangible and
especially intangible) provided against the account.

The committee met 11 times during the year 2013-14 on
29.04.2013, 14.06.2013, 25.07.2013, 03.08.2013, 17.08.2013,

04.10.2013, 25.10.2013, 11.11.2013, 14.12.2013, 29.01.2014,

All the meetings were conducted with proper quorum and
without any adjournment.

The members who held office during the period 01.04.2013
to 31.03.2014 and the particulars of the number of meetings

attended by them during the year are as under:

Sl. Name of Director Position Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
No. From To Attended/held
1 | Shri. A.K.Bansal Member 01.09.2010 | 31.05.2013 01/01

2 | Shri. A.D.M.Chavali Member 28.12.2011 10/11

3 | Shri. Atul Agarwal Member 27.09.2013 06/06

4. | Dr. Alok Pande Member 22.07.2011 10/11

5 | Shri. S.V.Raghavan Member 30.07.2010 | 12.03.2014 07/11

6 | Shri. Nirmal Chand Member 13.03.2014 | | -

7 | Shri. Niranjan Kumar Agarwal Member/Chairman w.e.f 01.11.2011 | 31.10.2014 11/11

03.12.2011
8 | Shri. A.V. Sardesai Member 26.10.2012 10/11

3.4 Risk Management Committee:

The Chairman of the Committee is the CMD of the Bank. The Committee met 7 times during the period 01.04.2013 to
31.03.2014. Number of Meetings attended by each Member of the Committee during the year:

’\?(l)_. Name of the Directors Fr;;nure of membershi;_:)ro Nur:ttt)ee; g;dl\?ﬁglt(ijngs
1 Shri. M.Narendra, 01.11.2010 07/07
2 Shri. A.K.Bansal 01.09.2010 31.05.2013 01/01
3 Shri. A.D.M.Chavali 28.12.2011 07/07
4 Shri. Atul Agarwal 27.09.2013 03/04
5 Shri.A.V.Sardesai 21.12.2011 07/07
6 Prof.S.Sadagopan 21.12.2011 03/07

3.5 Committee For Monitoring Large Value Frauds:

The Chairman of the Committee is the CMD of the Bank. The Committee met 5 times during the period 01.04.2013 t0 31.03.2014.
Number of meetings attended by each member of the committee during the year:

Sl. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
No. From To Attended/held
1. Shri. M.Narendra 01.11.2010 05/05
2 Shri. A.K.Bansal 01.09.2010 31.05.2013 01/01
3 Shri. A.D.M.Chavali 28.12.2011 05/05
4 Shri. Atul Agarwal 27.09.2013 03/03
5 Dr. Alok Pande 22.07.2011 05/05
6 Shri. Niranjan Kumar Agarwal 03.12.2011 05/05
7 Shri. Ajit Vasant Sardesai 26.10.2012 05/05
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3.6 Customer Service Committee:

The Chairman of the Committee is the CMD of the Bank. The Committee met 4 times during the period 01.04.2013 t0 31.03.2014.
Number of meetings attended by each member of the Committee during the year:

,il,', Name of the Directors FTrirrn:re of members:l_;p Number of Mﬁztli;gs Attended/
1 Shri. M.Narendra 01.11.2010 04/04
2 Shri. A.K.Bansal 01.09.2010 31.05.2013 01/01
3 Shri. A.D.M.Chavali 28.12.2011 04/04
4 Shri. Atul Agarwal 27.09.2013 01/02
5 Dr.Alok Pande 22.07.2011 03/04
6 Shri. Sridhar Lal Lakhotia 09.08.2010 08.08.2013 02/02
7 Shri. J.D.Sharma 02.05.2013 03/03
8 Shri. Niranjan Kumar Agarwal 26.10.2012 03/04

3.7 Committee For Review Of Disciplinary Cases:

The Chairman of the Committee is the CMD of the Bank. The Committee met 4 times during the period 01.04.2013 t0 31.03.2014.
Number of meetings attended by each member of the Committee during the year :

SI. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
No. From To Attended/held

1 Shri. M. Narendra 01.11.2010 04/04

2 Shri. A.K.Bansal 01.09.2010 31.05.2013 01/01

3 Shri. A.D.M.Chavali 28.12.2011 03/04

4 Shri. Atul Agarwal 27.09.2013 02/02

5 Dr. Alok Pande 22.07.2011 04/04

6 Shri. S.V.Raghavan 30.07.2010 12.03.2014 03/04

3.8 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Remuneration (excluding performance linked incentive) payable to the whole time directors is decided by the Central
Government. The Bank does not pay any remuneration to other directors except sitting fees as per directives of Central
Government.

A Remuneration Committee, a Sub-Committee of the Board of Directors, has been constituted for evaluating the performance
in terms of government guidelines and to recommend payment of performance-linked incentives to the whole time directors
of the Bank, in terms of Government of India, Ministry of Finance (Banking Division) letter F. No. 16/65/2011 — BO-| dated
29.05.2012.

The members of the Committee that met 2 times on 14.06.2013 and 03.08.2013 are :-
1. Dr. Alok Pande

2. Shri. S.V. Raghavan

3.  Shri. Ajit Vasant Sardesai

4. Prof. S. Sadagopan.

All members of the Committee have attended the meeting.

3.9 NOMINATION COMMITTEE :

RBI, vide circular ref: DBOD. No. BC. No0.47 / 29.39.001 / 2007-08 dated 01.11.2007, pursuant to the amendment in The
Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970 effective 16.10.2006, has issued necessary guidelines
for determining the authority, manner/procedure and criteria for deciding the ‘Fit and Proper’ status etc., while appointing the
Directors.

RBI has directed that the “Fit and Proper” criteria, as of now, be made applicable to the elected directors (Shareholder directors)
- both present and future.

The Committee would be constituted at an appropriate time as and when a vacancy arise for shareholder director.
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3.10 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STRATEGY COMMITTEE

Shri. A.K. Bansal, Executive Director was the Chairman of the Committee upto 31.05.2013 .

From 07.09.2013, Shri. A.D.M. Chavali is the Chairman of the Committee. The Committee met 3 times during the period

01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014. Number of meetings attended by each member of the Committee during the year:

Tenure of membership

Number of Meetings

SI.No. Name of the Directors From To attended/held
1 Shri. A.K.Bansal 30.05.2011 31.05.2013 01/01
2 Shri. A.D.M. Chavali 28.12.2011 03/03
3 Shri. Atul Agarwal 27.09.2013 01/01
4 Dr.Alok Pande 28.01.2012 03/03
5 Prof.S.Sadagopan 28.01.2012 03/03

3.11 BOARD LEVEL STEERING COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

The Committee met 2 times on 05.10.2013 and 25.02.2014. Number of meetings attended by each member of the Committee

during the year:
Sl. No. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
From To Attended/held
1 Shri. M. Narendra 21.12.2011 02/02
2 Shri. A.D.M. Chavali 28.12.2011 02/02
3 Shri. Atul Agarwal 27.09.2013 00/02
4 Dr. Alok Pande 21.12.2011 02/02
5 Shri. K.R. Ramamoorthy HR Professional 21.12.2011 02/02
6 Dr. T.T. Ram Mohan 21.12.2011 01/02
HR Professional

3.12 BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEE TO MONITOR RECOVERY IN NPA

The Committee met 7 times during the period 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014. Number of meetings attended by each member of the

Committee during the year:

SI. No. Name of the Directors F-Ir-i::”e of membersh_:-z Nu?t?:r:g:x'j\?sglt;ngs
1 Shri. M. Narendra 08.12.2012 07/07
2 Shri. A.K.Bansal 08.12.2012 31.05.2013 01/01
3 Shri. A.D.M. Chavali 08.12.2012 06/07
4 Shri. Atul Agarwal 27.09.2013 04/06
5 Dr. Alok Pande 08.12.2012 07/07
6 General Manager (Recovery) 08.12.2012 07/07
7 General Manager (Credit Monitoring) 08.12.2012 07/07
8 Senior most General Manager of the Bank 08.12.2012 07/07

3.13 COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS FOR PREFERENTIAL ISSUE OF SHARES

The Committee was constituted for allotment of equity shares to the Government of India and LIC of India on a preferential
basis and was authorized to take necessary and incidental steps (including fixing of price) in connection with the issue,

allotment of shares on preferential basis.

The committee was constituted by the Board on 11.11.2013 with the following members.

1. Chairman and Managing Director

Any one of the Executive Directors

2
3.  Shri. A.V. Sardesai — Shareholder Director and
4

Shri. J.D. Sharma - Director
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The Committee met 3 times in the FY 2013-14 on 18.11.2013, 18.12.2013 and 10.03.2014. The process of allotment was
completed with the allotment of shares to Government of India on 18.12.2013 and LIC of India on 10.03.2014. Fresh committee
will be constituted by the Board as and when necessary.

4. SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMITTEES:
(a) Shareholders’ Grievance Committee:
The Shareholders’ Grievance Committee, constituted in April 2001, was last reconstituted by the Board on 21.09.2012.

At present, the Chairman of the Committee is Shri. A.V. Sardesai and the other members are two directors nominated by the
Board. The committee met 4 times during the period 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014, on 29.04.2013, 03.08.2013, 11.11.2013 and
26.02.2014. All the meetings were conducted with proper quorum and without any adjournments. The number of meetings
attended by each committee member during the year is as follows:

Sl. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
No. From To Attended/held

1 | Shri. A.V.Sardesai 08.11.2011 04/04

2 | Shri. A.K.Bansal 01.09.2010 31.05.2013 01/01

3 | Shri. A.D.M.Chavali ** 28.12.2011 02/04

4 | Shri. Atul Agarwal *** 18.10.2013 02/02

5 | Prof.S.Sadagopan 21.09.2012 03/04

** Appointed to attend meetings as a member of the Shareholders’ Grievance Committee in the absence or inability of
Shri. A.K.Bansal, ED to attend meetings.

*** Appointed to attend meetings as a member of the Shareholders’ Grievance Committee with effect from 18.10.2013 in the
absence or inability of Shri. A.D.M.Chavali, ED to attend meetings.

The Shareholders’ Grievance Committee appointed a Practicing Company Secretary, Shri. V. Suresh, to undertake the
Secretarial Audit in the office of the Registrar, at periodical intervals to verify the methodology followed by them involving
Shareholders Grievances & Redressal system etc. The committee considers his quarterly reports at every meeting.

(b) Share Transfer Committee:

Share Transfer Committee consists of the Chairman and Managing Director or in his absence the Executive Director, one
shareholder Director and one Director nominated by the Board. The committee deals with all matters connected with share
transfers, transmission, issue of duplicate share certificates, transposition, demat / remat etc. The committee met 22 times
during the year and all the meetings were conducted with proper quorum and without any adjournments.

The number of meetings attended by each committee member during the year is as under:

St Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
No. From To Attended/held

1 | Shri.M. Narendra 01.11.2010 01/01

2 | Shri. AK.Bansal * 01.09.2010 31.05.2013 06/06

3 | Shri. A.D.M. Chavali ** 28.12.2011 14/14

4 | Shri. Atul Agarwal *** 27.09.2013 01/01

5 | Shri. A.V.Sardesai 08.12.2011 22/22

6 | Prof. S.Sadagopan 26.03.2013 15/22

*Appointed to act as Chairman of the Share Transfer Committee In the absence or inability of CMD to attend Meetings.

**Appointed to act as Chairman of the Share Transfer Committee In the absence or inability of CMD or Shri.A.K.Bansal, ED to
attend Meetings.

***Appointed to act as Chairman of the Share Transfer Committee In the absence or inability of CMD or Shri.A.D.M.Chavali,
ED to attend Meetings.

The Share Transfer Committee consists of two outstation shareholder directors. As a precautionary measure, to strictly
adhere to the time line in compliance with SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Board at its meeting held on 20.09.2013 constituted
an Executive Level Share Transfer Approval Committee (ELSTAC) with Senior most Chief General Manager (CGM) or in
his absence the next senior most Chief General Manager as Chairman and General Managers from Planning, Balance Sheet
Management, Risk Management Departments and Company Secretary of the Bank as members.
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The committee is also delegated with powers to consider and approve the share transfer and transmission requests including
the power to reject them. The minutes of the committee are placed to STC for ratification / confirmation. Since inception, the
committee met 15 times during last year and the actions of ELSTAC committee are ratified by STC.

The Share Transfer Committee appointed a Practicing Company Secretary, Shri V. Suresh, to undertake the Secretarial Audit
in the office of the Registrar, to verify the methodology followed by them involving share transfer, transmission, consolidation,
split, issue of duplicate certificates etc., His assignment commenced on 01.01.2005 and his fortnightly reports are considered
at every meeting of the Committee. No request for transfer is pending for more than one month.

(c) Compliance Officer:

In terms of clause 47 of the listing agreement, Ms.Deepa Chellam is the Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer during
the period under review for the purpose of complying with the various provisions of SEBI, Stock Exchanges etc.

(d) Shareholders Complaints:

Number of complaints received, resolved and pending during the year:

S. Nature of Complaint Pending as Received Redressed Pending as on
No. P on 31.03.2013 | during the year | during the year 31.03.2014
1 Noq .recelpt of refund order and Share Nil 3 3 Nil
certificates
2 | Non receipt of Dividend Nil 309 309 Nil
3 | Complaints to SEBI / Stock Exchanges and Nil 51 50 1
Consumer Redressal Forum /Court
4 | Miscellaneous (complaints reg. change of Nil 11 11 Nil
address, bank mandate, demat requests etc.)
Total Nil 374 373 1*

*Pending one complaint of NSE is resolved subsequently on 04.04.2014.

In terms of clause 47(f) of the listing agreement we have advised the shareholders that an exclusive e-mail ID - investorcomp@
iobnet.co.in has been allotted and Ms. Deepa Chellam, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for the purpose of
registering and redressal of complaints by investors. We have displayed this email ID and other relevant details prominently on
our website. The Investor Relations Cell headed by an Assistant General Manager who is also a qualified Company Secretary
handles the redressal of investor complaints.

5. Other Committees:

There are various other committees such as Asset Liability Management Committee, Investment Review Committee, and Top
Management Committee comprising CMD, ED and GMs along with Department executives, which have been constituted for
the day to day functioning, review and monitoring of various aspects of business.

6. GENERAL BODY MEETING:

a. Location and time where last three General Body Meetings were held:

SCIJ'. Nature of Meeting Date, Day and time of Meeting Venue
T 1 11th AGM 12.07.2011, Tuesday, 10.00 A.M. g'fchjaTKngzg’ aé’r:':nnai 600018
2 | 12th AGM 29.06.2012, Friday, 10.00 A.M. gﬂaﬁf ;r;zds e 600015
% | 13th AGM 28.06.2013, Friday, 10.00 A.M. ggg,i ir?s;hg;:-;“Chennai — 600 006

b. In the 12th and 13th AGMSs, special resolutions were put through to get the shareholders approval to raise capital by way of
issue of equity shares through Qualified Institutional Placement (QIP), Rights Issue, Preferential allotment or Follow-on Public
Offer or preference shares (cumulative / non cumulative).

c. There was no postal ballot exercise.
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d. Location and time where Extra Ordinary General Body Meetings were held:
Sl. No. | Nature of Meeting Date, Day and time of Meeting Venue
1 EGM 07.12.2002 Saturday 11.00 AM. ggg’i Aiie;r‘sa;:‘:’“(':hemai 600,006
2 EGM 30.11.2005 Wednesday 11.00 A.M. ggg,i Aif]e;hsa;e“f'(':hennai 600 006
3 EGM 25.11.2008 Tuesday 11.00 A.M. ls\lfchj?rS;ch?ag::nnai 500 018
4 EGM 22.03.2011 Tuesday 11.00 AM g‘ff?frfggz;ag::mai 500018
5 EGM 21.03.2012 Wednesday 10.30A.M éﬁ?:;i‘l ["Z(';:)OSS('SH""”’ New No. 492, Anna Sala,
® EGM 18.03.2013 Monday 10.00 A.M. zg;i Aiie:‘sa;l:’a'éhennai 600 006
’ EGM 16.12.2013 Monday 10.00 AM. Eg;‘jﬁr?gizﬁda?[g?‘%SSO’ Montieth Road,
8 EGM 26.02.2014 Wednesday 10.00 A.M. g‘ffﬁf;gzdslag;‘:mai 500 018

First three EGM meetings were held for election of shareholder director. The next five EGM meetings were held for obtaining
shareholders approval for issue of equity shares to Government of India and LIC and its various schemes on preferential basis.

7. DISCLOSURES:

a. The remuneration of the Chairman & Managing Director and the Executive Directors is fixed by the Central Government.
Details of remuneration paid to Whole Time Directors during the financial year 2013-14 are as follows :
Sl Name Designation Details of Remuneration Amount
No. R.)
Salary & Allowances ,PF, Perquisites
Shri. M. Narendra CMD and Incentives Paid during the Period 27,28,800.00
01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014
ED Salary & Allowances, PF, Perquisites
Shri. A. K. Bansal (Retired on and Incentives Paid during the Period 7,08,103.00
31.05.2013) 01.04.2013 to 31.08.2013
Salary & Allowances, PF, Perquisites
Shri. A.D.M.Chavali ED and Incentives Paid during the Period 22,49,691.00
01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014
Salary & Allowances, PF, Perquisites
Shri. Atul Agarwal ED and Incentives Paid during the Period 9,67,823.00
27.09.2013 to 31.03.2014

The Bank does not pay any remuneration to the Independent Directors excepting sitting fees as per the Govt. of India
guidelines, for Board Meetings — T. 10000/- per meeting and for Committee Meetings — . 5000/- per meeting.

Disclosures as to Related Party Transactions of Key Managerial Personnel i.e. Whole Time Directors are being reviewed
on a half yearly basis by the Audit Committee of the Board.

There are no significant related party transactions of the Bank with its subsidiaries, directors, management or their relatives
etc that would have potential conflict with the interests of the Bank at large.

No penalties were imposed or strictures passed on us by Stock Exchanges/SEBI /any statutory authority on any matter
related to capital markets during the last three years ended 31.03.2014.

Presently the Bank has a Whistle Blower Policy.

The Bank has complied with all the mandatory requirements to the extent provided for in the statutes/guidelines/directives
issued from time to time by the RBI/Government of India to the nationalized banks.

The Non Mandatory requirements have been adopted as stated in this report against the relevant items.

The Certificate of CEO and CFO under clause 49 of the listing agreement has been submitted to the Board of Directors of
the Bank and a copy is attached to this report.
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i. In terms of clause 49 of the listing agreement, a certificate has been obtained from the Statutory Central Auditors on corporate
governance in the Bank for the year 2013-14 and the same is annexed to this report.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

a.

C.

The quarterly un-audited financial results of the Bank are approved by the Board of Directors and the same are submitted
within the stipulated period to all the stock exchanges where the Bank’s shares are listed. The Bank has been sending
half yearly / annual results, under Green Initiative, by email to those shareholders whose e mail addresses are available
with the bank and for others by hard copy.

The quarterly financial results are published in a national daily and a regional vernacular daily in terms of Clause 41 of the
listing agreement. The details and dates of publication are as under:

Quarter ended English Daily Regional Daily pu%?it:a't’i:m
31.03.2013 The Hindu - Business Line Dinamani (Tamil) 30.04.2013
30.06.2013 The Hindu — Business Line Dinamani (Tamil) 27.07.2013
30.09.2013 The Hindu — Business Line Dinamani (Tamil) 27.10.2013
31.12. 2013 The Hindu — Business Line Dinamani (Tamil) 31.01.2014

The quarterly results and annual results are also being displayed on the Bank’s web-site www.iob.co.in. under
shareholder information.

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

AGM: Date, Time and Venue:-

Date 27.06.2014

Time 10.00 A.M.

Venue Rani Seethai Hall

603, Anna Salai, Chennai — 600 006
Financial Year : 01st April 2013 to 31st March 2014.
Date of Book Closure : 21.06.2014 to 27.06.2014 (Both days inclusive) for determining eligibility for the purpose
of dividend.

Dividend Payment Date : On or after 16.07.2014 subject to declaration of dividend by shareholders.

Unpaid Dividend:-

The Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) and Financial Institutions Laws (Amendment) Act, 2006
which has come into force on 16.10.2006, has inserted a new section 10(B) in the Banking Companies (Acquisition and
Transfer of Undertakings) Act 1970 which provides as under:

>

Within 7 days from the expiry of 30 days from the date of declaration, if any shareholder has not encashed / claimed the
dividend, such amounts lying in the bank current account, have to be transferred to a separate account styled “Unpaid

»

Dividend Account of I0B for the year .

Any money transferred to the Unpaid Dividend account which remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years
from the date of such transfer, shall be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund established under Sec
205(1)(C) of the Companies Act 1956.

Accordingly, the unpaid dividend of previous years has been transferred to Unpaid Dividend Account/s of IOB as follows
and hence such monies, which remain unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of such transfer, and
thereafter shall be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund:

Dividend for Date of Transfer to Unpaid Dividend for Date of Transfer to Unpaid
Dividend A/c Dividend A/c

2000-01 08.12.2006 2005-06 04.12.2006

2001-02 05.12.2006 2006-07 13.07.2007

2002-03 05.12.2006 2007-08 19.07.2008

2003-04 () 04.12.2006 iggg‘?z ;;'?g'zg?z

2003-04 (F 04.12.2006 - —

) (| ) 09.12.2006 2010-11 02.09.2011
004-05 (1) s 2011-12 16.10.2012

2004-05 (F) 05.12.2006 201213 01.08.2013
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T, dh o I Forfeiad weie T § geft o Ry T 8
T TEFEI ST T A1 TiF HI
EERAERCEE TR 532388
AU ©ih THTE 3% e . . st fo wE oft it
T TS B A 2013-14 & T geas F9 3 afies Yo (Eiia 39 akEl & e e e |

gTfere gt

FAAM H S T FFHd g 5. 3000 HAE 7 |

Yoot USft ° agra’t

6 3 A SR W ARG TR H %.1199,99,99,973.45 (¥93 Ta1E T s Fg (= org f=me gom 1 &
fogcR ST Heifer 99 ur) & WAfed qod & $.52.23 7fT et weR (.42.23 ufa et wer & difam 9fed) # |« W
22,97,53,015 Zferact Srar 31 aredta st sftar f3em &1 %.398,04,60,000 (¥93 = 6 3158 'S ¥R @ 913 &R 7H) &
THfHT Jod o %.48.84 Wi 2t TR (2.38.84 uft $faaet e o diftam @fed) & W W 8,15,00,000 et v 1
2 TorTehT Tt o Ui X &.10 § | 370 5% 1 78 goft €.924.10 FUT ¥ ¢ B %.1235.35 U & Tt & 31 5% § 9rd
TEEHR 3 WA 31.03.2013 3797 73.80% o a1 TR i 91T WA gU %.681.96 F0E (73.80%) ¥ a7 #X &. 911.71
F0E (73.80%) & Tft 21

Sft. SR 0od & 3Tiehs

s A Lieh T Jia Eish TFgES
3I=HA(%) = (%) 3I=A(%) = (%)
I 2013 69.45 62.20 69.50 61.70
g 2013 65.80 58.80 65.65 58.60
S 2013 61.40 47.00 61.60 47.15
W 2013 51.80 40.40 51.80 40.60
3T 2013 43.20 37.00 43.20 37.15
f&ds 2013 49.50 38.05 49.45 38.20
3R] 2013 51.65 44.15 51.50 44.10
T 2013 57.45 49.85 57.45 49.90
fad= 2013 54.20 46.85 54.00 46.80
S 2014 53.95 42.10 54.00 42.15
w2014 47.20 43.00 47.25 43.00
T 2014 53.40 44.70 53.00 44.60

2013-14 % S G ©ish Traa s § de 3 Ta o 3= / [ FiHal & 3fihe a2 3l § R |
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Hence Dividend declared up to 2006 were to be transferred to Investors Education and Protection Fund on or before 15.10.2013.
As Banks are not covered under Companies Act, as per the direction of Ministry of Finance, we have taken up with the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs seeking their guidance and the procedure to be adopted for transferring the amount to Investor’s Education
and Protection Fund (IEPF). A Gazette Notification has been issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 27.03.2014 amending
the IEPF rules called as Investor Education and Protection Fund (awareness and protection of investors) Amendment Rules,
2014, with effect from 31.03.2014, bringing the Banks under the ambit of definition of Company, but however MCA are yet
to advice the procedure for remittance in the absence of CIN numbers. We also have taken up with the Government for the
issuance of necessary guidance in this regard.

f. The Bank’s shares are listed on the following stock exchanges:

Name of the Stock Exchange Stock Code
BSE Ltd. 532388
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. IOB EQ AE BE BT

Annual listing fee for the year 2013-14 has been paid to the stock exchanges within the prescribed due dates.
Authorised Capital:

At present, the Authorized Capital of the Bank is %. 3000 crore.

Increase in Paid-up Capital:

The Bank has issued 22,97,53,015 Equity Shares, of face value . 10/- each, at the rate of 3. 52.23 per equity share (including
premium of %. 42.23 per equity share) aggregating to %. 1199,99,99,973.45 (Rupees one thousand one Hundred and ninety
nine crore ninety nine lac ninety nine thousand nine hundred and seventy three and paise forty five only) to Government of
India on Preferential Basis and 8,15,00,000 Equity shares, of face value . 10/- each, at the rate of . 48.84 per equity share
(including premium of . 38.84 per equity share) aggregating to ¥. 398,04,60,000 (Rupees three hundred and ninety eight
crore four lac sixty thousand only) to LIC of India on Preferential Basis. Hence, the Paid-up Capital of the bank has increased
from . 924.10 crore to . 1235.35 crore and Government of India’s shareholding has increased from . 681.96 crore (73.80%)
to . 911.71 crore (73.80%), retaining their holding level at 73.80% as on 31.03.2014.

d) Market Price Data:-

National Stock Exchange Bombay Stock Exchange
Period - Month
High (Rs) Low (Rs) High (Rs) Low (Rs)
Apr 2013 69.45 62.20 69.50 61.70
May 2013 65.80 58.80 65.65 58.60
Jun 2013 61.40 47.00 61.60 47.15
Jul 2013 51.80 40.40 51.80 40.60
Aug 2013 43.20 37.00 43.20 37.15
Sep 2013 49.50 38.05 49.45 38.20
Oct 2013 51.65 44.15 51.50 4410
Nov 2013 57.45 49.85 57.45 49.90
Dec 2013 54.20 46.85 54.00 46.80
Jan 2014 53.95 4210 54.00 42.15
Feb 2014 47.20 43.00 47.25 43.00
Mar 2014 53.40 44.70 53.00 44.60

Figures in bold represent the high / low price of the Bank’s shares during the year 2013-14 on the respective Stock Exchanges.
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h). Equity performance in comparison to BSE Sensex during 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014
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i. Registrar & Transfer agent:

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
(Unit-IOB) Subramanian Building, | Floor
No.1 Club House Road

Chennai-600 002

Tel: 044-28460395; 28460084 Fax: 28460129

e-mail:cameo@cameoindia.com

3000

—m— Share Price high
for the month

—e— Nifty close on the
same day
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Yadeht ahl emar
1. TR TR 9117100848 73.80
3T I 9117100848 73.80
HAT-yacdieh ST &IRUT
2. HEINT (a9t
. A HUSH, I T AF gl 225104 0.02
@. de 9 facha geard 183247419 14.83
. i sHufeat 5281678 0.43
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3 fagefht smRe e 48000 0.00
eI 211727254 17.14
3. =
&. fasft form forepr 8914146 0.72
g, Fafass 96243925 7.80
. T 3R 378 4479923 0.36
. B 2272219 0.18
3T =T 111910213 9.06
el T 1235348315 100
TA. 31.03.2014 Teh TrawuT STEA ¢
TR YURH F | WEARH # | TEHEI0F AFA A D | VA F A @ | WA H o
AT T T3 % I Ft FHe TR (3ifehe 7o) T H %
215121 85.84 5000 T 371302620 3.01
23001 9.18 5001 & 10000 7% 191422390 1.55
7710 3.08 10001 & 20000 T 111489700 0.90
1767 0.71 20001 & 30000 T 44473800 0.36
881 0.35 30001 & 40000 T 31568380 0.26
532 0.21 40001 & 50000 T 25029380 0.20
839 0.33 50001 & 100000 T 61586540 0.50
758 0.30 100001 & 37f¥re 11516610340 93.22
250609 100.00 PiE) 12353483150 100.00
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j- Share Transfer System:

Our bank has a Sub-Committee of the Board for considering the requests received from shareholders for transfer, transmission,
transposition, issuance of duplicate share certificates, splitting, consolidation, remat, name change etc. The Chairman and
Managing Director or in his absence the Executive Director is Chairman of the Committee. The other members of the committee
are: a Shareholder Director (Shri. A.V.Sardesai) and the other Shareholder Director (Prof. S. Sadagopan).

As the Share Transfer Committee consists of two outstation shareholder director, as a precautionary measure, to strictly
adhere to the revised time line in compliance with SEBI directions, our Board at its meeting held on 20.09.2013 constituted
an Executive Level Share Transfer Approval Committee (ELSTAC) with Senior most Chief General Manager (CGM) or in
his absence the next senior most Chief General Manager as Chairman and General Managers from Planning, Balance Sheet
Management, Risk Management Departments and Company Secretary of the Bank as members.

The committee is also delegated with powers to consider and approve the share transfer and transmission requests including
the power to reject them. The minutes of the committee are placed to STC for ratification / confirmation. Since inception, the
committee met 15 times during last year and the actions of ELSTAC committee are ratified by STC.

k. Distribution of shareholding as on 31.03.2014:

Sl. No Category No. of Shares % of share holding
PROMOTERS HOLDING
1 Government of India 911710848 73.80
Sub-Total 911710848 73.80
NON-PROMOTERS HOLDING
2 Institutional Investors
A Mutual funds and UTI 225104 0.02
B Banks, Financial Institutions 183247419 14.83
C Insurance Companies 5281678 0.43
D Foreign Institutional Investors 22925053 1.86
E Overseas Corporate Body 48000 0.00
Sub-Total 211727254 17.14
3 OTHERS
A Private Corporate Bodies 8914146 0.72
B Individuals 96243925 7.80
C NRI 4479923 0.36
D Others 2272219 0.18
Sub-total 111910213 9.06
GRAND TOTAL 1235348315 100.00
I. Distribution schedule as on 31.03.2014
No. of % to total no. of Shareholding in terms of Share Amount
share ; % to total
holders shareholders nominal value of X. 10/- (Face Value)
215121 85.84 Upto 5000 371302620 3.01
23001 9.18 5001 — 10000 191422390 1.55
7710 3.08 10001 — 20000 111489700 0.90
1767 0.71 20001 - 30000 44473800 0.36
881 0.35 30001 - 40000 31568380 0.26
532 0.21 40001 - 50000 25029380 0.20
839 0.33 50001 — 100000 61586540 0.50
758 0.30 100001 and above 11516610340 93.22
250609 100.00 TOTAL 12353483150 100.00
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m. Foreign Shareholding as on 31.03.2014

Vi
&

As on 31.03.2013 As on 31.03.2014
St No. Category No. of shares %c-gzittztlal No. of shares %ng;glal
1 Foreign Institutional Investors (Flls) 22991170 2.49 22925053 1.86
2 OCBs 48000 0.01 48000 0.00
3 NRIs 4242431 0.46 4479923 0.36
Total 27281601 2.96 27452976 2.22

As detailed in the above table, the total foreign shareholding (Flls, OCBs, NRIs) as at 31.03.2014 was 2.22% which is within the

stipulated level of 20% of the total paid up capital of the Bank.
n. Top five shareholders of the bank as on 31.03.2014:

SI No Name of the Shareholders No of shares held % of total holding
1 The President of India - The Government of India 911710848 73.80
2 Life Insurance Corporation of India 140727980 11.39
3 LIC of India—P & GS Fund 15153036 1.23
4 LIC of India Market Plus Growth Fund 9385910 0.76
o |t remosams oo
Total 1082883555 87.66

0. Dematerialization of shares:

The shares of the Bank are under compulsory demat trading. The Bank has joined as a member of the depository services with
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as an issuer company
for dematerialization of the Bank’s shares. Shareholders can get their shares dematerialized with either NSDL or CDSL. The
depository services have allotted the following ISIN code to the Bank: INE565A01014.

As on 31.3.2014, out of 123.53 crore equity shares, 120.40 crore shares or 97.46% are held by the shareholders in Demat form
(of which Government of India holds 91.17 crore shares in Demat form, aggregating to 73.80%).

Unclaimed shares held in Demat Account:

The position of shares held in the unclaimed suspense account are mentioned below:

Details No of shareholders No of Shares

Aggregate number of shareholders and outstanding shares lying in 205 59100
unclaimed suspense account at the beginning 01.04.2013
Number of Shareholders who approached for Transfer of shares from

. . NIL NIL
unclaimed suspense Account during the year
Number of Shareholders to whom shares were Transferred from the NIL NIL
unclaimed suspense account
Aggregate Number of Shareholders and And the outstanding shares lying in 205 59100
the Unclaimed suspense account at the end of 31.03.2014

p. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity:

The bank has not issued any GDRs /ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments.




»

¢
&

g, Sk 1 GO THS W TEH-US1 o &0 W A1 S0 Tehs (ehT T E: 31-03-2014 T TRt A0St
o Terar e 2 :

. 3Teh T 3rarer h
B s e (st ) ET,,Z’)’ wre i A

feam
Vi 26.07.2004 200.00 120 06.40 26.07.2014
Vii 08.01.2005 150.00 123 07.25 08.04.2015
Viil 16.09.2005 200.00 123 07.40 16.12.2015
iX 09.01.2006 250.00 123 07.70 09.04.2016
X 13.03.2006 300.00 120 08.00 13.03.2016
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X1v 31.12.2010 1000.00 120 8.95 31.12.2020
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g. The bank has raised non-convertible bonds in the nature of promissory notes from time to time. The details of such
bonds outstanding as on 31.03.2014 are as follows:

Series Date of Allotment _Slze Tenor (In Months) | Coupon (%) Redemption Date
(Rs in crores)
Tier Il
vi 26.07.2004 200.00 120 06.40 26.07.2014
vii 08.01.2005 150.00 123 07.25 08.04.2015
viii 16.09.2005 200.00 123 07.40 16.12.2015
iX 09.01.2006 250.00 123 07.70 09.04.2016
X 13.03.2006 300.00 120 08.00 13.03.2016
xi 26.07.2006 500.00 120 09.10 26.07.2016
Xii 22.08.2008 300.00 120 10.85 22.08.2018
xiii 24.08.2009 290.00 120 8.48 24.08.2019
Xiv 31.12.2010 1000.00 120 8.95 31.12.2020
Upper Tier I Call Option date
i 05.09.2006 500.00 @180 9.24 @05.09.2016
ii 17.09.2008 655.30 @180 11.05 @17.09.2018
iii 01.09.2009 510.00 @180 8.80 @01.09.2019
iv 10.01.2011 967.00 @180 9.00 @10.01.2026
Tier | Call Option date
(Perpetual)
i 31.03.2006 200.00 @Perpetual 09.30 @31.03.2016
ii 18.05.2006 200.00 @Perpetual 09.15 @18.05.2016
iii 30.09.2006 80.00 @Perpetual 09.20 @30.09.2016
iv 29.09.2009 300.00 @Perpetual 09.30 @29.09.2019
Grand Total 6602.30

@Call option available at the end of 10 years (with the prior approval of RBI). If the call option is not exercised, the coupon rate
will be stepped up by 50 bps.

r. Address for Correspondence:

Share transfers, dividend payment and all other investor related activities are attended to and processed at the office of M/s.
Cameo Corporate Services Ltd., Registrars & Share Transfer agents. Shareholders may lodge the transfer deeds and any other
documents, grievances and complaints at their address:

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
(Unit-IOB) Subramanian Building, | Floor
No.1 Club House Road, Chennai-600 002

Tel: 044-28460395; 28460084 Fax: 28460129
email:cameo@cameoindia.com

The Bank has an Investor Relations Cell at its Central Office, to deal with the services and complaints of the shareholders at
the following address:

Indian Overseas Bank
Investor Relations Cell,
Central Office, 763, Anna Salai
Chennai-600 002
Tel: 044-28519791, 28415702, 28889392 Fax : 044-28585675
email: investor@iobnet.co.in / investorcomp@iobnet.co.in
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B.NON MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

Non Mandatory Requirements

Our Adoption

The Board — Maintenance of an office by a
non executive Chairman at the company’s
expense

Since the Chairman and Managing Director in our Bank is an Executive
Chairman, this clause is not applicable to us

Remuneration Committee

Remuneration payable to the whole time directors is decided by the
Central Government and the Bank does not pay any remuneration to other
directors except sitting fees as per guidelines of Central Govt.

The Board in its meeting held on 22.03.2007, has set up a “Remuneration
Committee” as per details furnished hereinbefore (refer para 3.8).

Shareholders Rights

All the shareholders are provided with the Half Yearly results and Annual
Report.

Audit Qualification

Constant efforts are being made to move towards a regime of unqualified
financial statements.

Training of Board Members

The Board members are imparted training by nominating them for training
programmes at reputed training institutes. Each director is provided with a
reference manual detailing his or her roles and responsibilities and matters
of importance.

Mechanism for evaluating non executive
Board Members

The Bank does not have such mechanism, as presently it is not applicable
to us.

Whistle Blower Policy

Presently the Bank has a Whistle Blower policy.

Chennai
29 April 2014

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(M Narendra)
Chairman and Managing Director
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR 2013-14

DIRECTORS PROFILE

1 | Name

Shri. M. Narendra
Chairman and Managing Director

Age and Date of Birth

59 years — 12.07.1954

Qualification

B.Com., B.L., CAIIB

Date of Appointment

01.11.2010

Date of expiry of the Current term

31.07.2014

Experience

Having 39 years of banking experience. Shri. M. Narendra joined Corporation
Bank as an officer trainee in 1975. He took over as Executive Director,
Bank of India, on 6th November 2008 and held this position, till his present
assignment at Indian Overseas Bank.

Shri Narendra has been one of the key members of the Teams to implement
Organisational Transformation Projects in both Corporation Bank and Bank
of India.

Shri Narendra has travelled widely both within the country and outside. He
has undergone various training programmes including workshops/seminars
at BTC, [IM-Ahmedabad and Bangalore, NIBM and Australian Institute of
Banking & Finance.

Shri Narendra secured various Corporate Awards instituted by Corporation
Bank such as Chairman’s Club Membership recipient for 8 consecutive years
from 1984-85 to 1990-91, SoGian Award and Regional Leadership Award.
In his capacity as Executive Director of Bank of India, he was the nominee
director on the Board of Indo Zambia Bank Limited, Lusaka, Zambia, a
joint venture Commercial Bank between 3 Indian Public Sector Banks and
Government of Zambia.

He was a member of Technical Advisory Committee on Money, Foreign
Exchange & Government Securities Market constituted by Reserve Bank
of India. He was Chairman, IBA’s Legal & Banking Operations Committee,
Chairman, IBA Standing Committee on Accounting Standards and Taxation
and a member of Standing Committee on Risk Management & Basel ||
Implementation constituted by the Indian Banks Association.

Presently he is:

Chairman, ASSOCHAM'’s National Council for Banking & Finance
Chairman, Finance Committee of Indian Banks’ Association (IBA)

Director on the Board of India International Bank (Malaysia) Berhad
Director on the Board of Universal Sompo General Insurance Co. Ltd.
Director on the Board of Madras School of Economics

Honorary Fellowship of the Indian Institute of Banking & Finance

Member of Governing Council of Indian Institute of Banking & Finance
Member of Consultative Group of Leaders in National Institute of Bank
Management (NIBM) to provide valuable insight for identifying Leadership
Development needs at Senior and Top Management.

Some of the prominent awards won by him are :

National Award for Excellence in MSE Lending for 2011-12 — Second Rank
National Award for outstanding performance in implementing PMEGP in
South Zone for 2011-12

The Sunday Standard Best Bankers Awards 2013

o BestIndian Bank - Large

0  Best Public Sector Bank — Large

0  Best Public Sector Bank — Customer Orientation

ASSOCHAM'’s Social Banking Excellence Awards 2013 — Runner-up
Development Leadership Award 2013 under Agriculture Leadership
Awards

CIMSME “MSME Banking Excellence Award 2013”

o Financial Inclusion Award

o  MSME Excellence Award — Runner up

o  Jury Award for New Initiatives

Tamil Nadu Government’s Best Bank Award for Excellence in Credit
Linking Self Help Groups for 2011-12

National Award for Outstanding Performance in Implementing PMEGP in
South Zone level for 2012-13

India Business Journal’s IBJ Business Excellence Award 2013 — Customer
Focus Award
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Shareholding in IOB

Nil

Other Directorships

Nominee Director of IOB in Universal Sompo General Insurance Co. Ltd.
Director on the Board of India International Bank(Malaysia)Berhad

Name

Shri A.D.M.Chavali
Executive Director

Age and Date of Birth

59 years - 09.10.1954

Qualification M.Sc.
Date of Appointment 28.12.2011
Date of expiry of the Current term 31.10.2014

Experience

»  Mr ADM Chavali has been serving as Executive Director of Indian Overseas
Bank since December 2011.

» InIndian Overseas Bank he has been exclusively looking after portfolios
covering Large Corporate Credit, International Business, Treasury Operations,
Human Resources, Law/Recovery, Risk Management, Retail Banking ,
Planning, Public Relations etc., in addition to Credit Monitoring.

» He is a Post Graduate in pure Mathematics. He started his career with
Bank of Baroda as a Direct Recruit Officer in the year 1977. From then on
he had served the bank in various capacities at Branches , Regional Office
and Central Office. He has extensive experience in Corporate Finance,
Treasury Operations. He has also served as Managing Director, BOB Asset
Management Company Ltd.

»  Prior to joining Indian Overseas Bank, he had served as a Director on
Boards of India Ideas.com.Ltd, Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL),
Clearing Corporation of India Ltd. (CCIL) and Central Insurance Repository
Ltd. (CIRL) and as a Trustee Director of Baroda Pioneer Asset Management
Company Ltd.

»  He was a member of RBI Committee for implementing Negotiated Dealings
System and FIMMDA Valuation Committee. Also, he was a member of the
Committee on Credit and Operational Risks Data Exchange (CORDEX) set
up by IBA. Presently he is a Member of the IBA Standing Committee on
Retail Banking.

» He has a rich experience in Corporate Finance for over three decades
particularly in the areas of Industrial Finance, Treasury operations,
Investments, Asset Management and Risk Management.

Shareholding in 10B

NIL

Other Directorships

NIL

Name Shri Atul Agarwal
Executive Director

Qualification B.Com., CAIIB

Date of Appointment 27.09.2013

Date of expiry of the Current term 30.09.2016

Experience

A Commerce Graduate, he started his career with Union Bank of India as a
Probationary Officer in 1978 and joined Central Bank of India as Assistant
General Manager in 2007.

In the course of his career he has acquired functional accounting and IT
knowledge at various levels as also extensive experience in credit management.
While at Central Bank of India, he has served as Zonal Manager in Gujarat
and North East, as functional head at Corporate Office for various departments
together with additional responsibilities as Chief Liaison Officer for SC / ST /
PWD /Ex-servicemen.

He has been instrumental in many initiatives which interalia include web-
based application of CA firms, FEMA Audit, Compliance Audit, KYC updation
of CBS, issuance of master circulars, review of various policies, introduction of
Procurement Manual in a Public Sector Bank.

With an interest in fine arts, he is a permanent member of Uttar Dakshin Cultural
Organisation and also served as an Executive Committee Member of Chinmaya
Mission, Lucknow.
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Shareholding in I0B

NIL

Other Directorships

NIL

Name

Dr. Alok Pande
Gol Nominee

Age and Date of Birth

43 years - 22.10.1971

Qualification BE(Mech),NIT Allahabad, Ph. D(Finance).
IIM Bangalore
Date of Appointment 22.07.2011

Date of expiry of the Current term

Until further orders from Govt. of India

Experience

Dr. Alok Pande is working as a Director in the Department of Financial Services,
Ministry of Finance. Presently he is in-charge of Financial Inclusion where in the
following key and thrust areas of Government are looked after by him.

*  Work relating to financial inclusion

*  Branch expansion of banks

*  Lead Bank Scheme and Service Area Approach

*  Service Area Approach

*  District and State Level Bankers’ Committee(SLBC)

*  Regional imbalances of banking network

*  Matters related to Business Correspondents / Business Facilitators, Mobile
Banking etc.

*  Payment of wages to MGNREGA workers through BC model

*  Convergence of UIDAI Aadhaar Number with Financial Inclusion

* Direct transfer of subsidy on LPG, Kerosene and Fertiliser etc. to the
beneficiaries through their bank accounts

» Strategy and guidelines on Business Correspondents etc.and also
Establishment Dept of DFS.

*  Dr. Pande has more than 20 years of experience in the Government of
India where he has worked in different capacities. His area of interest
as well as experience has been that of ensuring Financial Inclusion. He
did his graduation in Mechanical Engineering from National Institute of
Technology, Allahabad in 1992. Dr. Pande joined the Civil Services in 1994.
He completed his Doctorate from [IM Bangalore in the area of Corporate
Finance in the year 2009. Dr. Pande has several publications to his credit.

The thesis submitted by him has been selected for NSE Award for the best

thesis in financial economics for the year 2013

“Book built initial public offering in India: Determinants of pricing, subscription

pacterusing investors and impact of regulation” by Meenakshi University

Kanchipuram.

Shareholding in IOB

NIL

Other Directorships

Nil

Name

Shri. Nirmal Chand
RBI Nominee

Age and Date of Birth

53 years - 31.01.1961

Qualification

Post Graduate from Punjab University, M.B.A. , CAIIB

Date of Appointment

13.03.2014

Date of expiry of the Current term

Until further orders from Govt. of India

Experience

Joined RBI in 1986 as an Officer in Grade F. Has taken charge as the Regional
Director, Reserve Bank of India, Thiruvananthapuram on 03.02.2014. Prior to
this, he was Officer-in-charge of Raipur Office of RBI.

During his long tenure in the Bank, has held several position in various offices.
Worked in Bank’s Central Office at Mumbai as well as other Regional Offices
at Kolkata, Jaipur, New Delhi and Raipur in the Department like Banking
Supervision, Non Banking Supervision, Currency Management and Payment
Systems

Shareholding in IOB

Nil

Other Directorships

Nil
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Name

Shri. R. Sampath Kumar
Workmen Employee Director

Age and Date of Birth

56 years - 16.02.1958

Qualification B.A. CAIIB |
Date of Appointment 24.01.2014
Date of expiry of the Current term 23.01.2017

Experience

- He joined the Bank on 16.12.1981 and is having about 32 years of banking
experience in I0B. He is presently a Special Cadre Assistant attached to CBO,
Chennai

Shareholding in IOB

Nil

Other Directorships

Nil

Name

Shri. Jai Deo Sharma
Officer Employee Director

Age and Date of Birth

57 years , 20.07.1956

Qualification

M.Com., BA., CAIIB, DIM, MBA, LLB

Date of Appointment

02.05.2013

Date of expiry of the Current term

01.05.2016 or until he ceases to be a Officer employee of IOB or until further
orders, which ever is the earliest.

Experience

Shri Jai Deo Sharma joined the Bank on 22nd July 1977. He has been in the
services of the Bank for the past 36 years. He has also served as Faculty
Member in the Training System of the Bank for more than 4 years. Besides, he
has been the Associate Faculty at the Indian Institute of Bankers for Monetary
Theory. He was an Examiner for Business Management (CAIIB-Part ) for 5
years.

He has been associated with Indian Overseas Bank Officers’ Association
(IOBOA) as its functionary since 1991 in various capacities. At present he is
the President of IOBOA and Joint General Secretary of All India Bank Officers’
Confederation (AIBOC). He is pursuing his research (PhD) on Post Globalization
HR Practices in Public Sector Banks in India as part time scholar at University
of Madras, Chennai. He has published many Research Papers and Articles
on Contemporary Topics in prestigious Newspapers and Journals. He is also
Associate Editor of “lIOBOA-The Crusader”, the House Magazine of IOBOA.
He has delivered lectures at Administrative Staff College of India - Hyderabad,
Centre for Organisation Development - Hyderabad, National Institute of
Banking Studies & Corporate Management — NOIDA. He has been the Chief
Guest/ Guest of Honour in various programmes held at ICWAI-SIRC-Chennai,
University of Madras (Dept. of Commerce), AMET University — Chennai etc.
This is his second term in the Bank’s Board as Officer Employee Director. His
earlier term was during 2006-09.

- Presently Senior Manager, Cathedral Branch

Shareholding in IOB

1600

Other Directorships

Nil

Name

Shri Niranjan Kumar Agarwal
Chartered Accountant Director

Age and Date of Birth

55 Years - 22.10.1958

Qualification FC. A.
Date of Appointment 01.11.2011
Date of expiry of the Current term 31.10.2014

Experience

- Shri.Niranjan Kumar Agarwal, FCA is a Practicing Chartered Accountant
since 1983 having experience of more than 30 years. He is a Proprietor of M/s.
Niranjan Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Kolkata. He has experience in
handling Audits of Large Corporates, Company Law Matters and Income Tax.
He is acting as Advisor to many Corporates on company law matters, financial
restructuring, resource raising, corporate governance etc.

Shareholding in I0B

Nil

Other Directorships

Nil
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9 | Name Shri Chinnaiah
Part time Non-official Director
Appointed under Section 9 (3) (h) of the Banking Companies (Acquisition and
Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970
Qualification B.A., LLB
Age and Date of Birth 55 years, 01.06.1958
Date of Appointment 13.11.2013
Date of expiry of the Current term 12.11.2016 (or until further orders whichever is earlier)
Experience An advocate by qualification, he has chosen to be associated with social service.
He is presently President of Sri Subramanya Swamy Temple Management
Committee, Halasuru, Bangalore.
He was President of Jai Bheem SC/ST Consumer Co-operative Society. Ulsoor,
Bangalore 560 008. The Society is engaged in the helping of downtrodden of
the society for their upliftment.
Has served as a member of Central Board of Film Certification, Bangalore.
Also served as a member of Central Advisory Committee, Dolomite mines and
Employees Welfare Fund, New Delhi
Shareholding in IOB Nil
Other Directorships Nil
10 | Name Smt. S. Sujatha
Part time Non-official Director
Appointed under Section 9 (3) (h) of the of the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980.
Qualification M.Com, BA (Hindi)
Age and Date of Birth 42 years, 15.12.1971
Date of Appointment 05.12.2013
Date of expiry of the Current term 04.12.2016 (or until further orders whichever is earlier)
Experience Smt Sujatha was elected as Trichy City Corporation Councillor in 2006 and
served as Mayor, Tiruchirappalli Corporation from 2009 to 2011.
She is presently President, Ladies’ club. She has been involved in Social and
Public Health Care, flood relief and welfare works, providing financial assistance
to women, providing financial and administrative assistance to over 1500 self
help groups empowering the weaker sections
Shareholding in IOB Nil
Other Directorships Nil
11 | Name Shri A.B.D. Badushas
Part time Non-official Director
Appointed under Section 9 (3) (h) of the Banking Companies (Acquisition
and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970.
Qualification Doctor of Alternative Medicine

Age and Date of Birth

51 years, 19.08.1962

Date of Appointment

12.12.2013

Date of expiry of the Current term

11.12.2016 (or until further orders whichever is earlier)

Experience

Shri A.B.D. Badushas is a Doctor (Alternative Medicine) by profession and has

been involved in multifarious activities as a social reformer, political party worker,

sportsman and businessman. He is also the grandson of well known freedom
fighter Late Shri Bagsahib. Shri Badushas holds the following positions:

1. Chief Executive Trustee of the Hazrath Thable Alam Badushas Nathervali
Dargah Wakf Trust which is 1015 years old and is also the biggest Trust of
South Asia

2. Director, Commonwealth Science and Technology Academy for Research,

Chennai.

Chairman, All India Consumer Fair Exhibition Committee, Tamil Nadu.

4. Advisory Board member of the Blind School of Trichy founded by Trichy
Rehabilitation Centre, providing free education to numerous blind students.

w

Shareholding in I0B

Nil

Other Directorships

Nil
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12 | Name Shri.Ajit Vasant Sardesai

Shareholder Director

Age and Date of Birth 68 Years - 04.09.1945

Qualification M.Sc (Physics) Dip in IIT New Delhi

Date of Appointment 08.12.2011

Date of expiry of the Current term 07.12.2014

Experience Shri Ajit Vasant Sardesai has worked in the Reserve Bank of India for over 3
decades. He was the Chief General Manager and later Executive Director in
charge of Rural Credit and Planning Department, RBI. He has also served as
RBI Nominee Director on the Boards of large Public Sector Banks.
He was also on the Governing Council of NIBM, Institute of Banking Personnel
Selection, Institute for Development Research in Banking Technology and
Bankers Training College and College of Agricultural Banking, a premier training
college of RBI.
He retired from RBI in September 2005. After retirement, he continued to
be associated with the Vaidyanathan Committee and was a member of the
Advisory Committee on Frauds in Banks and Financial Sector constituted by
the GOI/CVC.

Shareholding in IOB 100 shares

Other Directorships NIL

13 | Name Prof.S.Sadagopan

Shareholder Director

Age and Date of Birth

63 years - 02.04.1951

Qualification B.E (Mechanical), Ph.D in IT from Purdue University
Date of Appointment 08.12.2011
Date of expiry of the Current term 07.12.2014

Experience

Professor. S Sadagopan obtained his Ph.D in IT from Purdue University. He
taught for more than 20 years at IIT Kanpur and [IM Bangalore. He is working
as Founder Director since June 1999 in IIT, Bangalore. Within five years, IIT
Bangalore was the first public-private partnership institute to get the deemed
university status. It is one of the best academic campus in the country and was
personally conceptualized by Prof. S.Sadagopan. Professor S Sadagopan has
played a leading role in major IT deployment in the country and this includes
SAP implementation at ONGC, I0C, NTPC and BHEL, IT advisor to Syndicate
Bank, Canara Bank and Indus Ind Bank. In addition to several private sector
corporations, he was very much involved with the Core Banking Solution that
was rolled out in Bank of India.

Shareholding in I0OB

100 shares

Other Directorships

1 National Payment Corporation Of India

)
2) “KEONICS” Ex officio Director
3) KBITS - Ex-officio Director
4)  lITB Innovation Centre
5)  National Stock Exchange
6) Vignyan Industries Ltd. (a subsidiary of BEML)
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DECLARATION

This is to confirm that the bank has laid down a code
of conduct for all the Board Members and Senior
Management (i.e.,General Managers) of the Bank and
the said code is posted on the website of the Bank. The
Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct .

For Indian Overseas Bank

<

(M. Narendra)
Chairman & Managing Director

Chennai
29.04.2014
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29" April, 2014

To
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK

Financial Statements of the Bank for the 12 months ended
31.03.2014 Clause 49-V of the Listing Agreement with the
Stock Exchanges - CEO/CFO Certification

In terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, We certify
that:

A. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash
flow statements for the year and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

1. These statements do not contain any material
untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading.

2. These statements together present a true and fair
view of the Bank’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable
laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no
transactions entered into by the Bank during the year,
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Bank’s
code of Conduct.

C. Weacceptresponsibility for establishing and maintaining
internal controls for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems
of the Bank pertaining to financial reporting and we have
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee the
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal
controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps
we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

D. We have, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

1. Significant changes in the internal control over
financial reporting during the year;

2. Significant changes in accounting policies during
the year and that the same have been disclosed in
the Notes to the Financial Statements and

3. Instances of significant fraud of which we have
become aware and the involvement therein, if
any, of the Management or an employee having a
significant role in the Bank’s internal control system
over financial reporting.

[S. Chockalingam] [M.Narendra]

General Manager & CFO  Chairman & Managing Director (CEO)

2/
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE
ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
To

The Shareholders of
Indian Overseas Bank
Chennai

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Indian Overseas Bank, Chennai for the year
ended 31.03.2014, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of Indian Overseas Bank with Stock Exchange(s).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by Indian Overseas Bank for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of Indian Overseas Bank.

On the basis of records and documents maintained by the Bank, the information provided to us and according to the explanation
given to us, we certify that the Bank has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above
mentioned Listing Agreement.

We state that no investor grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month against the Bank as per the records maintained
by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the bank nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Bank.

For Badari, Madhusudhan & Srinivasan For B.Thiagarajan & CO For Sankar & Moorthy
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN 005389S FRN 004371S FRN 003575S

(N. SRINIVASAN) (B. THIAGARAJAN) (V.C. JAMES)

Partner Partner Partner

M.No. 027887 M.No.018270 M.No.22565

For PR.Mehra & CO For Dass Khanna & CO

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

FRN 000051N FRN 000402N

(SWINDER KUMAR) (RAKESH SONI)

Partner Partner

M.No. 014211 M.No. 083142

Place: Chennai
Date: 29.04.2014




Y
31.3.2014 =t Rerfe o ITEAR Go=1-0 (%./000 ®)
S 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
[iE7 [SE7

St & STard
gt 01 1235 34 83 924 09 53
ATt T S 02 14934 82 40 12533 26 16
ST TRt 03 227976 08 66 202135 34 80
YR 04 24456 03 60 23322 86 00
3= AT g YU 05 6302 54 52 5740 46 98
T 274904 84 01 244656 03 47
It
qRfte s o | et 3 a9y 06 11735 09 75 9837 82 50
Bt 0 TSI ST [T T AT 31T Y1 W IT o 07 7273 68 03 5420 59 49
ey 08 70236 79 96 61417 34 80
Bl 09 175887 76 68 160364 11 71
e syfeaat 10 2604 37 71 1847 03 63
37 aRaar 11 7167 11 88 5769 11 34
T 274904 84 01 244656 03 47
IR FoaTd 12 70262 78 40 71001 20 98
HUgur & foru foet 14017 39 08 12645 16 00
Heea Ut AR et 17
S W it 18
YAt -7 HT TH T AT |

Tm fafy &t gart Ruid & siw
W g Fa T, JET We shfaeT & off ONRSH We EuEt @i vies TS g
31eTe Ue gaY RS Tt AEHR Tt AEHR Gt AEHR
EE&WW THARTA 005389 TH THARTA 004371 T THARTEA 003575 T
EIRLICCAECRC)

(T sftfrremam) (sft =mRTeE) (<ft. =t. 5)

ST 3T ESIE A TR
Frurers A3 T.9.027887 7.9.018270 4. 22565
ey . ’
=¥, 3Teite Ui FHA N AR AT WS HUAR  Fd T WA WU st
Prder =i T TR T TR
W, g‘qﬁm\’qﬂ' THANET 00005177 THANEA 000402TA
<. . ot
PR HAR e e HAR (rheT |+t
e HIER B
. g .H.014211 H.5.083142
Tt St argeme
A qET TS
l. TE, g
o ;99

faih: 29.04.2014

[N
o
(=)




Vi
&

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2014 ®.in 000’s)
AS AT AS AT
SCHEDULES 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
CAPITAL & LIABILITIES
Capital 01 1235 34 83 924 09 53
Reserves and Surplus 02 14934 82 40 12533 26 16
Deposits 03 227976 08 66 202135 34 80
Borrowings 04 24456 03 60 23322 86 00
Other Liabilities & Provisions 05 6302 54 52 5740 46 98
TOTAL 274904 84 01 244656 03 47
ASSETS
Cash & Balances with Reserve Bank of India 06 1173509 75 9837 82 50
Balances with Banks
and Money at Call and Short Notice 07 7273 68 03 5420 59 49
Investments 08 70236 79 96 61417 34 80
Advances 09 175887 76 68 160364 11 71
Fixed Assets 10 2604 37 71 1847 03 63
Other Assets 11 7167 11 88 5769 11 34
TOTAL 274904 84 01 244656 03 47
Contingent Liabilities 12 70262 78 40 71001 20 98
Bills for Collection 14017 39 08 12645 16 00
Significant Accounting Policies 17
Notes on Accounts 18

Schedules Form Part of the Balance Sheet

FOR BADARI, MADHUSUDHAN FOR B.THIAGARAJAN & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN 004371S

Vide our Report of Even Date

FOR SANKAR & MOORTHY

Chartered Accountants

FRN 003575S

M. NARENDRA

Chairman & Managing Director & SRINIVASAN
Chartered Accountants

A.D.M..CHA.«VALI FRN 005389S

Executive Director

ATUL AGARWAL (N. SRINIVASAN)

Executive Director

DIRECTORS

Dr. Alok Pande
Nirmal Chand

R. Sampath Kumar
J.D. Sharma
Niranjan Kumar Agarwal
Chinnaiah

S. Sujatha

A.B.D. Badushas
Ajit Vasant Sardesai
Prof. S. Sadagopan

Place: Chennai
Date: 29.04.2014

Partner
M.No. 027887

FOR PR.MEHRA & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN 000051N

(SWINDER KUMAR)
Partner
M.No. 014211

(B. THIAGARAJAN) (V.C. JAMES)
Partner Partner
M.No.018270 M.No.22565

FOR DASS KHANNA & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN 000402N

(RAKESH SONI)
Partner
M.No. 083142
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T3 7 sifia wiw iy 0 0
JmT 60174 14 567 22 77
T TG T Ffd TR 375 (3.) 6.05 6.14
it et SR i THEE g (3F.) 10.00 10.00
FY A o o I AT S A AR |
T fafy &t garlt Ruid & siRw
W g Fd agit, TET e SifHaes &d ot IR W Ut id Ikt TS g
31eTe U gy Ry Tt AEHR Tt AEHR gt
Eﬂ@ﬂ'ﬁﬁﬁ THARTA 005389 TH THARTA 004371 ©F TH3ARTA 003575 T
FrEuTAS feTH
(T sftfremam) (sft =TT (<ft. =i, 5)
T AT TR TrEER
Frfurers ey T.9.027887 T.9.018270 Tg. 22565
Frzes | |
<. 3ol i FHd f AN ATA WS U el S I WU oAt
frfer =i Gt AQHR Gt TGN
AN, '{:i'qr-ragqﬂ THARTA 00005109 THARTA 000402T4
=<t ot
Pree AR eparer e HAR (rahgr wiT)
Fersren HIFER IR LA
T\, g T.5.014211 T.5.083142
T st gt argema
e T TeETE
Tt. T, g
M @"ﬁ
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PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2014 ®.in 000’s)
SCHEDULES YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
INCOME
Interest earned 13 22683 73 38 20676 72 55
Other income 14 2169 34 39 1972 90 44
TOTAL 24853 07 77 22649 62 99
EXPENDITURE
Interest expended 15 17106 91 53 15424 77 61
Operating expenses 16 3748 91 81 3407 84 37
Provisions & Contingencies (Net) 3395 50 29 324978 24
TOTAL 24251 33 63 22082 40 22
PROFIT / LOSS
Net Profit for the year 6017414 567 22 77
Profit /Loss brought forward 0 0
TOTAL 6017414 567 22 77
APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 150 50 00 141 90 00
Transfer to Revenue and Other Reserves 19 61 47 91 49
Transfer to Capital Reserve 63 43 81 54 61 15
Transfer to Special Reserve 200 00 00 155 00 00
Interim Dividend and Proposed Dividend (Including Dividend Tax) 168 18 86 2148013
Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 0 0
TOTAL 6017414 567 22 77
Basic & Diluted Earnings per share .) 6.05 6.14
Nominal Value per Equity Share R.) 10.00 10.00

Schedules Form Part of the Profit & Loss Account

Vide our Report of Even Date

M. NARENDRA FOR BADARI, MADHUSUDHAN FOR B.THIAGARAJAN & CO FOR SANKAR & MOORTHY
Chairman & Managing Director & SRINIVASAN Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
A.D.M. CHAVALI Chartered Accountants FRN 004371S FRN 003575S

. . FRN 005389S
Executive Director
ATUL AGARWAL (N. SRINIVASAN) (B. THIAGARAJAN) (V.C. JAMES)
Executive Director Partner Partner Partner

M.No. 027887 M.No.018270 M.No.22565

DIRECTORS
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R. Sampath Kumar
J.D. Sharma
Niranjan Kumar Agarwal
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Partner
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rggeat (®.°000 ®)
IgA-1 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
ol GED ah
gTred it
&% &.10/- & 300,00,00,000 ¥Rt weR (frodt o g&® &.10/- &
300,00,00,000 gfFaet o) 3000 00 00 3000 00 00
fatfr, sifew @ wea gSht
7% £.10/- & 123,53,48,315 et R
(3T FHsita TR R 41 9o %.10 % 91,17,10,848 T2 Siel €)
et o g %.10/- & 92,40,95,300 et R
(398 s TR g €MRA T .10 % 68,19,57,833 TR MU &) 1235 34 83 924 09 53
qgEt-2 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
st @ smw aw® i
I. v YitEm
3N I 3558 33 50 2685 43 21
e : ulgeT 1286 79 30 87290 29
T - | 484512 80 3558 33 50
Il. wifafee sRfarfcar
3N Y 2911 6187 2769 71 87
e : ufaq 150 50 00 14190 00
] 3062 11 87 2911 61 87
. gt sferfeat
3 I 1147 93 66 1141 2582
e : ufaq 845 67 68 26 93 78
T Hifaat / ged-gra 17970 77 20 25 94
T - o7 1813 90 57 1147 93 66
3. fawi it fast |
GONL] 910 60 61 856 8135
e : ufadq 62 51 31 53 79 26
FHT-31 973 11 92 910 60 61
3. 31
YT 151 87 87 151 00 70
e : ulgeE 10126 8717
FhT-7 15289 13 151 87 87
=T - 1 (31, =, 3) 2939 91 62 221042 14
IV. ToTEa o 3= mferferat
(i) 3= T TRfaAferat
3T 2716 67 41 2715 75 92
S : gftaeq 19 61 47 91 49
TS ettt 17572 21 0
T - (i) 2560 56 67 2716 67 41
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SCHEDULES . in 000’s)
SCHEDULE - 1 AS AT AS AT
CAPITAL 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
AUTHORISED CAPITAL
300,00,00,000 Equity Shares of %.10/- each (Previous Year 300,00,00,000
Equity Shares of ¥.10/- each) 3000 00 00 3000 00 00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL
123,53,48,315 Equity Shares of %.10/- each
(Includes 91,17,10,848 Shares of %.10/- each
held by Government of India)
Previous year 92,40,95,300 Equity Shares of %.10/- each
(Includes 68,19,57,833 shares of T.10/- each
held by Government of India) 1235 34 83 924 09 53
SCHEDULE - 2 AS AT AS AT
RESERVES & SURPLUS 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
I.  SHARE PREMIUM
Opening balance 3558 33 50 2685 43 21
Add: Additions 1286 79 30 8729029
TOTAL -l 4845 12 80 3558 33 50
Il. STATUTORY RESERVE
Opening balance 2911 61 87 2769 71 87
Add: Additions 150 50 00 141 90 00
TOTAL -l 3062 11 87 2911 61 87
lll. CAPITAL RESERVE
A. Revaluation Reserve
Opening Balance 1147 93 66 1141 25 82
Add: Additions 845 67 68 269378
Less: Deductions / Depreciation * 1797077 20 25 94
TOTAL-A 1813 90 57 1147 93 66
B. On sale of Investments
Opening Balance 910 60 61 856 81 35
Add: Additions 62 51 31 5379 26
TOTAL-B 973 11 92 910 60 61
C. Others
Opening Balance 151 87 87 151 00 70
Add: Additions * 10126 8717
TOTAL-C 15289 13 151 87 87
TOTAL - 111 (A,B,C) 2939 91 62 22104214
IV. REVENUE & OTHER RESERVES
(i) Other Revenue Reserves
Opening Balance 2716 67 41 27157592
Add: Additions 1961 47 91 49
Less: Deduction 17572 21 0
TOTAL - (i) 2560 56 67 2716 67 41
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W/
IggieEr (W) (%. 000 )
SgE-2 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
ARt o vy ah %
(i) oo emfafy
EENLT 541 60 00 386 60 00
e : ulgeT 200 00 00 155 00 00
0T - (i) 741 60 00 541 60 00
(iii) farer sTRferfeat @
EENLT 97 95 58 97 95 58
e : gftaeq 0 0
Terd: wHerfaar 0 0
0T - (iii) 97 95 58 97 95 58
IV) fereoft T uftad = sTRiatferat
e 496 65 66 326 10 96
e : gRge 190 88 20 170 54 70
STl welfaar 0 0
T - (iv) 687 53 86 496 65 66
0T - IV (i, i & iv) 4087 66 11 3852 88 65
V) oW q g @ 0 0
=T (I, 1, 1, IV & V) 14934 82 40 12533 26 16
* 0 31.3.2014 T fafam @ @ W el vmarst @ defid siwel & ufadq
¥ gaT HHESE WA ¢ |
IqYA-3 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
a’q‘rq’: aeh GED
. I TS
RECIE 4274 34 43 30 96
iy " 13980 00 07 13164 23 58
T - | 14022 74 41 13207 54 54
Il. ood e ST 4374371 40 40378 95 26
lll. ehTieTeR SToTd
RCELE:) 388 69 49 271 50 98
iy o @ 169820 93 36 148277 34 02
T - 1 170209 62 85 148548 85 00
- 37 (1, 11 & 1) 227976 08 66 202135 34 80
M l) AR H IS § S 219730 70 35 195457 37 11
l) T % STe< i IMErstl § AW 8245 38 31 6677 97 69
T - 3T 227976 08 66 202135 34 80
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SCHEDULES (Contd.) . in 000’s)
SCHEDULE - 2 AS AT AS AT
RESERVES & SURPLUS 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
(i) Special Reserve
Opening balance 541 60 00 386 60 00
Add: Additions 200 00 00 155 00 00
TOTAL - (ii) 741 60 00 541 60 00
(iii) Investment Reserve Account
Opening Balance 97 95 58 97 95 58
Add: Additions 0 0
Less: Deductions 0 0
TOTAL - (iii) 97 95 58 97 95 58
(iv) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Opening balance 496 65 66 326 10 96
Add: Additions 190 88 20 17054 70
Less: Deduction 0 0
TOTAL - (iv) 687 53 86 496 65 66
TOTAL - IV (i,ii,iii,iv) 4087 66 11 3852 88 65
V. PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 0 0
TOTAL (I, 11, 1, IV & V) 14934 82 40 12533 26 16
*  Includes adjustment on account of conversion of figures relating to foreign
branches at the rate of exchange as at 31.03.2014
SCHEDULE -3 AS AT AS AT
DEPOSITS 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
A. |. DEMAND DEPOSITS
i)  From Banks 4274 34 43 30 96
i)  From Others 13980 00 07 13164 23 58
TOTAL - | 14022 74 41 13207 54 54
Il. SAVINGS BANK DEPOSITS 4374371 40 40378 95 26
lll. TERM DEPOSITS
i)  From Banks 388 69 49 2715098
i)  From Others 169820 93 36 148277 34 02
TOTAL - 11l 170209 62 85 148548 85 00
TOTAL - A (LI &1II) 227976 08 66 202135 34 80
B. 1) Deposits of branches in India 21973070 35 195457 37 11
Il) Deposits of branches outside India 8245 38 31 6677 97 69
TOTAL-B 227976 08 66 202135 34 80
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gt (Fr) (%.000 )
-4 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
T3 T3 3R & e
I. 9Ra ¥ foe T suw
I Rt % 4175 00 00 1400 00 00
I qh 0 0
3 e 31T 37 R 2204 45 33 2596 44 39
Tareft wreft T forea (emEiEteTe) 780 00 00 780 00 00
i % X R ST HoR et goft fora 263230 00 2632 30 00
arefteer oot 3190 00 00 3390 00 00
T 12981 75 33 10798 74 39
II. e & aTEe | T Ty 3w 11474 28 27 12524 11 61
(=) 24456 03 60 23322 86 00
. S| & 11§ giAfad gfada 39 6379 45 33 3996 44 39
IIYA-5 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
T ITATS F YT ah T
. IFfaa 547 35 93 594 81 28
. Sf-satead gamEsH (fae) 746 15 05 528 44 46
. wEYd = 584 78 18 543 43 37
IV. == (398 g itafd §) 4424 25 36 4073 77 87
T 6302 54 52 5740 46 98
IIYHT-6 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
RS Red Aok § Aehal 30T AW LED ah
I g ¥ Tt (3 el qa7 e 3R Tetuw s aftafer ©) 11119423 111923 18
Il uedta Rsd a6 o 91
) @ End vy 10623 15 52 8718 59 32
i) T w H 9 0 0
T 11735 09 75 9837 82 50
ITY=L-7 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Senl § IIW S AT UT TAT 3T YT W YT & R REd
. 9Ra¥
NEECEIR-RL]
&. e @l A 50 08 47 872635
G . I SHI @ | 36 93 65 267 45 67
i) T R AT 3T A W AT €
F. dAbl &A1Y 50 00 00 3310 00 00
T, 3 G & 9y 5660 77 02 3993982
QT - | 5797 79 14 4064 11 84
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SCHEDULES (Contd.) . in 000’s)
SCHEDULE - 4 AS AT AS AT
BORROWINGS 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
I. BORROWINGS IN INDIA
Reserve Bank of India 4175 00 00 1400 00 00
Other Banks. 0 0
Other Institutions & Agencies 2204 45 33 2596 44 39
Innovative Perpetual Debt Instruments (IPDI) 780 00 00 780 00 00
Hybrid Debt Capital Instruments issued as Bonds 2632 30 00 2632 30 00
Subordinated Debt 3190 00 00 3390 00 00
TOTAL (I) 12981 75 33 10798 74 39
Il. BORROWINGS OUTSIDE INDIA 11474 28 27 12524 11 61
TOTAL (I & 1I) 24456 03 60 23322 86 00
lll.  Secured borrowings included in | & Il above 6379 45 33 3996 44 39
SCHEDULE - 5 AS AT AS AT
OTHER LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
I.  Bills Payable 547 3593 594 81 28
IIl.  Inter Office Adjustments (Net) 746 15 05 528 44 46
lll.  Interest Accrued 584 78 18 543 43 37
IV.  Others (including provisions) 4424 25 36 4073 77 87
TOTAL 6302 54 52 5740 46 98
SCHEDULE - 6 AS AT AS AT
CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
I.  Cash on hand (including Foreign currency notes & ATM cash) 111194 23 111923 18
Il.  Balances with Reserve Bank of India
i) in Current Account 10623 15 52 8718 59 32
i) in Other Accounts 0 0
TOTAL 1173509 75 9837 82 50
SCHEDULE -7 AS AT AS AT
BALANCES WITH BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
I.  InlIndia
i)  Balances with banks
a) In Current Accounts 50 08 47 87 26 35
b) In Other Deposit Accounts 36 93 65 267 45 67
i)  Money at Call and Short Notice
a) With banks 50 00 00 3310 00 00
b)  With other institutions 5660 77 02 3993 982
TOTAL -1 5797 79 14 4064 11 84




V%
&

syt (S) (%.°000 )
Fqg=A-7 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Sent § IIW ST AT UL TAT 3700 FAT W YT & a6 R
Il. 9 & AR
% . 9 @4 28297 23 42951 71
G, 3 S @l q 969 42 36 7717806
M. HT O FAT 3 G AT HF 22349 30 15517 88
I - I 1475 88 89 1356 47 65
(gl 7273 68 03 5420 59 49
- 8 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
fraw REd RE2
| 9Ra® faaw
) TR wasfaE 58941 11 42 54261 38 66
i) 3T STAIfed gfasfoar 5165 65 62 27 87
i) IR 10737174 900 66 44
iv) fesd= et sy-w 4864 84 34 24415019
v) 3
WA BT, I USH, T, T FHI0T 07 7 A9 ST AWE B 9
3R 37 < T 2080 58 96 1958 80 49
T - | 67011 92 11 59624 63 65
Il T & @R e
) T gfasfear (3o et e Hftaerd ©) 2326 51 39 1157 33 27
i) ST ST/ A1 ok H wHE AW 193 20 09 186 30 63
iii) 3=
F) IW 936 873
T) fEa=r a1 705 07 01 448 98 52
=T - I 3224 87 85 179271 15
FAwg (19 1) 70236 79 96 61417 34 80
IRA H Tt fae 68005 84 79 60194 85 34
ST : IR 993 92 68 570 21 69
e fafem 6701192 11 59624 63 65
IR & AR Thed A 3226 44 00 1795 14 39
ST HuRT 15615 243 24
e fafyem 3224 87 85 179271 15
e Treet fawr 70236 79 96 61417 34 80

* 0 31.03.2014 T fafama it et R faesht vmanst 9 gefee sl
% Ufara § g3 TS WHA 8 |
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SCHEDULES (Contd.) . in 000’s)
SCHEDULE -7 AS AT AS AT
BALANCES WITH BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Il. Outside India
a) In Current Accounts 28297 23 429 51 71
b) In Other Deposit Accounts 969 42 36 77178 06
c) Money at Call and Short Notice 22349 30 15517 88
TOTAL -1 1475 88 89 1356 47 65
TOTAL (1 & 11) 7273 68 03 5420 59 49
SCHEDULE - 8 AS AT AS AT
INVESTMENTS 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
I.  INVESTMENTS IN INDIA
i)  Government Securities 58941 11 42 54261 38 66
i)  Other Approved Securities 51 65 65 62 27 87
iy Shares 107371 74 900 66 44
iv) Debentures and Bonds 4864 84 34 2441 50 19
v)  Others
Investments in Mutual Funds, Venture Capital Funds
Certificate of Deposits and RIDF with NABARD 2080 58 96 1958 80 49
TOTAL - | 67011 92 11 59624 63 65
Il. INVESTMENTS OUTSIDE INDIA*
i)  Government Securities (including Local Authorities) 2326 51 39 1157 33 27
i)  Subsidiaries and / or joint ventures abroad 193 20 09 186 30 63
i) Others
a. Shares 936 873
b. Debentures & Bonds 705 07 01 448 98 52
TOTAL -1l 3224 87 85 179271 15
TOTAL (I & 1I) 70236 79 96 61417 34 80
Gross Investments in India 68005 84 79 60194 85 34
Less: Depreciation 993 92 68 570 21 69
Net Investments 67011 92 11 59624 63 65
Gross Investments Outside India* 3226 44 00 1795 14 39
Less: Depreciation 156 15 24324
Net Investments 3224 87 85 179271 15
Total Net Investments 70236 79 96 61417 34 80

* includes adjustment on account of conversion of figures relating to foreign branches
at the rate of exchange as at 31.03.2014

b




Y
FggfeEr (Ir) (%.°000 &)
ITYAT-9 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
T ah RED
A i) wAfFTIC Ffdwe | e fFe T faa 5308 92 11 6075 04 93
i) UHY YR, L N AT W IagT 3UR 79462 81 17 74593 96 65
i) Hmary 3uR 91116 03 40 79695 10 13
0T 175887 76 68 160364 11 71
3M. i) W anfE g wfad 149913 82 86 136832 27 93
(T 0Tl 3 iy AT wfq)
i) o/ TR SHEGl g SR 3291 58 59 6700 15 59
iii) 37T 22682 35 23 16831 68 19
0T 175887 76 68 160364 11 71
g | 9RAH A
i) refhehar & 56359 33 44 49817 41 62
i) g & 20424 30 00 17086 15 40
iii) % 659 95 85 449 41 97
iv) 79994 24 69 73949 06 29
anT 157437 83 98 141302 05 28
Il R o sTex 3w
) dw g e 543 54 59 397 89 77
i) o 9 e
F) A [T T F At W PIaE e Ta 3278 44 49 4323 12 00
T) YHuag 3UN 6837 73 45 7097 56 30
m I 779020 17 7243 48 36
=T 18449 92 70 19062 06 43
et e (T ) 175887 76 68 160364 11 71
ITHA-10 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
e st Th aeh
. i
T a% 31 A @t fRefa % FTER A R/ YA ;. qedifhd & 1718 05 55 1684 15 22
af & S g 880 74 02 3390 33
2598 79 57 1718 05 55
% & A HeTaar 13212 0
2597 47 45 1718 05 55
ST [eIETE 409 07 62 216 33 51
aT- | 2188 39 83 1501 72 04
. S ey Frt 372816 1036 97
amT- i 372816 10 36 97
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SCHEDULES (Contd.) . in 000’s)
SCHEDULE -9 AS AT AS AT
ADVANCES 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
A i)  Bills Purchased & Discounted 5308 92 11 6075 04 93
i)  Cash Credits, Overdrafts and Loans repayable on demand 79462 81 17 74593 96 65
i) Term Loans 91116 03 40 79695 10 13
TOTAL 175887 76 68 160364 11 71
B i) Secured by Tangible Assets 149913 82 86 136832 27 93
(includes advances against Book Debts)
i)  Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees 3291 58 59 6700 15 59
iii)  Unsecured 22682 35 23 16831 68 19
TOTAL 175887 76 68 160364 11 71
C. 1) Advancesin India
i)  Priority Sector 56359 33 44 49817 41 62
i)  Public Sector 20424 30 00 17086 15 40
i) Banks 659 95 85 449 41 97
iv) Others 79994 24 69 73949 06 29
TOTAL 157437 83 98 141302 05 28
I)  Advances Outside India
i)  Due from Banks 543 54 59 397 89 77
i)  Due from Others
a) Bills Purchased & Discounted 3278 44 49 43231200
b) Syndicated Loans 6837 73 45 7097 56 30
c) Others 779020 17 7243 48 36
TOTAL 18449 92 70 19062 06 43
TOTAL (C-l & C-ll) 175887 76 68 160364 11 71
SCHEDULE - 10 AS AT AS AT
FIXED ASSETS 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
I.  Premises
At cost / revalued amount as on 31st March of Previous Year 1718 05 55 1684 15 22
Additions during the year * 880 74 02 339033
2598 79 57 1718 0555
Deductions during the year* 13212 0
2597 47 45 1718 0555
Depreciation to date 409 07 62 216 33 51
TOTAL -l 2188 39 83 1501 72 04
Il.  Capital work in progress 37 28 16 10 36 97
TOTAL-1I 372816 10 36 97
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\%A %
gt (Fr) (%.°000 )
FTg-10 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
e et & Rl
I, 3= fRem aTikeal (s weifer 37 fherer Sitaferd §)
7d g o 31 A @1 fRAfd % STHER @ W 1188 11 86 1015 60 79
9 & A e * 186 51 43 203 87 73
1374 63 29 1219 48 52
9 & T FHetfaar 232258 31 36 66
1351 40 71 1188 11 86
3T IR 9727099 853 17 24
=T - il 378 69 72 334 94 62
g an (I, 11 &) 2604 37 71 1847 03 63
*31.03.2014 7 fafma 3t o W faaet smarst € efiq sifwgl & ufiada
q 3T TS MEA S |
g 11 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
=T AT Rl %
) 3TM FEted wAESH (fae) 0 0
i) WY &S 2640 21 38 233497 16
i) ST 9 ¥ Hem/ ST W HET T R 1734 74 43 177073 30
iv) oG - gt e ' 1068 78 95413
v) @&l @ e § g e TSt it 211 55 39 21155 39
vi) 2569 91 90 1442 31 36
=T 7167 11 88 5769 11 34
g 12 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
TR IR s =
) o feg T 5 =0 % w9 8 e 7 fhar mard 406136 419584
i) Sfvr: Had fAaT o forg <@ 1160 1160
iii)  SrepTaT areeT fafHe Sfaerst & amd 3Fdr 21248 68 37 24178 57 75
iv) TTEehi @t ST | <t weft IRfear
% ARaH 18432 59 85 17423 50 67
T, WA & A 971 18 26 967 59 62
V)  HHR, TS 3T 31 areAad 20564 31 27 18255 47 11
Vi) 3 7 e fore o arehfins &9 9 gl @ 9005 27 69 10133 98 39
70262 78 40 71001 20 98
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SCHEDULES (Contd.) (. in 000’s)
SCHEDULE - 10 AS AT AS AT
FIXED ASSETS 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
lll.  Other Fixed Assets (including Furniture & Fixtures)
At cost as on 31st March of Previous Year 1188 11 86 101560 79
Additions during the year * 186 51 43 203 87 73
1374 63 29 1219 48 52
Deductions during the year* 232258 3136 66
1351 40 71 1188 11 86
Depreciation to date 9727099 85317 24
TOTAL - 1lI 378 69 72 334 94 62
TOTAL (I, Il & 1) 2604 37 71 1847 03 63
* Includes adjustment on account of conversion of figures relating to foreign
branches at the rate of exchange as at 31.03.2014
SCHEDULE - 11 AS AT AS AT
OTHER ASSETS 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
i) Inter Office Adjustments (Net) 0 0
i)  Interest Accrued 2640 21 38 2334 97 16
iy Tax paid in advance / Tax deducted at source 173474 43 177073 30
iv) Stationery & Stamps 1068 78 95413
v)  Non Banking Assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 2115539 2115539
vi) Others 2569 91 90 1442 31 36
TOTAL 7167 11 88 5769 11 34
SCHEDULE - 12 AS AT AS AT
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
i)  Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts 4061 36 4195 84
i)  Liability for partly paid investments 11 60 11 60
iy  Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange contracts 21248 68 37 24178 57 75
iv) Guarantees given on behalf of constituents
a) Inindia 18432 59 85 17423 50 67
b) Outside India 971 18 26 967 59 62
v) Acceptances, Endorsements &Other obligations 20564 31 27 18255 47 11
vi)  Other items for which the bank is contingent liable 9005 27 69 10133 98 39
70262 78 40 71001 20 98
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g 13 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Irfia = & LED
i) =S/ A e/ fae 17282 44 41 15909 43 09
i) faen wemy 4990 20 36 4372 29 40
iii)  tE T e % a8l 9 A 37 SHeR-aish iR o = 37090 23 286 94 22
iv) I 40 18 38 108 05 84
22683 73 38 20676 72 55

gt 14 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
AT 3T e LED
) wHee, fafme S gt 929 06 56 895 33 09
i) A & faspa Waw (fraa) 488 80 37 3114188
iii) e % T W a (faa) -104 51 32 -68 34 69
iv) Ify 3 e & sk W e (faer) 186 84 16163
v) fafa Seaerl ® A (faa) 274 33 02 288 22 71
vi) fafay amg 579 78 92 544 65 82
2169 34 39 1972 90 44

gt 15 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
@ feraT =T ST s R
D) STeT W 15408 82 53 13872 98 31
i) Rt R da / 3feR- db SURT W = 1697 57 13 1551 71 70
i) I 51 87 7 60
17106 91 53 15424 77 61

gt 16 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
RIECIGES NED R
) HHERE H A 3 I 7T yrae 2362 61 47 2248 34 95
i) TS, A ST JIE 330 4128 307 83 60
i) TET SR -t 26 88 61 2362 11
iv) e i g=m 27 01 31 2982 90
v) % i Hft W gouer (fSh eTRfafeR @ sialkd staerEw @ faae ufi) 141 3160 126 59 20
vi) fRvE #t B, 9w i ad 13943 146 06
Vi) TET-TE i Fa Yo a9 327228 2324 01

(TG T - terehl % Yok 3R 9 Hied)

viii) fafer g9 90122 57920
ix) 1% Heqd, R, ZehwiT ok 55 77 31 4530 43
X) T 1T SR 119015 113420
xi) atar 232 06 69 190 36 69
xii) I=F=g 517 80 46 394 11 02
3748 91 81 3407 84 37
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SCHEDULES (Contd.) . in 000’s)
SCHEDULE - 13 Year Ended Year Ended
INTEREST EARNED 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
i) Interest/ discount on advances / bills 17282 44 41 15909 43 09
i)  Income on investments 4990 20 36 4372 29 40
iy Interest on Balances with Reserve Bank of India 37090 23 286 94 22
and Other Inter-Bank Funds
iv) Others 401838 108 05 84
TOTAL 22683 73 38 20676 72 55
SCHEDULE - 14 Year Ended Year Ended
OTHER INCOME 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
i)  Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 929 06 56 895 33 09
i)  Profit on Sale of Investments (Net) 488 80 37 311 4188
i)  Loss on Revaluation of Investments (Net) -104 51 32 -68 34 69
iv)  Profit on sale of land,buildings 18684 16163
v)  Profit on exchange transactions (Net) 274 33 02 288 22 71
vi) Miscellaneous Income 579 78 92 544 65 82
TOTAL 2169 34 39 1972 90 44
SCHEDULE - 15 Year Ended Year Ended
INTEREST EXPENDED 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
i) Interest on Deposits 15408 82 53 13872 98 31
i)  Interest on Reserve Bank of India / Inter-Bank Borrowings 1697 57 13 15517170
iy Others 5187 760
TOTAL 17106 91 53 15424 77 61
SCHEDULE - 16 Year Ended Year Ended
OPERATING EXPENSES 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
i) Payments to and provisions for employees 2362 61 47 2248 34 95
i)  Rent, Taxes and Lighting 33041 28 307 83 60
iy  Printing and Stationery 26 88 61 23 62 11
iv)  Advertisement and Publicity 27 01 31 29 82 90
v)  Depreciation on Bank’s property 141 31 60 126 59 20
(Net of depreciation transferred from Revaluation Reserve)
vi) Directors’ fees, allowances and expenses 13943 146 06
vii) Auditors’ fees and expenses 327228 23 24 01
(including Branch auditor’s Fees and Expenses)
viii) Law charges 90122 57920
ix) Postages, telegrams, telephones, etc. 5577 31 45 30 43
X)  Repairs and Maintenance 119015 1134 20
xi)  Insurance 232 06 69 190 36 69
xii)  Other Expenditure 517 80 46 394 11 02
TOTAL 3748 91 81 3407 84 37
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1.1

1.2

22

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

3 focftar faaror UfteTies v W & Sidfd o feu
T € Al S Seo@ 7 g3 @ 4 9RA H HEnoa
wpa a@ie fagid (Sheedh) & sar &, s
gifafyes Suste, feas / Tt R &% (3 ff 31m)
feenfdsr , G A / TRAT @ G G gR
S arfeyfs e (rsHiuee) it wrd | dfsh sartm §
yaferd wgfaat Tafee 1 €1 Rl Fmaferat & e b,
37 wifaferes usel, gfshaneti &1 surer far s s
gefea fagsht i @ faemm 7

ST Sl T :

facfta faewoll &t dard & weiem #t =R 5 4 o9
HAA F F A ME 59 faedta foawet &t aie
A 7 <t (W 3gash wfgad) @t yfaafad
A a1 Raifdn smafy & fo o 3 @ &1 wfated
wow H faramd wnfhe e ST @ | yeee o favers 2
faftar faamott @t T | 9 3 STher (a0 Jd 9
FehgTa € | 9T o UROTH & aeher @ e € T ¢ |

TTE WIAAT 3 & er@gien

TRefta s o g i faasyel amavel & qafes
ISt Al W IUfEA YR W A 3sish 3aa
F A § 3R & SMER W 3T 1 A 62 ser
2| ISt 3fidal  ageft 1 gHeH, 9% SR @l v
THATt (9T Tl bl S1gH dTeh! AT H T8 SIS oh
o =1 919 3R &1t HoT WhW o 7T fehar STl 8 |

Tl T fyei/dgs-aufda gfrfe w =, FHeE
(AN 7 / TR / It SRR B sigHy), &,
AT FHTT AT AT T ST o 3R R feqm | feran
SR |

TR G HI ARV {56! 6 g3 31 Al fowshl O &
a2 371 379 & &9 5 feuma | ferar Sran g |

Tl 3T YN W (39 8 forn s 8, e da e
3 =9 3feAliad 6 T &t |

e SYfeea Trafe TRt & HHe |, SIS S et
Fd G A &1 UREE (a1 ST & | FIiShy o= a9
T, 37ere s s @I T 3rere et S & e
F = ety fisid s % feenfee & omur W sufd
ERIS IR

1% IR @l | A @El B A-gIT @ § g
fohem ST @ 1UE WAl H el & S W W o | forn
S |

3.
3.1

32

Q)

faesht wraed & AWel §, 3 3 =g & A /
feama Haifya 3 § @] T HF & STER a1 s
g1

Torwft zn e
¥ gfadHi & gara” fawess d@ied AFs (TTE) 11 &
AR faeft g gaa a=-3-1 e fhar smar 2 |

T (feef) & Hag § oa-a:

foeft 1 SIS S FOl H Brea Rl g5 A
N A9-37 & & Rl quy o fageft qun & = =+t
fafma & faash qa1 W@ W an] &k RafeT g5 §
IRy Wi B Rere foham S 8 1 fardeft g st ek
RO 1 SR Gl Tl AT HETE Sl Heieh
A & o SFTHR (3 ST & |

At 3 Ty Sier @l § gEE JEE <0 W e
ST g | et Rt gt e ua st g afgd
YR B g fawet & Sifem Tre & fore any werd @t
gretfesh G & o SFTUR @ s 2 | 37 i,
SIS 311 faaeft Har o You arfiey aebran e wfearsi
P AR i e # T R e g |

HeTg g Yea auid [Ffmg U W Tk It
qigd s el fafma dfaerst g a4t sl
M o YA eI o HRUT GO A9 JI( B
“3T1 QIATE F YT / 3T SN @rar § dcareret
foreer gamEST |igd Tora | fordn ST &, dheled At
g THY SR Il Hl SISH @ @Il Bl FHETS
T & R 3T e E |

3 3R =7 Gaieht wel A, AEr-aeEt § S e i
fafdw At W o fafme 0w et b s g |

3. faceft wmare & Hey § gfiad:

Aie 7 11, ® frefRarar gt faasht wmarst st
1 37 FETer A SR |

It AT ST (3Meh{ine Saanst wige) i gL fomret
% 370 § heR 3 MUY T9H wie 0 W ufafda
fopan ST B |

1 31 =7 i g fmret o 37 & et gy g I
A & I qRefed fhar ST g |

RT3 faf g & e 319 a1 =59 & &9 § 7 foran
ST € SAfehe e e & e o “fageft a1 uftad
R ATHeh 37T @rd § S R S 2 |

lEEN

et fisre o g1 S faenfae & SER aRd § f6
T f99 & SR & e 91, ‘st & e Suas
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SCHEDULE 17
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.
1.1

1.2

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention unless otherwise stated. They
conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) in India, which comprises statutory provisions,
regulatory / Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines,
Accounting Standards / Guidance Notes issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) and
practices prevalent in the banking industry in India.
In respect of foreign offices, statutory provisions and
practices prevailing in respective of foreign countries
are complied with.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the
Management to make estimates and assumptions which
are considered in the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities (including Contingent Liabilities) as of the date
of the financial statements and reported income and
expense for the reporting period. Management believes
that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results
could differ from these estimates.

Revenue Recognition and Expense Accounting

Income is recognized on accrual basis on performing
assets and on realization basis in respect of non-
performing assets as per the prudential norms
prescribed by Reserve Bank of India. Recovery in Non
Performing Assets is first appropriated towards interest
and the balance, if any, towards principal, except in
the case of Suit Filed Accounts and accounts under
One Time Settlement, where it would be appropriated
towards principal.

Interest on bills purchased/Mortgage Backed Securities,
Commission (except on Letter of Credit/Letter of
Guarantee/Government Business), Exchange, Locker
Rent and Dividend are accounted for on realization
basis.

Income from consignment sale of precious metals is
accounted for as Other Income after the sale is complete.

Expenditure is accounted for on accrual basis, unless
otherwise stated.

In case of matured Overdue Term Deposits, interest
is accounted for as and when deposits are renewed.
In respect of Inoperative Savings Bank Accounts,
unclaimed Savings Bank accounts and unclaimed Term
Deposits, interest is accrued as per RBI guidelines.

Legal expenses in respect of Suit Filed Accounts are
charged to Profit and Loss Account. Such amount when
recovered is treated as income.

o &

3.2

In respect of foreign branches, Income and Expenditure
are recognized / accounted for as per local laws of the
respective countries.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Accounting for transactions involving foreign exchange
is done in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)
11, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates”, issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

Transactions in respect of Treasury(Foreign):

Foreign Currency transactions except foreign currency
deposits and lending are recorded on initial recognition
in the reporting currency by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the
reporting currency and the foreign currency on the date
of transaction. Foreign Currency deposits and lendings
are initially accounted at the then prevailing FEDAI
weekly average rate.

Closing Balances in NOSTRO and ACU Dollar accounts
are stated at closing rates. All foreign currency deposits
and lendings including contingent liabilities are stated
at the FEDAI weekly average rate applicable for the
last week of each quarter. Other assets, liabilities and
outstanding forward contracts denominated in foreign
currencies are stated at the rates on the date of
transaction.

The resultant profit or loss on revaluation of all assets,
liabilities and outstanding forward exchange contracts
including contingent liabilities at year-end exchange
rates advised by FEDAI is taken to revenue with
corresponding net adjustments to “Other Liabilities and
Provisions / Other Asset Account” except in case of
NOSTRO and ACU Dollar accounts where the accounts
stand adjusted at the closing rates.

Income and expenditure items are translated at the
exchange rates ruling on the date of incorporating the
transaction in the books of accounts.

Translation in respect of overseas branches:

As stipulated in Accounting Standard 11, all overseas
branches are treated as Non Integral Operations.

Assets and Liabilities (including contingent liabilities)
are translated at the closing spot rates notified by FEDAI
at the end of each quarter.

Income and Expenses are translated at quarterly average
rate notified by FEDAI at the end of each quarter.

The resulting exchange differences are not recognized
as income or expense for the period but accumulated
in a separate account “Foreign Currency Translation
Reserve” till the disposal of the net investment.

9
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i wfyaad % AR ga & aefgd (R S e 139 4.4 TAR.T e & fau arda {9 3% g7 e T

fael & geheteur st faefafiad 6 el § e S 2:

%) W wfafaat

T) W fFeE g0 I/ @ T gl 9fgq o=
SrgAtfen gfafaat

) TR

¥) SUsd Ug feaw@

S.) WEEH/TgTh 3UhH

b)) WEAA G A 9 37

4.2. VI3 U & (el § 37T S et A/ e 90 ¥
oft srfers; fRAt @ b 8, F6f T W A # waH
syl AEvEl % STIER ST 3MHR T &1 ST 2 |

4.3 T &1 qedis aReta v S g7 I/ fen-fe
o IFTHR e & § {3 T &

4.3.1.“=9R & fou anfta” st “fast & fow Suersr et
% Ted AfFT WA & fome s | fawoe &
eh foRar AT i WER & gfafad & ged
UHSAEUATHSTY SN TS ool &0 9 {3 9 2 |
T GEHR & FlAqfeat | o srmifed gfayfaar s
A0S TH el il qodd THAFUATHENT 510 Gars 8
3 Tl S T / 3UR W fiee Fd & FER
foban smar 21 gfa et g et Ao & W 2
s €At BT s Sifam ot e @ e
IR T I ITAH ol 0T F JT AT o SR R
fohaT STl €@ 3T7re S9eh! oo .1/- & fa ot/ Ay
ferar s 2 |

S foelt 3 anfofsass o 31l Sieit & Waior o St
TGS AN W b AT S 8 | 3T BUS Al
7 gIRA (e ol ST AR o A1 AR 7o a1 42
THe 9 T JeAifhd a1 I 2|

TIETUeNE /THAEUATHEIT SN o THR &1 gfasfaa
& AU aretuy | R IWF e gfs & 99w
IR 1 e ATEeTUH o STTER W STafes: &9 § 6
S |

B: TR0 # | TS o q8d IUG qedi ] oh SMER
T el god =9, Al HIE 2, df yraer far s 8 S
faa gy, AR HIE 8 , Hi TSR el (a1 TR | BTeieh
7S SAfHRITA FTTferal 3 a8t o A qeaich 3 HRUT H1g
TRad 7 & , T T § 9w % g 8 & e &
&0 H 9far ST 8 |

4.3.2 “wftveea o foe emiia” : U™ e &1 SAfms and
/ ORI AT R e ST & | geddh Wieefe & i
T & SR AR ar| ¥ Ak i &, 34
TR St I ST W wfen e faher S g | S,
TEa S gERE T st She ge A &
gfet & frarell 1 war AT W geifehd a1 ST g |

4.6

4.1

4.8

faeTul ARUEl & STHR 3T & 3fd Jae / 313 Ft
SR % 37ef & 1 ST & w0 H A= / Sivel w
oft g fasTel qeve ST 8 & S St Fe e
&1 TELIR T {6 e 2 |

forddt oft anf & farent & forshar @ &1 AT @/ =it &t oy
/ 2T e H for St @ | “ufkusedr & forg eniRe” o &
fral & faska @ o & Amet §, U 9 i ush
RFRT W™ § fafanfom 1 st 2 |

gfasferal & T § T ied s7af¥ o =, giee
/ ThUZ-UUS-WIH X F AH-F @l ferar S 2 |

et R e & fRemfden & STER 30 / STRfer 3o
AT B (- BTt fopa ST 2 1

faasft wmarsit gr0 efia fAaen & affertor e Jeaie
Haifer faaeft fafamss witesat g/ st feenfde &
ST AT ST 2 |

5. orfim

5.2

6.2.

6.3.

S A’ 3T T YA W ey & o graae |
Fffepa febam e @ 3R HE-gug W qRAg s d%
FN IR fqasul HHaUE! & ST{aR TH AH W) i
& forT yrere faan e 2 | faeeh wmensdt & Hey |,
Gefed 29 o fafami & YR T it S gaee
TN A1 2 A1 e ARty (it o o Ares wY, S o
Ecital

A AE & fIT fRT T0 9= grEaeE S SIS
AT B G o e & &9 § fema e |

TRafesm

. ST Gied SNkt / STl S yitwen i AR STy

o 3 3 SRR S T

TRl 3e¥F § fohd T Feaw dfew & dag 7 yifa
/ 37 et A &1 9e=H STEE SER Wt T 81w
HgaT & I W g AN A7 G Hi AL F R
1T wiferar Ft ¥ STafy W arear s / dFar St o wed
&, W IEH eI T 8 O e deer aeR #@
ek febarn e @ St wRkomredt oy = B i vgee A
et 2 FiyaTe 7@ S o s wiferat bt anfe / 3 & W
eI fohelt el @ 79 oft sk bt wreh foham s @ @i
o 7t | wfomt @ o g us gy o / 39 ok
SR Yo o THETSH & &9 | 5t {551 8 |

FAN § gaAfid O TSI & STER FRER & 3/
¥ ford T3 o e 3 S9R go § gu uladt S
A-B W wgEE / W e m gq dfaaeh )
Heifer 311 9 = i (g #t A & St 8
| FRIAR S HGaT 3 THIA T AT 91 31 S 37 A
= % TUH gt [T AT 2 |
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4. Investments

4.1 Investments in India are classified into “Held for
Trading”, “Available for Sale” and “Held to Maturity”
categories in line with the guidelines from Reserve Bank
of India. Disclosures of Investments are made under six 4.4
classifications viz.,

a) Government Securities

b) Other Approved securities including those issued by
local bodies,

c) Shares, 45
d) Bonds & Debentures,

e) Subsidiaries /Joint Ventures,

f)  Units of Mutual Funds and Others. 4.6

4.2 Interest on Investments where interest/principal is in
arrears for more than 90 days and income from Units of
Mutual Funds, is recognized on realisation basis as per 4.7
prudential norms.

4.3 Valuation of Investments is done in accordance withthe 4.8
guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India as under:

4.3.

—

.Individual securities under “Held for Trading” and
“‘Available for Sale” categories are marked to market 5.
at quarterly intervals. Central Government Securities are
valued at market rates declared by FIMMDA. Securities
of State Government, other Approved Securities and
Bonds & Debentures are valued as per the yield curve,
credit spread rating-wise and other methodologies
suggested by FIMMDA. Quoted equity shares are valued
at market rates, unquoted equity shares and units of
Venture Capital Funds are valued at book value /NAV
ascertained from the latest available balance sheets,
otherwise the same are valued at Re. 1/- per company/ 5.2
Fund.

Treasury Bills, Commercial Papers and Certificate of 6.
Deposits are valued at carrying cost. Units held in Mutual

fund schemes are valued at Market Price or Repurchase 6.1
price or Net Asset Value in that order depending on
availability.

6.2

Valuation of Preference shares is made on YTM basis
with appropriate markup over the YTM rates for Central
Government Securities put out by the PDAI/FIMMDA
periodically.

Based on the above valuations under each of the six
classifications, net depreciation, if any, is provided for
and net appreciation, if any, is ignored. Though the
book value of individual securities would not undergo
any change due to valuation, in the books of account,
the investments are stated net of depreciation in the
balance sheet.

4.3.2."Held to Maturity”: Such investments are carried at
acquisition cost/amortised cost. The excess, if any, of 6.3
acquisition cost over the face value of each security
is amortised on an effective interest rate method,

over the remaining period of maturity. Investments in
subsidiaries, associates and sponsored institutions and
units of Venture capital funds are valued at carrying
cost.

Investments are subject to appropriate provisioning
|/ de -recognition of income, in line with the prudential
norms prescribed by Reserve Bank of India for NPA
classification. Bonds and Debentures in the nature of
advances are also subject to usual prudential norms and
accordingly provisions are made, wherever applicable.

Profit/Loss on sale of Investments in any category is
taken to Profit and Loss account. In case of profit on sale
of investments in “Held to Maturity” category, profit net
of taxes is appropriated to “Capital Reserve Account”.

Broken period interest, Incentive / Front-end fees,
brokerage, commission etc. received on acquisition of
securities are taken to Profit and Loss account.

Repo / Reverse Repo transactions are accounted as per
RBI guidelines.

Investments held by overseas branches are classified
and valued as per guidelines issued by respective
overseas Regulatory Authorities.

Advances

Advances in India have been classified as ‘Standard’,
‘Sub-standard’, ‘Doubtful’ and ‘Loss assets’ and
provisions for losses on such advances are made as
per prudential norms issued by Reserve Bank of India
from time to time. In case of overseas branches, the
classification and provision is made based on the
respective country’s regulations or as per norms of
Reserve Bank of India whichever is higher.

Advances are stated net of provisions except general
provisions for standard advances.

Derivatives

The Bank enters into Derivative Contracts in order to
hedge interest bearing assets/ liabilities, and for trading
purposes.

In respect of derivative contracts which are entered
for hedging purposes, the net amount receivable/
payable is recognized on accrual basis. Gains or
losses on termination on such contracts are deferred
and recognized over the remaining contractual life
of the derivatives or the remaining life of the assets/
liabilities, whichever is earlier. Such derivative contracts
are marked to market and the resultant gain or loss is
not recognized, except where the derivative contract is
designated with an asset/ liability which is also marked
to market, in which case, the resulting gain or loss is
recorded as an adjustment to the market value of the
underlying asset/ liability.

Derivative contracts entered for trading purposes
are marked to market as per the generally accepted
practices prevalent in the industry and the changes

)
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7. 3 ATRAAT

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

eI AR 1 BgR W e S Ui
N W fEmmE g |

T g ET0 ST SHE T & R el dmn vefa we
2T Y A ST & |
IR

TR

TATFIHE U, AR
FrAtcrT SuHoT

HHL

S NIEEIOE

ToTE STE & [AH AR T W) Jeag T il qH e
AR e Tt @ fAehTetsht ATw-g1( @rd | 1 2 {3
SAE |

AT / A F aE # oS few fo
TR 1 Jae R 9Tt & for fhar S g |

2.50 %
10 %
20%

33113 %
100%

et STCT-37eT ATl &1 SITA Tl @ma S Gebel 8,
&l fF 31X 9o W IR 1 YTaEH Y €9 F a1
TR |

72 et TuREl & A § 92 # Sy & 4
T 1 e AT ST & |

fareft vmrarst it Tt enfiael W YR & fore Hefiq
29§ AN A TS F STTER TFEE a1 8 |

8. WIh-giaam

8.2.

8.3.

qfers 1Y o STer o 9 &1 @id 1 T forar S
g

IUEH F YT IFMIA & T FEEH AEqfae R T
foham ST & ST 39 AT IueH wd dee fafy &
It fhan ST @ | S fAgfeq e & gma §
Gfed STaETer & THRHT B A auid W HAuiws
TH & MER R fHar S 8 1 qenfy 99 fwen &
3 S G 37 TR HHH1 § aeicr] & Fedsk a9 o alH
Iufer tfafiar a1 a1 ufkene uia ad #t s7afy o forg
R w2

faasht vmanel & M | e &1 fue Hefya 3w |
AN F & STTHR B T8 |

AT YT R ¢

A W HY & AGHT , MTHTE & AGiHT A 22
% e fuffRe SFER 9Te] FX ST SR B J9R a1
ST & o graee (FEfia s/l & o a3
I IR 3 & ot G0 o (a9el o H THE B
TR FT FTCT) SHH THIRT ¢ | SR B Hl H=a1
& STt @ T 39 I W (% 37 A wel o Gae F ey

\ 2

o &1 9o 31T U 99T | 30 8 ared TF @i iR
1€ 1 Teh I7 Tl § S fed ST St Goqre & ) of
AT & T | TR o St SR ST A A
TUHT A R & Bl F1T 4 g 1 et 8 3T A &L 3
TS & S H Y 3 W YIS Sl SHareft 37 F el
3 YR R Frd & St @ <Tef graas fF9 &1 3¢ oI
Ft a2 8 | SR T ST 3T I3 I AL
U ° JIScTd o TG 1 3779 & 39 foawor § 7r=ar <t st
2 it uRed i o] e S Aary e & |

10. gfe AT ok AT

11.

I AGIH AFH 20 THCH F SHR AT TG
G G g R S @ qa 9fd et W
TS I g a8 & I faa a9 & 9 374y &
FH T TG F 9T SHd § AT R W R
Tifsd ot 37l FiT TR 31et Gre srera <uir @ o aef
& <A St SR SR A 3 ot wfeafeat @ s
Tferarstl & ITFT A1 URade & SRUTH @ Sedr e | i
et SR Hifed 39 o GReer 9ikd 3ited gfFaet
T G A G & S b A WA
TS o TR R a1 7o 8 e 39 sl akomd see
faieh wa 2 |

AT T BT
% g® o o {1 fetRa s @ @ e
ARG § =127 &1 &1 Hahd 2 | 5127 A 1T 8 Sl o9 T

I QT SR ageft A W ¥ 217 onfd Wy
T SR T2 |

12. UTETEl  TRAeh  QIAsll A TR

T o T, SETeRuT

IR T AR HEIH & Al A 29 o IR
S e, JTETS 3aane Sy enfiadt & o
I YT bl WA 3T T 3Tl 1 TS ATHT ok FHROT
% B FAAM | STeA1 |, 9 @ 3 TY H e b
Sfedare 3T 3UQ anffes oy & SMavashar 9 areasi
F f9eM & g 3R S arear # AqE & favagha
A T S Tl 2 |

JTET ] (10T To 09 &1 A &1 areareti & foe
 FoTT water 5T fohary 71 @ 31 e & fore yefem &
A S I THR F AT G ST & SHR T
frroter fovam e @ | gt Teften TS G T 1 AE W
T St ¢ 3T A Y STHMT bl G I FHIES
F St § | T e | S Suered S 98 Hehd At
2 o WTifiTehaT 1 THEH T & AT THUH Hi THH
ST T S0 e © ST Feh R0 faetiar faraor H
foran T 2 |

farcher forawor & grifies s7fid 4t i &t & w41 &
T 2 A1 Y A&t fha T
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in the market value are recognized in the profit and
loss account. Income and expenses relating to these
contracts are recognized on the settlement date. Gain
or loss on termination of the trading derivative contracts
are recorded as income or expense.

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets except revalued premises are stated at
historical cost.

Depreciation is provided on straight-line method at the
rates considered appropriate by the Management as
under:

Vi
&

Premises 2.50%
Furniture 10%
Electrical Installations, Vehicles & 20%
Office Equipments

Computers 331/3%
Fire Extinguishers 100%

Depreciation on revalued portion of the fixed assets
is withdrawn from revaluation reserve and credited to
profit and loss account.

Depreciation is provided for the full year irrespective of
the date of acquisition / revaluation.

Depreciation is provided on Land and Building as a
whole where separate costs are not ascertainable.

In respect of leasehold properties, premium is amortised
over the period of lease.

Depreciation on Fixed Assets of foreign branches is
provided as per the applicable laws/practices of the
respective countries.

Staff Benefits

Contribution to Provident Fund is charged to Profit and
Loss Account.

Provision for gratuity and pension liability is made on
actuarial basis and contributed to approved Gratuity and
Pension Fund. Provision for encashment of accumulated
leave payable on retirement or otherwise is based on
actuarial valuation at the year-end. However, additional
liability accrued during the year on account of Re-opening
of pension option and enhancement of Gratuity limit is
being amortised over a period of five years.

In respect of overseas branches gratuity is accounted
for as per laws prevailing in the respective countries.

Tax on Income

This comprises provision for current tax and deferred
tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing
differences between accounting income & taxable
income for the period) as determined in accordance
with Accounting Standard 22 of ICAI, “Accounting for
taxes on income”. Deferred tax is recognized subject to

consideration of prudence in respect of items of income
and expenses those arise at one point of time and are
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income
in the years in which the timing differences are expected
to be reversed. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the
income statement in the period of enactment of the
change.

Earning per Share

The Bank reports basic and diluted earnings per
equity share in accordance with Accounting Standard
- 20, “Earnings Per Share”, issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Basic earnings per
equity share has been computed by dividing net profit
for the year by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings
per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur
if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares
were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted
earnings per equity share have been computed using
the weighted average number of equity shares and
dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the
period except where the results are anti-dilutive.

Impairment of Assets

The bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
Impairment loss, if any, is provided in the Profit and Loss
Account to the extent the carrying amount of assets
exceed their estimated recoverable amount.

Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

In accordance with Accounting Standard 29, “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Bank
recognizes provisions when it has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Provisions are determined based on management
estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date, supplemented by experience of similar
transactions. These are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current management
estimates. In cases where the available information
indicates that the loss on the contingency is reasonably
possible but the amount of loss cannot be reasonably
estimated, a disclosure is made in the financial
statements.

Contingent Assets, if any, are not recognized or
disclosed in the financial statements.
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g -18 ST & | ST wfaftea & faced / Seree o yee R
Srat ur Frofira TEAYUT TRUTHIEHE FoTS ST T HA |
1w 2 fawm
SR ST S v SR g 31.03.2014 2.1 T w4 () % faen e % srieR 4 %
T T R o T 8 | e WAt & e 5 e rfert (3f) =t i et # afiepd fopar
é’sﬁWW€:
- et 7t g (T S H) Fd fraei & faera
31.3.2014 31.3.2013 31.3.2014 31.3.2013
Ry & fore enfid 49408.91 44504.46 72.65 73.93
feR % FoTT Suers 18521.72 15389.06 27.24 25,57
3R ¥ forw iR 75.22 301.33 0.11 0.50
2.2 “gRygad & U O’ & ded CHUASR fayfeal 3.2 TRET Seensi & ggf fAuer & fore wfad 3 aeR fh s
qg s o grr feifa 24.50 gfawm & @ & o1l T aret, e Tramet 4 gg=H $i 8, W g
Ffex 2 St A 2014 ) G a da F1 A T WA 370ETTaT & foTT 39 3o W fer e m § 6 0 aa
2 w1 21.69 gfaee (fset ad 22.92 gfewm) & 34 9 Fgft A § |
2.3 “qftudadr 3 fore anfta” yawt o (el S Eeg H€.81.26 3.3 M FAB0T ST FI TG & 2T H FB A
Fg & Mfaam (et a9 £.57.52 F0g) H s I & I =t fafa 1 g & & faw gfagfa & swmfa
I gt R R T g | T, 5 TR 1 TRIAT SR B e 7 W T e |
2.4 g M Y & 9T %.1050 0T (et af €450 3.4 3rei@r-adiiem e & oo § Afat s avffetor smar
F) & e T F Fffoal i Fufedaispa U Yeerhl T ST T JHIV 3 SFER {2 T g |
FE0T AT o dd SR o [oTT JuIf¥efeh o Ff %.9,455 : :
5 (B o 58,455 30%) A sheeed e 0 T o 4% § fwm d dderd o
o . A.95/21.04.048 /2013-14 el wad 7, 2014 &
HORYA 3 e 1. & el W T 81 %.3000 FUS .
. SO SHR e A 31, 2014 F THE q¥ % I D
F ifehd g it iasfoll Ft g2 3UR 2/ SMRftaTE . : :
N 5 = a1 3 st Nt & oy fAfds waum &1 gae &3 & g 7
P T 1T TN E | & 1 T ST s 31,2013 &1 STRA FREHHT T T & 324.20 FE
3 MRIF & 9 £.10,350 FAS (FT1 4,342 FIE (339%) =1 wait Fear
% THUHUE Wfed) T w6 81 36k ST, Hiaw
W%@%ﬁw%%ma.lsﬁg(ma& 4. 3T ATRAAT
TS HE) A AN A AAACA S AT @THEN | o 2013-14 F e, 9T § g g A =
2.5 &t greftor ot Fael & ded WA § % 222.04 T THEAFA FIFA Feiehhi S g (A1 T 8
(frevet o ©.222.04 FAT) & TR gsft Sard et € 1 30 Y o HROT ST & TEd Iod | €.844.94
26 G s ot e e g A e T S (A
T & e A & e Tt yar @ A% g 4.2 fadt @ s Woanw %.1.87 9 @ (e o
et 3= | ot st A A% TR E.81,000 FS %.0.82 He) o st smferdt & faf=nfsm far mn 81
(frzet af %.1,38,000 HT) 21 3% 5W £.2,987.03
(freat a %.4,430 F0E) & fasa gan, a&t 9o () 5. O S W ET
3 e e £.120.62 FE (e ad ©.34.55 Fg) WTAEM & fery T B STt WY o R W 2.33
3 Wﬁg(ﬁ@ﬁaﬁﬁ.3.83?§%aﬁwﬁw%@£
ftena 3 o @ # Hiaer
2.7 15.04.2013 &} fAUeH At i dh-teht aoel § TR T mm%ﬁgﬁﬁiﬁ S ot = @ F
uHsitue o Hag | dieftaned § 0.03 FT & e [ — ’ '
TR e T (1. R A% | Aifse g e ermman ) . ‘
3 6. TSI UF Rferear
0 S famftar e 2013-14 & &, o = SR SR W, 97

TReArE RSt deh g S Fraerietor Sesh aees &
SR e T |

N

THR AT 18.12.2013 H ufa §fhaet T . 52.23 Fit
T (wf St vem £.42.23 3 fifaw wfed) .10/-
3ffepd e & 22,97,53,015 et sradi & ffw fapan
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SCHEDULE 18
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

1.

2.2

2.3

2.4

25

2.6

2.7

Reconciliation

Reconciliation of Inter Bank and Inter Branch transactions
has been completed up to 31.3.2014 and steps for
elimination of outstanding entries are in progress.
The management does not anticipate any material

Vi
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N

consequential effect on reconciliation / elimination of
outstanding entries.

Investments

In accordance with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
guidelines, the Investments Portfolio of the Bank
(domestic) has been classified into three categories, as
given below: -

Gross Book Value Percentage to Total Investments
Category ®. In Crore) (%)
31.3.2014 31.3.2013 31.3.2014 31.3.2013
Held to Maturity 49408.91 44504.46 72.65 73.93
Available for Sale 18521.72 15389.06 27.24 2557
Held for Trading 75.22 301.33 0.11 0.50
SLR Securities under “Held to Maturity” accounted for 3.2 Claims pending settlement and claims yet to be lodged

21.69% (previous year 22.92%) of Bank’s Demand and
Time liabilities as at the end of March 2014, as against
the ceiling of 24.50% stipulated by RBI.

In respect of Held to Maturity category of Investments,
premium of %. 81.26 crore was amortised during the
year (Previous year . 57.52 crore).

Securities of face value for %. 1050 crores (previous year
3. 450 crore) towards Settlement Guarantee Fund and
securities for %. 9455 crore (previous year X. 8455 crore)
towards collateral for borrowing under Collateralised
Borrowing and Lending Obligations have been kept
with Clearing Corporation of India Limited. We have
placed securities of face value . 3000 crore with RBI
for intraday borrowing. We have also placed securities
to the extent of . 10350 crore (including MSF of %. 4342
crores) with Reserve Bank of India for our borrowing
under the LAF window. Besides, a sum of Z. 15 crore
(previous year . 15 crore) have been lodged with CCIL
towards Default Fund for forex operations.

Shares under Investments in India in Regional Rural
Banks is . 222.04 crore (Previous year . 222.04 crore)
includes amount towards share capital Deposits.

The Bank sold Government Securities from HTM
category during the year, both outright and under RBI’s
Open Market Operations (OMO). The total notified
amount of buy back was X. 81000 crore (previous
year %. 138000 crore). The extent of sale by the Bank
was . 2987.03 crore (previous year . 4430 crore),
book value (BV) and earned a profit of X. 120.62 crore
(previous year X. 34.55 crore).

On the settlement date of 15.04.2013 there was a SGL
bouncing, due to technical reasons, attracting default
charges of 0.03 crores from CCIL (without any monetary
penalty by RBI).

Advances

The Classification for advances and provisions for
possible loss has been made as per prudential norms
issued by Reserve Bank of India.

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.2

with Guarantee Institutions identified by the branches
have been considered for provisioning requirements on
the basis that such claims are valid and recoverable.

In assessing the realisability of certain advances,
the estimated value of security, Central Government
guarantees etc. have been considered for the purpose
of asset classification and income recognition.

The classification of advances, as certified by the
Branch Managers have been incorporated, in respect of
unaudited branches.

In terms of Reserve Bank of India Circular No. DBOD No.
BP95/21.04.048/2013-14 dt. February 7, 2014, the Bank
has utilized . 324.20 crores (33%) of floating provision/
countercyclical provisioning buffer of . 988.42 Crore
held as on March 31, 2013, for meeting specific
provisions for Non-performing Assets during the year
ended March 31, 2014.

Fixed Assets

During the year 2013-14, land and buildings in India,
were revalued through approved valuers and . 844.94
crore added to the carrying value of assets on account
of such revaluation.

Profit on Sale of Assets for %. 1.87 crore (previous
year . 0.82 crore), has been appropriated to Capital
Reserve.

Rupee Interest Rate Swap

An amount of . 2.33 crore (previous year . 3.83 crore)
is held kept on deferred income on account of gains
on termination of Rupee Interest Rate Swaps taken for
hedging and would be recognized over the remaining
contractual life of swap or life of the assets/liabilities,
whichever is earlier.

Capital and Reserves:

During the Financial Year 2013-14, Bank has issued
22,97,53,015 Equity Shares, of face value %. 10/- each,
at the rate of 3. 52.23 per equity share (including
premium of ¥. 42.23 per equity share) aggregating

7
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7.2 a9 % foTq L =79 €.241.30 HUS 2 (et af %.180.25

ot frame g e o e ge | A |t et FE) |
feReR 0T 3T Jarelte 49 om) 2 3 9relte Sfta st 8. SRy dom @ et dmmn
o &t 10.03.2014 =it gfT et 9 €. 48.84 & ard S Sai % aferf 3 e S & 5
= (W Efeet Fo .38.84 3 ffir wfe) .10/ mﬂ%%%’ E _‘“ﬁf %”%’”l: Al ﬁ;l{;g;ﬁ
30 e % 8,15,00,000 et ¥R 1 Fte fen 2010-11 ¥ %.1005.21 %ﬁg# AT T i | AT
o, ol e T €.398,04,60,000 (9 & 31 A ) SR % N (T0E-15) ad e
I IR AT TS B T AM) € | T 4 4 Fere %.1005.21 TS 3 T T T 7 @I @ §
ISt £.924.10 FUE § ¥.1235.35 S 7% a8 T8 3R TR
TRA THR T I G0 £.681.96 FUE (73.80%) § . . ;N
.911.71 T (73.80%) 7% 5% 71 3 31.03.2014 et st A s & W &7 5 95 b FEd
1 I RO T T 73.80% T TR @ | %mm%ﬁﬁigmmﬂ
6.2 fuset af § a1 adae af & e 5% 7 -l gsh T #1.80/21.04.018/2010-11 FifF 09.02.2011 ¥
TaE | IFER 9% €.1005.21 FAT Ft WA F1 Uk s
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it o ’ % 201.04 HUg) H a9 7 g @i & guia fhan mn
Sl ’196l;ﬁ TR 36(1)(VI) % 2 31 %.201.05 HUT & T TR B AW & =7 724
A o forT et AP i % < e qredta R s 4 39 at@ o1 gk 7 S R g
T SRR Ay it Sfee Fd gU €.175.72 HAE Ht A TTE-15 F SN P A B F Herawy Ao
ST 3¢ < 1 T 21 2 T ARt €.201.05 H0E | 52 TE @i
7. & 9. gaq,agaqwmﬁwaﬁﬁﬁmzooé%m
7.1 arfterat TR 3 fofa, =t demone s - vofiepa S o Hefy # AR S S <% At 7 Hard
forTos ot TF T HIH! faaR 3 o a8, 379 X @ gaife Tl @1 € G # o w2
%.280.43 enﬁg(ﬁ@ﬁ am‘ %.1208.42 FUZ) Ft foanfem G IEC o B E TA G T
T S 3 i S Ty F el g 1 A Tt s 3% % W R T 01.07.2013 § o
AT Y Tl T M| feamfeer % srgar frfafad sifafe gt 5y
Einkd
10. gsf:
(5. HUS H)
. °. Terercur 2013-14 2012-13
Fgall | sEAll 39 | FG Il
i T SRt e 1 St S (%) 7.18%
i TR 1 gSt (%) 7.47% 7.63% 7.07% 7.80%
ii. TR 2 YSit(%) 3.31% 3.52% 3.67% 4.05%
iv. el Goft ST (HRTN) % 10.78% | 11.15% | 10.74% | 11.85%
V. JRA THR F TN BT FiAer 73.80% 73.80%
vi. J2TE T8 SRt gt @ 1598.04 1000.00
vii. S2TE T2 Sfaiiad 2R 1 gt Nl Nl
viii. SIETE T TR 2 §Sh g I




6.2

6.3

to T. 1199,99,99,973.45 (Rupees one thousand one
Hundred and ninety nine crore ninety nine lac ninety nine
thousand nine hundred and seventy three and paise
forty five only) on 18.12.2013 to Government of India
on Preferential Basis and 8,15,00,000 Equity shares,
of face value . 10/- each, at the rate of 3. 48.84 per
equity share (including premium of %. 38.84 per equity
share) aggregating to . 398,04,60,000 (Rupees three
hundred and ninety eight crore four lac sixty thousand
only)on 10.03.2014 to Life Insurance Corporation of
India on Preferential Basis. Hence, the Paid-up Capital
of the bank has increased from . 924.10 crore to
. 1235.35 crore and Government of India’s shareholding
has increased from . 681.96 crore (73.80%) to 3. 911.71
crore (73.80%), retaining their holding level at 73.80% as
on 31.03.2014.

The Bank has not raised Tier Il capital during the current
year or in the previous year.

The Bank has created a deferred tax liability for
Rs 175.72 crore, by debiting general reserve, during the
current financial year, on special reserve created under
section 36(1)(viii) of Income tax Act, 1961 in compliance
with RBI circular DBOD No BPBC.72/21.04.018/2013-14
dated 20.03.2014.

7.2 Tax expense for the year is . 241.30 crore (Previous
year . 180.25 crore).

8. Unamortised Pension and Gratuity Liability

On the reopening of pension to employees of Public
Sector Banks and enhancement of Gratuity limits, the
Bank incurred a liability of . 1005.21 crore in 2010-11.
In terms of requirement of Accounting Standard (AS 15)
“Employee Benefits”, the entire amount of . 1005.21
crore is required to be charged to Profit and Loss
Account.

In terms of Reserve Bank of India circular No.DBOD.
BPBC.80/21.04.018/2010-11, on Reopening of Pension
Option to employees of Public Sector Banks and
enhancement in Gratuity limits — Prudential Regulatory
Treatment, dated 09.02.2011, Bank would amortise the
amount of . 1005.21 crore over a period of 5 years from
31.3.2011. Accordingly, . 201.04 crore (previous year
. 201.04 crore) has been charged to Profit and Loss
Account for the year 2013-14 and the balance amount
of %. 201.05 crore has been carried over. Had the RBI
not issued such a circular, the Revenue Reserves of
the Bank would have been lower by %. 201.05 crore
pursuant to application of the requirements of AS-15.

9. Information relating to vendors registered under Micro,

7. Taxes Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
7.1 Taking into consideration the decisions of Appellate and from whom goods and services have been procured
Authorities, judicial pronouncements and the opinion by the Bank, is being ascertained.
_of tax experts,.no provision is considered necessary ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES
in respect of disputed and other demands of income
tax aggregating . 280.43 crore (previous year In accordance with the guidelines issued by Reserve Bank
Z. 1208.42 crore). of India vide Master Circular dated 01.07.2013, the following
additional disclosures are made:-
10. Capital:
. In Crore)
2013-14 2012-13
S.No. Particulars
Basel IlI Basel Il Basel | Basel Il
i) Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio (%) 7.18%
ii) Tier | Capital (%) 7.47% 7.63% 7.07% 7.80%
iii) Tier 2 Capital (%) 3.31% 3.52% 3.67% 4.05%
iv) Total Capital Ratio (CRAR) % 10.78% 11.15% 10.74% 11.85%
V) Percentage of the shareholding of the Government of India 73.80% 73.80%
Vi) Amount of Equity Capital raised 1598.04 1000.00
vii) Amount of Additional Tier 1 raised Nil Nil
vii) Amount of Tier 2 capital raised Nil Nil
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11. fawr
11.1 fHE9N 19X (5. FU W)
TerauT 31.3.2014 31.3.2013
i. e & ea g
(%) WA H 68005.85 60194.85
(@) 9RA & TR 3226.44 1795.14
ii.  TCHRT o (T gTaEe
(%) 9Ra | 993.92 570.22
(W) R & el 1.56 58.69
iii.  fan & fraa g
(F) oRa § 67011.93 59624.63
(W) R & e’ 3224.88 1736.45
11.2 FHE9N W earegrd o gier amiid Yraeri st e (5. FUS W)
2013-14 2012-13
i SR vy 628.91 363.96*
i. SIS e 3 S T T grEEE 45353 175.10
jii.  =eTd: g9 % S giaeEs/ guEis 86.95 (89.85)
iv. HETH Y 995.49 628.91
11.3 ROt AE (3Tha Tod o 3TTER) (5. Fg H)
e o I AT | T % S SAEAH | 2 SEd S
T ECap EETe a9 % g e 31
13-14 12-13 13-14 12-13 13-14 12-13 2014 2013
ft & Ted o= T gfasfoar
i, W gfasgfaar . 21.30 485| 51.98 4.85 1.20 0.01 ] =
ii. i o wffEr pl A A pl pl pl A Sl
e Rt & dea &l 7 afasfaat
i W gfasfaar . 4.66 5.08 9.36 | 1698.78 0.05 | 179.26 ] N
i, i o Al pl Sl Sl Nl A pl Nl Sl
11.4 97- TATASR 9T qre miferat
H7- THTARTR a9 et SRiehal-a™ GT=@T (%. Fg H)
et | fawrswn | R uaifa m
€. SRt THA | wigde | 9ult gtasfaar | gteetae Tl
Eaksikl Eaksikll wEHT | @t "W
1) 2) 3) 4) 5) 6) 7)
1) | grefsirs a9 sy 3321.98 | 3237.18 0.00 0.00 0.62
2) | fachta gead 147132 | 1447.46 0.00 0.00 9.06
3) | 129176 | 1199.29 0.00 0.00 0.00
4) | frsft e 1527.34 | 1626.17 69.63 45.95 9.59
5) | et / Wy sam 193.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6) | 1111.91 531.75 0.00 135.37 39.50
7) | IR ¥ O1id JraEH 651.58 XXX XXX XXX XXX
Eol 9569.09 | 8041.85 69.63 181.32 58.77

)
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11. Investments
11.1 Value of Investments . In Crore)
Particulars 31.3.2014 31.3.2013
i)  Gross Value of Investments
a) InIndia 68005.85 60194.85
b) Outside India 3226.44 1795.14
i)  Provisions for Depreciation
a) InlIndia 993.92 570.22
b) Outside India 1.56 58.69
(i) Net value of Investments
a) InIndia 67011.93 59624.63
b) Outside India 3224.88 1736.45
11.2 Movement of Provisions held towards depreciation on Investments . In Crore)
2013-14 2012-13
Opening Balance 628.91 363.96
Add: Provisions made during the year 453.53 175.10
Less: Write-back / Adjustments during the year 86.95 (89.85)
Closing Balance 995.49 628.91
11.3 Repo transactions (in face value terms) . in Crore)
Mini.mum ' Max?mum . Daily average Outstanding as on
) outstanding during | outstanding during | outstanding during
Particulars the year the year the year March 31
13-14 12-13 13-14 12-13 13-14 12-13 2014 2013
Securities sold under Repo
i) Government securities 21.30 4.85 51.98 4.85 1.20 0.01 Nil Nil
i) Corporate debt securities Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Securities  Purchased  under
reverse Repo
i) Government securities 4.66 5.08 9.36 | 1698.78 0.05 179.26 Nil Nil
ii) Corporate debt securities Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
11.4 Non-SLR Investment Portfolio
Issuer Composition of Non-SLR Investments ®. In Crore)
Extent of | Extent of ‘Below | Extent of Extent of
No Issuer Amount Private investment ‘Unrated’ | ‘Unlisted’
Placement | grade’ securities | securities | securities
1) (2 (3) (4) (5) (6) @
(i) PSUs 3321.98 3237.18 0.00 0.00 0.62
(i) |Fls 1471.32 1447.46 0.00 0.00 9.06
(i) |Banks 1291.76 1199.29 0.00 0.00 0.00
(iv) |Private Corporates 1527.34 1626.17 69.63 45.95 9.59
(v) |Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures 193.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(viy |Others 1111.91 531.75 0.00 135.37 39.50
(vii) | Provision held towards depreciation 651.58 XXX XXX XXX XXX
Total 9569.09 8041.85 69.63 181.32 58.77
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11.5  FSieh T THTASR a9 (%. g H)
fereruT A
1 379e 2013 e 319 9 57.60
1 374 G 99 % <A g 86.09
3T 3y & <A Feifaar -
31 94 2014 T 3fa oW 143.69
el 9IRd graem 50.60
11.6 T Sivft @ / Rt 1=t fershit (30T )
fereoy A
Tt guft § o fauuE ge faas T
fIUH gog | 31 9t e & s & 59 o graee T e A &
12. SRafesq
12.1 STIET & AR / STST €X ITSeT-aget (5. FUE H)
feraruT 2013-14 2012-13

UA | THUHH QA | THEH

Bl Eal 3 T T 34
1) 3IGcl-aget FIRI 3 HredfTe e 823.00 |6356.94 |7179.94 | 998.00 |5769.68 |6767.68
2) mﬁgﬁﬁﬁgﬁ@gﬂgﬁmﬁ@w 040 | 179.61 | 180.01 059 | 24617 | 24676
3) IEA-aee A & € dF H UK GWRER | @A G G fC) fC) fC)
4) IIEA-age ¥ 3 hiee SEH W st A A A A A A
5)  SFecT-secl st i Sfud 9o -2254 | 179.61 | 179.61 -7.49 | 246.17 | 238.68
12.2 Tafme =R s X SRafesd (5. FT H)
%.9. fereRuy LSl
1) | =9 % 2 fafawa =R = @ SRafesy 1 FHiedes Iof W =
2) |31\ 2014 T S {3 SR =& ) SRAfEsT &t HiedfTe g W =
3) | faf =R st ) SRafesy i e go W 3R S s g Tél =
4) | gfaqfoet & 39 qod 3R & faf-me =R = R SRafesy &t Feafs qo & St s g 7@ | 3=

12.3 SRATESH W FRGH /0T WX FeheTehRTuT
12.3.1 U TeheTehiur
gwrli-(foraeft)

#)

e, s 9 ¥ S X S 3 1 SEw B FA
F 2T T TRl & folT =7 &R WY (378 3R TH) 51 &
o T 2V SUCH fshedl 1 FAT Gl 8 | §ep e
el Pt 3 IR ot ST FHIAT & A F U & T 3
IS R SRGH T Jo6 F T | 39 & o e Tl J
e o T € fopu o € e R frme €

fageft Sum / ww Ht w7 o (sft) wrdwifer / snfi dF
& STEIEH & BT A / fafwe 0 § o 8 arett
St =t gfaeen & forg SRAfea et 1 73 i &
for fereft el anf & ffera 3q S i ey e
fifeat ergAfa 2t & o @ & A 3R S T d% g
IR T ATehl Hi ST FT 1 LA 30 2 |

31)

3)

9

3)

Sfafesy THMSR F YR B & T 9% & o9
T 37T JUTe § S AR Teeht # fae 91w @
TE Ffaefd THdA g0 ®9 § M0 § A gL SRafea
ﬁqéﬁ%?mm%mqgﬁﬁsw ST I S F
At gureft 8 |

3% 7 gfeRen forant & &7 ¥ SR & 3w ¥ I3
ftgw =1 FEffa & & fore sfaa feor yonfest &1 e
foran & SRafea dea § Hafyd et vall & yaiea & forg
3fea R yonferat Suaes €1 gis gfaweft e & fou
IYYEHT IUR HS{ehdl MIEHIE 51 A Fo1 Hi &
e Sfafesy da-37 & fads femedt uretf & =g fvg mw
o 3 SRAfEey & g3 & forw eavas: S Tied i € 3
T R T TAEHIRAT 1 R FagH e S e |

d% o U NEYAF Al FRATE YE FH H U
TR TaThH o FRUTH TSR o Jedish & X
JaTe S it 3T JUTen 2 |
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11.5 Non Performing Non SLR Investments ®. In Crore)
Particulars Amount
Opening Balance as on 1% April 2013 57.60
Additions during the year since 1% April 86.09
Reductions during the above period -
Closing Balance as on 31 March 2014 143.69
Total Provisions held 50.60

11.6 Sale and Transfers to/from HTM Category . In Crore)
Particulars Amount
Market Value of the investments held in the HTM Category NIL

Excess of book value over market value for which provision is not made.

Not Applicable

12. DERIVATIVES
12.1 Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap . In Crore)
2013-14 2012-13
PARTICULAR
Cu S Rupee FX Total Rupee FX Total
Exposure | Exposure Exposure | Exposure
i) The notional principal of swap agreements 823.00 | 6356.94 |7179.94 998.00 | 5769.68 |6767.68
i) Losses which would be incurred if counter-
parties failed to fulfill their obligations under the 0.40 179.61 180.01 0.59 246.17 246.76
agreements
iiy  Collateral required by the Bank upon entering into Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
swaps
iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
v)  The fair value of the swap book -22.54 179.61 179.61 -7.49 246.17 | 238.68
12.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives ®. In Crore)
S. .
Particulars Amount
No.
() | Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives undertaken during the year Nil
(i) | Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding as on 315 March 2014 Nil
(i) | Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding and not “highly effective” Nil
(iv) |Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding and not “highly effective” Nil

12.3 DISCLOSURES ONRISKEXPOSURE IN DERIVATIVES

12.3.1 Qualitative Disclosure

Treasury (Foreign)

The Bank uses Interest Rate Swaps (IRS), Currency Swaps
and Options for hedging purpose to mitigate interest rate risk
and currency risk in banking book. The Bank also offers these
products to corporate clients to enable them to manage their
own currency and interest rate risk. Such transactions are
entered only with Clients and Banks having agreements in
place.

a)

The Risk Management Policy of the Bank allows using
of derivative products to hedge the risk in Interest/
Exchange rates that arise on account of overseas
borrowing/FCNR(B) portfolio/the asset liability mis-
match, for funding overseas branches etc., and also
to offer derivative products on back- to- back basis to
customers.

The Bank has a system of evaluating the derivatives
exposures separately and placing appropriate credit

d)

e)

lines for execution of derivative transactions duly
reckoning the Net Worth and security backing of
individual clients.

The Bank has set in place appropriate control systems
to assess the risks associated in using derivatives
as hedge instruments and proper risk reporting
systems are in place to monitor all aspects relating to
derivative transactions. The Derivative transactions
were undertaken only with banks and counterparties
well within their respective exposure limit approved
by appropriate credit sanctioning authorities for each
counter party.

The Bank has set necessary limits in place for using
derivatives and its position is continuously monitored.

The Bank has a system of continuous monitoring
and appraisal of resultant exposures across the
administrative hierarchy for initiation of necessary follow
up actions.

Derivatives are used by the Bank to hedge the Bank’s
Balance sheet and offered to select corporate clients

2
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%) e g qo T i TeReN SR BURE Teeh! B IR WY A9 37 Haat 3¢ A & @Y fpU T & fh
YR W T FTH & [T d% ZRT ST BN F4T fBan I Y THR AR |
ST 2 | iR SRl & Haler § ufoeen % 7o o o % < e . . _
A F A A ¢4 7 % o e d ?ﬁiﬁ@aﬁgﬁi%gﬁma%ﬂ%ﬁ
TR o TN o AR, S & B U AeHl § qufa: SR R I & |
A 3w T & 31T erferd or e & : S e i (o 4 e
- @) F A 37 § e = ]
%) W?arq{?‘ifﬁarﬁ @gﬁamﬁm? feper % HROT 3, IUR SGH (Henfad FEet i g &
e . T o T ST o SR R e IIH) AT ST (= Jod T A 3 fsuifed s
I e  foran o 21 T v 2 R T e 3T o Fafelt 3% e @ O AR ¥ gER W Sam)
7 ¥ s e 0 S et el YfTerT SR |, fafe St | S St
RN e 3 A /S 4 st WA T&a & | 5% = SeTa ol T H | fAfed i
, AT, & R R A e | T 3 R 3 T I LA & (10 S (01 Jomiferar T &t
T 9% YR R fo Tu SRafesy o ity Tom & Hag § et ¥ i e o 2 G S s 9 e A
ST B1 At 3 Y A F o SR R et | T 3 Sfad G Jomeft 31K 3§ B9 FH H gumcht
©)  ouft gfeRen @ 29 IT=EE % SUN W uRsied T T I HTATE & | A 3R TH & 37 Shelcd dbl o 919
£ | ST HiEIs T Tedish SR g7 H 9§ S gfauret & &0 F foh S & 371 a0 wef & fore e o are
FT 3 SR TR (20 T | 5% % o SRAfes § o & ZRT STHIR SUR WA o e 3 & |
%W?ﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁsﬁﬁéﬂw%ﬁ(ﬁw:ﬁﬁ n) S = T At T 2R e 1 i
FAAHE | # e % foru arHifea fifd Suemd & 3T e 4 e
T) Sfafesy o 37 gt e e o feenfdei & 3FEr 1 JATT FT & T sTavass ST fraa #1 € 3 36
fFTam & | farfer 1 foraftd &9 9 gared 61 ST 8 | had g
Ny SR TR e HTESA SFrel S o ot o o Feen
STt (1) 1 e J UG =TT ok AT BT TR el 3haT 2
% , FR gifaEl § s & Sfaw H B 5 |
immwéggmwﬁiwmﬁ T) A & [T AT Hfife et o % & faenfE e
: TN e e 17wt A S (e
1 T A E | 5 A AT gRT S A % 63;.'1? 3& REIS
SFTER 2 fE7 % foTT 5 T =11 & W60 i S & ) H R T AT '
12.3.2 WIATCHE Fehe tehiur (7. g H)
£ Teremur T3 SRafesw @m
i) Sfafesy (FHreafs qo &0)
%) Wit = ferg 1319.16 723
) SR & faw 1145 100
i) TR e i 9t § 3ifhd w1 fafq
%) i (+) 69.70 0.40
) 3T (-) 1.51 22.94
i) 0T Sfaw 168.38 8.23
iv) 11 & H H1fad Ueh g & qfem
(100%=H01)
) Ffaeen SRafesy W 17.49 17.73
) =R SRafesd ™ 1.93 3.40
V) a9 & g 3@ T 100*diH01 s =aE ST y . y o
R IRELL aximum 33. aximum 17.7
F) TFRET T Minimum 17.49 Minimum 12.98
) a Maximum 3.11 Maximum 3.40
T) AR W Minimum  1.92 Minimum 271
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on back-to-back basis. In respect of hedge transactions
the value and maturity of hedges has not exceeded
that of the underlying exposure. In respect of back-to-
back transactions the transactions with clients are fully
matched with counter party Bank transactions and there
is no uncovered exposure.
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The income from such derivatives are amortized and
taken to Profit and Loss Account on accrual basis over
the life of the contract. In case of early termination of
swaps undertaken for Balance Sheet management,
income on account of such gains would be recognized
over the remaining contractual life of the swap or life of
the assets/liabilities whichever is lower. In case of early
termination of derivatives undertaken for customers on a
back- to- back basis, income on account of such things
will be recognized on termination.

All the hedge transactions are accounted on accrual
basis. Valuations of the outstanding contracts are done
on Mark to Market basis. The Bank has duly approved

Risk Management and Accounting procedures for o)

dealing in Derivatives.

The derivative transactions are conducted in accordance
with the extant guidelines of Reserve Bank of India.

Treasury (Domestic)

The Bank uses Rupee Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) for hedging
purpose to mitigate interest rate risk in Govt. Securities and to

reduce the cost of Subordinated Debt and term deposits. In

addition, the Bank also enters into rupee interest rate swaps
for trading purposes as per the policy duly approved by the
Board. Swap transactions are entered only with Banks having
ISDA agreements in place.

The Bank has put in place an appropriate structure and
organization for management of risk, which includes
Treasury Department, Asset Liability Management
Committee and Risk Management Committee of the
Board.

Derivative transactions carry Market Risk (arising from
adverse movement in interest rates), Credit risk (arising
from probable counter party failure), Liquidity risk (arising
from failure to meet funding requirements or execute
the transaction at a reasonable price), Operational risk,
Regulatory risk and Reputation risk. The Bank has laid
down policies, set in place appropriate control systems
to assess the risks associated in using derivatives and
proper risk reporting and mitigation systems are in place
to monitor all risks relating to derivative transactions.
The IRS transactions were undertaken with only Banks
as counter party and well within the exposure limit
approved by the Board of Bank for each counter party.

Derivatives are used by the Bank for trading and
hedging. The Bank has an approved policy in force for
derivatives and has set necessary limits for the use of
derivatives and the position is continuously monitored.
The value and maturity of the hedges which are used
only as back to back or to hedge Bank’s Balance Sheet
has not exceeded that of the underlying exposure.

The accounting policy for derivatives has been drawn
up in accordance with RBI guidelines, as disclosed in
Schedule 17 - Significant Accounting Policies (Policy
No.6)

12.3.2 Quantitative Disclosures . In Crore)
CURRENCY INTEREST RATE
S- No. PARTICULARS DERIVATIVES DERIVATIVES
(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
For Hedging 1319.16 723
For Trading 114.5 100
(ii) Marked to Market Positions
Asset (+) 69.70 0.40
Liability (-) 1.51 22.94
(iii) Credit Exposure 168.38 8.23
(iv) Likely impact of one percentage change in interest rate
(100*PV01)
on hedging derivatives 17.49 17.73
on trading derivatives 1.93 3.40
(v) Maximum and Minimum of 100*PV01 observed during
the year
on hedging Maximum 33.1 Maximum 17.73
Minimum 17.49 Minimum 12.98
on trading Maximum 3.11 Maximum 3.40
Minimum 1.93 Minimum  2.71
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13, 3R T[uTEer
13.1.1 3FSies MTfa (TAUT) (z.30T F)
2013-14 2012-13
i) fraa TAdte &t qora | fae s (%) 3.20 2.50
i) At Bt frefier ()
F) FgIY 6607.96 3920.07
@) a9 & A uRaeH 6902.40 5600.61
) 9 % A Feifaar 4489.88 2912.72
) oy 9020.48 6607.96
i) e wadte &t nfeefierar
F) AT 4027.21 1907.44
T) a9 & G uRasH 4691.60 3413.18
) a9 % QA FHeifaar 3060.69 1293.41
) Ffauw 5658.12 4027.21
iv) TAHT @ Tfaefterar o fore graee (W SnfkdE & foT yraEe @ Siga)
F) T 2464.51 1923.40
g) o & < 3T T grEUE 2210.80 2198.82
) T2 W A STd T/ YA Sffed yaee 1681.28 1657.71
") fauw 2994.03 2464.51

13.1.2 YT Ak s AJUTd:

A o o 3 faenfee & SER 31.03.2014 % IR TEEM Hers & 39 (FHmR)  54.94 % (A
31.03.2013 @ 58.89%) @1

[
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~
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13. ASSET QUALITY:

13.1.1 Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) ®. In Crore)
2013-14 2012-13
i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 3.20 2.50

i)  Movement of NPAs (Gross)

a) Opening Balance 6607.96 3920.07
b) Additions during the year 6902.40 5600.61
c) Reductions during the year 4489.88 2912.72
d) Closing Balance 9020.48 6607.96

i) Movement of Net NPAs

a) Opening Balance 4027.21 1907.44
b)  Additions during the year 4691.60 3413.18
¢) Reductions during the year 3060.69 1293.41
d) Closing Balance 5658.12 4027.21

iv) Movement of Provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)

a) Opening balance 2464.51 1923.40
b) Provisions made during the year 2210.80 2198.82
c) Write-off/Write-back of excess provisions 1681.28 1657.71
d) Closing balance 2994.03 2464.51

13.1.2 Provision Coverage Ratio

The Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR) computed as per the RBI guidelines stood at 54.94% as on 31.3.2014 (58.89% as on
31.3.2013).
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13.2 Particulars of Accounts Restructured . InCrore)
. . Under SME Debt
Type of Restructuring Under CDR Mechanism . . Others Total
Restructuring Mechanism
o L ko) ke] ko) he)
Z Asset Classification w M w w
wn ° c - ° c —_ o c — o c =
Sl &% S| 5|28 s|£|2 S| 8|2
\ o] — T Keo) —_ T Q —_ \ Ke) —
Details s|l<|3|8|€|5|c|3|8|S|s|<|3|8|€|5|c|3|¢8|¢
bl | a| 3| R |b|la|a|lI3|R|d|a|a|lI3|R|H|ad|a|lI|R
No. of [aV] o ~— o o < [s\] N~ o [sp] [o)] [To] < o [ce] [To] N~ Al o <
. N Sle|w glR|g|® Tl8a|° 3
Borrowers s = 3
— o — o [aV} [0} < — o o [} (qV] 0] o (o] e} O o o <
A X | |lw| S| |v|LINIS|N|S ||| S| |lw|lvy|K|S|
moun Yo} o [92] o [o)] [ee] o] < o — [<e] [Te] [o 0] o [o)] o [90] (] o o
1 Restructured Accounts as on Outstandi © @ S| Q| 1 88| X 1 8 8| K N
March 31 2013 utstanding & ¥ S S| 3 ©
[o)] o < o (42} (o] — o o o [9V] o o o (aV} o — < o To]
Provision S S ~ S © [re) o S S © ) © S S <)) S © ~ S ™
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the FY 2013-14
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Under SME Debt

Type of Restructuring Under CDR Mechanism . . Others Total
Restructuring Mechanism
e] L ke] ke] ke) he)
Z | Asset Classification 5 5 5 5
@) s | 2 = o | 2| = o | 2| = o | 2| =
T | S 2 g | I 2 T | S 2 g | I 2
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hence need not be shown I X « ISR R <
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13.3 URE e GATHHIU & (T T erehtur/ G :GTEHT shuAt st st T8 foefte

it o feramur (%. Fs ¥)
ferercut 2013-14 2012-13
(i) @ # gen 58 1
(i) wm/wﬁﬁmmmmww 236,19 =
T [ gragHi & e |
(iii) et wfahet 1015.15 11.00
(iv) T a9 Sfdfid @il 9 e nfaited gfawa = NG
(v) o &1-qed W el o4 / g1 278.96 3.01
13.4 3T dehl @ hT / R it T2 TSieh (e o ST et fereur
13.4.1 T i TS AR (e Tar JMREAAT R (ereRuT (. F< )
ferercot 2013-14 2012-13
1. [aﬁ]aq‘%a?mm%qnq@ra?aﬁm Nl A
(@] T NS NSl
1. [=] aﬁé’ﬁm%ﬂﬁﬁgﬁwﬁlﬁ@maﬁm = =
(@] % RS RS
13.4.2.ﬁmﬁn§mﬁaﬁwmﬁwﬁaw (%. F:UT H)
Teraur 2013-14 2012-13
1. foa fope T @ = =
2. B ST hSal hSSl
3. 9T % Ffawa Nl gl
13.5 U ST U YT (%. F: H)
LU 2013-14 2012-13
T S b Ffe graem 1195.55 941.52
14. HER JuTd
feraTuT 2013-14 2012-13
(i) 3ftea FrEwR et & 9fae & &9 § S 3 8.99% 9.57%
(i) | =irod SR ffE & gfoed & 9 5 e 3 0.85% 0.91%
(iii) | Pt fferr & gfaee & &9 F qiEreHTds oy 1.58% 1.77%
(iv) | enfaat 9 o 0.23% 0.24%
(v) | F0ER (S 7 310w ) gfa sdardt (5. S §) 13.67 12.88
(vi) | vufasdard oy (5. S0 §) 0.0201 0.0199
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13.3 Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset reconstruction
. In Crore)
Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
(i) No. of accounts 58 1
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC 736.19 Nil
(iii) Aggregate consideration 1015.15 11.00
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years Nil Nil
(v) Aggregate gain/(loss) over net book value 278.96 3.01
13.4 Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/sold from other banks
13.4.1 Details of non-performing financial assets purchased: . In Crore)
Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
1 (a) No. of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
2 (a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year Nil Nil
(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
13.4.2 Details of non-performing financial assets sold: ®. In Crore)
Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
1. No. of accounts sold Nil Nil
2. Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
3. Aggregate consideration received Nil Nil
13.5 Provisions on Standard Assets . In Crore)
Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
Provisions towards Standard Assets 1195.55 941.52
14 BUSINESS RATIOS
Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
(i) Interest Income as a percentage to Average Working Funds 8.99% 9.57%
(ii) Non Interest Income as a percentage to Working Funds 0.85% 0.91%
(iii) Operating Profit as a percentage to Working Funds 1.58% 1.77%
(iv) Return on Assets 0.23% 0.24%
(v) Business (Deposits plus advances) per Employee . In crore) 13.67 12.88
(vi) Profit per employee . In crore) 0.0201 0.0199

[
N
w




A

AN,
\% %
15. 3R FaaT gaie ¢
31 |Te 2014 Tk MRAN o AT it TS TS Bl TRUSFAAT BT GferwrT (%. el #)
. 3w fras foeeft gz | faceft gz
ST ELIN A 2
(TheT) () it AT
1 &= 4679.93 3104.31 4965.68 4199.18 22.71 983.79
287 fm 4617.11 3205.00 2521.96 306.09 1232.83 0.00
89 14 fm 5620.34 6261.26 1276.94 0 1.30 0.00
15928 faq 5936.06 7829.28 1402.60 1161.68 553.93 0.00
29| 3 wdH & 21497.18 |  22074.32 5104.54 1057.68 250.54 0.00
3 | 3 6 7 7 3752262 | 10872.98 8871.18 2664.54 1418.09 954.50
6 T T 31fys | 9 a% 57590.34 | 18568.19 |  13923.59 1687.64 905.46 1372.82
1 = g aifess 3 o a 28190.24 | 63747.96 | 10331.23 6315.80 607.28 1202.35
3af g e 5 ad aw 7862.78 | 21058.78 3909.51 3972.60 3.74 482.42
59 ¥ sifare 5445948 | 2435893 | 18925.05 3090.83 0.00 0.00
e 227976.08 | 181081.01 | 71232.28 | 24456.04 4995.88 4995.88
16. 39X
16.1 TS GUST &1 hi K0T (5. HUS H)
gaTt 2013-14 2012-13
) | geIE R0
i) Ressht dus
YR 3 39 fEreeh Hufeq R e gR quia: Ffasf SR e Sured g3
T @ 1 W@ aren 8 a1 S 2T R fan sma | 8283.73 5699.92
e gTerfenel &1 9 fed aiiehuT o [T T Sfereh 3T 07 5943.27 4296.35
i) ST TTeR-HuaT 8979.60 7833.92
TS TER HURIS W dYE §R YA 3UR | e wad, Biet-aret
S, Fg-3E et aforfSaes uReR, 9g-ufan farfta gam, agfay fhue w= faon
3T AT R, A o Jenesd A, ded, i e, o
o famtor afe | SR & - enenfia dard (Tus) ftafed € |
i) TR G 3 1
forferate Fo7 St HeE & Ted 7 ¢ g R ST 3843.59 3923.29
iv) st g ST gfasfeR & e St 37 gemd 3uR
et . A A
FTOTSETh TR Sl A A
3= 15.00 15.00
(b) | 3T) STgcererSHUT : T A deh (TTTES ) A 3yt oy shuf~rat (Cauwmt) 186325 861 27
o FAFr 3enRa 3T T-fAfy el 3uw ' '
TTAR WUET YaTl hi Shet SRUT (37 +31) 22985.17 18333.40
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15 ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT:
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2014 ®. In Crore)
. Advances | Investments . Foreign Foreign
Deposits (Gross) (Gross) Borrowings | Currency Currency
Assets Liabilities
Day 1 4679.93 3104.31 4965.68 4199.18 22.71 983.79
2to 7 days 4617.11 3205.00 2521.96 306.09 1232.83 0.00
8 to 14 days 5620.34 6261.26 1276.94 0 1.30 0.00
15 to 28 days 5936.06 7829.28 1402.60 1161.68 553.93 0.00
29 days to 3 Month 21497.18 22074.32 5104.54 1057.68 250.54 0.00
Over 3 Month & up to 6 Month 37522.62 10872.98 8871.18 2664.54 1418.09 954.50
Over 6 Month & up to 1 year 57590.34 18568.19 13923.59 1687.64 905.46 1372.82
Over 1 year & up to 3 years 28190.24 63747.96 10331.23 6315.80 607.28 1202.35
Over 3 years & up to 5 years 7862.78 21058.78 3909.51 3972.60 3.74 482.42
Over 5 years 54459.48 24358.93 18925.05 3090.83 0.00 0.00
Total 227976.08 | 181081.01 71232.28 | 24456.04 4995.88 4995.88
16 Exposures
16.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector . In Crore)
Category 2013-14 2012-13
(a) Direct Exposure
i)  Residential Mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be
occupied by the borrower or that is rented; 8283.73 5699.92
Out of which, Individual housing loans eligible to be classified under Priority 594327 4296.35
Sector
iy  Commercial Real Estate - 8979.60 7833.92
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail
space, multi purpose commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings,
multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land
acquisition, development and construction etc.) Exposure includes non-fund
based (NFB) limits;
iii) Real estate others:
Hotels, Hospitals and Liquirent not under CRE 3843.59 3923.29
iv) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities and other securitised exposures
Residential Nil Nil
Commercial Real estate Nil Nil
Others 15.00 15.00
(b) Indirect Exposure: Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing 1863.25 861.27
Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) ’ '
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector (a+b) 22985.17 18333.40
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16.2 TSt TSR 1 70T Haw (7. FS T )
Tferaur 2013-14 | 2012-13
i) 37 gfEet IR, wRadeha afsl, wRaderie e it et seE e el 9t
gebreal B fehar wan weaet T, et e a1 far fafdmed: e F2o1 § 721 e e
887.82 690.73
i) o (smean / Suwaidt wfed), ufadeier atel o yRadeia fedwy ot et s
%g:ﬂa HEl & (el § e o fore saferaal vl / arel / fea=wi an o= gfafoai &
1 ey SR | 31y 4.26 0.87
iii) et 3rr waS ] fRw MU 3 31w, SRt v a1 yRad-fer atel ar uftadefiar fed=d A
et S HESTA Bl Hi el B ge T o &9 8 o7 S 2 341.16 299.04
iv) T o / fed e atet / aftad el feae / $fmet 3 HEeTd %E & gl 6 3
Hm%@ﬁﬁ{ﬂmﬁwﬁm,aﬁﬁaﬁm Fiet a1 gfad-eia
fea=g @ DA HE A (] HI FIYR T 5 T R el
2T % o gem 1w, 579.05 705.74
v) T ST 1 AT T G I ST SIUH ST Wi S I Ahe Ao i 31T T SR
EiRIERIERI 128.17 129.02
vi) qmﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁm%mﬁgm%mﬁaﬁ
[ SiEl / fea=mi = = gfavfea st afasfa o gfa ar fafer smem w [ &1 LR, A 35.00
vii) genfem et yare / fotal W Shufal i Ui F, NGl pil
viii) S = aftadea atel a1 giadeia fea=w a1 faet 3E ==a e @t el &
ey § J6i g ot T gl gftEsard; = I
ix) Tt 2T o foTu s st ot foet UaH &, = 0.20
X) ST Ui A (vsftepd 3 srisfted at &) 3 af asft o 236.48 239.36
Yt AR A HA IUR 2176.94 | 2099.96
16.3 SRaw a3t S 9T /T (3. Tl F)
e o 31.3.2014 9% | 31.3.20149% | 31.3.2013 9% | 31.3.2013 9
(fraer) 3t | emiRa greren (fraen) 3im | eria graem
ey 18962.24 14.975 12831.42 7.12
Fa 3139.89 = 4574.71 =
= 2514.76 = 2297.79 =
3= 49.96 = 164.21 =
IR 263.81 = 127.78 =
EIREIR) = = = =
SHR-3R I I I bl
e 24930.66 14.975 19995.91 7.12

16.4 TeheT SURehRd! HAT (THUS), THE SRR daT (Sfsfiuet) o faawur SEt de 3 rfershuor feran 2

qRAter fiste ach & el 3 as 2013-14 & (T g9R S & 07 ifd S&Es & @t &

dtar &

3TUR Ul 3TREA IR
IFHT TR % 2754.90 FUE (S fAf &1 15 % ) 7 3R Y 3uRsat S & o1 & 7346.40 H0g ( sk Ay

F40 %) & | fazeft wmarsi & amet § ugeftua s sfshua # guadt 40 far 3w quaet 60 ot o 21

(F9T FUST H)

g 37ary g . 31.03.2014 %

? SURHAT F1 A FOT S Har TR 1 T A | & ﬁgw & foTe s/t =t

sAfrmagen | Rafy

1 |eerst 7 fet | 359.49 (FuEt 60.00 fam) | 239.66 (Fuaet|  30.11.2013[20.09.2013|  239.66 (Fuaet
fa@ (99T SUNHdt Htam) 40.00 fi=m) | -31.03.2014 40.00 fe=)

2 |9 ey 359.49 (Fueet 60.00 fir) | 179.75 (Juaet|  sifespmor 7| 14.12.2013 | 159.30 (Fuaeh
$TEYA 1. @ (T9g 3uRat g) 30.00 fi) [ERIKEI 26.588 fira)

3 | fRTTERRYE | 359.49 (FuaEt 60.00 ) | 59.915 (Fuwet| sifesmAvr 9| 14.12.2013 | 44.44 (ueet
fafes @ * (998 3uNHdt Hitan) 10.00 f&=) [ERIKIRI 7.418 fo=)

4 | zae weE for| 239.66 (Fuaet 40.00 fiat) (368.48 (Fuweht |27.12.2013(14.03.2014 | 368.48 (Fuwet
61.500 firm)  |-31.03.2014 61.500 fir)
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16.2 Exposure to Capital Market . In Crore)
Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
(i) directinvestment made in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and

units of equity — oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in
corporate debt; 887.82 690.73
(i) advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or on clean basis
to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs/ESOPs), convertible bonds,
convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds. 4.26 0.87
(i) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security; 341.16 299.04
(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares
or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds ie.
where the primary security other than shares/convertible bonds/ convertible debentures/
units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances; 579.05 705.74
(v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of
stockbrokers and market makers; 128.17 129.02
(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares/bonds/debentures or other
securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new
companies in anticipation of raising resources; Nil 35.00
(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; Nil Nil
(viii) underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect of primary issue of shares
or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds; Nil Nil
(ix) financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; Nil 0.20
(x) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) 236.48 239.36
Total Exposure to Capital market 2176.94 2099.96
16.3 Risk Category-wise Country Exposure: . In Crore)
Risk Category Exposure (net) Provision held Exposure (net) Provision held
as at 31.3.2014 as at 31.3.2014 as at 31.3.2013 as at 31.3.2013
Insignificant 18962.24 14.975 12831.42 712
Low 3139.89 Nil 4574.71 Nil
Moderate 2514.76 Nil 2297.79 Nil
High 49.96 Nil 164.21 Nil
Very High 263.81 Nil 127.78 Nil
Restricted Nil Nil Nil Nil
Off-credit Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total 24930.66 14.975 19995.91 7.12

16.4 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL), Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the Bank:

As per RBI guidelines and terms of Loan Policy Document of our Bank for 2013-14, the permissible level of Single
Borrower exposure limit is T. 2754.90 crore (15% of Capital funds) and . 7346.40 crore for Group Borrower limit (40% of
Capital funds). SBL and GBL in case of overseas branches is USD 40 Mio and USD 60 Mio respectively.

. In Crore)
S| Name of the Period during Board Position as
) Exposure limit Limit Sanctioned which limit sanction on 31.3.2014
No. Borrower . )
exceeded details Outstanding
1 Armada C7 Pte ltd@ 359.49 239.66 30.11.2013-| 20.09.2013 239.66
[USD60.00 mio] | [USD 40.00 mio] 31.3.2014 [USD 40.00 mio]
[Group borrower limit]
2 Western Alliance 359.49 179.75 Not exceeded | 14.12.2013 159.30
International td@ [USD60.00 mio] | [USD 30.00 mio] [USD 26.588 mio]
[Group borrower limit]
3 King Empire group 359.49 59.915 Not exceeded | 14.12.2013 44.44
Limited@ [USD60.00 mio] | [USD 10.00 mio] [USD 7.418 mio]
[Group borrower limit]
4 Varada Twelve Pte Itd 239.66 368.48 27.12.2013-| 14.03.2014 368.48
[USD 40.00 mio] | [USD 61.500 mio] 31.03.2014 [USD61.500 mio]
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16.5 3TgfarsIa 3w (%. FUSI H)
2013-14 2012-13
379 Wl 1 ot WA 9 &, R JIHHR W T 7T 391 7% 3291.59 5356.00
Ut eryd S @ S o 3291.59 5356.00
17. 91.R sk gRT oIE T €T (%. HUT #)
2013-14 2012-13
7. % g A ¢ ES: 3.002 =
TGl A & STTHR FHe 0T

18.1 TGIh WIFeh 5 - AT & (AT HeT oA, AT | Y& W AT @ik qrterraar
.RFR & e | Seheiet Ah.95/21.04.048/2013/14 fmifwd 07.02.2014 g/ & T STAMR % SHR 3R 9% &
aIE g7 SAITRT iferet & STERT H, 3% 7 SR WEEH/ A TaH TR ", £.324.20 FAS F AW H IS
N 2 e waert & fore gaim fFar g |

18.2 WEichd HIHh 9 - TS AT
Teequl e iferdt - g 17 % we 6.2 § afvfaran ao i g 4 T |
18.3 Wik HIHh 15 - HU= 1T
i) 701 W 2007 T JRAT Gt AGBR I g T "HH=EAT 3 ey e emish 7 15 (W) &
TR |

ii) I - 15 (TRNTE) & SHR T4 @ & 31 @I S o v H T T FHarsH-3ae arsl i defemedT
e e B Rl 1 gR e 8,

() TRTRE ST T
STeTarel o I U gedt B uied (5. FUTH)
ENC] et STABTET T BT
(fern) (o) (T faferss)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
a¥ & TR § areAarst 1 ade god 486510 | 4389.33 | 1098.78 | 941.01 | 327.26 | 289.02
RIS 408.30 | 357.86 89.87 70.03 27.24 22.00
FAAM Ha AT 82.46 67.33 54.16 76.21 24.40 50.84
Jacd g (397.65) | (358.48) | (143.50) | (131.15) | (62.38) | (60.37)
AT T ATEA IR TR / (T) 468.28 409.07 26.09 142.68 73.40 25.76
Y % 37d H areAars o aa 1o 5426.49 | 4865.11 | 112540 | 1098.78 | 389.92 | 327.26
ST 3MRA & ST gt B ulad = (5. HUE 7 )
EKE et STAHTY TeRAHT
(BICED) (fferh) (I fafrer)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
e & TR H e R F 3 T @ 4578.80 | 3935.08 | 1010.40 | 793.07 0.00 0.00
ST S TR STAT G A 41682 | 362.25 78.76 68.08 0.00 0.00
EREEIEREE] 50356 | 539.75 90.00 | 248.00 62.38 60.37
EEGISI (397.65) | (358.48) | (143.50) | (131.15) | (62.38) | (60.37)
AT T ATEA I ThdH / () 181.81 100.20 40.42 32.40 0.00 0.00
& o 3id H IS S 3 eI @ 5283.34 | 4578.80 | 1076.09 | 1010.40 0.00 0.00
R frrefor SspaoTeheita 3ar
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16.5 Unsecured Advances ®. In Crore)
2013-14 2012-13
Total amount for which intangible securities such as charge over the rights, licences 3291.59 5356.00
authority, etc., has been taken
Estimated value of such intangible collateral 3291.59 5356.00
17  Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI: ®. In Crore)
2013-14 2012-13
Penalties imposed by RBI 3.002 Nil

18. DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
18.1 Accounting Standard 5 - Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies

As permitted by RBI vide its circular No. DBOD.BP95/21.04.048./2013/14 Dt. 07.02.2014 and also in pursuance to
Bank’s Board approved policy, the Bank has utilized a sum of . 324.20 crores from Floating provisions/ Counter
Cyclical Provisioning Buffer towards Specific Provisions for Non Performing Assets.

18.2 Accounting Standard 9 - Revenue Recognition

Revenue has been recognized as described in item No. 2 of Significant Accounting Policies — Schedule 17.

18.3 Accounting Standard 15 - Employee Benefits

i) The Bank has adopted Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) “Employee Benefits” issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, with effect from 1<t April 2007.

i) The summarized position of Post-employment benefits and long term employee benefits recognized in the Profit
& Loss Account and Balance Sheet as required in accordance with the Accounting Standard-15 (Revised) are as

under:

(a) Defined Benefit Schemes:

Changes in the present value of the obligations . In Crore)
LEAVE
PENSION GRATUTY ENCASHWENT
(Unfunded)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
E{fﬁg’;te\;?'“e of obligation as at the beginning | a5 16 | 43g9.33 | 109878 | 941.01 | 32726 | 289.02
Interest Cost 408.30 357.86 89.87 70.03 27.24 22.00
Current Service Cost 82.46 67.33 54.16 76.21 24.40 50.84
Benefits Paid (397.65) | (358.48) | (143.50) | (131.15) (62.38) (60.37)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on Obligations 468.28 409.07 26.09 142.68 73.40 25.76
Present Value of Obligation at year end 5426.49 4865.11 1125.40 1098.78 389.92 327.26
Change in Fair Value of Plan Asset . In Crore)
LEAVE
PENSION GRATUTY ENCASHWENT
(Unfunded)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
;a;ry\g?e of Plan Assets at the beginning of 4578.80 | 3935.08 | 101040 | 793.07 0.00 0.00
Expected return on Plan Assets 416.82 362.25 78.76 68.08 0.00 0.00
Employer’s contribution 503.56 539.75 90.00 248.00 62.38 60.37
Benefit Paid (397.65) | (358.48) | (143.50) | (131.15) (62.38) (60.37)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on Obligations 181.81 100.20 40.42 32.40 0.00 0.00
Fair Value of Plan Asset at the end of the year 5283.34 | 4578.80 1076.09 1010.40 0.00 0.00
Unfunded Transitional Liability - - - - -
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LGERERRLOICiRPiIRC (5. FAT )
LN} et TSI THe BT
(ffer) (ffer (1 fiferep)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
axf o 3T H o STEAMS H ST IR T | 542650 | 4865.11 | 112540 | 1098.78 |  389.92 | 327.26
F & 3 T A S B 3T I 5283.34 | 4578.80 | 1076.09 | 1010.40 0.00 0.00
T 7 § Tgar T AfAfEe fAae 39 151.73* | 286.31 49.31* 88.38 | 389.92| 327.26
* Yo 3R A=t fAferl o fAfga o1-ffemma frae 3o & 37T weh o § uienfe fopan smam
o) O N W Uge T AT (5. A F )
LN et CEEINE G
(fer) (ffer) (It fferep)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
FAEM Fa AT 82.46 67.33 54.16 76.21 24.40 50.84
TS AT 408.30 | 357.86 89.87 70.03 27.24 22.00
IS ST T STA T e (416.82) | (362.25) (78.76) (68.08) 0.00 0.00
e H g T e stAifRs () / 71 286.47 |  308.87 1433 | 110.28 73.40 25.76
1 3 31 @ H IARA H A o = 360.41|  371.81 5093 | 188.44 | 12504 98.60
g;ﬁ;ﬁﬁ%ﬁ/mﬁ ERIESIC R M ol | omed| omad| omad| omed| omd
I & FeEt AT T ST (a9 yiererea «
T T (%) et = (%)
2014 2013 2014 2013
& ) F01 forerd
% FEHR Frasfear 8.84 9.68 6.44 7.40
TS TR it 45.73 42.08 48.97 47.85
drue / fuwste/#m@ie afel | faw 40.40 43.39 39.15 39.61
= foawm 5.03 4.85 5.44 5.14
@ ) gt forad NS hSal NS NS
B) TA-UF Tt ARG Tk YT SHTIcheh STTH (SR 30 & U 7 31 TeTrer)
ERLE] et STFHTIT FHAHT
(fferh) (fafer) (A1 fafere)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
TR 8.75% 8.50% 8.75% 8.50% 8.75% 8.50%
ST ST T FeT I AT & 9.00% 9.00% 8.00% 8.00% 0% 0%
3T gfg i Fefa & 5.00% 4.00% 5.50% 5.00% 5.50% 4.50%
STqeeft TTeft wfsean AT g shfee | SFAIA g shfee | SFmifa fe shise
150

2V




Vi
&

Amount recognized in Balance Sheet ®. In Crore)
LEAVE
PENSION GRATUTY ENGASHVENT
(Unfunded)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Estimated Present value of obligations as at 5426.50 4865.11 1125.40 1098.78 389.92 307.26
the end of the year ) ' ' ) ) )
Actual Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end 508334 4578.80 1076.09 1010.40 0.00 0.00
of the year ) ' ' ) ) )
Un-funded Net Liability recognized in Balance 151,73 286.31 49 31* 88.38 389.92 30796
sheet ) ' ' ) ) )

* The balance of Un-funded Net Liability in Pension and Gratuity Funds, are to be amortised in the next one year.

Expenses Recognized in Profit & Loss ®. In Crore)

LEAVE
PENSION GRATUITY ENGASHVENT
(Unfunded)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Current Service Cost 82.46 67.33 54.16 76.21 24.40 50.84
Interest Cost 408.30 357.86 89.87 70.03 27.24 22.00
Expected return on Plan Asset (416.82) (362.25) (78.76) (68.08) 0.00 0.00
Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in the year 286.47 308.87 14.33 110.28 73.40 25.76
Total expenses chargeable in Profit & Loss
Account 360.41 371.81 50.93 188.44 125.04 98.60
Amount received from Il Pension Optees /
Employer’s Contribution of PF “NA- “NA- “NA- “NA- “NA- “NA-

Investment percentage maintained by Pension & Gratuity Trust:

Pension Trust (%)

Gratuity Trust (%)

2014 2013 2014 2013
a) Debt Instruments
Central Government Securities 8.84 9.68 6.44 7.40
State Government Securities 45.73 42.08 48.97 47.85
Investment in PSU/PFI/ Corporate Bonds 40.40 43.39 39.15 39.61
Other Investments 5.03 4.85 5.44 5.14
b) Equity Instruments Nil Nil Nil Nil
Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet Date (expressed as weighted average)
PENSION aRATUITY ENGASHUENT
(Unfunded)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount Rate 8.75% 8.50% 8.75% 8.50% 8.75% 8.50%
Expected rate of return on Plan Assets 9.00% 9.00% 8.00% 8.00% 0% 0%
Expected Rate of Salary increase 5.00% 4.00% 5.50% 5.00% 5.50% 4.50%
Method used Projected unit credit Projected unit credit Projected unit credit
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FIHETT FHSH (%. TSl H)
LNl et ST THLIHTT
férercor (ffems) (fAfer (R fAferR)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ST ST TR ST FH (1) / A1 181.81 100.20 40.42 32.40 0.00 0.00
ST A T SFFETT FH (31F) / A 468.28 | 409.07 26.09 | 14268 73.40 25.76
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(@) et & g fope e fafhe sra e ¢

JE2T & : T & eI ARG (e - 07 faifera 31.03.2014) THR afel W AR Gfea & Haof § a2 fohan man
2 | FeTe oy &% WO 9 B2 % Tt & Hay § Feide v &% bl Qb S 0 el % SHR W 79 e T E |
o2t & Yoy | arefae o & o e |

3T gfE : T ST & SER T |
(M) 37T faha e # srafer starnft aret Tt & foTw S 1 Fafey herT €165 HUSE |

18.4 AGich UMk 17 - @UE RUifeT

gue RO 3 fore S 3 et fisd S g0 3@ 2007 ¥ S Henes faenfe i samn 2, 5w sar R fFu
ST AT @Uel i S5, HARE / dieh sifeh, f2et Afs o 3= Afdh ufterer # i fHa e |

ORI T : SR GUg (5. HUET H)
feraT 2013-14 | 2012-13 | 2013-14 | 2012-13 | 2013-14 | 2012-13 | 2013-14|2012-13| 2013-14 | 2012-13
TS 5920.49| 5123.68| 11315.45| 11432.64| 6939.69| 5252.59| 635.39| 731.05| 24811.02| 22539.96
TR 1174.39| 868.51| 1734.10| 2153.09| 1088.07| 478.00| (40.71)| 208.56| 3955.85| 3708.16
AEfEd A 42.05 109.67
e = 0.66 0.82
T 3997.24| 3817.01
/=

3T HT 24130  180.25
A 3154.20| 3069.53
SR HHATT

ST 19 / 0 0
GG
fee oy 601.74|  567.23
3 AT
TUeaR RAa | 79223.62|68019.27| 124196.28| 110964.95| 69592.08| 63752.33| 151.36| 144.36| 273163.34| 242880.91
e et 1741.50| 1775.12
Tt S 274904.84| 244656.03
@UEAR 2TATE | 73709.99| 63416.49| 116811.63| 104633.60| 67731.10/62624.91| 109.38|  51.79| 258362.10| 230726.79
3@ 3T 37255  471.86
T 3 258734.65| 231198.65

=N
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Experience Adjustments

PENSION GRATUITY ENCLAES'T-YI\';ENT
Particulars (Funded) (Funded) (Unfunded)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Experience adjustment on Plan assets (Loss)/ 181.81 100.20 40.42 32.40 0.00 0.00
Gain . . . . . .
Expenencg adjustment on Plan Liabilities 468.98 409.07 26.09 142 68 73.40 25.76
(Loss)/Gain

©

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account actual return on plan assets,
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in employee market.

In respect of overseas branches, disclosures if any, required for Employee Benefit Schemes are not made in the absence
of information.

The financial assumptions considered for the calculations are as under:-

Discount Rate: - The discount rate has been chosen by reference to market yield on Government bonds as on the date
of valuation. (Balance sheet dated 31.03.2014)

Expected Rate of Return: In case of Pension the expected rate of return is taken on the basis of yield on Government
bonds. In case of gratuity, the actual return has been taken.

Salary Increase: On the basis of past data.

Bank’s best estimate expected to be paid in the next Financial Year for Gratuity is %. 165 crore.

18.4 Accounting Standard 17 - Segment Reporting

The Bank has adopted Reserve Bank of India’s revised guidelines issued in April 2007 on Segment Reporting in terms
of which the reportable segments have been divided into Treasury, Corporate/Wholesale Banking, Retail Banking and
Other Banking Operations.

Part A: Business Segments ®. In Crore)
Business Corporate / . . Other Banking
Segments Treasury Wholesale Banking Retail Banking Operations TOTAL
Particulars 2013-14 | 2012-13 | 2013-14 | 2012-13 | 2013-14 | 2012-13 |2013-14|2012-13| 2013-14 | 2012-13
Revenue 5920.49| 5123.68| 11315.45| 11432.64| 6939.69| 5252.59| 635.39| 731.05| 24811.02| 22539.96
Result 1174.39| 868.51| 1734.10| 2153.09| 1088.07| 478.00| (40.71)| 208.56| 3955.85| 3708.16
Unallocated 4205  109.67
Income
Unallocated 0.66 0.82
Expenses
Operating Profit/ 3997.24| 3817.01
Loss
Income Taxes 241.30 180.25
Provisions & 3154.20| 3069.53
Contingencies
Extraordinary
. - - 0 0
profit / loss
Net Profit 601.74 567.23
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets |79223.62|68019.27| 124196.28| 110964.95|69592.08| 63752.33| 151.36| 144.36| 273163.34| 242880.91
Unallocated 174150 1775.12
Assets
Total assets 274904.84| 244656.03
fii%ﬂ?ﬁg; 73709.99|63416.49| 116811.63| 104633.60| 67731.10| 62624.91| 109.38| 51.79| 258362.10| 230726.79
Unallocated 372.55|  471.86
Liabilities
Total Liabilities 258734.65| 231198.65

[N
[$)]
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29l FaureEta A

2013-14 | 201213 | 2013-14 | 2012-13 | 2013-14 | 2012-13
B 2374508 | 21398.28 1108.00 1251.35 | 24853.08 | 22649.63
aferat 252071.04 | 222801.18 | 22633.80 | 21854.85 | 274904.84 | 244656.03
18.5 T@ichd Ak 18 - HE12d TSt Tehe TehrTuT

HaTa uTfea o 0 o e o 91 37 Haier

1 T e 1. uftega am A%

2. sfewmum d%
2 | erqefiEt HIE T
3 | wga: fefid e Zfoear STty S (FEfmn) Tes

et I | 9T 193.20 FHUE 1 (A (Aehan (43 79 193.20 F8)

4. | UHE Y= Ugn U

? M CECiE) RHAE* A (F.) (2013-14)

1 sft ww. Rz 3 9 ey R 27,28,800.00
2 ft wHFHa IAYE HrATeT R 7,08,103.00
3 ot T gt w =t FruTers A3 22,26,787.00
4, oft 31qa AT EIREICEACEN 9,37,404.00

TRefH | I F T, A I, G AT Hiede MY, T2t A S i Gt aman M § |
18.6 AWIeH= U 20 - Yfe I8 3

TreRuT AEieh Wk 20 - Ui IR 3 2013-14 2012-13
Sfepret TRERET & {5 % o= 3uere o9 (%, HUST A ) 601.74 567.22
I sita gt e it gen 99,44,71502 |  80,18,73,155
T q91 A fhU gU FfT IR 31 %.6.05 z.7.07
I TR I e %.10.00 £.10.00

18.7 A@iehd UTHek 21 - WHTeRa Taredier ferawuT (Huwus)

=feh BT I W =8 8, et TRt formiter fereor & geqfd Sterges =d aoeh T |

18.8 Tk Uk 22 : 3T W ol oh [T eAiehT

9 & S, dF 3 £.133 HUS F AT B 27T (et o i el 2 371 W %.399.33 FAg) i e & foran
21 ¥ % TH %.270.93 FAS F a1 (gt e X 37 2 (Fd ad &t i 2 331 5. 230.49 FIE W) |
SATETI B AT 311X IFTH Bt T 7al & &7 H STe-3TerT fyawor fread faan mar g:

(BFTTH)

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
e W geIE™ 1514.41 334.78
3Ed MW W Geoed 17.01 16.60
FHH=r A9 & U graee 140.31 109.80
qEEd & o graue 11.74 10.22
T He A o I gaee 342.85
3 & 9 T2 it 1010.42
ety sTerfaat 252.14
=T 7.31 0.87
T 1512.63 1783.56 120.89 351.38
frae digita 270.93 230.49

[
U
oy
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Part B - Geographic segments . In Crore)
Domestic International Total
2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13
Revenue 23745.08 21398.28 1108.00 1251.35 24853.08 22649.63
Assets 252271.04| 222801.18 22633.80 21854.85| 274904.84, 244656.03

18.5 Accounting Standard 18- Related Party Disclosures

Names of the related parties and their relationship with the Bank

1 Associates Pandyan Grama Bank
Odisha Gramya Bank
2 Subsidiaries None

3 Jointly controlled entity
(Joint Venture)

India International Bank (Malaysia) Bhd.
Investment in equity shares . 193.20 crore (maximum investment %. 193.20

crore)
4. Key Management Personnel

Sl. Name Designation Remuneration*

No. Amount R.) (2013-14)
1. Shri M. Narendra Chairman & Managing Director 27,28,800.00
2. Shri A.K. Bansal Ex-Executive Director 7,08,103.00
3. Shri A.D.M. Chavali Executive Director 22,26,787.00
4, Shri.Atul Agarwal Executive Director 9,37,404.00

*

arrears and gratuity arrears.
18.6 Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings per Share

Remuneration Includes salary & allowances, salary arrears, performance incentives, leave encashment

Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
Net Profit after Tax available for Equity Shareholders . In Crore) 601.74 567.22
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 99,44,71,502 80,18,73,155
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share %.6.05 %.7.07
Nominal value per Equity Share %.10.00 %.10.00

18.7 Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS)

As there is no subsidiary, no consolidated financial statement is considered necessary.

18.8

Accounting Standard 22: Accounting for Taxes on Income

The Bank has accounted for reversal of Deferred Tax Liability of 3. 133 crores during the year (Previous year accounting
of DTL of %. 399.33 crore). The Bank has outstanding net Deferred Tax Liability of . 270.93 crore (Previous year
. 230.49 crore). The breakup of deferred tax assets and liabilities into major items is given below:

®. In Crore)
. 31.3.2014 31.3.2013
Particulars
DTA DTL DTA DTL
Depreciation on Investments 1514.41 334.78
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 17.01 16.60
Provision for Employee Benefits 140.31 109.80
Provision for Frauds 11.74 10.22
Provision for Restructured Advances 342.85
Carry forward losses 1010.42
Special Reserve 252.14
Others 7.31 0.87
Total 1512.63 1783.56 120.89 351.38
Net DTL 270.93 230.49

[N
[¢)]
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18.9 AWIeh= W 23 - WA WEAr3t U (Havn o foTu Afena faier feeruil & &0 o s
<t st e T €, WA ferelte feor siervEe e A T |
18.10 RAWieha W 26 - 3T =t
% & [ STIATT itedeR B WE d TR e T € o1k 7 U G orafy | i gan g | o ST # A
e & RIS =0 919 e SfE o 37fware 391 @ A 38 ov-g1f~ Wia & Heifea = gfief & genfa fepan w2
18.11 TI@IehA WIHeh 27 - G STW W T&al i (o tar RutfeT
TR # &R 5% 7 (35% T & W) S A% Fetan (40%) 3 3G T (25%) ¥ W U W I W @R (5
g 1 o fam, et & S d% 3 16.04.2010 Fi W 3uH & U Aedy SR Fa1 79 W sa9 S 13.08.2010
& e 3fUgan ST S (FRAfYTan) sREs (SA33Mgalu) 7™ & Fetfyran & wefuq fahar wan fordt gifeed goft 8 wramgam

500 foreit | 3o gAR b 1 fRER & 35% A TR 105 et | S S ot Faim gsft 500 fafer wamgam 2 |
39 gAY gSft § gAR & = 75 35% - 112.000 et TaReiR ¢ |

31.03.2014 @ gR ¥ = I WA 10 THARHAR TlEa 11200000 T & o £.193.20 g g fwam &, foresw g
T 112.000 foll THARSIR a9 @ | 39 Ha 39 4 11.07.2012 1 9RemeH & 5T |

18.12 TEeh |k 28 - AT T TStk AT

S BT R ST SMfell Bt “BIARE ST HAT T 8 ST T TS ZR TR TH 28 % TR WA 78R Fohedd
Y STgAT T €| TS oh HAAR 9o 1 fepet oft 3rered onfie 1 affer A g€ @ |

18.13 TR Wk 29 - 3MThITAh TITATSN AT TR RN o I graen

T G § AT A ATHR T g S e 1 Sues T W e e T g |
19. Iferia Fehetehtur
19.1.  SHT3A, AFUWT, SURT F 3T eh AT Rl S ehTuT

19.1.1. STHTST T SesfiehTur (5. FU H)
2013-14 2012-13
ot a2 SRl @i et ST 27282 28794
% F 1 S 3 T A AT A St 6t se w gfea 12.41 14.24
19.1.2 3THT ST hieh{uT (SUR TEFAUTSR Sea=ll died) (®. FUT ¥)
2013-14 2012-13
ot a2 SUNEAlS S Y& Het ST 31930.22 27384
% % ot STUHT Fi T § <t T2 IURBArS i T AT Hr FiwTT 13.84% 12.92%
19.1.3. THHUISR T ShesiiehiUT (SUT 3R {Ha9T TeuisR) (v. FUT H)
2013-14 2012-13
9 a2 SuRAleH / TTEH ol ot TS 33442.57 27743
% ZT SYRHAI3T / FTEH B Hol THIUISR 1 qorT § 19 I IYRHAH / TEH 12.86% 12.97%
T TS T Fierera
19.1.4 STSieh MRS T FesiiehTur (. g H)
2013-14 2012-13
I=d TR 3SE @Al § F-Gq HeT THITsR 939.56 749.56
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A% Z
Accounting Standard 23 - Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements

As there is no subsidiary, no consolidated financial statement is considered necessary.

18.10 Accounting Standard 26 - Intangible Assets

18.11

The application software in use in the Bank has been developed in-house and has evolved over a period of time. Hence,
the costs of software is essentially part of Bank’s operational expenses like wages etc. and as such are charged to the
respective heads of expenditure in the Profit and Loss Account.

Accounting Standard 27 - Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures

Our Bank (with 35% share) has floated a Joint Venture at Malaysia along with Bank of Baroda (40%) and Andhra Bank
(25%). Bank Negara, the Central Bank of Malaysia, issued the license to the Joint Venture on 16.04.2010. The Joint
Venture was incorporated at Malaysia on 13.08.2010 by name INDIA INTERNATIONAL BANK (MALAYSIA) BHD (lIBM).
IIBM has an Authorised Capital of MYR 500 Mio. The Joint Venture’s Assigned Capital is MYR 320 Mio. Our Bank’s share
in the Assigned up Capital is 35% - MYR112.000 Mio.

As on 31.03.2014, Bank has paid . 193.20 crore towards 11200000 shares of MYR 10 each aggregating to MYR 112.00
Mio. The Joint Venture has commenced operations on 11.07.2012.

18.12 Accounting Standard 28 - Impairment of Assets

Fixed Assets owned by the Bank are treated as ‘Corporate Assets’ and are not ‘Cash Generating Units’ as defined by
AS28 issued by ICAI. In the opinion of the Management, there is no impairment of any of the Fixed Assets of the Bank.

18.13 Accounting Standard 29 - Provision for Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

The guidelines issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India in this respect have been incorporated at the
appropriate places.

19  Additional Disclosures
19.1 Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs
19.1.1 Concentration of Deposits . In Crore)
2013-14 2012-13
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 27282 28794
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest deposits to Total Deposits of the Bank 12.41 14.24
19.1.2 Concentration of Advances (Credit Exposure including derivatives) . In Crore)
2013-14 2012-13
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 31930.22 27384
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the Bank 13.84% 12.92%
19.1.3 Concentration of Exposures (Credit and Investment exposure) . In Crore)
2013-14 2012-13
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 33442.57 27743
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ customers to Total Exposure of
12.86% 12.27%
the Bank on borrowers/ customers
19.1.4 Concentration of NPAs ®. In Crore)
2013-14 2012-13
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 939.56 749.56




Y
19.1.5 YT -aR 3Sich AT AT (5. HUE )
et AR g 7
4 & st e
’ EaR LG
2013-14 2012-13
1 Y 7 graf~d farafear 4.01 3.34
2 FIT (&, T, T 3 92 6.29 5.68
3 gamd 3.27 3.89
4 Jaferdes F0T 3.07 1.67
19.2 3TSih ATRAAT T HoreT T (w.FU H)
Terarur 2013-14 2012-13
01 3Tde 2013 T Tehe 3FTsish ST (FRIF I9) 6607.96 3920.07
% & S Haef (7 3rsfes smfia) 6902.40 5600.61
3Y-T (37) 13510.36 9520.68
‘EIETIf :
13997 994.19 640.43
ii.axg?w“ (399 T T Wl 31T TSRS TE i faeht qfgd § 9 it 78 202172 630,04
fer)
1ii. Tt & ¥ 922 @ A T 1413.81 1513.13
1v. W il § Sfeafiad i St ae2 Wi § STeft T8 WA 60.16 129.12
3Y-T (37) 4489.88 2912.72
31-03-2014 o foTT Tehet S7sish TN (FHTA TH) (37-37) 9020.48 6607.96
19.3. Tereeft smiaai, arsien amlaat AR e (T.HAE )
Terarur 2013-14 2012-13
Fd anfAr 22633.80 21854.85
FeA TSIk ST 1182.11 987.25
F Tored 1108.00 1002.37

19.4 T U 3T greAoa wEdiet (Reht AEieh-UTeuet oh ITEN G TeRaT ST 3TaTer )

g wadtet st A
3eftar Torqeft
NS NS
19.5 o9 & I -1 ok [T TeRT 7T QTaren=il skt |T=T (F9T el H)
2013-14 2012-13
3T X & foTT grae (fae) 241.30 180.25
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19.1.5 Sector wise NPAs

Sl. Sector Percentage of _NPAs to Total
No. Advances in that Sector
2013-14 2012-13
1 Agriculture & allied activities 4.01 3.34
2 Industry (Micro & small, Medium and Large) 6.29 5.68
3 Services 3.27 3.89
4 Personal Loans 3.07 1.67
19.2 MOVEMENT OF NPAs . In Crore)
Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
Gross NPAs as on 1%t April (Opening Balance) 6607.96 3920.07
Additions (Fresh NPAs) during the year 6902.40 5600.61
Sub-total (A) 13510.36 9520.68
Less:-
i. Upgradations 994.19 640.43
ii. ilj]iclz:c\j/iirgi]e:a(;)(tccz)llf;rg Lr)ecoveries made from upgraded accounts and 2021.72 630.04
iii. Technical Write-offs 1413.81 1513.13
iv. Write offs other than those under (jii) above 60.16 129.12
Sub-total (B) 4489.88 2912.72
Gross NPAs as on 31t March (closing balance) (A-B) 9020.48 6607.96
19.3 OVERSEAS ASSETS, NPAs AND REVENUE . In Crore)
Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
Total Assets 22633.80 21854.85
Total NPAs 1182.11 987.25
Total Revenue 1108.00 1002.37
19.4 Off-Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms)
Name of the SPV sponsored
Domestic Overseas
NIL NIL
19.5 Amount of provisions made for Income Tax during the year: ®. In Crore)
2013-14 2012-13
Provision for Income Tax (net) 241.30 180.25
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19.6 YTGEITT 3T SATRTTTHRATY. - AAT-TEAT Terawur (F9T Sl H)
o9 9 g1 Wi § =7 3t o ded ST T e 31 SHTsharsi’ i STeHT-3TenT et
2013-14 2012-13

a9 W g™ & forg yraem 45353 175.10
3TSieh 31 & forw yrarems 2210.80 2198.82
e STl & for yraem 246.13 259.18
3T L o FoTT WTae (ST e o Fufe X 9feed) 241.30 180.25
3T JTaYT d TR SHhard 243.74 436.43
HA 3395.50 3249.78
19.7 3R YTaerm= (T HAET H)

fereroy 2013-14 2012-13
(%) | 3tfRer yrae @ | R vy 171.36 171.36
(@) | dEr-as | foF MU 31fReR grae St wmE g NS
(M | FE-ad & < et T W (s S st Tafd) 171.36 Nil
() | 3tfReR gy @i | gfawry = 171.36
19.8 TYTeRTIET ST TeheterTur
19.8.1 ITEeRT St TITERTEA
() | 7 & IRY # <ifea W& et & g 203
(@) | o % S g It @ g 6171
(M | 7o & S et 7 e #t g 6208
(=) | af it g W eAfed W@ e wt e 166
19.8.2 ST AreRUTer gRT UTRA TRt T 3ferf~ofer
(F) | af & IRy ® FEifaq 7 e 7 affuiar &t e A
(@) | o % ST AT AT R WA foe T sAffutar g 0
(M) | & & S Fraffad # 7E st # g 0
() | TTE R STEAP( o HRUT HAid gU AfAfuia &t He 0
(¥) | a9 & 3id # sraffeaa 7 T T yfufyotar &t gen g
19.8.3 ehid YATET UF (TeAHL)
e o I R T T FHI STeaTEe v A
31.03.2014 Bt FHET T THR STLAEA T 2
fagiia foxfta yama I
ot &1 | fuffa foxfta arfoa I

af 2009-10 & <, SF T TH THIc STAEH HeHlT T S BT 6 Fehich I I T F 12% HT AT HHARCIR
T STXETVT f3RT ST e 36 T T 37t bt gsft et o &9  ufkafa fopam S qo fo Hemusm #it 12% & =-aq

T R SR F & o 3t S ag smeft aod R & sFmiea yra gt |

IR o Hf 5% A 1 U T gt 3RS & St T TSIk SN I & HRoT, g6 uwelt 311.613 firRn it sifafa

YT ot e FTA e, Ffh a5 6 AT % S SFIH B YA L |
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19.6 Provisions and Contingencies - Break-up ®. In Crore)

Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

2013-14 2012-13
Provisions for depreciation on Investment 453.53 175.10
Provision towards NPA 2210.80 2198.82
Provision towards Standard Assets 246.13 259.18
Provision made towards Income Tax (including Deferred Tax & Wealth Tax) 241.30 180.25
Other Provision and Contingencies 243.74 436.43
Total 3395.50 3249.78
19.7 Floating Provisions . In Crore)
Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
(@) | Opening balance in the floating provisions account 171.36 171.36
(b) | Quantum of floating provisions made in the accounting year Nil Nil
(c) | Amount of draw down made during the accounting year
(Transferred to Counter Cyclical Buffer) 171.36 Nil
(d) | Closing balance in the floating provisions account Nil 171.36
19.8 Disclosure of complaints
19.8.1 Customer Complaints
(@) | No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 203
(b) | No. of complaints received during the year 6171
(c) | No. of complaints redressed during the year 6208
(d) | No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 166
19.8.2 Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman
(@) | No. of unimplemented Awards at the beginning of the year Nil
(b) | No. of Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsmen during the year 0
(c) | No. of Awards implemented during the year 0
(d) | No. of Awards lapsed due to non acceptance by customer 0
(e) | No. of unimplemented Awards at the end of the year Nil
19.8.3 Letters of Comfort (LoC)
Letters of Comfort issued during the year Nil
Letters of Comfort outstanding as on 31.3.2014 2
Assessed financial impact Nil
Cumulative Assessed Financial Obligation Nil

During the year 2009-10, the Bank has issued a Letter of Comfort (LOC) undertaking to maintain a minimum CRAR of
12% in respect of Bangkok branch and to arrange to convert retained earnings to capital funds and/ or infuse further
capital in order to restore the CRAR to a minimum of 12% subject to approval from RBI.

In the worst case scenario of the entire textile exposure of the branch becoming NPA, we may have to make additional
provision to the extent of THB 311.613 mio being unsecured portion of standard textile advances. If this contingency
arises, there would be no additional capital to be remitted as existing reserves are adequate to cover the unsecured
amount.

()
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I Tt ST TR I 1, ST ThH Bl AT B o FoTT A STRfRaferai vt giet o et atfafie gsft &t gwor

F FY STETIHAT & B |

af 2010-11 3 A S = Feh A TATA 3 T H THIN STV T S e o7 | S e 35 & 371 Arfiad &
eI |ed sear fevme d (FARNET) a¥Es Hi AR yam F % o, =R o o1 amed § o Foft o7ufer &,
T ga T 3R YA BT 5 T FEf °, i uiEe R g gt gafven & S, b s

ifefeEt i TS S S AT AR |

% AT AATIET i ST R T T R STYETHA T B S g e @ 26 yae it uHargerR 320 e % 35 gfoe
I, THATER 112.000 ot T F907 FTAT S 1 §HR S 3 TSR 112.000 foret =it st o ferw 193,20, 10,398/ w94t

1 0T AR |
19.9 dHRTIITT FRIER (T H)
s:;q 3 F F&I* 2013-14 2012-13
1 Sfta sftar wifafaat & a== & fo 7.88 7.53
2 T-Sita sftar qiferf&= & a= & forg 11.64 10.44
3 A e Il i a9 o T 0.30 0.14
4 3 (T )
FA 19.82 18.11
e g T8 T8 ST HRIGR & Ty § 9T Y[eh / TREfEE |
19.10 ATl U@ 922 W@ A T Wrat sl Tere= (5.5 )
Terercur 2013-14 2012-13
1 319 F R F IR bt/ ey &9 9 922 @I T T Wl 1 IR o 3188.37 2035.63
SiE: o & < At / eyl €9 9 922 @ STt T @ 1413.81 1513.13
IU-STE (37) 4602.18 3548.76
?gfz%ﬁmﬁ/ﬁ%@fmﬁa@@ﬁaﬁmaﬁﬁaﬁ%ﬁmﬁﬁaw 106455 360.39
31 9 = g 9w (37) - (3M) 3537.63 3188.37

19.11 JTaeiaeniur § Ha1ad Fehe Teniur =
19.12 3uR Fihice @Y (Hidtum) T
20 TEAATCHE 3ThS

e adf & TSl &1, STaf el STavas THe T, [F: Tfe / Yefaftad faher )
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During the year 2010-11, the Bank has issued a letter of comfort favoring Bank Negara Malaysia. The Bank in association
with other JV partners will provide support to India International Bank (Malaysia) Bhd in funding, business and other
matters as and when required and ensure that it complies with the requirements of the Malaysian Laws, Regulations and

Policies in the conduct of its business operations and management.

The financial impact for the letter of undertaking issued to Bank Negara Malaysia is remittance of our share of 35% of the
paid up capital of MYR 320 mio ie. MYR 112.000 mio. Our Bank has remitted INR 193,20,10,398/- towards the capital of

MYR 112.000 mio.

19.9 Bancassurance Business . In Crore)
S No | Nature of income* 2013-14 2012-13
1 For selling Life Insurance Policies 7.88 7.53
2 For selling Non Life Insurance Policies 11.64 10.44
3 For Selling Mutual Fund products 0.30 0.14
4 Others (specify) - -

Total 19.82 18.11
*Fees/Remuneration received in respect of the Bancassurance Business undertaken by the Bank.

19.10 Movement of Technical Write off . In Crore)
Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
Opening Balance of Technical / Prudential Write off as on 15t April 3188.37 2035.63
Add: Technical / Prudential Write offs during the year 1413.81 1513.13
Sub-total (A) 4602.18 3548.76
Iaifisn:gljﬁgc;\g:e(sé )made from previously Technical / Prudential written off accounts 1064.55 360.39
Closing Balance as on 31t March (A-B) 3537.63 3188.37

19.11 Disclosures relating to Securitisation NIL
19.12 Credit Default Swaps (CDS) NIL
20 Comparative Figures

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.
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INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK
Cash Flow Statement . in ‘000s
Year ended Year ended

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31.03.2014 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit 60174 11 5672277
Adjustments for :
Amortisation of HTM Investments 812578 57 51 62
Loss on Revaluation of Investments 1046743 68 34 69
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 1413160 12659 20
Profit / Loss on Sale of Assets - 18684 -16163
Transfer from Reserves -3 60 61 54 -
Provision for taxes 2412991 1802530
Provision for NPAs 22107979 21874349
Provision for Standard Assets 2461343 25917 61
Depreciation on Investments 46543 44 17509 80
Provision for Other Items 2318371 4 47 82 05
Interest Paid on Tier Il Interest 6078135 6070312
Increase / (Decrease) in Deposits 258 40 73 86 237011716
Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings 113317 60 -29098 71
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Liabilities & Provisions 56207 54 -180 1566
(Increase) / Decrease in Investments -89 98 48 91 -59 79 08 55
(Increase) / Decrease in Advances -179 66 28 47 -222 74 92 82
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets -1398 00 54 1716962
Direct Taxes Paid -4 65 00 00 -4 29 47 55
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  (A) 327803 26 -6 06 88 49
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale / disposal of Fixed Assets 18684 52382
Purchase of Fixed Assets 2215778 -2332023
Investment in Associates - 68946 -1733425
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (B) -2 26 60 39 -4 01 30 66
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds of Equity Share Issue 15 98 04 60 10 00 00 00
Redemption of Tier Il Bonds -2.000000
Interest Paid on Tier Il Capital -6 04 62 06 -577 6562
Dividend Paid -94 49 61 -416 8310
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 6 98 92 92 55128
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A) +(B) + (C) 37503579 -10 02 67 87
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
Cash & Balances with RBI 98 37 82 50 1019891 24
Balances with Banks & Money at Call 54 20 59 49 6062 18 62
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
Cash & Balances with RBI 117 3509 75 98 37 82 50
Balances with Banks & Money at Call 7273 68 03 54 20 59 49
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 37503579 -10 02 67 87

This Statement has been made prepared in accordance with Indirect Method.
[S. Chockalingam]
General Manager & CFO
AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE

[M.Narendra]
Chairman & Managing Director (CEO)

We, the undersigned Statutory Central Auditors of Indian Overseas Bank have verified the above Cash Flow Statement of the Bank for the
year ended 31.03.2014 . The Statement has been prepared in accordance with the requirement of Clause 32 , of the Listing agreement with
the Stock Exchange and is based on and in agreement with the corresponding Profit and Loss Account and the Balance Sheet of the Bank,

covered by our report of even date to The President of India .

For Badari, Madhusudhan & Srinivasan For B.Thiagarajan & CO
FRN 005389S FRN 004371S

(N. SRINIVASAN) (B. THIAGARAJAN)
Partner, M.No. 027887 Partner, M.No.018270
For PR.Mehra & CO For Dass Khanna & CO
FRN 000051N FRN 000402N
(SWINDER KUMAR) (RAKESH SONI)
Partner, M.No. 014211 Partner, M.No. 083142

Place: Chennai
Date: 29.04.2014

For Sankar & Moorthy
FRN 003575S

(V.C. JAMES)

Partner, M.No.22565

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Reserve Bank of India issues guidelines on Capital Adequacy
framework from time to time. As per Reserve Bank of India
guidelines on New Capital Adequacy Framework, Bank has
implemented the Basel Il capital regulation, w.e.f April 1, 2013.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk taking is an integral part of the banking business. Banks
assume various types of risks in its activities while providing
different kinds of services based on its risk appetite. Each
transaction that the Bank undertakes changes the risk profile
of the Bank. In the normal course of business, a bank is
exposed to various risks including Credit Risk, Market Risk and
Operational Risk. The objective of risk management is not to
prohibit or prevent risk taking activity, but to ensure that the risks
are consciously taken with full knowledge, clear purpose and
understanding so that it can be measured and mitigated. With
a view to managing various risks efficiently and strengthening its
risk management systems, the bank has put in place various risk
management measures and practices which includes policies,
tools, techniques, monitoring mechanism and management
information systems (MIS).

The Bank, on a continuous basis, aims at enhancing and
maximizing the shareholder values through achieving appropriate
trade-off between risks and returns. The Bank’s risk management
objectives broadly cover proper identification, measurement,
monitoring, control and mitigation of the risks with a view to
enunciate the bank’s overall risk philosophy. The risk management
strategy adopted by the bank is based on an understanding of risks
and the level of risk appetite of the bank. Bank’s risk appetite is
demonstrated through prescription of risk limits in various policies
relating to risk management.

The bank has set up appropriate risk management organization
structure in the bank. Risk Management Committee of the
Board (RMCB), a sub-committee of the Board, is constituted
which is responsible for management of credit risk, market
risk, operational risk and other risks in the Bank. The bank has
also constituted internal risk management committees namely
Credit Policy Committee (CPC) for managing credit risk, Asset
Liability Management Committee (ALCO) for managing market
risk and Operational Risk Management Committee for managing
operational risk.

A full-fledged Risk Management department is functioning at the
Bank’s Central Office, independent of the business departments
for implementing best risk management systems and practices
in the bank. A Chief Risk Officer in the rank of General Manager
of the bank is in charge of the department who is responsible
for overall supervision on risk management in the bank. The
Mid-Office in Risk Management and Credit Support Services
Dept. also carry out the risk management functions and monitor
the adherence/compliance to policies, risk limit framework
and internal approvals. Risk Managers have been placed at
Regional Offices. Apart from coordinating with Risk Management
Department, Central Office for submission of various MIS, they
participate in Regional Level Credit Approval Committee.

The bank had implemented the New Capital Adequacy
Framework (Basel-Il) with effect from 31.03.2008 and is complying
with the various guidelines issued by RBI from time to time.
Basel Ill guidelines have been introduced from 01.04.2013, and
bank is maintaining capital as per the guidelines. As per RBI's
requirement, the Bank has put in place a Board approved Policy
on Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) to
address second pillar requirements. The ICAAP policy framework
aims at assessing all material risks to which the bank is exposed
over and above the regulatory prescriptions under the first

N %

A

pillar risks, and ensuring adequate capital structure to meet the
requirements on an ongoing basis.

The bank has formulated a “Stress Testing framework” to assess
the potential vulnerability of the organization to exceptional
but plausible events. Stress testing and scenario analysis,
particularly in respect of the bank’s material risk exposure, enable
identification of potential risks inherent in a portfolio at the time
of economic recession and accordingly take suitable steps to
address the same. In accordance with the policy prescriptions,
the bank carries out various stress tests on bank’s balance sheet
periodically and specific portfolios and places the reports to
ALCO / RMCB / Board. Reserve Bank of India has issued fresh
guidelines on Stress Testing on 02.12.2013 to be effective from
01.04.2014.

Board approved Business Continuity Plan and Disaster
Recovery plan are in place. The 3 way data centers have been
implemented to facilitate Zero data loss, Multiple MPLS-VPN high
bandwidth connections among the 3 data Centres and Central,
Dual connectivity from different alternate service providers and
alternate media for branches have been implemented. Firewall
and Intrusion detection systems have been implemented. IS
Security Department has been established to monitor and
analyze the information security incidents and to take correctives
steps. IS Audit section takes care of the periodical Information
Systems Audit of the Bank’s departments and branches. Regular
DR drills are being conducted every quarter. To ensure Network
security, periodical Vulnerability assessment and Penetration
testing exercises are being conducted.

The Reserve Bank of India had issued final guidelines on Liquidity
Risk Management effective from end March 2013. The guidelines
cover preparation of liquidity returns consolidated for the bank
as a whole and with separate data for domestic operation in
domestic currency and foreign currency, combined Indian
operations on a fortnightly basis, liquidity return for overseas
operations country wise on monthly basis and Liquidity Return for
Global Operation on quarterly basis. The bank has put in place a
system to generate reports as above and submitted the data to
RBI on trial basis as on June 2013 as required.

Further, the Reserve Bank of India has issued guidelines on
implementation of Basel Il capital regulations in India to be
implemented in phased manner effective from April 1, 2013 with
Banks disclosing Basel lll capital ratios from the quarter ended June
30, 2013. Bank is complying with the same as per the guidelines.

In addition to the existing Pillar 3 guidelines of RBI and also the
new disclosure guidelines issued by RBI vide its Circular DBOD
No BP BC 98/21.06.201/2012-13 dated 28.05.2013, the third pillar
also refers to market discipline. The purpose of market discipline is
to complement the minimum capital requirements detailed under
Pillar 1 and the supervisory review process detailed under Pillar
2. In this context and as guided by RBI a set of disclosure (both
qualitative and quantitative) are published in DF 1 to 11 (annexed)
with regard to risk management in the bank, which will enable
market participants to assess key pieces of information on the (a)
scope of application (DF-1), (b) Capital Adequacy (DF-2), (c) Credit
Risk: General Disclosures for all banks (DF-3), (d) Credit Risk:
Disclosures for Portfolios subject to the Standardised Approach
(DF-4), (e) Credit Risk Mitigation: Disclosures for Standardised
Approaches (DF-5), (f) Securitisation Exposures: Disclosure for
Standardised Approach (DF-6), (g) Market Risk in Trading Book
(DF-7), (h) Operational Risk (DF-8), (i) Interest Rate Risk in the
Banking Book (IRRBB) (DF-9), (j) General Disclosure for Exposures
Related to Counter Party Credit Risk (DF-10) and (k) Composition
of Capital (DF 11). This would also provide necessary information
to the market participants to evaluate the performance of the bank
in various parameters.
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1. Scope of Application and Capital Adequacy

TABLE DF -1: Scope of application

Name of the Banking Group to which the frame work applies
(i) AQualitative Disclosures

Name of Whether the entity Whether the entity Explain the | Explain the reasons
) is included under . is included under | Explain the reasons for if consolidated
the Entity / ; Explain the method ; .
Country of accountlng SCOPe |~ ¢ - onsolidation regulatory' scope methpd qf difference in under only one
Incorporation of Consolidation of Consolidation | consolidation | the method of of the scopes of
P (yes / no) (yes/ no) consolidation consolidation

Bank does not belong to any group
Not applicable

a. List of group entities considered for consolidation

b. List of Group entities not considered for consolidation both under the accounting and regulatory scope of
consolidation

Name of Principal Total Balance Sheet % of the Regulatory treatment Total Balance Sheet
the Entity / activity Equity (as stated in the bank’s of the Bank’s assets (as stated in the
Country of of the accounting balance holding in the investments in the accounting balance

Incorporation entity sheet of the legal entity) total equity capital instruments of | sheet of the legal entity)
the entity

Bank does not belong to any group
Not applicable

ii. Quantitative Disclosures:
c. List of Group entities considered for consolidation

Name of the Entity / . - Total Balance Sheet Equity (as Total Balance Sheet assets (as
Country of Incorporation Principal eﬁitt'vny ofthe stated in the accounting balance | stated in the accounting balance
(as indicated in (i)a. above) Y sheet of the legal entity) sheet of the legal entity)

Not applicable

d. The aggregate amount of capital deficiencies in all subsidiaries which are not included in the regulatory scope of
consolidation i.e., that are deducted:

Name of the Principal activity Total Balance Sheet Equity (as | % of the bank’s | Capital deficiencies
Subsidiaries / Country of the entity stated in the accounting balance | holding in the
of Incorporation sheet of the legal entity) total equity

Not applicable

e. The aggregate amounts (e.g. current book value) of the Bank’s total interests in insurance entities, which are risk

weighted:
Name of the insurance Principal Total Balance Sheet % of the bank’s Quantitative impact on
entiites / Country of activity of the Equity (as stated in the holding in the total | regulatory capital of using risk
Incorporation entity accounting balance sheet | equity/ proportion of | weighting method vs. using
of the legal entity) voting power the full deduction method

Not applicable

f.  Anyrestrictions orimpediments on transfer of funds or regulatory capital within the Banking Group: Not applicable

Table DF - 2: Capital Adequacy
Qualitative disclosures:

Banks in India implemented capital adequacy measures in  In line with the guidelines issued by the RBI the bank was
April 1992 based on the capital adequacy framework (Basel-)  compliant with the relevant guidelines.

issued by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision
(BCBS) and the guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) from time to time. Such a measure was taken in order
to strengthen the capital base of banks and at the same time
to make it compliant with the international best practices in
the matter of maintaining capital adequacy. Initially the Basel
framework addressed the capital for credit risk, which was
subsequently amended to include capital for market risk.

Subsequently, the BCBS released the “International
Convergence of Capital Measurement and Capital
Standards: A Revised Framework” on June 26, 2004. The
Revised Framework was updated in November 2005 to
include trading activities and the treatment of double default
effects and a comprehensive version of the framework was
issued in June 2006. Based on these guidelines and to
have consistency and to be in harmony with international
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standards, the RBI has issued guidelines on 27th April 2007
and subsequent amendments on implementation of the New
Capital Adequacy (Basel-Il) Framework from time to time.

In line with the RBI guidelines, the Bank had migrated to the
revised (Basel-ll) framework from 31.3.2008 and continues
to be compliant with the requirements of Basel-Il framework.
Basel Ill guidelines have been introduced from 01.04.2013,
and bank is maintaining capital as per the guidelines

Basel-ll Framework provides a range of options for
determining the capital requirements for credit risk, market
risk and operational risk. The Framework allows banks and
supervisors to select approaches that are most appropriate
for their operations and financial markets. In accordance with
the RBI's requirements, the Bank has adopted Standardised
Approach (SA) for credit risk, Standardised Measurement
Method (SMM) for market risks and Basic Indicator Approach
(BIA) for Operational Risk to compute capital. The Bank is
maintaining capital for Credit, Market and Operational Risk in
line with the RBI guidelines

The Bank has computed capital for Capital Risk, Market
Risk and Operational Risk as per the prescribed guidelines.
Credit risk capital computation is done on borrower basis
or facility type basis as per the segmentation advised in the
RBI guidelines. For this purpose, the Bank has developed
in-house software, which enables computation of capital
for credit risk of the advances portfolio and generation of
the requisite reports at the branches, Regional Offices and
Central Office level. Borrower classification is based on
the GL code, scheme code and BSR activity code. System
picks the eligible security details from CBS advance master.
System also identifies eligible guarantees based on GL
code/activity codes. Undrawn amount of a Term Loan limit is
computed based on the stage release details available in the
CBS package. Other undrawn amount for FB and NFB limits
are also computed by the system.

Necessary training has been imparted to the field staff
periodically on various aspects of capital computation and

A

A

N %

A

close interactions held with the coordinators at Regional
Offices, to ensure accuracy and adequacy of data in capital
computation. Risk Managers are placed at all Regional
Offices for checking the data and ensuring accuracy and
consistency of data.

Banks generally use a number of techniques to mitigate the
credit risk to which they are exposed. The Bank has also
used the Credit Risk Mitigation in computation of capital for
credit risk in order to get capital relief. A well articulated policy
on Collateral Management and Credit Risk Mitigation duly
approved by the bank’s Board is put in place. The Bank has
followed the RBI guidelines in force to arrive at the credit risk
mitigation, risk weighted assets, eligible capital and capital to
risk weighted assets ratio (CRAR).

Reserve Bank of India has prescribed that Banks are required
to maintain a minimum capital to risk weighted assets ratio
(CRAR) of 9% on an ongoing basis, as against 8% prescribed
in the Basel document.

The Bank has put in place a policy on Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and the framework
in consideration of the relevant risk factors of the bank as
a measure towards Pillar 2 requirements of the revised
framework commensurate with the bank’s overall risk profile.
In framing the policy the bank has taken into consideration
the requirements prescribed by the RBI in their guidelines
and bank’s risk appetite including overseas operations where
ever applicable / relevant.

As regards the adequacy of capital to support the future
activities, the bank draws assessment of capital requirements
periodically taking into account future growth of business.
The surplus CRAR maintained by the bank acts as a buffer to
support the future activities. Moreover, the headroom available
to the bank in the Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital components
provides additional capital support to meet the future needs.
Thereby, the capital risk of the bank is adequately addressed.

Quantitative disclosures Amount in . Crore
a) Capital requirements for credit risk
. Portfolios subject to standardised approach 166095.40
. Securitisation exposures Nil
b) Capital requirements for market risk:
»  Standardised duration approach
- Interest rate risk 574.49
- Foreign Exchange risk (including gold) 9.15
- Equity risk 202.38
c) Capital requirements for operational risk
. Basic indicator approach 958.27
e The Standardised Approach Not Applicable
d) Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio 7.18%
Tier 1 Capital 7.47%
Total Capital Ratio 10.78%
For the top consolidated group; and Not Applicable
*  For significant bank subsidiaries (stand alone or sub-consolidated depending on | Not Applicable
how the Framework is applied)
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Table DF-3
CREDIT RISK: GENERAL DISCLOSURES FOR ALL BANKS
Qualitative disclosures:

Credit Risk is the possibility of losses associated with
diminution in the credit quality of borrowers or counter
parties. In a Bank’s portfolio, Credit Risk arises mostly from
lending and investment activities of the Bank if a borrower
|/ counterparty is unable to meet its financial obligations to
the lender/investor. It emanates from changes in the credit
quality/worthiness of the borrowers or counter parties. Credit
risk also includes counterparty risk and country risk.

Credit rating and Appraisal Process:

The Bank manages its credit risk through continuous measuring
and monitoring of risks at obligor (borrower) and portfolio
level. The Bank has a robust internal credit rating framework
and well-established standardized credit appraisal / approval
process. Credit rating is a facilitating process that enables the
bank to assess the inherent merits and demerits of a proposal.
It is a decision enabling tool that helps the bank to take a view
on acceptability or otherwise of any credit proposal.

The rating models factor quantitative and qualitative attributes
relating to Risk components such as Industry Risk, Business
Risk, Management Risk, Financial Risk, Project risk (where
applicable) and Facility Risk etc. The data on industry risk
is regularly updated by CRISIL based on market conditions.

Credit rating as a concept has been well internalized within
the bank. As a measure of robust credit risk management
process, the bank has implemented a tiered system for
validation of credit ratings at specified levels which is
independent of credit departments, in order to draw unbiased
rating for borrowers necessary for moving to advanced
approaches. In respect of proposals falling under powers of
Bank’s Central Office, the validations of ratings are done at
Risk Management Dept. The advantage of credit rating is that
it enables to rank different proposals based on risk and do
meaningful comparison.

The bank follows a well-defined multi layered discretionary
power structure for sanction of loans and advances. Approval
Grid has been constituted at all levels covering Exceptionally
Large branch / RO / NBGM / CO for recommending fresh /
enhancement proposal to appropriate sanctioning authorities.
Specific Sanctioning Powers have been delegated to Branch
Managers. In addition to the Management Committee of the
Board (MCB), the bank has constituted three committees
such as (a) Credit Approval Committee (CAC) headed by
Chairman, (b) Head Office Level Credit Approval Committee
headed by Executive Director (HLCC-ED) and (c) Head
Office Level Credit Approval Committee headed by senior
most General Manager (HLCC-GM) with delegated powers
to consider sanction of credit proposals falling under
Central Office powers at different levels. Further, Regional
Level Credit Committees (RLCC) headed by the Regional
Head at Regional Offices and National Bank Level Credit
Committees (NBCC) at NBGM Offices have been formed with
suitable delegated power for sanction of credit proposals.
Consequently, no Executives beyond Branch Heads can
exercise any discretionary powers for sanction of credit
proposals at individual level. In all these credit approval
committees, the presence of Risk Managers (attached to
RO/NBGMO) is compulsory. For Central Office committees,
GM/DGM of Risk Management presence is compulsory to
complete the quorum.
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The new products introduced by bank are examined by the
head office level Risk Management Committee depending
upon the type of risks involved in the new product / process
before being placed to RMCB / Board for approval.

Credit Risk Management Policies

The bank has put in place a well-structured loan policy and
credit risk management policy duly approved by Board.
The policy document defines organizational structure, role
and responsibilities and processes whereby the Credit Risk
carried by the Bank can be identified, quantified and managed
within the framework that the Bank considers consistent with
its mandate and risk tolerance. Credit risk is monitored by the
bank on a bank-wide basis and compliance with the risk limits
approved by Board / RMCB is ensured. The CPC takes into
account the risk tolerance level of the Bank and accordingly
handles the issues relating to Safety, Liquidity, Prudential
Norms and Exposure limits.

The bank has taken earnest steps to put in place best credit
risk management practices in the bank. In addition to Loan
Policy and Credit Risk Management Policy, the bank has
also framed Funds and Investment Policy, Counter Party Risk
Management Policy and Country Risk Management Policy
etc., which forms integral part of monitoring of credit risk in
the bank. Besides, the bank has implemented a policy on
collateral management and credit risk mitigation which lays
down the details of securities (both prime and collateral)
normally accepted by the Bank and administration of such
securities to protect the interest of the bank. Presently, some
select securities act as mitigation against credit risk (in capital
computation), to which the bank is exposed.

Credit Monitoring/Loan Review/Credit Audit

The Credit Monitoring Department monitors the quality of
Credit portfolio, identifies problems and takes steps to correct
deficiencies. The objective of the department is to minimize
slippage of performing accounts to NPA category and also
to comply with the laid down norms and guidelines. The
department is also monitoring the accounts by segmentation
and follow up the accounts on a daily basis to minimize
slippages. Furthermore, the accounts are also monitored at
different levels of authority depending upon the size of the
exposure.

All standard borrowal accounts with credit exposure of
%. 1 crore and above are reviewed under Loan Review
Mechanism, which is essentially an off-site audit mechanism.
The credit audit is carried out in terms of Guidance Note on
Credit Risk issued by Reserve Bank of India and the Credit
Risk Management Policy of the Bank.

The credit audit covers all borrowal accounts with total
exposure of X. 5 crore and above sanctioned by any authority.
This is an ongoing exercise which helps the bank to identify
deficiencies and early warning signals of sickness/weakness
in borrowal accounts. Essentially this is an onsite audit
mechanism to prevent deterioration in the quality of advances
thereby protecting the interest of the bank. The bank also
maintains surveillance on the accounts with working capital
exposure of . 1.00 Cr and above by calling for Continuous
Surveillance statements.

Classification of restructured accounts:

The bank has followed the prudential guidelines issued
by the RBI in respect of classification and provisioning for
restructured accounts from time to time.
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Classification of Non Performing Accounts:

The bank follows the prudential guidelines of RBI for classification of NPA accounts.

N %

®. In Crore)
Quantitative Disclosures Applicability
to our Bank
a) Total gross credit risk exposures:
Fund based 142930.71
Non fund based 23120.95
b) Geographic distribution of exposures,
¢ Domestic
Fund based 161998
Non Fund based 35818
¢ Overseas
Fund based 19083
Non Fund based 4150
¢) Industry type distribution of exposures, fund based and non-fund based separately. Annexed
d) Residual contractual maturity breakdown of assets Annexed
e) Amount of NPAs (Gross)
¢ Substandard 5169.53
¢ Doubtful (D1, D2, D3) 3773.57
e Loss 77.38
f) Net NPAs 5658.12
g) NPA Ratios
¢ Gross NPAs to gross advances 4.98%
¢ Net NPAs to net advances 3.20%
h) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
¢ Opening balance 6607.96
¢ Additions 6902.40
¢ Reductions 4489.88
¢ Closing balance 9020.48
i) Movement of provisions for NPAs
¢ Opening balance 2464.51
¢ Provisions made during the period 2210.80
o Write off 1681.28
o Write back of excess provisions Nil
¢ Closing balance 2994.03
i) Amount of Non-Performing Investments 143.69
k) Amount of provisions held for non-performing investments 50.60
[) Movement of provisions for depreciation on investments
¢ Opening Balance 628.91
¢ Provisions made during the period 453.53
o Write-off / Write-back of excess provisions 86.95
¢ Closing Balance 995.49
Residual contractual Maturity break down of Assets . In Crore)
Dayi | 27D | 814D | 1528D | 29D3M | 3-6M | 6M-1Year | . f° >31to >5 years
3years Syears
9138.48 | 13145.20 | 7341.69 | 8627.97 | 24898.38 | 19004.34 | 32409.49 | 70842.31 22407.52 48648.36

Covers Gross Assets for domestic operations
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INDUSTRY WISE EXPOSURES . In Crore)
Industry Name Outstanding
Mining and quarrying 2993.77
Food Processing 1736.73
Sugar 971.49
Edible Oils and Vanaspati 661.34
Tea 39.41
Beverages and Tobacco 595.54
Cotton Textiles 3904.20
Jute Textiles 35.24
Handicraft/ Khadi (Non Priority) 225.15
Other Textiles 3054.69
Leather and Leather Products 467.26
Wood and Wood Products 669.19
Paper and Paper Products 1809.96
Petroleum (non-infra), Coal Products (non-mining) and Nuclear Fuels 1240.50
Chemicals and Chemical Products (Dyes, Paints, etc.,) 2201.56

Of which Fertilisers 105.35
Of Which Drugs and Pharmaceuticals 751.82
Of which Others 1344.39
Rubber, Plastic and their products 1099.40
Glass & Glassware 136.04
Cement and Cement Products 1518.98
Iron and Steel 10799.19
Other Metal and Metal Products 2207.33
All Engineering 5244.29
Of which Electronics 442.94
Vehicles, Vehicle Parts and Transport Equipments 3091.24
Gems and Jewellery 1029.95
Construction 2393.06
Infrastructure 24764.45
Of which Roadways 7369.56
Of which Energy 15931.91
Of which Electricity (Generation-transportation and distribution) 14706.35
Of which Telecommunications 1462.98
Other Industries 481.12
Residuary Other Advances to balance Gross Advances 107709.93
Of which Aviation Sector 1991.62
Total Loans and Advances 181081.01

Table DF-4

CREDIT RISK: DISCLOSURES FOR PORTFOLIOS
SUBJECT TO THE STANDARDISED APPROACH

Qualitative disclosures:
General Principle:

In accordance with the RBI guidelines, the Bank has adopted
Basel Ill Capital Adequacy Framework for computation of
capital for credit risk. In computation of capital, the bank has
assigned risk weight to different asset classes as prescribed
by the RBI from time to time.

External Credit Ratings:

Ratings of borrowers by External Credit Rating Agencies
(ECRA) assume importance in the light of Guidelines for

implementation of the Basel Il Capital Adequacy Framework.
Exposures on Corporates / Public Sector Enterprises/ Primary
Dealers are assigned with risk weights based on available
external ratings. For this purpose, the Reserve Bank of
India has permitted Banks to use the ratings of six domestic
ECRAs viz. Credit Analysis and Research Ltd (CARE), CRISIL
Ltd, FITCH India (renamed as India Ratings) and ICRA Ltd,
Brickworks Rating Services India Ltd and Small and Medium
Enterprises Rating Agency Ltd (SMERA)

In consideration of the above, the Bank has decided to
accept the ratings assigned by all these ECRAs for capital
relief purpose. The RBI has provided for mapping public issue
ratings on to comparable assets into banking book. However,
this particular provision has not been taken into account in
Credit Risk Capital Computation.
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The bank uses only solicited external ratings for capital
computation purpose. Borrowers at their option can approach
any one or more of the above ECRAs for their rating. External
ratings assigned fresh or reviewed during the previous 15
months are reckoned for capital computation by the bank.
Wherever a borrower possesses more than one rating from
ECRAs the guidelines prescribed by the RBI are followed
as regards to assignment of risk weight for computation of
capital.

Internal Credit Rating:

The bank has a well structured internal credit rating
mechanism to evaluate the credit risk associated with a
borrower and accordingly the systems are in place for taking
credit decision as regards the acceptability of proposals and
level of exposures and pricing. The bank has prescribed entry
level rating in case of new accounts. Accounts with ratings
below the entry level can be considered only by higher
authorities as per the delegated powers prescribed.

Presently, the internal ratings cannot be used for application
of risk weight under Standardised Approach of capital

N %

A
@N

computation. The bank takes into consideration the
borrower’s loan exposure credit ratings assigned by the
approved ECRAs while computing the capital for credit risk
under corporate and PSE segments.

In case of investment in particular issues of Corporates /
PSEs, the issue specific rating of the approved ECRAs are
reckoned and accordingly the risk weights have been applied
after a corresponding mapping to rating scale provided in RBI
guidelines.

Forthe purpose of capital computation of overseas exposures,
ratings assigned by the international rating agencies namely
Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s are used as per RBI
guidelines.

As regards the coverage of exposures in India by external
ratings as relevant for capital computation under Standardised
Approach, the process needs to be popularized among the
borrowers so as to take the benefit of capital relief available
for better-rated customers. The borrowers need to consider
the external rating as an opportunity for their business
development

Quantitative Disclosures . In Crore)
I Exposure After Mitigation | EAM covered under
Classification (EAM) External Rating Unrated
ADVANCES / INVESTMENT
Below 100% risk weight 100317.77 11636.81 88680.96
100% risk weight 107174.19 11087.56 96086.63
More than 100% risk weight 20855.99 4002.21 16853.78
Deducted 0 0 0
TOTAL 228347.95 26726.58 201621.37
OTHER ASSETS
Below 100% risk weight 24813.84 858.15 23955.70
100% risk weight 6774.41 0 6774.41
More than 100% risk weight 0 0 0
Deducted 0 0 0
TOTAL 31588.25 858.15 30730.11
Table DF -5 Govt. securities, Life Insurance Policies, Mutual Fund units,

CREDIT RISK MITIGATION:
STANDARDISED APPROACHES

DISCLOSURES FOR

Qualitative disclosures:
Policy on Credit Risk Mitigation:

In line with the regulatory requirements, the bank has put in
place a well-articulated policy on collateral management and
credit risk mitigation techniques duly approved by the bank’s
Board. The Policy lays down the type of securities normally
accepted by the bank for lending and administration/
monitoring of such securities in order to safeguard /protect
the interest of the bank so as to minimize the risk associated
with it.

The main types of securities (both prime and collateral)
accepted by the Bank includes Bank’s own deposits, Gold/
Ornaments, Kisan Vikas Patras, 10 year Social Security
Certificates, Shares and debentures, Central and State

Immovable Properties, Plant and Machinery, Goods and
Merchandise, Documents of Title to Goods, Book debts,
Vehicles and other moveable assets etc. The bank has also
framed a well-defined policy on valuation of immovable
properties and Plant and Machineries duly approved by
Board.

Credit Risk Mitigation under Standardised Approach:
(a) Eligible Financial Collaterals:

As advised by RBI, the Bank has adopted the comprehensive
approach relating to credit risk mitigation under Standardised
Approach, which allows offset of securities (prime and
collateral) against exposures, by effectively reducing the
exposure amount by the value ascribed to the securities.
Thus the eligible financial collaterals are fully made use of
to reduce the credit exposure in computation of credit risk
capital. In doing so, in line with RBI guidelines, the bank has
recognized specific securities viz (a) cash/bank deposits (b)
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gold/ornaments (c) life insurance policies (d) kisan vikas
patras (after a lock in period of 2 2 years).

(b) On Balance Sheet Nettings:

As per Bank’s policy on utilization of the credit risk mitigation
techniques and collateral management, on-balance sheet
netting has been reckoned to the extent of deposits available
against loans/advances of the borrower (maximum to the
extent of exposure), where bank has legally enforceable
netting arrangements involving specific lien with proof
of documentation as prescribed by RBI. In such cases,
the capital computation is done on the basis of net credit
exposure.

(c) Eligible Guarantees:

Other approved form of credit risk mitigation is availability of
“Eligible Guarantees”. In computation of credit risk capital,
types of guarantees recognized as mitigation, in line with

N %

A

RBI guidelines are (a) Central Government (0%) (b) State
Government (20%), (c) CGTMSE (0%) (d) ECGC (20%)
(e) Banks in the form of Bills Purchased/discounted under
Letters of Credit (both domestic and foreign banks as per
guidelines).

The bank has ensured compliance of legal certainty as
prescribed by the RBI in the matter of credit risk mitigation.

Concentration risk in credit risk mitigation:

Policies and process are in place indicating the type of
mitigants the bank use for capital computation under the
Standardised approach. All types of securities (financial
collaterals) eligible for mitigation are easily realizable
financial securities. As such, the bank doesn’t envisage any
concentration risk in credit risk mitigation used and presently
no limit/ceiling has been prescribed for the quantum of each
type of collateral under credit risk mitigation.

Quantitative Disclosures ®. in Crore)
For each separate]y disclo§ed credit risk plortfolio: the exposure (after, where. ap.plicable,'on or off 23508.53
balance sheet netting) that is covered by Eligible Financial Collateral after application of haircuts

Domestic Sovereign 0.00
Foreign Sovereign 0.00
Public Sector Entities 45.64
Banks — Schedule (INR) 0.00
Foreign Bank claims in FCY 0.00
Primary Dealers 0.00
Corporates 2701.39
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (RRP) 14092.29
Claims secured by Residential Property 21.09
Claims secured by Commercial Real Estate 90.93
Consumer Credit 6264.49
Capital Market Exposure 1.02
NBFC 50.72
Venture Capital 0.00
Non Performing Assets — a) Housing Loan 0.19
Non Performing Assets — b) Others 29.78
Other Assets — Staff Loans 53.04
Other Assets 97.48
Restructured Accounts 27.99
Claims secured by C.R.E-RH 32.48
Quantitative Disclosures . in Crore)
For each separately disclosed credit risk portfolio, the total exposure (after, where applicable, on or

off balance sheet netting) that is covered by guarantees / Credit Derivatives (whenever specifically 13840.02
permitted by RBI)

Public Sector Entities 8107.26
Corporates 3843.08
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (RRP) 1008.69
Restructured 785.22
Capital Market Exposure 0.00
CRE 73.52
CRE-RH 22.26
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Table DF 6
SECURITISATION: DISCLOSURE FOR STANDARDISED APPROACH

a)

Qualitative Disclosures

The general qualitative disclosure requirement with respect to securitisation, including a discussion
of:

The bank’s objectives in relation to securitisation activity, including the extent to which these
activities transfer credit risk of the underlying securitised exposures away from the bank to other
entities.

The nature of other risks (e.g. liquidity risk) inherent in securitized assets

The various roles played by the bank in securitisation process (for example: originator, investor,
servicer, provider of credit enhancement, liquidity provider, swap provider, protection provider) and
an indication of the extent of the bank’s involvement in each of them;

A description of the processes in place to monitor changes in the credit and market risk of securitization
exposures (for example, how the behaviour of the underlying assets impacts securitization exposures
as defined in para 5.16.1 of the Master Circular of NCAF dated July 1, 2009);

A description of the bank’s policy governing the use of credit risk mitigation to mitigate the risks
retained through securitization exposure;

Summary of the bank’s accounting policies for securitisation activities, including :

Whether the transactions are treated as sales or financings;

Methods and key assumptions (including inputs) applied in valuing positions retained or purchased.
Change in methods and key assumptions from the previous period and impact of the changes;
Policies for recognizing liabilities on the balance sheet for arrangements that could require the
bank to provide financial support for securitized assets;

)

In the banking book, the names of ECAIs used for securitisations and the types of securitisation
exposure for which each agency is used.

No securitisation
for the year
ended
31.03.2014

d)
e)

f)

Quantitative Disclosures in Banking Book

Total amount of exposures securitised by the bank.

For exposures securitised losses recognized by the Bank during the current period broken by the
exposure type (e.g. Credit cards, Housing loans, auto loans, etc. detailed by underlying security)
Amount of assets intended to be securitized within a year.

Of (f), amount of assets originated within a year before securitization.

The total amount of exposures securitized (by exposure type) and unrecognized gain or losses on
sale by exposure type.

Aggregate amount of securitisation exposures retained or purchased broken down by exposure
type and off balance sheet securitization exposures broken down by exposure type.

Aggregate amount of securitisation exposures retained or purchased and the associated capital
charges, broken down between exposures and further broken down into different risk weight
bands for each regulatory capital approach.

* Exposures that have been deducted entirely from Tier 1 capital, credit enhancing 1/Os deducted from
Total Capital (by exposure type).

k)

Quantitative Disclosure: Trading Book

Aggregate amount of exposures securitized by the bank for which the bank had retained sum
exposures and which is subject to market risk approach, by exposure type.

Aggregate amount of:

On-balance sheet securitisation exposures retained or purchased broken down by exposure type;
and

Off-balance sheet securitiesation exposures broken down by exposure type.

Aggregate amount of securitization exposures retained or purchased separately for:
Securitisation exposures retained or purchased subject to comprehensive Risk Measure for specific
risk; and

Securitisation exposures subject to the securitization framework for specific risk broken down into
different risk weight bands.

Aggregate amount of:

the capital requirements for the securitization exposures, subject to the securitization framework
broken down into different risk weight bands.

Securitization exposures that are deducted entirely from Tier 1 capital, credit enhancing I/Os deducted
from total capital, and other exposures deducted from total capital (by exposure type).

Not applicable
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Table DF -7

Market Risk in Trading Book:
Qualitative disclosure:
Market Risk:

Market Risk is defined as the possibility of loss to a bank in on
& off-balance sheet position caused by changes/movements
in market variables such as interest rate, foreign currency
exchange rate, equity prices and commodity prices. Bank’s
exposure to market risk arises from domestic investments
(interest related instruments and equities) in trading book
(Both AFS and HFT categories), the Foreign Exchange
positions (including open position, if any, in precious metals)
and trading related derivatives. The objective of the market risk
management is to minimize the impact of losses on earnings
and erosion of equity capital arising from market risk.

Policies for management of market risk:

The bank has put in place Board approved Market Risk
Management Policy and Asset Liability Management (ALM)
policy for effective management of market risk in the bank.
Other policies which also deal with market risk management
are Funds Management and Investment Policy, Derivative
Policy, Risk Management Policy for forex operations and
Stress testing policy. The market risk management policy
lays down well defined organization structure for market risk
management functions and processes whereby the market
risks carried by the bank are identified, measured, monitored
and controlled within the ALM framework, consistent with the
Bank’s risk tolerance. The policies set various risk limits for
effective management of market risk and ensuring that the
operations are in line with Bank’s expectation of return to
market risk through proper Asset Liability Management. The
policies also deal with the reporting framework for effective
monitoring of market risk.

The ALM policy specifically deals with liquidity risk
management and interest rate risk management framework.
As envisaged in the policy, liquidity risk is managed through
GAP analysis based on residual maturity/behavioral pattern
of assets and liabilities on daily basis based on best available
information data coverage as prescribed by RBI. The liquidity
risk through Structural Liquidity statement was hither too
reported to RBI for domestic operation while the same was
managed separately at each overseas center and placed to
ALCO for control purpose in the past. However as per recent
RBI circular, w.e.f March 2013 onwards the liquidity risk is
to be computed and submitted to RBI in rupee and foreign
currency for domestic operations, overseas centers and
consolidated for Bank operations at various frequencies.

The bank has put in place mechanism of short-term dynamic
liquidity management and contingent funding plan. Prudential
(tolerance) limits are prescribed for different residual maturity
time buckets for efficient asset liability management.
Liquidity profile of the bank is evaluated through various
liquidity ratios. The bank has also drawn various contingent
measures to deal with any kind of stress on liquidity position.
Bank ensures adequate liquidity management by Domestic
Treasury through systematic and stable funds planning.

Interest rate risk is managed through use of GAP analysis
of rate sensitive assets and liabilities and monitored through
prudential (tolerance) limits prescribed for global operations.
The bank estimates earnings at risk for domestic operations
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and modified duration gap for global operations periodically
for assessing the impact on Net Interest Income and
Economic Value of Equity with a view to optimize shareholder
value.

The Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO) / Board
monitors adherence to prudential limits fixed by the Bank and
determines the strategy in the light of the market conditions
(current and expected) as articulated in the ALM policy. The
mid-office monitors adherence to the prudential limits on a
continuous basis. ALCO subcommittee which meets twice a
week analyze the liquidity position, decide on price for bulk
deposits and assess contingency funding requirement which
is reported to ALCO in the subsequent meeting.

Quantitative Disclosures:

In line with the RBI's guidelines, the Bank has computed
capital for market risk as per Standardised Duration Approach
of Basel-ll framework for maintaining capital. The capital
requirement for market risk as on 31.03.2014 in trading book
of the bank is as under:

®. In Crore)
Type of Market Risk ARsiss:l‘?:\f;?igt:adl) Reo?uaietiat:ulent
Interest rate risk 6383.22 574.49
Equity position risk 2248.67 202.38
Foreign exchange risk 101.67 9.15
TOTAL 8733.56 786.02
Table DF - 8

Operational Risk
Qualitative disclosures:

Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Operational risk includes legal risk but
excludes strategic and reputation risk.

Policies on Management of Operational risk:

The bank has framed operational risk management policy
duly approved by the Board. Other policies adopted by the
Board which deal with management of operational risk are (a)
Information Systems security policy (b) forex risk management
policy (c) Policy document on know your customer (KYC) and
Anti-Money Laundering (AML) procedures (d) IT Business
continuity and disaster recovery plan (IT-BC-DRP) (e)
compliance policy and (f) policy on outsourcing of Financial
Services.

The operational risk management policy adopted by the
Bank outlines organization structure and detailed processes
for management of operational risk. The basic objective of
the policy is to closely integrate operational risk management
processes of the bank by clearly assigning roles for effectively
identifying, assessing, monitoring and controlling or mitigating
operational risk and by timely reporting of operational risk
exposures including material operational losses. Operational
risks in the bank are managed through comprehensive and
well-articulated internal control framework.

The Bank has got embodied in its Book of Instructions well-
defined systems and procedures for various operations.
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The bank has issued detailed guidelines for handling
computerized operations and a system of EDP audit is in
place to ensure adherence to the laid down systems and
procedures. The Bank has clear guidelines as to the role
functions of various levels of employees. A training system
with provision for giving specialized training in credit /forex
and other functional areas is in place. Conduct rules and
service regulations for all the employees are also in place.

Various internal and external audit systems are in place to
ensure that laid down systems and procedures are followed
and timely actions are initiated for rectifying the deficiencies.

The Bank has put in place Compliance Policy duly approved
by Board. In terms of the RBI guidelines on compliance
functions in banks, the bank has established separate
“Compliance Department” in C.O. independent of business
group. Compliance officers are designated in each branch
/department/office to monitor the level of compliance. The
methodologies and system have been devised and put
in place for assessment of level of compliance. Reporting
systems on compliance function have been devised and put
in place.

In line with the final guidelines issued by RBI, our bank is
adopting the Basic Indicator Approach for computing capital
for operational risk. As per the guidelines the banks must hold
capital for operational risk equal to 15% of positive average
annual gross income over the previous three years as defined
by RBI.

Bank had made application to RBI for “Migration to
The Standardized Approach” (TSA) for computation of
capital charge for Operational Risk from “Basic Indicator
Approach”. Bank had also made a presentation to RBI on
our preparedness and technological capability for migration
to TSA. Bank is in the process of fine tuning the preparedness
for migration as suggested by RBI.

Quantitative disclosures ®. in crores)

Capital Notional Risk
Parameter p Weighted
amount
Assets
15% of positive average annual
gross income over the previous 3| 958.27 10647.44
years as defined by RBI

Table DF -9 Interest rate risk on the Banking Book:
Qualitative disclosures:

Interest rate risk is the risk where changes in the market interest
rates might affect a bank’s financial condition. Changes ininterest
rates may affect both the current earnings (earnings perspective)
as also the net worth of the Bank (economic value perspective).
The risk from earnings perspective can be measured as impact
on the Net Interest Income (NII) or Net Interest Margin. Similarly
the risk from economic value perspective can be measured as
drop in Economic Value of Equity.
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The bank identifies the risks associated with the changing
interest rates on its on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet
exposures in the banking book from a short term (Earnings
perspective) and long term Economic Value Perspective.
The impact on income (Earnings Perspective) for domestic
operations is measured through use of GAP analysis by
applying notional rate shock up to 200 bps as prescribed in
the bank’s ALM Policy over one year horizon. Prudential limits
have been prescribed for such impacts as a percentage of
Net Interest Income of the bank and the same is monitored
periodically. For the calculation of impacts on earnings, the
Traditional Gap Analysis for domestic operation is taken from
the Rate Sensitivity Statement and based on the remaining
period from the mid point of a particular bucket the impact for
change in interest rate up to 200 bps is arrived at. The same
is reported to Board and ALCO periodically along with the
Rate Sensitivity Statement. The limits are fixed on the basis of
previous year’s Net Interest Income (NII).

The bank has adopted traditional gap analysis combined
with duration gap analysis for assessing the impact (as a
percentage) on the Economic Value of Equity (Economic
Value Perspective) on global operations by applying a
notional interest rate shock of 200 bps over a time horizon of
one year. For the purpose a limit of (+/-) 1.00% for modified
duration gap is prescribed in the Bank’s ALM policy and the
position is monitored periodically.

The bank calculates Duration Gap and the impact on
Economic Value of Equity on a monthly basis. Assets and
liabilities are grouped as per rate sensitivity statement and
bucket-wise modified duration is computed for these groups
of Assets and Liabilities using common maturity, coupon and
yield parameters. Wherever possible, the Modified Duration
is calculated on individual item wise. In case of non maturity
deposits, the bank has conducted behavioural studies for a
period of three years as prescribed by RBI to have a realistic
assessment of the interest rate sensitivity.

The bank is computing the interest rate risk position in each
currency applying the Duration Gap Analysis (DGA) and
Traditional Gap Analysis (TGA) to the Rate Sensitive Assets
(RSA)/ Rate Sensitive Liabilities (RSL) items in that currency,
where either the assets, or liabilities are 5 per cent or more of
the total of either the bank’s global assets or global liabilities.
The interest rate risk positions in all other residual currencies
are computed separately on an aggregate basis.

The quarterly returns are submitted within 21 days from the
end of the quarter and monthly returns within 15 days from
the end of the month to RBI as per guidelines.

Quantitative Disclosures

The impact of changes of Net Interest Income (NIl) and
Economic Value of Equity (EVE) calculated as on 31.03.2014

by applying notional interest rate shocks as discussed above
are as under
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Earnings at Risk (EaR)
. ALM Policy 31.03.2014
Change in Interest Rate Limit for EaR Up to Upto
1 year 5 years

0.25% change 166.65

(8% of NIl of previous year) 149.57 11573
0.50% change 333.29

(6% of NIl of previous year) 299.14 231.46
0.75% change 499.94

(9% of NIl of previous year) 448.71 34719
1.00% change 666.59

(12% of NIl of previous year) 598.28 462.92
2.00% change 1333.17

(24% of NIl of previous year) 1196.56 925.84
ECONOMIC VALUE OF EQUITY 31.03.2014
Modified Duration Gap (DGAP) -0.0100%

Limit as per ALM Policy

(+/-)1.00%

Market value of Equity (MVE)

For a 200 BPS Rate Shock the Drop in Equity Value -0.5400%

Table DF - 10: General Disclosure for Exposures Related to Counterparty Credit Risk

Qualitative Disclosure

The following key financial and non-financial parameters are taken into
consideration while fixing counter party limits

FINANCIAL/NON FINANCIAL

PARAMETERS DETAILS
FINANCIAL
a. Capital Adequacy Ratio [CAR] Banks with CAR of 10% and above are assigned maximum weightage of 25%
and below 8% is assigned 0%. Banks with CAR of less than 6% are assigned with
discount factors of 25% that will be deducted from the total weightage arrived at for
computation of counter party limits.
b.  Return On Assets [RoA] — Banks with ROA of more than or equal to 1.10 are assigned maximum weightage
Profitability of 20% and the ROA less than 0.15% are assigned as 0%.
c. Gross NPA / Net NPA — Asset Banks with Gross NPA (for Foreign Banks)/ Net NPA (for Indian Banks) of less than
Quality 3.00 % are assigned Maximum weightage of 20 % and the Gross NPA / Net NPA
more than or equal to 9.00 % are assigned Zero Weightage. Banks with Gross
NPA / Net NPA more than 15% are assigned with discount factors of 20% that
is deducted from the total weightage arrived at for computation of counter party
limits. However, this will not be applicable to Banks owned by Govt. (Government
holding majority share)
d. External Agencies Ratings(Moody | Ratings of Standard & Poors, Moody’s or Fitch and domestic rating agencies

Investors Service or Standard &
Poor’s)

like CRISIL, ICRA, CARE or Brickworks in India are considered for arriving at the
counter party limits. Banks rated with the highest / high quality / Exceptional /
Excellent grade are assigned a maximum weightage of 25% and the unrated shall
have a Zero weightage .

Most of the Banks in India get themselves rated by rating agencies in India or
abroad for their Tier Il issuances, borrowing abroad. However, some banks may not
have any rating at all by recognized rating agencies. Such banks will be assigned
a weightage of only 5% while assessing counter party limits.

Wherever both the ratings are available, lower one will be reckoned and the
weightage is assigned accordingly.
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e. Tier One Capital in Absolute Terms

Quantum of exposure assumable in relation to the networth of a counter party
bank ranges from 15 % to 50 % of net worth

NON - FINANCIAL

Reciprocal Business / Relationship
Govt. Supported Banks/Indian Public/
Private Sector banks

Country of Incorporation

In addition to the above five key financial parameters there are many other key
parameters assessed while forming judgment on the counter party bank. The
important among them are a) The spread and nature of the ownership structure b)
Management Ability ¢) Peer comparison d) Importance of the Bank in the Economy
and e) Country of Incorporation / Regulatory Environment.

There are some banks where bank has to consider limits not based on the financial
parameters but simply based on their relationship, reciprocal arrangements,
business considerations, requests from Indian branches, overseas centres, etc.

Wherever deemed necessary, the weightage ranging from 0% to 10% shall be
considered for Govt. supported Banks / Indian Private Sector Banks/Active
correspondent banks.

Quantitative Disclosure  incrore)
No Particulars "mig:s: mTm | Tl °“"§::Dg:°:2
1 Derivatives 1433.68 69.70 168.38
2 Interest Rates Contract/Swaps 7406.51 216.18 297.66
3 Forward Purchase / Sales Contract 19432.91 Nil 783.38
4 Credit Derivatives Nil Nil Nil
5 Credit Default Swaps Nil Nil Nil

Table DF - 11: Composition of Capital

Part | : Template to be used only from March 31,2017 : Not Applicable

Part Il : Template to be used before March 31,2017 ( i.e. during the transition period of Basel Ill regulatory adjustment)

 incrore)
Basel lll common disclosure template to be used during the transition of regulatory adjustments (i.e. Amounts
from April 1, 2013 to December 31, 2017) Subject to
Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and reserves Pre-Basel Ill
Treatment
1 Dlrecﬂy issued qualifying common share capital plus related stock surplus (share 6080.48 6080.48
premium)
2 Retained earnings 7490.30 7490.30
3 Accumulated other comprehensive income (and other reserves) 0 0
4 Directly issued capital subject to phase out from CET1 (only applicable to non-joint 0 0
stock companies)
Public sector capital injections grandfathered until 1 January 2018 0 0
5 Common share capital issued by subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount 0 0
allowed in group CET1)
6 Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments 13570.78 13570.78
Common Equity Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments
7 Prudential valuation adjustments - -
8 Goodwill (net of related tax liability) - -
9 Intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights (net of related tax liability) - -
10 |Deferred tax assets - -
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11

Cash-flow hedge reserve

12 | Shortfall of provisions to expected losses - -
13 | Securitisation gain on sale - -
14 | Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on fair valued liabilities - -
15 | Defined-benefit pension fund net assets 201.05 0.00
16 |Investments in own shares (if not already netted off paid-up capital on reported balance i i
sheet)
17 | Reciprocal cross-holdings in common equity 55.48 0.00
18 |Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside
the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the i i
bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10%
threshold)
19 | Significant investments in the common stock of banking, financial and insurance 0.00 207.62
entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short
positions (amount above 10% threshold)
20 |Mortgage servicing rights(amount above 10% threshold) 0 0
21 | Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences(amount above 10% threshold, 0 0
net of related tax liability)
22 | Amount exceeding the 15% threshold 0 0
23 | of which: significant investments in the common stock of financial entities 0 0
24 | of which: mortgage servicing rights 0 0
25 | of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences 0 0
26 | National specific regulatory adjustments (26a+26b+26c¢c+26d) 0 0
26a | of which: Investments in the equity capital of unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries 0 0
26b | of which: Investments in the equity capital of unconsolidated non-financial subsidiaries 0 0
26c | of which: Shortfall in the equity capital of majority owned financial entities which have 0 0
not been consolidated with the bank
26d |of which: Unamortised pension funds expenditures 0 0
Regulatory Adjustments Applied to Common Equity Tier 1 in respect of Amounts i i
Subject to Pre-Basel Il Treatment
of which: [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT] For example: filtering out of unrealised i i
losses on AFS debt securities (not relevant in Indian context)
of which: [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT] - -
of which: [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT] - -
27 | Regulatory adjustments applied to Common Equity Tier 1 due to insufficient Additional 0 0
Tier 1 and Tier 2 to cover deductions
28 | Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity Tier 1 256.53 207.62
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29 | wrur= gferet feaw [ gt (Hfiget 1) 13314.25|  13363.16
arferfier feer [ 9Sft forma
30 ﬁaﬁ@mmmmwlmmmwm(wm) 624.00 780.00
31432
31 %ﬁ:mwﬁ@mm%ﬁm%wﬁwﬁqﬁ(mﬁ(—mw 0 0
32 |fSrHd §: UTASH AGich A o ded aal o & 7 afigpd (Tareft Fo form) 624.00 780.00
33 | sfafied foar | 9 fehmet S o 37 ooy &9 6 S0 St foraa 0 0
34 | ST g STt ST 1= W EI i (W wetl ® Srwa ufdn) sifaied e 1 forem 0 0
(e g2 forae St ohm 5 & wieer 7 §)
35 | formd g fsret S o s1efia Sufifal g1 S fore 0 0
36 | ferforames AHTETS | Ud afaiier feaw 1 gt 624.00 780.00
arferiier feoR 1 USht: fafame amEs=
37 | gz & srfafiad feer | forei & faaw 75.00 75.00
38 | a7feiRe fear | fort ® URefiss AR-wfar 10.00 0.00
39 |fafamme gHe Ht HaraAel @ aret dfsh, faxfta o s gameat @t ¢Sht & fraw, o 0 0
37eq Reyfaat &1 e, el de & @i 3618 (10% =t har @ S i qidn) Fi s qren
IR G & 10% T 1o F A
40  |faframmes THET & aRR | R S, facia o s someat 1 gt § fraw (T e 0 0
fafeat &1 faaa)
4 |ty fafere fafames gamErsH (41T+4158) 0 0
41T | STEHE ST SN 1 Sfafe feeR [ st & faw 0 0
41t | Fgarer wfae areft faxter sameal @t sifafed e st & it o 9% & a1y o 0 0
e febam e 2
Fa 1% @ gfaures @i o W= OE & 9699 § sifafen fEar | ) any fafams 0 0
TS
9 9 ;[T & ¥R At ST R/
ﬁﬂg]@:[wﬁmwwaﬁaﬁaﬁmw@mﬁéso%ﬁaﬁﬁmlﬁm
T
8 @ [ & g 1]
42 | rugie fear 11 3 aolg § eifaal 1 Fa i & forg atfafaa feax 1§ o faframs
AR
43 | srfafRerm feam 1 USht ® et fafamaes aamase 85.00 75.00
44 | srfafRer fear 19T (TEt) 539.00 705.00
44T | ISt gt o T ugene st g erfaie feew 1 ush 539.00 705.00
45 |femm [ UsH (21 = Higetl + e i) (29 + 447) 13853.25|  14068.15
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29 |Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) 13314.25 13363.16
Additional Tier 1 capital: instruments
30 |Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1 instruments plus related stock surplus (share 624.00 780.00
premium) (31+32)
31 | of which: classified as equity under applicable accounting standards (Perpetual Non- 0 0
Cumulative Preference Shares)
32 | of which: classified as liabilities under applicable accounting standards (Perpetual debt 624.00 780.00
Instruments)
33 | Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out from Additional Tier 1 0 0
34 | Additional Tier 1 instruments (and CET1 instruments not included in row 5) issued by 0 0
subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in group AT1)
35 | of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out 0 0
36 |Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments 624.00 780.00
Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments
37 |Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instruments 75.00 75.00
38 |Reciprocal cross-holdings in Additional Tier 1 instruments 10.00 0.00
39 |Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside 0 0
the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank
does not own more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity (amount
above 10% threshold)
40 |Significant investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that 0 0
are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short positions)
41 | National specific regulatory adjustments (41a+41b) 0 0
41a |Investments in the Additional Tier 1 capital of unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries 0 0
41b | Shortfall in the Additional Tier 1 capital of majority owned financial entities which have 0 0
not been consolidated with the bank
Regulatory Adjustments Applied to Additional Tier 1 in respect of Amounts Subject to 0 0
Pre-Basel lll Treatment
of which: [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT e.g. DTAs] - -
of which: [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT e.g. existing adjustments which are i i
deducted from Tier 1 at 50%]
of which: [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT] - -
42 | Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover ) )
deductions
43 |Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital 85.00 75.00
44 | Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1) 539.00 705.00
44a | Additional Tier 1 capital reckoned for capital adequacy 539.00 705.00
45 |Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + Admissible AT1) (29 + 44a) 13853.25 14068.15
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feor 2 gSit: forad wa grae
46 |y AR W S U R 2 forea wfea e sy wis 1902.00 1902.00
47 |feTR 2 U SRR A i i W W et AR W S st ferma 2105.84 2632.30
48 | e g SR ST 37 vedl g e (WE feeR 2 F wtgpa Ui ) feeR 2 forad (3 0 0
5 a1 34 dfed | 72 it Higet] it wetl form)
49 |5 9 : AR g F W W SN g S forad 0 0
50 |gEue 2212.65 2212.65
51 |fafeame aamEee @ uge feax 1 oSt 6220.49 6746.95
femr 2 9Sh : faframaes gumis=
52 |fasft foer 2 foradt ® faw 55.00 55.00
53 |feaR 2 foradl # WER gfa-wiiar 30.00 0.00
54  |faf-rammes TR & SR § AL sSfeh, forcftar 3 fimn gt &1 gsft § faw, o e 0
TRafea &1 fraet, el o 1 @i 32 (10% i S @ S0 &t i) 1 S qren 9
IS & 10% @ =1fers it qfvr T &
55 | fafaames qHeh 1 GATaTsT @ aTel sfsh, facher ot st sl @t dsht & g (wm 0
37y Ryfo=t &1 faae)
56 |t fafiTe faframs SRS (S6T+564T)
56T | S : sTefhend AT SIS &t SAfafian fEax 2 st & faaw 0
56 | 9: Sge @ Attt faehe s @t fear 2 St | & o 5% o T wafea 0
Tt e T 2
Frae 118 qd gferea it ord = Tl & day § feaw 2 W an] fEfaams gamese 0 207.62
ﬁﬁgﬁz (TR 1 YHR R A1 Fda FursH (57 50% R @ T3 2 § g2 207.62
T 8]
S 9 [ 1 JHhR A 0 0
57 |femr 2 YSft ® et faf-rames aamase 85.00 262.62
58 [feam 2 USh (3%2) 6135.49 6484.33
58T | it gaiar @ forg ugen=it e feaw 2 uSht 6135.49 6484.33
seeft |femm 2 Uit o foTe ugent ¢ aigamaa afaiier fear 1 st 0
seft | 4t waitar (58T + 58sit)ah forg witehre et fear 2 gt 6135.49|  6484.33
59 |t USht (St = 21 + 212) (45 + 58+) 19988.74|  20552.49
araa 111 g8 wfaures St v W Sifgy 9Ris areft snfiat & day | 0.00
8 9 [HHESH % R W
o = 0
60 | gpeT WIEW Wi areft amfadt (60T + 605 + 60%t) 185476.44
60T | {5 §: HoT IuR Sifaw aris areft snfiaa 166095.40

=N
©
D




Vi
&

Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions

46 | Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus related stock surplus 1902.00 1902.00
47 | Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out from Tier 2 2105.84 2632.30
48 | Tier 2 instruments (and CET1 and AT1 instruments not included in rows 5 or 34) issued 0 0
by subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in group Tier 2)
49 | of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out 0 0
50 |Provisions 2212.65 2212.65
51 |Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments 6220.49 6746.95
Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments
52 |Investments in own Tier 2 instruments 55.00 55.00
53 |Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 instruments 30.00 0.00
54 | Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside 0
the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank
does not own more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity (amount
above the 10% threshold)
55 | Significant investments in the capital banking, financial and insurance entities that are 0
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short positions)
56 | National specific regulatory adjustments (56a+56b)
56a |of which: Investments in the Tier 2 capital of unconsolidated subsidiaries 0
56b | of which: Shortfall in the Tier 2 capital of majority owned financial entities which have 0
not been consolidated with the bank
Regulatory Adjustments Applied To Tier 2 in respect of Amounts Subject to Pre-Basel lll 0 207.62
Treatment
of which: [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT e.g. existing adjustments which are 207.62
deducted from Tier 2 at 50%]
of which: [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT 0 0
57 |Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital 85.00 262.62
58 |Tier 2 capital (T2) 6135.49 6484.33
58a |Tier 2 capital reckoned for capital adequacy 6135.49 6484.33
58b |Excess Additional Tier 1 capital reckoned as Tier 2 capital 0
58c |Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy (58a + 58b) 6135.49 6484.33
59 |Total capital (TC = T1 + T2) (45 + 58c) 19988.74|  20552.49
Risk Weighted Assets in respect of Amounts Subject to Pre-Basel Ill Treatment 0.00
of which: [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT]
of which: ... 0
60 |Total risk weighted assets (60a + 60b + 60c) 185476.44
60a |of which: total credit risk weighted assets 166095.40
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60b | of which: total market risk weighted assets 8733.60
60c | of which: total operational risk weighted assets 10647.44
Capital ratios
61 | Common Equity Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 7.18%
62 |Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 7.47%
63 | Total capital (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 10.78%
64 |Institution specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1 requirement plus capital 5.00%
conservation and countercyclical buffer requirements, expressed as a percentage of
risk weighted assets)
65 | of which: capital conservation buffer requirement 0
66 | of which: bank specific countercyclical buffer requirement 0
67 | of which: G-SIB buffer requirement 0
68 | Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffers (as a percentage of risk weighted 2.18%
assets)
National minima (if different from Basel Ill)
69 | National Common Equity Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from Basel lll minimum) 5.00%
70 | National Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from Basel Il minimum) 6.00%
71 | National total capital minimum ratio (if different from Basel Ill minimum) 9.00%
Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)
72 | Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial entities -
73 | Significant investments in the common stock of financial entities -
74 | Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability) 0
75 | Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability) 0
Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2
76 | Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to standardised 2212.65
approach (prior to application of cap)
77 | Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardised approach 2318.46
78 | Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to internal NA
ratings-based approach (prior to application of cap)
79 | Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal ratings-based approach NA

Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements (only applicable between March 31, 2017 and
March 31, 2022)

80 | Current cap on CET1 instruments subject to phase out arrangements 0

81 | Amount excluded from CET1 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and 0
maturities)

82 | Current cap on AT1 instruments subject to phase out arrangements 624.00

83 | Amount excluded from AT1 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and 156.00

maturities)
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84 | Current cap on T2 instruments subject to phase out arrangements 2105.84
85 | Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and 526.46
maturities)
Notes to the Template . in crore)
Row No.
of the Particular
template
10 Deferred tax assets associated with accumulated losses 0
Deferred tax assets (excluding those associated with accumulated losses) net of Deferred tax 0
liability
Total as indicated in row 10 0
19 Ifinvestments ininsurance subsidiaries are not deducted fully from capital and instead considered 0
under 10% threshold for deduction, the resultant increase in the capital of bank
of which: Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital 0
of which: Increase in Additional Tier 1 capital 0
of which: Increase in Tier 2 capital 0
26b If investments in the equity capital of unconsolidated non-financial subsidiaries are not deducted 0
and hence, risk weighted then:
(i) Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital 0
(ii) Increase in risk weighted assets 0
44a Excess Additional Tier 1 capital not reckoned for capital adequacy (difference between Additional 0
Tier 1 capital as reported in row 44 and admissible Additional Tier 1 capital as reported in 44a)
of which: Excess Additional Tier 1 capital which is considered as Tier 2 capital under row 58b 0
50 Eligible Provisions included in Tier 2 capital 1396.39
Eligible Revaluation Reserves included in Tier 2 capital 816.26
Total of row 50 2212.65
58a Excess Tier 2 capital not reckoned for capital adequacy (difference between Tier 2 capital as 0
reported in row 58 and T2 as reported in 58a)
Table DF - 12: Composition of Capital-Reconciliation Requirements ®. in.crore)

as in financial
statements

Balance sheet
Balance Sheet | under regulatory

consolidation

scope of

As on reporting | As on reporting

date date

A Capital & Liabilities
i Paid up Capital 1235.35 1235.35
Reserves and Surplus 14934.82 14934.82
Minority Interest 0 0
Total Capital 16170.17 16170.17
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i | 227976.09 227976.09
e @l 9 s 431.44 431.44

STe 9 U S 227544.65 227544.65

e 9 5= 0 0

i | 3ur 24456.04 24456.04
e 9: sEteTg 9 4175.00 4175.00

e 9: 95 1 11474.28 11474.28

ST 9 o= Teensil q91 ueifaa 9 2204.45 2204.45

e | 3171 (FU T HL) 0 0

fore 9: gt feraa 6602.30 6602.30

iv | 3T STATd qUT YTaena 6302.54 6302.54
A 274904.84 274904.84

THHT &
forettar faamon & | fafames aer &
SR A | ded o &

St | emfEat Rafen arte e | RuifeT arfia @
i GReATT e dh o U9 Fha 9 11735.10 11735.10
<% § I T STCT A U HT IFT 7273.68 7273.68

i | fraer 70236.80 70236.80
fored & Tt wfasferar 61267.63 61267.63
o 9 o Srmfen wfasfaar 51.66 51.66
g 9 wreR 1073.81 1073.81

o 9 fea = agr v 5569.91 5569.91
o 9: e 9 T/ wea Susn/ weart 193.20 193.20
s | 37 (EHIas T, R he 31fR) 2080.59 2080.59

i | T T I 175887.77 175887.77
fored |: Sl &t 70T qe YW 1183.35 1183.35
o 9 ek &1 0T AT A 174704.42 174704.42

iv | 3T et 2604.38 2604.38
v | 3 emiaat 7167.11 7167.11
fora 9 9 qor 3nyd s 0 0

e 9 sy & et 0 0

vi | OUeE WA 0 0
VTR R R A ERCIC R R | 0 0
T 274904.84 274904.84
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ii Deposits 227976.09 227976.09
of which : Deposit from Banks 431.44 431.44

of which : customer deposits 227544.65 227544.65

of which : Others 0 0

iiii Borrowings 24456.04 24456.04
of which : From RBI 4175.00 4175.00

of which : From bank 11474.28 11474.28

of which : from other institutional & agencies 2204.45 2204.45

of which : Others(pl .Specify) 0 0

of which : Capital instruments 6602.30 6602.30

iv Other liabilities and provisions 6302.54 6302.54
Total 274904.84 274904.84
Balance sheet

Balance Sheet | under regulatory

as in financial scope of

statements consolidation

As on reporting | As on reporting

B Assets date date
i Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 11735.10 11735.10
Balance with bank and money at call and short notice 7273.68 7273.68

ii Investments: 70236.80 70236.80
of which: Government Securities 61267.63 61267.63

of which: Other approved securities 51.66 51.66

of which : shares 1073.81 1073.81

of which : Debentures & Bonds 5569.91 5569.91

of which: Subsidiaries/joint Venture/Associates 193.20 193.20

of which : other (commercial Paper, Mutual Funds etc) 2080.59 2080.59

iiii Loans and advances 175887.77 175887.77
of which : Loans and advances to banks 1183.35 1183.35

of which : Loans and advances to customers 174704.42 174704.42

iv Fixed assets 2604.38 2604.38
v Other assets 7167.11 7167.11
of which : Goodwill and intangible assets 0 0

of which : Deferred tax assets 0 0

vi Goodwill on consolidation 0 0
vii Debit balance in Profit & Loss account 0 0
Total 274904.84 274904.84
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Extract of Basel lll common disclosure template (with added column)-Table DF-11 (Part | / Part Il whichever, applicable)

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and reserve

Component of regulatory
capital reported by bank.

Directly issued qualifying common share (and equivalent for non-joint stock companies)

capital plus related stock surplus 6080.48
Retained Earnings 7490.30
Accumulated other comprehensive income (and other reserves) 0
Directly issued capital subject to phase out from CET1 (only applicable to non-joint stock 0
companies)
5 Common share capital issued by subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed 0
in group CET1)
Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments 13570.77
Prudential valuation adjustment 0
Goodwill(net of related tax liability) 0
Table DF - 13:Main Features of regulatory capital instruments
Lower Tier Il Bonds
Disclosure template for main features of regulatory capital instruments
Lower Tier Il Lower Tier Il Lower Tier Il Lower Tier Il
SERIES VI SERIES VII SERIES VIl SERIES IX
1 Issuer PSU Bank PSU Bank PSU Bank PSU Bank
2 Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN
or Bloomberg identifier for private INE565A09066 | INE565A09074 | INE565A09082 | INE565A09090
placement)
3 Governing law(s) of the instrument Chennai Chennai Chennai Chennai
Regulatory treatment
4 Transitional Basel lll rules Tier Il Tier Il Tier Il Tier Il
5 Post-transitional Basel Ill rules ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible
6 Eligible at solo/group/group @ solo Solo Solo Solo Solo
7 Instrument type Tier |l debt Tier |l debt Tier |l debt Tier |l debt
instruments instruments instruments instruments
8 Amount recognised in regulatory capital
®. In crore, as of most recent reporting 0 30 80 100
date)
9 Par value of instrument . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs
10 |Account classification Liability Liability Liability Liability
11 |Original date of issuance 26.07.2004 08.01.2005 16.09.2005 09.01.2006
12 |Perpetual or dated dated dated dated dated
13 | Original maturity date 26.07.2014 08.04.2015 16.12.2015 09.04.2016
14 |lIssuer call subject to prior supervisory

approval

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable
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15 |Optional call date, contingent call dates |, " 5 nil, nil, 150 nil, nil, 200 nil, nil, 250
and redemption amount . in crore)

16 |Subsequent call dates, if applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
Coupons / dividends

17 | Fixed or floating dividend/coupon Fixed Fixed Fixed Fixed

18 |Coupon rate and any related index Coupon rate Coupon rate Coupon rate Coupon rate

19 | Existence of a dividend stopper No No No No

20 |Fully discretionary, partially discretionary Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory
or mandatory

21 | Existence of step up or other incentive to Not available Not available Not available Not available
redeem

22 | Non-cumulative or cumulative Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative

28 | Convertible or non-convertible Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible

24 | If convertible, conversion trigger(s) N/A N/A N/A N/A

25 | If convertible, fully or partially N/A N/A N/A N/A

26 | If convertible, conversion rate N/A N/A N/A N/A

27 | If convertible, mandatory or optional N/A N/A N/A N/A
conversion

28 | If convertible, specify instrument type N/A N/A N/A N/A
convertible into

29 |If convertible, specify issuer of N/A N/A N/A N/A
instrument it converts into

30 |Write-down feature No No No No

31 | If write-down, write-down trigger(s) N/A N/A N/A N/A

32 | If write-down, full or partial N/A N/A N/A N/A

33 | If write-down, permanent or temporary N/A N/A N/A N/A

34 |If t_emporary wrltg-down, description of N/A N/A N/A N/A
write-up mechanism

35 |Position in subordination hierarchy in Subordinate to Subordinate to Subordinate to Subordinate to
liquidation (specify instrument type claims of all other | claims of all other | claims of all other | claims of all other
immediately senior to instrument) creditors and creditors and creditors and creditors and

depositors depositors depositors depositors
36 |Non-compliant transitioned features No No No No
37 | If yes, specify non-compliant features Redemption to Redemption to Redemption to Redemption to

be permitted by
RBI

be permitted by
RBI

be permitted by
RBI

be permitted by
RBI
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Disclosure template for main features of regulatory capital instruments (contd.,)
Lower Tier I Lower Tier I Lower Tier Il
SERIES X SERIES XI SERIES XII
Issuer PSU Bank PSU Bank PSU Bank
2 Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN or Bloomberg identifier for
private placement) INE565A09108 | INE565A09132 | INE565A09165
3 Governing law(s) of the instrument Chennai Chennai Chennai
Regulatory treatment
4 Transitional Basel lll rules Tier Il Tier Il Tier Il
5 Post-transitional Basel Il rules ineligible ineligible ineligible
6 Eligible at solo/group/group @ solo Solo Solo Solo
7 Instrument type Tier Il debt Tier Il debt Tier Il debt
instruments instruments instruments
® | I crore, a3 f most resent reportng cte) 120 200 240
9 Par value of instrument . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs
10 | Account classification Liability Liability Liability
11 | Original date of issuance 13.03.2006 26.07.2006 22.08.2008
12 |Perpetual or dated dated dated dated
13 | Original maturity date 13.03.2016 26.07.2016 22.08.2018
14 | Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
15 | Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption
amount . in crore) nil, nil, 300 nil, nil, 500 nil, nil, 300
16 |Subsequent call dates, if applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
Coupons / dividends
17 |Fixed or floating dividend/coupon Fixed Fixed Fixed
18 | Coupon rate and any related index Coupon rate Coupon rate Coupon rate
19 |Existence of a dividend stopper No No No
20 |Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory
21 | Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem Not available Not available Not available
22 | Non-cumulative or cumulative Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative
23 | Convertible or non-convertible Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible
24 |If convertible, conversion trigger(s) N/A N/A N/A
25 | If convertible, fully or partially N/A N/A N/A
26 |If convertible, conversion rate N/A N/A N/A
27 | If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion N/A N/A N/A
28 |If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into N/A N/A N/A
29 |If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into N/A N/A N/A
30 |Write-down feature No No No
31 | If write-down, write-down trigger(s) N/A N/A N/A
32 |If write-down, full or partial N/A N/A N/A
33 | If write-down, permanent or temporary N/A N/A N/A
34 | If temporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism N/A N/A N/A
35 |Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation (specify| Subordinate to Subordinate to Subordinate to

instrument type immediately senior to instrument)

claims of all other
creditors and
depositors

claims of all other
creditors and
depositors

claims of all other
creditors and
depositors
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36

Non-compliant transitioned features No

No

No

37

If yes, specify non-compliant features Redemption to

be permitted by

Redemption to
be permitted by

Redemption to
be permitted by

RBI RBI RBI
Disclosure template for main features of regulatory capital instruments (contd.,)
Lower Tier Il Lower Tier Il
SERIES Xl SERIES XIV
1 Issuer PSU Bank PSU Bank
2 Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN or Bloomberg identifier for private placement)
INE565A09181 INE565A09215
3 Governing law(s) of the instrument Chennai Chennai
Regulatory treatment
4 Transitional Basel Ill rules Tier Il Tier Il
5 Post-transitional Basel Ill rules ineligible ineligible
6 Eligible at solo/group/group @ solo Solo Solo
7 Instrument type Tier Il debt Tier Il debt
instruments instruments
8 Amount recognised in regulatory capital . In crore, as of most recent
reporting date) 232 1000
9 Par value of instrument . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs
10 | Account classification Liability Liability
11 | Original date of issuance 24.08.2009 31.12.2010
12 | Perpetual or dated dated dated
13 | Original maturity date 24.08.2019 31.12.2020
14 | Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval Not applicable Not applicable
15 | Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount . in crore) nil, nil, 290 nil, nil, 1000
16 | Subsequent call dates, if applicable Coupons / dividends Not applicable Not applicable
17 | Fixed or floating dividend/coupon Fixed Fixed
18 | Coupon rate and any related index Coupon rate Coupon rate
19 | Existence of a dividend stopper No No
20 | Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory
Mandatory Mandatory
21 | Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem Not available Not available
22 | Non-cumulative or cumulative Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative
23 | Convertible or non-convertible Non-convertible | Non-convertible
24 | If convertible, conversion trigger(s) N/A N/A
25 | If convertible, fully or partially N/A N/A
26 | If convertible, conversion rate N/A N/A
27 | If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion N/A N/A
28 | If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into N/A N/A
29 | If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into N/A N/A
30 | Write-down feature No No
31 | If write-down, write-down trigger(s) N/A N/A
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32 | If write-down, full or partial N/A N/A
33 | If write-down, permanent or temporary N/A N/A
34 | If temporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism
N/A N/A
35 | Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation (specify instrument type Subordinate Subordinate
immediately senior to instrument) to claims of all to claims of all
other creditors other creditors
and depositors | and depositors
36 | Non-compliant transitioned features No No
37 | If yes, specify non-compliant features Redemption to Redemption to
be permitted by | be permitted by
RBI RBI
Upper Tier Il Bonds
Upper Tier 11 Upper Tier Il Upper Tier Il Upper Tier Il
SERIES | SERIES I SERIES Il SERIES IV
1 Issuer PSU Bank PSU Bank PSU Bank PSU Bank
2 Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN
or Bloomberg identifier for private INE565A09140 | INE565A09173 | INE565A09199 | INE565A09223
placement)
3 Governing law(s) of the instrument Chennai Chennai Chennai Chennai
Regulatory treatment
4 Transitional Basel Ill rules Tier |l Tier |l Tier Il Tier Il
5 Post-transitional Basel Il rules Tier Il Tier Il Tier Il Tier Il
6 Eligible at solo/group/group @ solo Solo Solo Solo Solo
7 Instrument type Upper Tier Upper Tier Upper Tier Upper Tier
Il capital Il capital Il capital Il capital
instrument instrument instrument instrument
8 Amount recognised in regulatory capital
. Incrore, as of most recent reporting 500 655.30 510 967
date)
9 Par value of instrument . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs
10 | Account classification Liability Liability Liability Liability
11 | Original date of issuance 05.09.2006 17.09.2008 01.09.2009 10.01.2011
12 | Perpetual or dated dated dated dated dated
13 | Original maturity date 05.09.2021 17.09.2023 01.09.2024 10.01.2026
14 | Issuer call subject to prior supervisory Yes Yes Yes Yes
approval
15| Optional call date, contingent call dates | g5 09 o016 il | 17.09.2018nil | 01.09.2019nil | 10.01.2021 il
and redemption amount (in . crore) 500 655.30 510 967
16 Subsequent_cgll dates, if applicable No No No No
Coupons / dividends
17 | Fixed or floating dividend/coupon Fixed Fixed Fixed Fixed
18 | Coupon rate and any related index Coupon rate Coupon rate Coupon rate Coupon rate
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19 | Existence of a dividend stopper No No No No

20 | Fully discretionary, partially discretionary Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory
or mandatory

21 | Existence of step up or other incentive
to redeem Step-up Step-up Step-up Step-up

22 | Non-cumulative or cumulative Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative

23 | Convertible or non-convertible Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible

24 | If convertible, conversion trigger(s) N/A N/A N/A N/A

25 | If convertible, fully or partially N/A N/A N/A N/A

26 | If convertible, conversion rate N/A N/A N/A N/A

27 | If conve!'tlble, mandatory or optional N/A N/A N/A N/A
conversion

28 |If convgnlblg, specify instrument type N/A N/A N/A N/A
convertible into

29 | If convertible, specify issuer of
instrument it converts into N/A N/A N/A N/A

30 | Write-down feature No No No No

31 | If write-down, write-down trigger(s) N/A N/A N/A N/A

32 | If write-down, full or partial N/A N/A N/A N/A

33 | If write-down, permanent or temporary N/A N/A N/A N/A

34 |If tgmporary wrltg-down, description of N/A N/A N/A N/A
write-up mechanism

35 | Position in subordination hierarchy in Subordinate Subordinate Subordinate Subordinate
liquidation (specify instrument type to claims of all to claims of all to claims of all to claims of all
immediately senior to instrument) other creditors other creditors other creditors other creditors

and depositors | and depositors | and depositors | and depositors
36 | Non-compliant transitioned features No No No No
37 | If yes, specify non-compliant features Call option & Call option & Call option & Call option &

redemption to
be permitted by

Instrument

Instrument

Instrument

RBI RBI RBI RBI
Perpetual Bonds
Perpetual Perpetual Perpetual Perpetual
SERIES | SERIES Il SERIES Il SERIES IV
1 Issuer PSU Bank PSU Bank PSU Bank PSU Bank
2 Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN
or Bloomberg identifier for private INE565A09116 | INE565A09124 | INE565A09157 | INE565A09207
placement)
3 Sggﬁ[gtiggy tr'::;r(iiamd the instrument Chennai Chennai Chennai Chennai
4 Transitional Basel Ill rules Additional Tier | | Additional Tier| | Additional Tier | | Additional Tier |
5 Post-transitional Basel Il rules Additional Tier | | Additional Tier| | Additional Tier | | Additional Tier |
6 Eligible at solo/group/group @ solo Solo Solo Solo Solo
7 Instrument type Perpetual Debt | Perpetual Debt | Perpetual Debt | Perpetual Debt

Instrument
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8 Amount recognised in regulatory capital
. In crore, as of most recent reporting 200 200 80 300
date)
9 Par value of instrument Z. 10.00 lakhs Z. 10.00 lakhs Z. 10.00 lakhs Z. 10.00 lakhs
10 | Account classification Liability Liability Liability Liability
11 | Original date of issuance 31.03.2006 18.05.2006 30.09.2006 29.09.2009
12 | Perpetual or dated Perpetual Perpetual Perpetual Perpetual
13 | Original maturity date Perpetual Perpetual Perpetual Perpetual
14 | Issuer call subject to prior supervisory Yes Yes Yes Yes
approval
15| Optional call date, contingent call dates | o0 nil, nil, 200 nil, nil, 80 nil, nil, 300
and redemption amount . in crore)
16 Subsequent' f:all dates, if applicable No No No No
Coupons / dividends
17 | Fixed or floating dividend/coupon Fixed Fixed Fixed Fixed
18 | Coupon rate and any related index Coupon rate Coupon rate Coupon rate Coupon rate
19 | Existence of a dividend stopper Yes Yes Yes Yes
20 | Fully discretionary, partially discretionary Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory
or mandatory
21 | Existence of step up or other incentive
to redeem Step-up Step-up Step-up Step-up
22 | Non-cumulative or cumulative Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative
23 | Convertible or non-convertible Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible
24 | If convertible, conversion trigger(s) N/A N/A N/A N/A
25 | If convertible, fully or partially N/A N/A N/A N/A
26 | If convertible, conversion rate N/A N/A N/A N/A
27 | If conve!’ﬂble, mandatory or optional N/A N/A N/A N/A
conversion
28 | If conv_ertlb_le, specify instrument type N/A N/A N/A N/A
convertible into
29 !f convenlb[e, specify |§suer of N/A N/A N/A N/A
instrument it converts into
30 | Write-down feature No No No No
31 | If write-down, write-down trigger(s) N/A N/A N/A N/A
32 | If write-down, full or partial N/A N/A N/A N/A
33 | If write-down, permanent or temporary N/A N/A N/A N/A
34 |If Femporary wrlt_e-down, description of N/A N/A N/A N/A
write-up mechanism
35 | Position in subordination hierarchy in Superior Superior Superior Superior
liquidation ~ (specify instrument  type to equity to equity to equity to equity
immediately senior to instrument) shareholders shareholders shareholders shareholders
and subordinate | and subordinate | and subordinate | and subordinate
to claims of all to claims of all to claims of all to claims of all
other creditors other creditors other creditors other creditors
36 | Non-compliant transitioned features Yes Yes Yes Yes
37 | If yes, specify non-compliant features Call option to be | Call option to be | Call option to be | Call option to be

permitted by RBI

permitted by RBI

permitted by RBI

permitted by RBI
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Table DF - 14: Full Terms and conditions of Regulatory Capital Instruments

Lower Tier Il Bonds

Lower Tier Il Lower Tier Il Lower Tier Il Lower Tier Il
SERIES VI SERIES VII SERIES VI SERIES IX
1 | Unique identiier (e.g. CUSIR ISIN or| \\rsesnno06s | INES65A09074 | INESE5A09082 | INES65A09090
Bloomberg identifier for private placement
2 Instrument type Tier Il debt Tier Il debt Tier Il debt Tier Il debt
instruments instruments instruments instruments
Par value of instrument Z. 10.00 lakhs Z. 10.00 lakhs Z. 10.00 lakhs Z. 10.00 lakhs
4 Issuer call subject toprior supervisory Not applicable | Notapplicable | Not applicable | Not applicable
approval
5 Optional call date, contingent call dates
and redemption amount nil, nil, 200 nil, nil, 150 nil, nil, 200 nil, nil, 250
. incrore)
6 Subsequent call dates, if applicable Not applicable | Notapplicable | Not applicable | Not applicable
7 Fixed or floating dividend/coupon Fixed Fixed Fixed Fixed
8 Coupon rate and any related index Coupon rate Coupon rate Coupon rate Coupon rate
9 Existence of a dividend stopper Yes Yes Yes Yes
10 | Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory
mandatory
11 | Existence of step up or other incentive to Nil Nil Nil Nil
redeem
12 | Non-cumulative or cumulative Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative
13 | Convertible or non-convertible Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible
14 | Position in subordination hierarchy in| Subordinate Subordinate Subordinate Subordinate
liquidation  (specify instrument type | toclaimsofall | toclaimsofall | toclaimsofall | to claims of all
immediately senior to instrument) other creditors | other creditors | other creditors | other creditors
and depositors | and depositors | and depositors | and depositors
15 | Non-compliant transitioned features No No No No
16 | If yes, specify non-compliant features Redemptionto | Redemptionto | Redemptionto | Redemption to
be permitted by | be permitted by | be permitted by | be permitted by
RBI RBI RBI RBI
Lower Tier Il | Lower Tierll | Lower Tierll | Lower Tier Il
SERIES X SERIES XI SERIES XlI SERIES X1l
1 Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN
or Bloomberg identifier for private INE565A09108 | INE565A09132 | INE565A09165 | INE5S65A09181
placement
2 Instrument type Tier Il debt Tier Il debt Tier Il debt Tier Il debt
instruments instruments instruments instruments
3 Par value of instrument . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs %.10.00 lakhs | %. 10.00 lakhs
4 Issuer call subject to prior . . . .
supervisory approval Not applicable | Not applicable | Not applicable | Not applicable
5 Optional call date, contingent call dates - - - .
and redemption amount . in crore) nil, nil, 300 nil, nil, 500 nil, nil, 300 nil, nil, 290
6 | Subsequent call dates, if applicable Not applicable | Not applicable | Not applicable | Not applicable
7 | Fixed or floating dividend/coupon Fixed Fixed Fixed Fixed
8 | Coupon rate and any related index Coupon rate Coupon rate Coupon rate Coupon rate
9 |Existence of a dividend stopper Yes Yes Yes Yes
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10 zlrjlrlxac:]i(sj;;gtri;nary, partially discretionary Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory
11 ix(;s(;t::qce of step up or other incentive to Nil Nil Nil Nil
12 | Non-cumulative or cumulative Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative
13 | Convertible or non-convertible Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible
14 | Position in subordination hierarchy in Subordinate Subordinate Subordinate Subordinate
liquidation (specify instrument type to claims of all | to claims of all | to claims of all | to claims of all
immediately senior to instrument) other creditors | other creditors | other creditors | other creditors
and depositors | and depositors | and depositors | and depositors
15 | Non-compliant transitioned features No No No No
16 | If yes, specify non-compliant features Redemption to | Redemption to | Redemption to | Redemption to
be permitted by | be permitted by | be permitted by | be permitted by
RBI RBI RBI RBI
Lower Tier Il
SERIES XIV
1 Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN or Bloomberg identifier for private placement INE565A09215
2 Instrument type Tier Il debt instruments
3 Par value of instrument . 10.00 lakhs
4 Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval Not applicable
5 Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount . in crore) nil, nil, 1000
6 Subsequent call dates, if applicable Not applicable
7 Fixed or floating dividend/coupon Fixed
8 Coupon rate and any related index Coupon rate
9 Existence of a dividend stopper Yes
10 | Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory Mandatory
11 Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem Nil
12 |Non-cumulative or cumulative Non-cumulative
13 |Convertible or non-convertible Non-convertible
14 | Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation (specify instrument type| Subordinate to claims of all other
immediately senior to instrument) creditors and depositors
15 |Non-compliant transitioned features No
16 | If yes, specify non-compliant features Redemption to be permitted by RBI

Upper Tier Il Bonds

Upper Tier I Upper Tier I Upper Tier I Upper Tier Il
SERIES | SERIES I SERIES Il SERIES IV
1 Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN
or Bloomberg identifier for private INE565A09140 | INE565A09173 | INE565A09199 | INE565A09223
placement
2 Instrument type Upper Tier Upper Tier Upper Tier Upper Tier
Il capital Il capital I capital I capital
instrument instrument instrument instrument
3 Par value of instrument . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs
4 Issuer call subject to prior supervisory Yes Yes Yes Yes
approval
5 Optional call date, contingent call dates| 05.09.2016, nil, | 17.09.2018, nil, | 01.09.2019, nil, | 10.01.2021, nil,
and redemption amount (in . crore) 500 655.30 510 967
6 Subsequent call dates, if applicable No No No No
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7 Fixed or floating dividend/coupon Fixed Fixed Fixed Fixed
8 Coupon rate and any related index Coupon rate Coupon rate Coupon rate Coupon rate
9 Existence of a dividend stopper Yes Yes Yes Yes
10 |Fully discretionary, partially discretionary Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory
or mandatory
11 |Existence of step up or other incentive to Step-up Step-up Step-up Step-up
redeem
12 |Non-cumulative or cumulative Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative
13 |Convertible or non-convertible Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible
14 |Position in subordination hierarchy in| Subordinateto | Subordinateto | Subordinateto | Subordinate to
liquidation (specify instrument type |claims of all other | claims of all other | claims of all other | claims of all other
immediately senior to instrument) creditors and creditors and creditors and creditors and
depositors depositors depositors depositors
15 |Non-compliant transitioned features No No No No
16 |If yes, specify non-compliant features Call option & Call option & Call option & Call option &

redemption to be
permitted by RBI

redemption to be
permitted by RBI

redemption to be
permitted by RBI

redemption to be
permitted by RBI

Perpetual Bonds

Perpetual Perpetual Perpetual Perpetual
SERIES | SERIES Il SERIES I SERIES IV
1 Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN
or Bloomberg identifier for private| INE565A09116 | INE565A09124 | INE565A09157 | INE565A09207
placement
2 Instrument type Perpetual Debt Perpetual Debt Perpetual Debt Perpetual Debt
Instrument Instrument Instrument Instrument
3 Par value of instrument . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs . 10.00 lakhs
4 Perpetual or dated Perpetual Perpetual Perpetual Perpetual
5 Original maturity date Perpetual Perpetual Perpetual Perpetual
6 Issuer call subject to prior supervisory Yes Yes Yes Yes
approval
7 |Optional call date, contingent call dates| ;- 50 nil, nil, 200 nil, nil, 80 nil, nil, 300
and redemption amount . in crore)
8 Fixed or floating dividend/coupon Fixed Fixed Fixed Fixed
9 Existence of a dividend stopper Yes Yes Yes Yes
10 |Fully discretionary, partially discretionary Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory Mandatory
or mandatory
11 | Existence of step up or other incentive to Step-up Step-up Step-up Step-up
redeem
12 |Non-cumulative or cumulative Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative | Non-cumulative
13 | Convertible or non-convertible Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible | Non-convertible
14 |Position in subordination hierarchy in Superior Superior Superior Superior
liquidation (specify instrument type to equity to equity to equity to equity
immediately senior to instrument) shareholders and | shareholders and | shareholders and | shareholders and
subordinate to subordinate to subordinate to subordinate to
claims of all other | claims of all other | claims of all other | claims of all other
creditors creditors creditors creditors
15 |Non-compliant transitioned features Yes Yes Yes Yes
16 |If yes, specify non-compliant features Call option to be | Call option to be | Call option to be | Call option to be

permitted by RBI

permitted by RBI

permitted by RBI

permitted by RBI
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The President of India

Report on the Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Indian Overseas Bank as at 315 March, 2014, which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014, and Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. Incorporated in these
financial statements are the returns of 20 branches audited by us and 1540 branches including 6 overseas branches
audited by branch auditors. The branches audited by us and those audited by other auditors have been selected by the
Bank in accordance with the guidelines issued to the Bank by the Reserve Bank of India. Also incorporated in the Balance
Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are the returns from 1748 branches which have not been subjected to audit.
These unaudited branches account for 7.04 per cent of advances, 18.50 per cent of deposits, 18.08 per cent of interest
income and 16.40 per cent of interest expenses.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with Banking Regulations
Act 1949. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

5.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

6.

In our opinion, as shown by books of the Bank, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

(i) the Balance Sheet, read with the notes thereon is a full and fair Balance Sheet containing all the necessary particulars,
is properly drawn up so as to exhibit a true and fair view of state of affairs of the Bank as at 31t March 2014 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India;

(i) the Profit and Loss Account, read with the notes thereon shows a true balance of profit in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in India, for the year covered by the account; and

(iiiy the Cash Flow Statement gives a true and fair view of the Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.
Emphasis of Matter

a) We draw attention to Note No.8 regarding amortization of pension and gratuity liability of I. 1005.21 crore over a
period of 5 years from 31.3.2011.

b) We draw attention to Note No 3.5 regarding utilization of floating provision and counter cyclical provisioning buffer
held as on March 31,2013 for meeting specific provision for non performing assets during the year ended March
31,2014 amounting to . 324.20 crore.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the above.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8.

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in Forms “A” and “B” respectively of the Third
Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.
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9. Subject to the limitations of the audit indicated in paragraph 1 to 5 above and as required by the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970, and subject also to the limitations of disclosure required therein, we
report that:

(@) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary
for the purposes of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory.

G5

The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank.

—
(¢)
-

The returns received from the offices and branches of the Bank have been found adequate for the purpose of our
audit.

In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement comply with the applicable
Accounting Standards.

FOR BADARI, MADHUSUDHAN & SRINIVASAN FOR B.THIAGARAJAN & CO FOR SANKAR & MOORTHY
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN 005389S FRN 004371S FRN 003575S

(N. SRINIVASAN) (B. THIAGARAJAN) (V.C. JAMES)

Partner Partner Partner

M.No. 027887 M.No0.018270 M.No.22565

FOR PR.MEHRA & CO FOR DASS KHANNA & CO

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

FRN 000051N FRN 000402N

(SWINDER KUMAR) (RAKESH SONI)

Partner Partner

M.No. 014211 M.No. 083142

Place: Chennai
Date: 29.04.2014
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Instructions to shareholders : Most Urgent and Immediate

Sehehrd U (SUHHT HT STRIUETT S 3faoT) ST foreeft Heand
fafy (wates) sAfuf=m 2006 st 16 10 2006 & gt €, =
SFehehi Ul (IThHT BT SIRTRVT TS fawoT) srferfram 1970 |
faeferfigaran us 72 g 10 () sts & 2 :
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Tl st T @ 7 Tt 9 S7eT AT T Tehatehur /
Trar TR € @ S & e ure] @ # W vt
T AT |G -mme & Tt amgsiisl 1 stEw
T Wrar v Tt Uk AT Wi W Sfaia &
ez s

1.

3T ATHIYT W W 3idRa &t Mot i oft T
3T Tt AT @ AT 6l et 3G & T g
T ITETATFRA et & ASH st TefrEm 1956wt
&Y 205 (1) (W) o g T fares e ue
TR e (MmegHiuw) =t i feham [T |
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B U, deh @d ¥ URed gearie S4 e
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HET R, 7 TR MWW T FU1 i = o 6 TR,
& g1 20.06.2014 T 3= T T fown & &R
AT ST (7 A TERENS 3 $HITE ST 1 e
e gt 39 AfURIE Wid | ST M) G |

TRITCTAT ShT WHEHH : I8 T 11 {6 &8 WeRERa! g
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ST T FH FARY 5 AR | S W & 5 3
IR % T 8 370 TR FHI0-TE1 &l TR TR
F TF DAL ST TSHUSH Hl SHHRFE H SaTTH IR
3 awd |

1.

The Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer
of Undertakings) and Financial Institutions Laws
(Amendment) Act, 2006, which has come into force
on 16.10.2006 has inserted a new section 10(B) in
the Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of
Undertakings) Act, 1970 which provides as under :

Within 7 days from the expiry of 30 days from the date
of declaration, if any shareholder has not encashed/
claimed the dividend, such amounts lying in the bank
Dividend current account, shall be transferred to a
separate account styled “Unpaid Dividend Account
of IOB fortheyear __ ”

Any money transferred to the Unpaid Dividend
account which remains unpaid or unclaimed for a
period of seven years from the date of such transfer,
shall be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF)established under section
205(1)(C) of the Companies Act, 1956.

Hence the Shareholders who have not received/
encashed the dividend for financial years 2000-01,
2001-02, 2002-03 Interim/Final Dividend 2003-04,
Interim Final Dividend 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-
08, 2008-09, 2009-10, 2010-11, 2011-12, 2012-13,and
interim dividend for the year 2013-14 are requested to
send their claim along with details of Folio No.(s) to
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, M/s Cameo Corporate
Services Ltd, (Unit-IOB), Subramanian Building, 1 Floor,
No 1 Club House Road, Chennai 600 002 or to Investor
Relations Cell, Indian Overseas Bank, Central Office,
763 Anna Salai, Chennai 600 002.

Shareholders are also requested to send their claims, if
any, in case of non receipt of refund orders in respect of
our Public Issue 2000 and Follow on Public Issue 2003
along with Application Number to Investor Relations
Cell, Indian Overseas Bank, Central Office,763, Anna
Salai, Chennai-600 002.

The shareholders, who are holding shares in
electronic form have to approach only the DP
concerned and not the Registrar for any change in the
mandated particulars like change of address, Bank
Account, etc.,. Please note that the Registrar would
send the dividend warrant (or credit to the mandated
account in the case of shareholders who have opted for
ECS credit) based on the particulars furnished by DP to
the Registrar as on 20.06.2014.

Consolidation of Folios : It has been found that many
shareholders maintain more than one folio (ie.) multiple
folios. In order to provide efficient service to shareholders,
we request the shareholders to consolidate the folios by
forwarding their share certificates to our Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent for necessary corrections in their
records.
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Indian Overseas Bank
Central Office: 763, Anna Salai, Chennai - 600 002

FORM ‘B’
FORM OF PROXY

See Sub-Regulation (jii) of regulation 70)
(TO BE FILLED IN AND SIGNED BY THE SHAREHOLDER)

Regd. Folio

No. (If not Dematerialised)

D P Id No.

Cl. Id No.
T TS TV PP PP PPTOPPPRP resident(s) of
................................................................................................................................... in the district of..........ccoooiiiii,
.................................................. inthe State.............c.ccovecniicciciseceeeeenn, being @ shareholder/shareholders of Indian
Overseas Bank, hereby appoint Shri/Smt ..........cccocoiiiiiiiiniin resident Of ..o in the
districtof ........ccoviiiiiiin intheStateof............coovviviiiiniinne ORfailinghim/herShri/Smt............cooiiiiiiiiinii,
resident of ........oooiiiiiii in the district of ..............coooiii in the State of ..........ocooiiiii

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/ our behalf at the 14" Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Indian
Overseas Bank to be held on Friday, 27" June 2014 at 10.00 A.M. at Rani Seethai Hall, 603 Anna Salai, Chennai 600006 and

at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this.........ccccevineinenn day of....ccvvviiiie 2014
(Signature of the Proxy)
Please affix
NaME ..o z. 1/
AAIESS ..o Revenue
Stamp

..................................................................... Signature of the first named/sole holder

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SIGNING AND LODGING THE PROXY FORM

1. Noinstrument of proxy shall be valid unless
a) inthe case of an individual shareholder, it is signed by him/her or his/her attorney, duly authorised in writing,

b) in the case of joint holders, it is signed by the shareholder first named in the register or his / her attorney, duly
authorised in writing,
c) inthe case of a body corporate signed by its officer or an attorney duly authorised in writing.
2. Aninstrument of proxy shall be sufficiently signed by the shareholder. If for any reason he/she is unable to sign, then his
/ her mark shall be affixed thereto and attested by a Judge, Magistrate, Registrar or Sub-Registrar of Assurances or other
Government Gazetted Officer or an Officer of Indian Overseas Bank.
3. The proxy together with
a) the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or
b) a copy of the power of attorney or authority, certified by a Notary Public or a Magistrate, should be deposited at
the Central Office of Indian Overseas Bank with the General Manager (Investor Relations), Indian Overseas Bank,
Central Office, 763, Anna Salai, Chennai 600 002, not less than FOUR DAYS before the date of the Annual General
Meeting i.e. on or before the closing hours of 02.00 p.m. on Saturday, 21st June 2014.
4. No instrument of Proxy shall be valid unless it is duly stamped.

1. Aninstrument of proxy deposited with the Bank shall be irrevocable and final.

2. Inthe case of an instrument of proxy granted in favour of two grantees in the alternative, not more than one form shall
be executed.

3. The shareholder who has executed an instrument of proxy shall not be entitled to vote in person at the Extraordinary
General Meeting to which such instrument relates.

4. No person shall be appointed as duly authorised representative or a proxy who is an officer or an employee of Indian
Overseas Bank.
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Indian Overseas Bank

Central Office
763, Anna Salai, Chennai — 600 002

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(to be surrendered at the time of Entry to the Venue)

Date: 27th June 2014
Time: 10.00 A.M.

Place: Rani Seethai Hall, 603 Anna Salai, Chennai 600006

| hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

Signature of the Shareholder / Proxy /
Representative present

Regd. Folio DP ID
Client ID
(If not dematerialised) (If dematerialised)

Name of the Shareholder

Number of Shares
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Indian Overseas Bank

DEPOSITORY SERVICES BRANCH
Cathedral Branch (Mezzanine Floor)
762, Anna Salai, Chennai 600 002
Phone 28513617/3618 Fax — 28513619
email — deposit@chemsco.iobnet.co.in

Contact persons — Mr.V. Srinivasan/Mr.R.S. Mani

APPEAL TO SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING PHYSICAL SHARES

Do you want to prevent loss or theft or damage to your physical shares?

Do you want to avoid incurring stamp duty and delay in transfer of shares?

Do you want to sell your shares and realize the proceeds quickly for your urgent needs?
Do you intend to receive credit of dividend amount into your bank account directly?

Do you want to communicate change of address/bank account/nominee to all your holdings at
one go?

Do you wish to make further investments in shares through Public/Rights Issues?

THE ONLY ANSWER TO ALL THESE QUESTIONS IS TO CONVERT YOUR PHYSICAL SHARES
INTO DEMAT BY OPENING A DEMAT ACCOUNT WITH US.

Open demat account with 0B (at the branches printed overleaf) and enjoy the following other
benefits.

>

vV VWV ¥V V VYV VY V

Concessional AMC charges depending on holding value

Get SMS alert for each debit

Receive daily SMS alert on favourable change in the value of portfolio
View your share balances online

Raise loan on the shares easily

Instant transfer of shares to nominee

Keep Mutual Fund/Bond/Gold ETF in the same demat account

Distribute your wealth in the form of shares among your family members by opening demat
account in their names also and transfer the shares
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Indian Overseas Bank

DEPOSITORY SERVICES BRANCH
Cathedral Branch (Mezzanine Floor)
762, Anna Salai, Chennai 600 002
Phone 28513617/3618 Fax — 28513619
email — deposit@chemsco.iobnet.co.in

Contact persons — Mr.V. Srinivasan/Mr.R.S. Mani

SERVICE CENTRES OF CHENNAI DEPOSITORY SERVICES

Name of City Name of Branch Name of Branch Name of Branch

AMRITSAR 1. Amritsar Main

AHMEDABAD 2. Ashram Road

BANGALORE 3.Malleswaram 4. Bangalore Main

BARODA 5. Baroda Main

CHENNAI 6. Anna Nagar 7. Cathedral 8. Esplanade
9. Nungambakkam 10. Saidapet 11. Sowcarpet
12. T. Nagar 13. Teynampet 14. Velachery
15. Wall Tax Road 16. Dr. R.K. Salai 17. Mylapore
18. Besant Nagar 19. Chennai Depository

COIMBATORE 20. Coimbatore Main

ERNAKULAM 21. Ernakulam Main

HYDERABAD 22. Hyderabad Main

JAIPUR 23. M | Road, Jaipur

KOLKATA 24. India Exch. Place 25. Lansdowne Mkt.

MUMBAI 26. Andheri (East) 27. Borivili (West) 28. Breach Candy
29. Capital Market Services | 30. Chembur 31. Dombivili (East)
32. Fort 33. Flora Fountain 34. Ghatkopar
35. Juhu 36. Jogeshwari (E) 37. Kalbadevi Road
38. Kandivili (East) 39. Khar 40. Mahim
41. Malad (West) 42. Mandvi 43. New Marine Lines
44. Nand Jyot Indl. Estate 45. Santacruz (W) 46. Sion (East)
47. Vile Parle (East) 48. Nariman Point 49. Vashi
50. Thane (West) 51. Worli

NEW DELHI 52. Janpath 53. Model Town

RAJKOT 54. Rajkot Main

SURAT 55. Surat Main

OTHER PLACES 56. Gandhinagar (Gujarat) 57. Vishakapatnam
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From:

To:

M/s.Cameo Corporate Services Limited
Unit : INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK
‘Subramanin Building °

No.1 Club House Road

Chennai - 600002

Dear Sir(s),

Date :

Ref: PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND THROUGH NATIONAL ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICES (NECS)

Name of First Holder (In Block Letter)

Folio No.

No of shares

Bank A/c Type  [Please tick (V ) ]

Savings Current  Cash Credit
Alc Alc Alc

Bank Account Number

Name of the Bank

Branch Name

IFSC Code

Full Address of the Bank

9- Digit Code number of the Bank & Branch appearing on the
MICR cheque issued by the Bank (Please attach Photocopy of a
cheque or a blank cancelled cheque issued by your bank relating

to your above account for verifying the accuracy of the code.

| agree to avail of the Electronic Clearing Service, as and when implemented by Indian Overseas Bank for payment of

dividend to me.

| hereby declare that the particulars given above are correct and complete . If the transaction is delayed or not effected at all
for reasons of incomplete or incorrect information, | would not hold Indian Overseas Bank / Registrar responsible .

| further undertake to inform the registrar / Indian Overseas bank any change in my Bank, Branch and Account no.

(Signature of the First / Sole shareholder)
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OUR RETAIL PRODUCTS AT A GLANCE

1.EASY TRADE FINANCE -

Hassle free working capital finance and Term Loan to Traders.
Purpose: To meet the working capital and term loan needs
Quantum: Maximum of Rs. 3.00 Crs ( Fund Based ) + Rs.1.50 Crs
(Non Fund ).

Security: Secured by immovable property/liquid security.

Margin: 10 to 50%

Repayment: Term Loan- 48 EMI/ cash credit-Annual renewal.

2.SUBHAGRUHA

Eligibility: Persons with Independent and regular income.

Purpose: Acquisition/ Construction of a flat or a house.

Quantum: Upto 80% of the cost of the House.

Margin: 20% inclusive of cost of land.

Security: Mortgage of property to be financed.

Processing Charge @0.58% of the loan amount subject to a
Maximum of Rs.15,000/-

Repayment: Maximum 30 years including Holiday Period ( Maximum
70 years at the time of exit)

3.PUSHPAKA

Purpose: To purchase new/old car/new Two wheelers

Quantum: New Car / Two Wheeler - 90% of cost and for Old car 75%
of cost.

Margin: Varies from 10 to 25%.

Security: Hypothecation of vehicles.

Repayment: Varies from 24 to 84 EMI

4.SANJEEVINI

Eligibility: Qualified / Registered individual Medical Practitioners
recognized by Indian Council of Medical Research, including Dental
Surgeons, Polyclinics etc

Purpose: To set up New hospital/ Nursing home etc.

Quantum: Maximum loan varies from Rs.10 lakhs to Rs.5 crores.
Margin: Varies from 15 to 30%

Security: Equipments/ Immovable property/NSC/LIC.

Repayment: 5 to 7 years.

5. 10B- AKSHAY

Loans against LIC policies

Quantum: 90% of Surrender value of Life Policies.
Security: Assignment of LIC Policy.

Repayment: Maximum-48 EMI

6. COMMERCIAL CASH CREDIT AGAINST JEWELLERY
For business needs/running a commercial activity of people engaged
in business, against prime security of Jewels.

7. CLEAN LOAN

» Loan for salaried employees to meet personal and domestic
expenses.

» Quantum of loan-10 times the monthly salary or Rs.15 Lakhs
whichever is lower for employees whose salary is routed
through us and for others 5 times the monthly salary or Rs.1
Lac whichever is lower.

» Quantum of loan- for LIC agents, 10 times of average monthly
commission in a year with a maximum of Rs.10 Lacs.

» Repayment-60 EMI where the loan amount is based on 10
months salary/ commission and 36 EMI for others.

8. SAHAYIKA
» Loan to meet Social commitments like marriage etc.
Applicant should be an individual in employment or
Business/professional or self employed with regular income
against mortgage of immovable property.
» Quantum of loan amount Rs.10 Lacs
» Repayment period: 60 EMIs

9. PENSIONER'’S LOAN SCHEME

» All pensioners to meet personal expenses.

» Repayment out of pension amount in 60 EMI for those below
65 years and 30 EMI for above 65 years.

» Quantum of Loan: Upto 65 years of age-10 times the monthly
pension or Rs. 2 Lac whichever is lower. Over 65 years of
age-10times of monthly pension or Rs.1Lac whichever is
lower.

10. IOB Royal:
» Loan up to Rs. 15.00 lacs for High net worth individuals
/| self employed for fulfilling all their financial aspirations,
whether it is for a dream holiday or any marriage expenses
or any of their social / financial commitments.
» Unique features like No security, guarantee, margin etc.

11. Reverse Mortgage:

» Reverse Mortgage Loan Scheme takes care of the financial
needs of senior citizens owning self occupied residential
house / flat for leading a decent life during their twilight days.

» Loan will be granted against the mortgage of residential
property subject to monthly installment does not exceed
Rs.50,000/-.

12. OB Surya - Scheme for financing Solar Energy Equipments:

» To purchase offgrid renewable solar energy equipments in
India as under:

Solar Cookers
Solar Heaters
Home/Indoor Lighting Systems

» Scheme A (For Individuals): Minimum of Rs 30,000/- and
Maximum of Rs 10.00 Lacs

» (85% on the project cost which includes cost of the system,
accessories, transportation & installation.)

» Scheme B (For Institutions): Minimum amount of Rs
1.00 Lac and Maximum of Rs 10.00 Lacs i.e. (80% on the
project cost which includes cost of the system, accessories,
transportation & installation).

13.10B PERSONAL LOAN
» To finance the purchase of consumer durables such as
electrical and electronic items, wooden and metal furniture
etc.
» Loan up to 90% of the cost of the article (or) 10 times the
gross monthly salary whichever is less.

14.10B HEALTH CARE PLUS

» Health insurance for entire family including parents, of
our individual account holders at a very low premium. No
medical examination required.

» Provides hospitalization expense in case of accidents,
sudden illness, surgery, in respect of any disease.

» Entry age limit is between 3 months and 65 years, coverage
is available upto age of 80 years only. Age limit for dependent
children- for male upto 21 years, for female upto 25 years or
till their marriage whichever is earlier.

» Pre-existing diseases can also be covered after three
consecutive claim free policy years.

» Cashless transaction through Third Party Administrator of
the policy.

» Coverage: Rs.50,000 to Rs 5 lakhs.

» Accidental death can be covered on payment of additional
premium.

» Tax benefit under section 80D.

FOR YOUR NEEDS PLEASE CONTACT OUR NEAREST BRANCH
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